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 Acadia,” Cruiser.............o...-- (n.p) 9%
Adulteration of Food...... ... «coc0ovnns 70
Agnes, Postmasterat ... ......... (n.p.) 2In
Agriculture, Annual Report.......... S 8
Agriculture, Superannuations in De-

partment of . .... ... oo oiiielnn (n.p.) 306
Alain, Napoléon........c.oooveennene (n,p.) 21q
¢ Alaska ” and ‘‘ Alert,” Steamers. . ..(n.p.) 77, 78
Alaska and Canada, Boundaryof ... .... 99
Anticosti Island.. .... PR 47
Archives, Canadian... ...........ccoooonnn 8a
Asheroft, BC.. .....covvvvnven -on (np) 61
Auditor General, Annual Report.......... 1

B

Baie des Chaleurs Railway. ......... (n.p.) 171
Bank Notes......................... (n.p.) 50
Banks, Chartered...... ................. 3
Banquedu Peuple............. ..... (n.p.) 67
Bath Postmaster................ ... (n.p.) 212
Bélanger, Fred........... e (n.p.) 2=z
Bonding Arrangements with U.8....(n.p.) 8
Bonils and Securities.... .. ....... (n.p.) 31
Boundary of Alaska....... .....ooouiinn 9
British American Bank Note Co ..... (o.p.) 129
British Canadian Loanand Investment

(0 Y (n.p) 35
British Columbia Fortifications. . ... (n.p.) 138, 138a
British Columbia Judges.. ... ...... (n.p.) 55, 72
British Columbia Statutes................. 110
British Columbia Statutes............ (o.p.) 1102
British Columbia, Turner Administrationin 89
Brown, Marion..... ....... ... . . (np) 174

(]
Caldwell, Wm. ................... (n.p.) 21w, 212
Canada Eastern Railway Co..... .... (n.p.) 117
Canadian Pacific Railway :
Landssold by..................... (n.p.) 41

Business with Interior Department.(n.p.) 42
Agreement with Dept. of Railways..(n.p.) 64

Caunals and River Works. ... ... _.... (n.p.) 150
Cattle Embargo...... .......... .. ... 86
Cattle Inspection........ .. ... .... (n.p.) 162, 162«
Cavalry Inspectors............ . ed(nep) 34
Central Railway Co .. ..... ... ..., (n.p.) 118
Champ de Mars, Montreal.. . (n.p.) 56
Charlotte County, Weirs in_ ........, (n.p.) 149
Chartered Banks ................... .. ... 3
Chicoutimi, Dismissals in............ (n.p.) 212
ChinaPoint... .... ..... . ... (n.p.) 94
Christie, W. J.....o.o0 ool ool (n.p.) 58, 58a
Civil Service :
Appointments and Promotions.. . ... . 108
Commission of inquiry....... ., ., (n.p.) 21y
Dismissale. .................... 103¢, e, f and
Dismissals................. (n.p.) 103, 1034, ¢, g
Examiners.... ... .................... 16¢
Immigration Officers... ........ ... (n.p.) 101
Insurance Act.. ............. .... ..., 29
List.ooeernenii e,
Outside service...........-. .. .... (n.p.) 1}1?
Post Office Department........ ... (o.p.) 152
Quebec employees.............. . {n.p.) 1036
Superannuations. 30
Superannuations....... ............ n
Clifton, Ne\v'London ............... ((u.; )) :132;' ’
Coal, Nanaimo Harbour ............. (n.p.) 169
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‘Coasting Laws ... 52 | Hal,Dr........................ (n.p.) 162, 162a
Coasting Laws .................. . (n.p.) 52¢ | Herns, John.... L (n.p) 2u
Commercial Privileges. .................. 109 | Hogg, W. A....... oo oo, (np) 2u
Coste, Louis. ....... . ......... ......... 66a | Homestead Entries. ... ... . ........ (n.p) 62
Coste, Louis. . ............coenvunnn (n.p.) 66, 137
Coteau Landing........ ... . e e 74 I
Crépeau, J. H. . ... .............. (n.p.) 21b
Criminal Statistics. ............... ....... 8¢ Indisn]Act... «..ooooovren e, (n.p.) 28
Crow’s Nest Pass Railway .. 70 | Indian Affairs, Annual Report. ........... 14
Customs Regulations, Klondike. 79 | Indians, Yale and Cariboo. .......... (n.p.) 167
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Insolvency Law ..................... (n.p.) 166
Deadmans Island ....... ............. .. 68a | Inspectors of Cavalry, &c............ (n.p.) 34
Deadman’sTsland ..... ............. {n.p.) 68 | Insurance, Annual Report ... ......... .. 4 .
Dewan and Skelton.... ........ ~....(n.p.) 170 | Insurance Companies............. ....... 4a, 4b
Diesand Plates ................ . .(n.p.) 105¢ | Intercolonial Railway:
Disallowance of British Columbia Statutes. 110 Archibald, Peter S...... e (n.p.) 2l¢
Disallowance of Manitoba Statutes........ 134 Expenditure.................ccoeee .. 57b
Dividen s Unpaid in Banks....... ....... 3a Extension to Montreal ... ....... . 88, 88a
Dominion Lands ............... .(n.p.) 36, 43, 45 Freight carried....... .. ............... 57
Dominion Police.. ......... ..... . (np) 26 Freight drawbacks....... ....... (n.p.) 57, h
Donaghue, W....................... (n.p.) 75 Michaud and Bélanger.... ....... (n.p.) 21z
Dredge “Prince Edward”.... ...... (n.p.) 164 Quebec service ...... e ...(np)  BTn
Dredging at Coteau Landing..... ....... 74 Restaurant at Grand Nnrrows ...... (n.p.) 57§
Drugs for Mounted Police......... .. (n.p.) 168 Revenue and expenditure.......... (n.p.) 57g
Drummond County Railway.............. 88, 88a Revenue collected ... ........ ......... 57a
Rollingstock . .......... .......... b7e, k
E Statistical information............ (n.p.) 57m
- Tenders for steel rails ... ........ (n.p.) 575
............... . 3
Eeate Duty, .‘.’f’.".“.‘.. ........... WP e | Tendemtortie. (0.} 57,4
Estimates. . 24 to 2¢ I o‘r 1ng expenses .. .. 57
Experimental Fa.rms _____ gp | Interior, Annual Report.. ............... 13
Iroquois, Locks at..... .. e - ~..(n.p.) 139
P Isleaux Noix .............. . (n.p.) 76
Fairlie, Mr..... ........coovivininn. (n.p.)  21s J
Farran’s Point Canal............ .... (n.p.) 144
Farran's Point, Locksat............. {n. p) 139 Jé ésus, River..... . el (np) 100
Fawcet, Mr.......... ........... .(n.p.} 80 | Joint High Comxmsalon ............ (n.p.) 125
Fisheries, Annual Report ....... P 1la | J ustice, Annual Report. . 18
Fishing Bounty ............... .. .(n.p.) 32
Fishing Licenses........ ............ (n.p.) 27, 83 K
Fortifications in British Columbia. ...(n.p.) 138 )
Fort Williamn Harbour.......... .. An.p.) 69 | Ketcheson, Freeman ... ... . ...... (np) 21p
Franchise, Electoral.. ................... 148 | Ring, George G ... ........c...... (n.p) 2%
FruitCulture.............evovuennn (n.p.) 161
=) L
Galna, John ................... oo (n.p.) 21v | Lachine Canal................ (n.p.) 21d, 163 to 163
GeographicBoard. ..... ................. 11} | Lands, Dominion.... ... ....... (n.p.) 36, 43, 456
Geological Survey Report............... . 13a | Leake, J. R... . ..... .. ....... (n.p.) 214
Gold Commissioner........... .. .. (n.p.). 383 | Lenoir, Alfred........... . .... .... (n.p.) 215
Gold Placer Mining ................. (n.p.) 40 | Letter Carriers in Victoria.... .... .(o.p.) 123
Government Buildings .......... .... (n.p.) 156 | Library of Parliament, Report........ .. 17
Governor (ieneral’s Warrants......... (n.p.) 24 | Lighting Government Buildings..... (n.p.) 156
Grand Narrows . .............. ... (n.p.) 67¢ | LittleSands......... ............... (n.p.) * 2la
Grand View, PEI.............. ... (n.p.) 166 | Lobster Commission.................... 11c
Gross, Boaz..... .......... .... 2N (np)  2r b Lobster Fishery Regulations......... (n.p.) 154
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Macdonald and Fraser, Deaths of. ........ 70 {PostCards........................ J(n.p.) 1054
Magdalen Island..... .....oveevnes (n.p.) 65 | Postmaster General, Annual R,eport ....... 12
Mailsfor PEI.........c..covevnens (n.p.) 115 | Postmasters, Dismissals of........... (n.p.) 211
Manitoba Election Prosecutions. .. . (n.p.)84, 84a | Post Offico Department........ .... (n.p.) 152
Manitoba School Lands....... ...... --- 48 | Potash Inspection........... . ... {np) 90
Manitoba School Lands...... .. ...- (n.p.) 48a, 165 Preferential Clause of Tariff .... ....... 109
Manitoba Statutes, Disallowance of .. ... 134 | Prime Minister............ ... .... (n.p) 98
Marine, Annual Report...... ......cco--- 11 | Prime Minister’s Statement.. . ...... (n.p.) 176
MarshHill... .......coooninnnnnns (n.p.)  22b | “Prince Edward,” Dredge ... (n.p.) 164
Meagher, Thomas. ........ ... . . .(n.p.) 107 | Prince Edward Island . S 1171
Merchant Shipping.... ... .. .... . -..-  11d | Prince Edward Island Mails. ....... (n.p.) 115
Michaud, Pierre.................0nno (n.p.) 21y | Prince Edward Igland Railway ....(n.p.) 57, 161
Middleton, W, C............... ... (np.) 60 | Prohibition Plebiscite........... .. .......
Militia and Defence, Annual Report. .....- 19 | Prohibition Plebiscite.............. (n.p.) 38, 160
Mining Claims ... ............o.even (n.p.) 62 | Protocol No. Ixiii...... . ..... ......... 99
Miscellaneous Unforeseen Expenses. . (n.p.) 26 | Public Accounts, Annual Report.......... 2
Mistassini Wharf..... ... ....... (n.p.) 73, 141 | Publications, Weightof .......... .. (np) 124
Montreal, Champ de Mars......... (n.p.) 56 | Public Printing and Stationery.......... .. 16b
Montrea! Custom House..... ....... (n.p.)  2l¢ | Public Records and Buildings... .... (n.p.) 49
Montreal Harbour. . ... . ..(n.p.) 93 | Public Works, Annual Report.......... ... 9
Morris, Dr .. ........ ..., (n.p.) 122
Q
Mo Quebec Government Employees. . ... . (n.p.) 103b
McMillan, William D .............. (n.p.) 21z | Quebec, Railway serviceto ......... (n.p.) b57n
McNeil, Joseph ....... s {(n.p.) 210 | Quebec Superior Court.......... .. (n.p.) 143
- Queen vs. Coulombe............ ... (n.p.) 126
R
Nanaimo Harbour.... ... .... ... (n.p.) 169
Nelson vs. Donelly...........ooe - (n.p.) 33 | Railways and Canals, Annual Report. . 10
Neufrage Pond .... .... ... ... .- (n.p.) 146 | Rebellionof 1885......... ...... ... (n.p.) 136
New Westminster Crown Timber Office (n.p.) 112 | Roberval, Building scows at.... ..... (np) 75
"North Channel........ .........ouee (n.p.) 169 | Roberval Pier.......... ... .. ... .n.p) 142
Northern Commercw.l Telegraph Co. (u.p.) 114 | Roche- Fendue and Calumet Dams ..(n.p.) 128
North Perott Post Office.. .. .c....--- (n.p.) 222 | Ross, Davx'd ...................... (n.p) 21
North-west Irrigation Act.. ... ... (n.p.) 44 | Royal Military College........ .... (n.p.) 54, 140
North-weat Mounted Police.............-- 15 | Rubidge, Tom. S................. .(n.p) 78
Norwood, H. H. .. ....ccovveeennes (n.p.) 132 | Russell, Charles........................... 113
Notes, Bank .............. oo -ove (n.p.) 50 | Russell, Mr........ . .............. (n.p.) 21k
o s
Ogilvie, William .................... (n.p.) 87, 92 | Saskatchewan Rebellion ........ ..., (n.p.) 136
Ogilvie, William, Raeport [ T {87, 87a, 87b School Lands, Manitoba........ . ....... 48
Ottawa, Water Power in the......... (n.p.) 147 | Scrimgeour, John Gow............. . (n.p.) 116
Ousllet, David ... oo oo coriennnn (n.p.) 162 | Scugog Island Indians..... ... . .(n.p.)21f, 120
Over-rulings of Treasury Beard..... (n.p.) 23 | Secretary of State, Annual Report......... 16
P Seizure of Traps and Ropes ......... (n.p.) 96
Shareholders in Chartered Banks.......... 3
PRCIfic Cable vuvveveeer o e e 51, bla, 51b| Shipping, List of......... .......... ..... 116
Personal Property ..........c --oocoe (n.p.) 46 | Shipping, Merchant ....... ............ 11d
Pictou Wharf.... ......coooonreeees (n.p) 145 | Skeltonand Dewan........... ... (n.p.) 170
Piersand Wharfs ....... .. .coo--- (n.p.) 135 | Solicitor General.. .. . ....... .. (n.p.) 98
Pilots’ GrieVANees. ... ... coeeeoonr e 11* | Songhees Indians. .. ............... (n.p.) 119
Plains of Abraham... ......cooeee-s (n.p.) 53 | SoulangesCamal..... . .......... .(n.p.) 172
Pointe Clare Wharf.................- (n.p.) 95 | Southport to Murray Harbour, Rail-
Police, Dominion........ .. ...ocov (n.p.) 26 WAY. oot e (n.p.) 127
Police, North-west Mounted .............- 15 | Special Report on Trade .... ... ..., ba
Postal NOLes. . .oe cveeiae ceeenens (n.p.) 105, 105b| Stamps, Postage ..................... .. 106
Postal Stampe. .. .. ..cooneeooiieanins (n.p.) 105a SStanley Park..... ... ..ol e 68
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Statement of Prime Minister......... (.p.) 175 | Walker, Christopher.. ... . .. (n.p) 2m
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St. John, N.B. .. . ...... .........(n.p) 158 | Weight of Publications....... . .... (n.p.) 124
St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary.......... 18 | Weirs in Charlotte County. .... ..... (n.p) 149
Submarine Cable to Skagway....... (n.p.) 97, 97a | Wharfs and Piers .......... . ...... (n.p.) 135
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Turner Administration, B.C........ .. ... 89 Gold inspector... ......... ... . (n.p.) 132
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LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS

Arranged in Numerical Order, with their Titles at full length ; the Dates when
Ordered and when Presented to both Houses of Parliament ; the Name of
the Member who moved for each Sessional Paper, and whether it is ordered
to be Printed or Not Printed.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 1.

(This volumne is bound in two parts.)

1. Report of the Auditor General, for the year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented (in part) 7th April,
1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding. Presented, complete, 26th April, 1899.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 2.

2. Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented 23rd March, 1899,
by Hon. W. 8. Fielding. .......... .. ..... ...Printed for both distribution and scssional papers.
2a. Estimates of sums required for the service of Canada, for the year ending on the 30th June, 1900.
Presented 24th April, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
2b. Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1899. Presented 12th June, 1899, by
Hon. W. 8. Fielding..........coeeveeennn oo Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
2¢. Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1900. Presented 18th July, 1899, by
Hon. W. 8. Fielding................ .+ ....Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
2c. Further Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1900. Presented 7th August,
1899, by Hon. W. 8. Fielding.......cc.coeennen Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
3. List of Shareholders of the Chartered Banks of the Dominion of Canada, as on 31st December, 1898,
Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
3a. Report of dividends remaining unpaid, and unclaimed balances in the Chartered Banks of Canada,
for five years and upwards, prior to 31st December, 1898. Presented 12th April, 1899, by Hon.
W.S. Fielding......eovivniiiinininan.. e Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 3.

4. Report of the Superintendent of Insurance, for the year ended 31st December, 1898.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
4a. Preliminary Statements of the business of Life Insurance Companies in Canada, for the year ended
31st December, 1898, Presented 10th April, 1899, by Hon. W 8. Fielding.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
4b. Abstract of Statements of Insurance Companies in Canada, for the year ended 31st December, 1898.
Presented 26th May, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
5
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5a.

6.

7.

7a.

7b.

8a.

8b.

9

10.

11.

114

11a.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 4.

Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 19th April, 1899, by Sir Richard Cartwright.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Special Report on Trade between Canada and the United States ; for use of the International Com-

mission, Quebec; August, 1898........ . ... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 5.

Tables of the Trade and Navigation of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th Juune, 1898, Pre-
sented 20th March, 1899, by Hon, W. Paterson.. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 6.

Inland Revenues of Canada. Excise, etc., for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898, Presented
21st March, 1899, by Sir Henri Joly de Lotbiniére.
Prirted for both distribution and sesgsional papers.
Inspection of Weights, Measures, Gas and Electric Light, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898.
Presented 21st March, 1899, by Sir Henri Joly de Lotbiniére.
Printed for both distribution and sessiynal papers.
Report on Adulteration of Food, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented 21st March,
1899, by Sir Henri Joly de Lotbiniére.... . .. Printed for both distribution and scssional papers.
Report of the Minister of Agriculture, for the year ended 31st October, 1898. Presented 11th April,
1899, by Hon. 8. A. Fisher.... ...... .. ..... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
Report on Canadian Archives, 1898. Presented 1st June, 1899, by Hon. S. A. Fisher.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 7,

Report of the Director and Officers of the Experimental Farms, for the year 1898. Presented 15th
May, 1899, by Hon. 8. A, Fisher ............. Printed for both distribution and scssional papers.

. Criminal Statistics for the year 1898.............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 8.

Annual Report of the Minister of Public Works, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 27th June, 1899, by Hon. W. 8. Fielding. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Annual Report of the Department of Railways and Canals, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,
1898. Presented 23rd March, 1899, by Hon. A. G. Blair.

: Printed for both disiribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 9.

Annual Report of the Department of Marine and Fisheries (Marine), for the fiscal year ended 30th
June, 1898. Presented Tth April, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

. Report of the Commissioners appointed under the Order in Council of the 11th January, 1898, to

inquire into the alleged grievances of the Pilots of the district of Montreal, etc.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
First Annual Report of the Geographic Board of Canada, 1898.
Printed for both distribution and sessional pa, ers.
Annual Report of the Department of Marine and Fisheries (Fisheries), for the fiscal year ended
30th June, 1898. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

6
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 10.

11b. List of Shipping 1ssued by the Department of Marine and Fisheries ; being a List of Vessels on the
registry books of Canada, on the 31st December, 1898.
Printcd for both distribution and sessional papers.
11c. Report of the Canadian Lobster Commission, 1898. Presented 29th June, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies.
Printed for Loth distribution and sessional papers.
11d. Report of Harbour Commissioners, &c., 1898..... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
12. Report of the P.stmaster General, for the year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented 22nd March,
1899, by Hon. W. Mulock..... .............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 11.

13. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year 1898. Presented 15th May, 1899,

by Hon. C. Sifton.. .. . - . Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
13a. Summary Report of the (1eo oglc&l Survey Depa.rtment, for the year 1898. Presented 24th Apri],
1899, by Hon. C. Sifton .......... . .. ... . Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 12.

14. Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs, for the year ended 80th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 21st March, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton. .... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

15. Report of the Commissioner of the North-West Mounted Police Force, 1898. Presented 14th Jfune,
1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier......... .......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 13.

16. Report of the Secretary of State of Canada, for the year ended 31st December, 1898. Presented
27th March, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier. . ..... ... . Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
18a. Civil Service List of Canada, 1898. Presented 27th March, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
16b. Annual Report of the Department of Public Printing and Stationery, for the yéar ended 30th June,
1898. Presented 10th April, 1899, by Hon. Sir Wilfrid Laurier.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
16¢. Report of the Board of Civil Service Examiners, for the year ended 31st December, 1898. Presented

2nd May, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
17. Report of the Joint lerar(ans of Parliament, for the ycar 1898. Presented 16th March, 1899, by
the Hon. The Speaker............. «.........- Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

18. Report of the Minister of Justice as to Penitentiaries of Canada, for the year ended 30th J une, 1898.
Presented 21st June, 1899, by Hon. C. Fitzpatrick.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
19. Report of the Department of Militia and Defence of Canada, for the year ended 31st December,
1898. Presented 27th March, 1899, by Hon. F. W. Borden.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 14.

20. Report on the Prohibition Plebiscite held on the 29th day of September, 1898, in Canada. Presented
24th April, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

21. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1897, for copies of all letters, cor-
respondence, petitions, etc., relating to the dismissal of David Ross as postmaster at Kinross, in
the province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 21st March, 1899.—Mr. Martin. . . Not printed.

21a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1897, for copies of all correspon-
dence, papers, petitions, etc., in connection with the dismissal of the late postm:uster at Little
Sands, province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 21st March, 1899.—Mr. Murtin.

7 Not printed.



62 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. A. 1899

21,

2e.

21d.

2e.

21f.

21y.

21h.

214

2.

21k

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 14—Continued.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1897, for copies of all papers, cor-
respondence, petitions, evidence, reports and documents of every nature connected with the dis-
missal of J. H. Crépeau as postmaster at St. Camille, county of Wolfe, province of Quebec.
Presented 218t March, 1899. — M7, JU€8........ . o v ceuiiireiiaainaarananaen Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return giving : {a) The
names of employees relieved from duty by the government by dismissal or otherwise in the Mont-
real custom-house from 13th July, 1396, to 1st March, 1898. (b) The years of service of each
employee so relieved of duty. (c) The amount of retiring allowance, if any. (d) The cause of
dismissal in each case. (¢) The amount of pay per annum of such employee at date of dismissal.
(f) The names of new employees appointed, whether permanently or temporarily, from 13th July,
1896, to 1st March, 1898. (g) The amount to be paid to each such new temporary or permanent
employee per month. Presented 2nd May, 1899.—-M7». Quinn.... ... e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd May, 1898, fcr a return showing the names
of all employees on the Lachine canal and St. Ann lock dismissed from the public service since the
23rd day of June, 1896, the cause of dismissal, the name of complainant in each case, the amount
of salary paid to the dismissed official, the name and salary paid to his successor in office. Presented
17th May, 1899.—-Mr. Monk... . ..oiuitinin cerei i eaeaeaeieae caee e Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all orders in
council, papers, depositions, reports, evidence, correspondence and documents in relation or
reference to any charges made against Peter S. Archibald, lately chief engineer of the Intercolo-
nial Railway, or to the dismissal of the said Peter S. Archibald from his position or office as such
chief engineer, or the grounds or reasons for such dismissal, or in relation or reference to any claim
of the said Peter S. Archibald for superannuation allowance or otherwise in relation or reference
to the retirement or dismissal of the said Peter S. Archibald from the service of the Intercolonial
Railway. Presented 25th May, 1899.-—M~. Borden (Halifaz)... .. e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 7th June, 1897, for a return of all correspon-
dence, reports and papers in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Wm. Bateman of Port Perry
from, and the appointment of Mr. Williams to, the position of agent to the Scugog Island Indians.
Presented 29th May, 1899.— M7, HUGRES. . .. ..o ireeieiirens teiianennnen nans Not printed.

Return to an grder of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for a statement of all persons
or commissions of inquiry appointed to inquire into the conduct of employees of the government
since August 1st, 1896, giving the names of commissioners, their rate of pay and allowances, the
aggregate total amount paid to each as pay and allowance, and the total expenses of each commis-
sion outside of pay and allowance ; also the names and post office addresses of all persons dismissed
on the reports of the commissioners (Inland Revenue). Presented 31st May, 1899. —M7r. Foster.

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all papers, docu-
ments and correspondence in connection with the dismissal of D). W. Ball from being postmaster
at the village of Bath, Ontario. Presented 2nd June, 1899. —Mr. Wilson..... .... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of the report of Mr.
Hawkins, post office inspector, in reference to the inquiry or investigation held on the conduct of
J. R, Leake, postmaster of Morton, in the county of Leeds, together with copies of all correspon-
dence, complaints, affidavits or declarations and evidence taken at the investigation relating to
said postmaster ; together with a copy of the notice of his dismissal. Presented 2nd June, 1899, —
Mr. Taylor. .. ... oot ittt et e e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th June, 1899, for copy of corresmndence, ete.,
relating to the dismissal of Mr. Alfred Lenoir, as fishery overseer at Isle Madame, in the county
of Richmond, Nova Scotia. Presented 5th June, 1899.—Sir Louis Davies.. ... . ...Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council respecting the appointment and dismissal of Mr. Russell, inspector of steamboats ; copies
of all reports and evidence touching an inquiry into his conduct ; also of all reports, papers and
correspondence respecting his last appointment or reinstatement to the public service ; also all
communications from, to or concerning this officer since he has been discharging duties in the Yukon
district. Presented 6th June, 1899.-—Sir C. Hibbert Tupper.................. ..... Not printed.

8.
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21l Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all petitions, corre-
spondence, letters or documents in relation to the following dismissals: Job Bilodeau, postmaster
of Chambord ; Louis Desbiens, postmaster of St. Jérome ; William Larouche, postmaster of Lake
Bouchette ; Ferdinand Larouche, postmaster of Delisle; F. X. Letourneau, postmaster of St.
Bruno, all in the county of Chicoutimi; together with all petitions, correspondence, letters or docu-
ments in relation to the appointment of their successors. Presented 13th June, 1899, —Mr. Casgrain.

Not printed.

21m. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all papers and
correspondence in reference to the dismissal of Christopher Walker, postmaster of Ailsa Craig,
Ontario, with copies of charges, if any, made against such officer and report of any investigation

held. Presented 13th June, 1899.—Mr. Haggart........ .. ............ ... . ... Not printed.

21n. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all correspon-
dence, inspector’s reports, and all documents respecting the dismissal of the postmaster at Agnes

and the removal of the office. Presented 13th June, 1899. —M». Pope..... ... ... ... Not printed.

210. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th June, 1899, for copies of correspondence
and other papers in regard to the dismissal of Mr. .Joseph McNeil, light-keeper, Jerome Point, St.
Peter’s, Cape Breton. Presented 14th June, 1899.—Sir Louis Davies................ Not printed.

21p. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 12th April, 1899, for copies of the complaints and all
correspondence relating thereto, which led to the dismissal of Mr. Freeman Ketcheson from the
position of post oftice mail clerk, including the statement or statements of the said Freeman
Ketcheson in reply to said complaints. Presented 15th June, 1899.— Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell,

Not printed.
214q. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th Macrh, 1898, for copies of all orders in
council, papers, depositions, reports, documents, etc., in relation to the dismissal of Napoiéon
Alain as postmaster of L’Ancienne Lorette, and also copies of all instructions given by the depart-
ment of the postmaster general or any officers thereof, to the post office inspector in Quebec, or to
any other officer thereof in relation to the giving of evidence in an action by the said Napoléon
Alain versus one Frederic Belleau for damages. Presented 19th June, 1899.— Afr, Casgrain.
Not printed.

217. Return to an order of the House of Commons, duted 24th April, 1899, for copies of all papers con-
nected with the diswissal of Boaz Gross, late harbour master of Hillsboro’, N.B., and with the
appointment of his successor, including copies of all charges and complaints, the evidence taken
by Commissioner McAlpine, the commissioner’s report, and all correspondence, recommendations
and other papers in any way relating to the said dismissal and the subsequent appointment.
Presented 26th June, 1899.—Mr. Melnerney.. . ..........cocveuiiiis vuuiiniin.. .. Not printed.

21s. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all reports, corre-
spondence and other papers connected with the dismissal of Mr. Fairlie, principal of the Rupert’s
Land industrial school, m the province of Manitoba. Presented 28th June, 1899..— Mr. Bourassa.

Not printed.

21¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for copies of all papers,
documents and correspondence in connection with the dismissal of John Herns, caretaker of the

putlic building in the town of Napanee. Presented 4th July, 1899.—Mvr. W ilson.... Not printed.

21u. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8tk May, 1899, for a copy of the commission
issued to investigate into the charges made against W. A. Hogg, landing-waiter at the port of
Collingwood, the evidence taken by the said commission, the report made by the commission, the

order in council made thereon, and all correspondence and papers in connection therewith,
Presented 25th July, 1899.—Mr. McCarthy...............ooooiiii Coi i, Not printed.

217, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th July, 1899, for copy of the report of
Thomas Woodyatt, commissioner, relative to certain charges made against John Galna, of Her
Majesty’s customs at Parry Sound, Ontario. Presented 26th July, 1899.— Mr. Paterson.

Not printed .

21w. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th July, 1899, for copy of report, ete., in
connection with the suspension of Wm. Caldwell, preventive officer of customs at Anderdon,
Ontario. Presented 26th July, 1899.—Mr. Paterson...... ... .. . .. ........ .. .. Not printed.

21z. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th July, 1899, for copy of the report of M.
B. Colcock, assistant inspector of ports, relative to the preventive station at Anderdon, and to
William Caldwell, late preventive officer thereat. Presented 29th July, 1899.—Hon. W. Paterson.

9 Not printed.
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for copies of all correspondence
had with the department of railways and canals, or with any member of the government, in
connection with the cases of Pierre Michaud and Fred. Belanger, porter and track foreman,
respectively, on the Intercolimial Railway at Trois Pistoles, and dismissed therefrom in 1898, and
for all petitions and papers in regard thereto. Presented 8th August, 1899.—Mr. Foster.

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th June. 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, telegrams, petitions, reports and all other papers in connection with the dismissal of Mr,
William D. McMillan as light-keeper at Wood Islands, in the province of Prince Edward Island,
and the appointment of his successor. Presented 10th August, 1899.— M». Martin

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dat:d 10th May, 1897, for copies of all petitions,
letters, notices, correspondence, bonds and papers in relation to the establishment of a post office
in the county of Annapolis called ‘* Virginia,” and the appointment of Mr, Ezekiel Banks as post-
master for such office.  Presented 21st March, 1899.—M»r Mills . = ............ Not printed.,

Return to an order of the House of Conimons, dated 10th May, 1897, for copies of all petitions,
letters, notices, bonds, papers and documents in relation to the establishment of a post office in the
county of Annapolis called ‘ North Perott,” and the appointment of Mr. Alfred Spurr to the
postmastership of said office. Presented 21st March, 1899. —Mr. Mills.............. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd May, 1897, for copies of all correspondence
in connection with the appointinent and installation of George G. King to the postmastership of
Marsh Hill, Ontario, had with any member of the government, or any officer of the post office
department. Presented 21st March, 1899.—AM», Foster... .. . ............... ... Not printed.

Return of Treasury Board Over-Rulings of Auditor General’s decisions between the beginning of
the session of 1898 and the session of 1899. Presented 21st March, 1899, by Hon. W, 8. Frelding.

Nat printed.
Statement of Governor General’s Warrants issued since last session of parliament, on account of the
fiscal year 1898-99. Presented 21st March, 1899, by Hen. W. S. Fielding..... .. .. Not printed.
Statement of expenditure on account of miscellaneous unfureseen expenses from 1st July, 1898, to
16th March, 1899. Presented 23rd March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding........... . Not printed.
Report of the (‘ommissioner, Dominion Police Force, for the year 1898. Presented 27th March,
1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.............c0 co0 0 ciit ciii i s Not printed.
Copy of an order in council relative to the issue of hcenses to United btates fishing vessels. Pre-
sented 30th March, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies...... .. .... ...... ..... ...... .Not printed.

Return showing reductions and remissions made under section 141 as added to the Indian Act by
section 8, cha; ter 35, 58-59 Victoria. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.
Not printed.
Statement in pursuance of section 17 of the Civil Service Insurance Act, for the year ending 30th
June, 1898. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fieldiug. .. Printed for scssional papers.
Statement of all superannuation and retiring allowances in the civil service during year ended 31st
December, 1898, showing name, rank, salary, service and cause of retirement of each person
superannuated or retired, also whether vacancy filled by promotion or new appointment, and
salary of any new appointee. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.
Printed for sessionul papers.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for a revurn giving : (a)
The names of all civil servants who have been superannuated between the 13th of July, 1896, and
the 1st of February, 1898. (b) Theage of each servant so superannuated. (c) The years of service
of each person so superaunuated. (d) The an.ount per annum each person had been in receipt of,
(¢) The amount of superaunuation each person is to receive per annum. (f) The name of the
new appointees in the civil service since said 13th of July. (g) The age of each such new
appointee. (h) The amount to be paid to each such new appointee. Presented 14th June,
1899, —Mr. Taylor . ..ot i et ittt e ae eeeeaei Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, showing : (¢) The superan-
nuations made in the department of agriculture from 30th June, 1896, to 30th April, 1899, in both
the inside and outside services. (b) The retiring allowances in each case. (c) The manner in
which the vacancies thus created have been filled, with names of persons appointed to such
vacancies and amounts of salary in each case. Presented 30th June, 1899, — Mr. Montague.
Not printed.
10
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Detailed statement of all bonds and securities registered in the department of the secretary of state
of Canada, since the last return, 16th February, 1898, submitted to parliament in accordance with
section 23 of chapter 19 of the Revised Statutes of Canada. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Sir
WALFEId Laurier. .. ov oot et i e e Not printed.

Statement in reference to fishing bounty expenditure for 1897-98. Presented 4th Apn] 1899, by
Sir Louis Davies. .......c.o coiiiiiiiiii i . .. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of (,ommons, dated 5th April, 1899, for copies of papers in connec-
tion with the case of Nelson vs. Donelly, being an appeal from the decision of the gold commis-
sioner at Dawson city. Presented 5th April, 1899.— Hon. C. Sifton.................. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all reports and
recommendations from the inspectors of cavalry, artillery and infantry on their inspections up to
April 18th, for the financial year 1897-98. Presented 10th April, 1899.— Mr. Hughes. Not printed.

Statement of the affairs of the British Canadian Lean and Investment Company, as on the 31st
December, 1898. Presented (Senate) 21st March, 1899, by the Hon. The Speaker. ... Not printed.

Return of orders in council relating to Dominion lands in the provinces of Manitoba and British
Columbia, and in the North-west Territories. Presented (Senate) 11th April, 1899, by Hon.
R.W.Scott.... ... oot i i et e e e Not printed.

Commission appointing William Ogilvie, Esq., a commissioner under chapter 114, Revised Statutes
of Canada, to inquire into and report upon charges preferred against many gove rnment officials in
the Yukon territory. Presented 17th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton... ... .... ..., Not printed.

Return prepared by the clerk of the crown in chancery in obedience to an order of the House ot
Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of the poll-books and voters’ lists for the counties of
Beauce, Lévis, Montmagny and Kamouraska, used at the plebiscite vote. Presented 13th J uly,
1899, by The Deputy Speaker. ... ... vovvee on viven coe covn il oL, Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for s return showing in
detail the extent of all gold dredging leases applied for and granted in the North-west Territories
and the Yukon, where situated, the names and post office addresses of the applicants, and amount
paid therefor ; also all correspondence and .orders in council in connection therewith, Presented
19th April, 1899. —Mr. Foster. ... ... ...c..cc. ceeviiiiiiiiiiiiii caea Not printed.

Supplementary return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for
copies of all correspondence, advertisements for tenders and answers thereto, reports and orders in
council, and a list of all permits, licenses or leases granted, containing names of the grantees and
extent of territory given and conditions attached to each, the amount paid and to be paid therefor
in respect of gold placer mining or gold dredging areas in the North-west Territories and the Yukon

district. Presented 16th April, 1899.—Mr. Foster............. .. .......... ... Not printed.
Return of all lands sold by the Canadian Pacific Railway Company, from the 1st October, 1897, to
the 1st October, 1898, Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton........... ... Nof printed.

Return of correspondence, etc., respecting the affairs of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company,
which the department of the interior has had since the previous return was presented to parlia-
ment under the resolution of the 20th February, 1882. Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon.
L2031 {75 Not printed.

Return of orders in council which have been published in the Canada Gazettc and in the British
Columbia Gazette, in accordance with the provisions of sub section (d) of section 38 of the regula-
tions for the survey, administration, disposal and management of Dominion lands within the 40-
mile railway belt in the province of British Columlia. Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon.
[T 57 « WA ..Not printed.

Return of orders in council which have been pubhshed in the Canada Gazette, in accordance with
the provisions nf section 46, the North-west Irrigation Act, being 57-58 Victoria, chapter 30, etc.
Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton......... ............ ... ... ... Not printed.

Return of orders in council which have been published in the Canada Gazette, in accordance with
the provisions of clause 91 of the Dominion Lands Act, chapter 54 of the Revised Statutes of
Canada, and its amendments. Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton . ...... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1899, for a copy of representations
of the high commissioner for Canada and the agents general of the British colonies, respecting the
application of estate duty to personal property situate in the colonies in 1894, Presented 2lst
April, 1899.—8ir Wilfrid Laurder......... .. «.ovveiiii i, Printed for sessional papers.



62 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. A. 1899

47.

48.

48a.

49,

50,

51.

51a.

51b.

52.

52a.

53.

54.

55.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 14--Continued.

Return to an order of the House of Commens, dated 21st April, 1899, for a copy of the correspon-
dence between the colonial office and the government of Canada on the subject of the island of
Anticosti. Presented 21st April, 1899.—Sir Wilfrid Laurier. ... ....Printed for sessional papers.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all orders in
council, memorials, correspondence and every other document in connection with the gramting
150,000 acres of public lands in favour of the university of Manitoba, and the transfer and pa-
tenting of the same to the university. Presented 24th April, 1899. —Mr. LaRiviére.

Printed (in part) for distribution and sessional papers.

Supplementary return to an address of the Senate, dated 31st March, 1898, for a statement of the
quantity of lands allotted for school purposes in Manitoba ; the quantity of said lands sold, and
the prices at which they have been sold ; the amount received on that account; the amounts still
due to the government ; the manner in which this fund is invested and administered ; the amount
already paid to the province of Manitoba, how much on the capital, if any, and how much on the
interest ; the amount still at the credit of the province, whether on the capital or on the interest ;
the dates of payment in each case and the amount of each payment; and also all the correspon-
dence, papers, memoranda and orders in council relating thereto, up to date. Presented 25th
April, 1899.—Hon. Mr. Bernier.... ..... ...ooiiiiiiiiiiiiin ci iiiieaaiaiaaaaas Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Comnmons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a copy of the report of
the commissioners appointed in 1897 to inquire into the state of the public records and of the
public buildings. Presented 1st May, 1899. —Mr. Beleourt........... ... ........ . Not printed.

Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement of the number of sheets of
notes of $1 and $2 delivered to the government from the Ist of August, 1897, by the new con- -
tractors, together with the number of back, tint and face plates of the above denominations,
delivered to the government to date, as per the contract. Presented 1st May, 1899.—Mr. Foster.

Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon-

. dence with the imperial and colonial governments, and other parties, relative to the proposed

Pacificcable, since the return brought down last session ; also of the report of the imperial commission
on this subject, if leave has been obtained to publish it. Presented 8th May, 1899.—Mr. Casecy.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
Supplementary return to No. 51. Presented 12th May, 1899.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council and correspondence connected with and relating to the offer of the government of British
Columbia, made in 1899, respecting the Pacific cable. Presented 12th June, 1899.—8ir C. Hibbert
TUPPEr. .. ot e e Printed for Loth distribution and sessional papers.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all papers and
correspondence respecting the enforcement of coasting laws of Canada on the Pacific or Atlantie
coasts, in so far as it relates to the department of customs. Presented 8th May, 1899.—Sir C.

Hibbert TUPPer... . .ooiv oereetaaninienee e ot e e Printed for sessional papers.
Supplementary return to No. 52 (Department of the Interior). Presented 5th June, 1899.
Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a copy of lease of the
property in Quebec known as the *“Plains of Abraham,” or of any other title under which the
government of Canada holds said property ; also of all memorials, correspondence, etc., addressed
to the government on the subject of renewing said lease or otherwise acquiring the same, Pre-
sented 8th May, 1899.—Mr. Casgrain ... ....... ... . ciovee vaer eienneenens Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a return showing the
expenditure for each year from 1867 to 1889, inclusive, of the militia department ; also the amount
in each of the above years expended for the staff of the militia; also the amount in each of the
above years expended for the royal military college, Kingston. ‘Presented 8th May, 1899.— M.
Domville. .. ...ttt et it e Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, minutes of council, commission of appointment relating to the appointment of the hon. the
chief justice of the province of British Columbia from the date of the decease of the Hon. Chief
Juetice Davie to the appointment of the present incumbent ; also relating to the appointment of
the Hon. Mr. Justice Irving and the Hon. Mr. Justice Martin of the supreme court of British
Columbia. Presented 15th May, 1899.-—Si1i 2C'harlcs Tupper... .ccooveeiniininnnnn. Not printed.
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Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 26th ‘April, 1899, for copy of lease or agree-
ment and of all correspondence relaticg to the occupation of the Champ de Mars in the city of
Montreal by the Montreal authorities and the condition of said occupation. Presented 9th May,
1899.—Mr. Monk. ... .. e e e teiiciceieiiieeee e eeeeeeeeeennn. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a return showing the gross
working expenses and earnings, respectively, of the Intercolonial Railway for each month from
1st July, 1898, to date. Also the gross working expenses and earnings, respectively, of the same
road for the similar months of the preceding year. Presented 9th May, 1899.—Mr. Foster.

Printed for sessional papers,

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a return showing the total
amount of revenue collected by the government (e) from passenger traffic; (b) from freight traffic
at the stations, freight agencies and passenger agencies along the extension of the Intercolonial
Railway from Chaudiére to Montreal, both included, (1) from the 30th day of J une, 1898, exclu-
sive, to the 1st day of March, 1899, exclusive; (2) from the 1st day of March, 1899, inclusive, to
the 1st day of April, 1899, exclusive. Presented 16th May, 1899.—Mr, Pouwell,

Printed for sessional papers.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return containing a
statement of expenditure out of income made for permanent improvements, extensions, additions
and betterments, exclusive of works for ordinary maintenance and renewals, on account of the
Intercolonial Railway from 30th June, 1891, to 1st July, 1897. Presented 17th May, 1899.— M.
Powell... .......ooviiiiiiiiiia i e . Printed for scssional papers.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all tenders for
ties for the use of the Intercolonial Railway from 1st January, 1896, to date, giving names,
tities, prices, and which tenders were accepted. Presented 17th May, 1899.—Mr. Foster.

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all tenders
received by the government, or by the department of railways and canals, or by any officials
thereof, for railway ties and lumber of all kinds supplied to the Intercolonial Railway between
Tuly, 1896, and January, 1898, on the division of the railway in the province of Quebec. Pro.
sented 17th May, 1899.—Mr. Casgrain.................... ..o ... .. ... Not printed.

quan-

57¢. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 24th March, 1899, for a statement showing the quan-

57f.

b57g.

57h.

571,

tity of rolling stock purchased in connection with the extension of the Intercolonial Railway from
Lévis to Montreal, from whom purchased, and the price paid therefor. Presented 19th May,
1849. —Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell ...... ................ ..o . Not printed.
Return to an address of the Senate, dated 25th April, 1899, for a return showing quantity of freighs
carried over the Intercolonial Railway from Montreal to Halifax for shipment to Europe, during
the winter 1898 and 1899. Presented 29th May, 1899.—Hon. Mr. Perley.
Printed for sessional papers.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for a return showing: 1. The
total amount of expenditure on capital account in connection with the Intercolonial Railway and
the extension thereof to Montreal from 30th June, 1898, exclusive, to the 1st day of May, 1899,
exclusive. 2. The total revenue of the Intercolonial Railway and the Montreal extension thereof
from 30th June, 1898, exclusive, to the 1st day of May, 1899, exclusive. 3. The total expenditure
charged to revenue account in connection with the Intercolonial Railway and the Montreal exten-
sion thereof from 30th June, 1898, exclusive, to the 1st day of May, 1899, exclusive. Presented
13th June, 1899. —Mr. Powell. ..............ooooooooi Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a return showing the
names of persons to whom payments were made of allowance or drawback on freight charges on
the New Brunswick portion of the Intercolonial- Railway during thé months of: January and
February, 1899, the amount and date of payment in each case, and the date at which the
overcharge was made. Presented 13th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster,
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a copy of lease or contract
under which the Intercolonial Railway management permitted or authorized the building of a
restaurant on the 1ailway right of way at Grand Narrows, Also copies of all correspondence in
reference to the granting of the privilege of erecting such building on the railway property. and
also in reference to running the same. Presented 23rd June, 1899, — M. McLongall. . Not printed.
13
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57;. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of advertisements
issued during 1898, inviting tenders for steel rails and fastenings tor the Intercolonial and Prince
Edward Island Railways, copies of tenders received therefor, of all correspondence in connection
therewith, and of any contract or contracts entered into. Presented 27th June, 1899.—Sir Charles
TUPPET . . ittt e e e e e . Ceeiaaes . Not printed.

57k. Supplementary return to 57e. . Presented 28th June, 1899 . . ...... ... ... Not printed.

57!. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, showing the names of persons
to whom payments were mnade of allowances or drawbacks on freight charges on the Nova Scotia
portion of the Intercolonial Railway from 1st July, 1898, to 31st March, 1899, giving amount and
date of payment and date at which overcharge was made. Presented 13th July, 1899.—Mr. Bell
(PUCOU) « oo vee o aee e e e tn et e e e e e Not printed.

57m. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, showing: 1. The combined
engine and car mileage—total, and that of the Intercolonial Railway--for each mouth from March
1, 1898, for the terminals, bridge, and the other leased portions of the Grand Trunk Railway, as
contemplated in the third and thirty-third sections of the schedule to Bill No. 188, 2. The
amounts for (¢) maintenance and repairs, and (b) for all other operating expenses separately,
incurred by the Grand Trunk Railway Company and the Intercolonial Railway each month
since March 1, 1898. 3. Copy of returns and information made under section 33 of said schedule
for each moath from March 1, 1898. Presented 18th July, 1899.— M. Foster.... .... Not printed .

57n. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all petitions,
memorials, letters and correspondence addressed to the government, or to any of the members
thereof, since the last session, by the board of trade of the city of Quebec, the council thereof, the city
council of the city of Quebec, or any other public bodies or citizens of the said city, in relation to a
better service between the Intercolonial Railway and the cll:y of Quebec. Presented 29th July,
1899.— Mr. CaSGPAIN ... oottt e it eae ettt as i e eans caeees Not printed.

58. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council and all reports and correspondence made by or had between W, J. Christie, late of the
inland revenue department, Winnipeg, and other officers of department in Manitoba, and the
departinent at Ottawa or the minister of inland revenue relating to the removal, the suspension
and fina] dismissal of W. J. Christie, lately one of the chief officers in department at Winnipeg.
Presented 15th May, 1899.—Mr. Roche.... .... ... .. ...cve cevenvninnn . . Not printed.

58a. Supplementary return to No. 58. Presented 30th May, 1899..............cviveennnes Not printed.

59. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copy of all reports to the
minister of the interior, or to the departinent of the interior, or to any officer of that department
from William Ogilvie, or fromn the council of the Yukon district, or from any member of such
council relating to the administration of the said Yukon district or relating to any matter
connected with the administration of the said district. Presented 15th \/la.y, 1899.—Mr. Borden
(Halifax)........c.coovve o onns s e e e e Not printed.

60. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th Aprll 1899, for copies of all correspondence
connected with the department of the interior at Ottawa authorizing the agent at Yorkton, North-
west-Territories, to grant entry for the S. K. } of section 14, township 24, range 3 west of the 2nd
meridian, to Mr. W. C. Middleton. Presented 15th May, 1899.-—-M7r. Davin........ Not printed.

681. Return toan address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all letters and
telegrams that have passed between the government and the Ashcroft Water and Electric Com-
pany, or Mr. Peter Ryan, or Mr. John Shi-1ds, or any other person on their behalf in regard to
the purchase of some 4,000 acres of land near Ashcroft, B.C., within the railway belt. Presented
16th May, 1899.—Mr. Prior........ o aeas s eaneua i asaasaaaenEtrEeseesessaaae.. Not printed.

62 Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of any orders in
. council passed up to date respecting any officers of the department of the interior taking np
. mining claims ; respecting any government officers.taking up mwining claims ; respecting officers of
the depa.rtment of the interior making homestead entries or buymg lands. Presented-15th May,
1899, —Mr.Davin............... ... PR Ween T T A -,....‘.*..Y.Natprmted
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83. Return to an order of the ilouse of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of all letters,
telegrams and communications from Archer Martin, of Victoria, B.C., barrister-at-law, to the
minister of interior or to the deputy minister, or to any officers of the department of the interior,
relating to the granting or recognition of any permit or authority to take or import liquor into the
Yukon district or relating to the importation of liquor into the Yukon district, and all replies to
such letters, telegrams and communications. Presented 15th May, 1899.—Mr. Borden ( Halifazx).

Printed for sessional papers.

83a. Return to an order of the House of Comons, dated 24tk April, 1899, for copies of all letters,

telegrams and communications from Frederick Peters, Q.C., of Victoria, B.C., to the minister of

the interior, or to any minister of the crown, or to any deputy minister, applying for or relating to

the granting of any permit to take or import liquor into.the Yukon district, and all replies to such
letters, telegrams and communications. Presented 15th May, 1899.—M~r. Borden (Halifaxc).

. Printed for sessional papers.

830. Correspondence relating to the impurtation of liquor into the Yukon territory. Presented 16th
May, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton........ ..... e e e Printed for sessional papers.

83¢. Keturn to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all liquor permits
issued by Major Walsh, and all reports and correspondence respecting his action in this respect,.
Presented 18th May, 1899.—Sir C. Hibbert Tupper....oooovvvnoi... Printed for scssional papers.

83d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for eopies of correspondence,
telegrams, etc., in connection with the ma.n'agenr{ent of .the Yukon territory, alluded to in the
speech of the honourable the minister of the interior, dur:mg the debate on the address in answer
to His Excellency’s speech at the opening of the session. Presented 25th May, 1899.—Sir C.
Hibbert Tupper. ... . o coeevvesss mooso se s s © titiiees aiiinian... Not printed .
83¢. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence which has taken place between the hon. the minister of the interior, or any officer of his
department, and the government of the North.-west. :I‘emtories respecting the issue, granting or
withholding of permits for the conveyance of liquor into the Yukon territory. Presented 30th
May, 1809, —Mr. Clarke ... . - +oc corvervrsisss e, e eeees el .Not printed.
83f. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return of all liquors
taken into the Yukon since July 1, 1896, giving the names of the persons or companies taking
them in, the quantity in each case, the date of .iss"le of perx.nit and the authority granting the
permit ; also all correspondence had with any parties in connection with the demand for, or granting

of, permits for taking Jiquors into the Yukon. Presented 6th June, 1839.—Afr, Foster.
Not printed.
83g. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated %9th April, 189?, for' an itewized statement of
the number of gallons of intoxicating liquors taken into the Klondike district since July, 1896, the
number of permits granted therefor, with the names and post office addresses of those to whom
said permits were granted and the amount paid therefor. Presented 6th June 1899.— My, Foster.
Not printed.
83¢*, Supplementary return to No. 63f. Presented 13th July, 1899......... e Not printed.

‘84. Copy of agreement dated 1st July, 1890, between the Department of Railways and Canals and the
Canadian Pacific Railway Company. Presented 16th May, 1899, by Hon. A. G. Blair.

. Not printed.
85. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all letters, docu-

ments, memorandu, agreements and correspondence containing, embodying, relating to or referring
to the terms and conditionsupon which tenders were asked for the Magdalen Island mail contract,
and upon which the contract was subsequently let to R. J. Leslie, of Leslie, Hart & Co.,
Halifax, N.S. Presented 17th May, 1899.—Mr. Pope. ... .... e, Not printed .
86, Roturn to an address of the Senate, dated 24th March, 1899, for copies of all correspondence with
and instructions given to Louis Coste, late engineer in the public works department, with reference
to the Yukon-Teslin ruute, and the navigation of the rivers and lakes connected therewith, and all
reports thereon, made by the said Louis Coste. Presented 17th May, 1899.— Hon. Sir Mackenzie
BOWELL .+« v oeoee e e e ee e eeeeteaiii o e e Not printed .
86a. Return to-an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a copy of the report or
reports of Mr. Coste, late engineer of the public works department, on the Yukon, more especially
on the Teslin Lake route for a railway into the Yukon ;-also a copy of the report of Mr. Lafon-
taine, or a copy of their joint report, if they made such a report. Presented 18th May, 1899, —

DMr DAVIN o v o eenrnernecnronensnaneos 15 ...... [ Printed for sessional papers.
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686, (1898.) Report of commissioners appointed to investigate, inquire into and report upon the state and
management of the business of the St. Vincent de Paul penitentiary. Presented 26th April, 1898.—
Printed for distribution and sessional papers this year (1899). Sce Sessional Paper No. 18, page 221.

67. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 11th April, 1899, for: 1. Copy of the last governmen’
return made by La Banque du Peuple before that bank suspended payment, as well as the name
of the bank official and a copy of the declaration made by him. 2. Copy of the different state-
ments of the affairs of said bank submitted by the directors at each of the public meetings of the
stockholders and depositors which were held since the date of suspension. 3. List of the names
of the directors of the bank at the date of its suspension, and the number of shares held by each cf
such directors on that date. 4. List of sales or transfers, if any, that may have been made of the
stock of any one or more of the directors since ths date of the suspension, and to whom made.
5. List of any vacancy or vacancies that may have occurred since the said date and the cause or
causes thereof, as well as the names of those who have been appointed to fill any such vacancy.
6. The price as near as can be ascertained from the quotations of the stock of any sales or transfers
that were made within the last month immediately before such suspension, and the prices paid for
any such transfer of stock that may have been made since the date of suspension up to 1st April,
1899. 7. List of the names of the stockholders of the bank on the 1st day of April, 1899, and the
number of shares held by each on that date. 8. Statement in detail of the assets and liabilities of
the bank, excepting therefrom the liabilities to the depositors and stockholders which may be
given in the aggregate. Presented 17th May, 1899.—Hon. Mr. McMillan........... Not printed.

68. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence between the government and B. Haigh & Son, of British Columbia, or any person or persons
acting on their behalf in the year 1880, or thereabouts, in regard to an application for the use of
Deadman’s Island. Also between the Dominion government and the attorney gemeral of the
province of British Columbia or other member of the provincial government in regard to the said
application, or to the subject thersof. Presented 18th May, 1899.—Mr. Prior....... Not printed.

68a. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council respecting Stanley Park and Deadman’s Island, Vancouver, B.C., and all correspondence
between the different departments of the Canadian government and the imperial military and
naval authorities respecting the park or island or both. Also for copies of all correspondence
respecting the same with the government of British Columbia, the city of Vancouver and the park
authorities. Also for all correspondence between the member for Burrard, the hon. minister of
militia and defence and the department of militia, the hon. minister of the interior and other
members of the government respecting the same. Also for all correspondence between Mr. Lud-
gate and his representative and any department of government respecting Deadman’s Island.
Also a copy of all applications and correspondence respecting a lease or grant of Deadman’s Island,
Also a copy of all departmental reports, memoranda or letters on file in the departments of justice,
interior, militia and defence respecting the park, Deadman’s Islaud, or the title and disposal of
the same. Also a copy of all grants or leases of the park or Deadman’s Island. Also all reports
or information obtained by the different departments before any lease or grant of Deadman’s
Island was enacted. Also all memorials or correspondence respecting the granting of any lease of
Deadman’s Island. Presented 31st May, 1899.—Mr. Prior.
Printed for both distribution and ional pepers,
- 689. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return of all papers,
documents and correspondence between the Winnipeg grain exchange and the department of
public works in reference to keeping the harbour at Fort William free of ice to the latest possible
date. Presented 18th May, 1899.—Mr. Roche........ e tieeeieirer ettt Not printed.

70. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of letters,
instructions, correspotidence ‘and report of the commissioner appointed to inquire into the
grievances of the workmen on the Crow’s Nest Pass Railway, and into the circumstances attending
the death of two of said employees, named McDonald and Fraser, at or near Pincher Creek,
with report of the commissioner in reinvestigation with respect to all the facts connected with the
death of Charles P. McDonald and E. McC. Fraser, who were employed in connection with the
construction of the Crow’s Nest Pass Railway. Presented 18th May, 1899.— Mr. Bell (Pictou).

Summary Report pronted for both distribution and sessional papers.
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of instructions
given to Mr. F. C. Wade, whether before he left for Dawson to act in several official capacities or
subsequently, more particularly a copy of the permission given him, if the permission wasZin
writing, to stake claims in the Klondike. Presented 18th May, 1899.—Mr. Davin. .. Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence between the government of British Columbia and the government of Canada since J uly,
1898, to the present date respecting the supreme courts, county courts or any of the judges for the
province aforesaid, the appointiments of said judges or of any of them, or other matters relating to
the administration of justice in the said province. Presented 25th May, 1899.— Sir C. Hibbert
Tupper............ beeeeeencaiaens evee weaeaaen e ereiaeaean. ettt e, Not printed,

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of any correspon-
dence in relation to the construction of sheds on the wharfs at 8t. Méthode and Mistassini, and to
the awarding of the contraet for the said buildings to L. P. Bilodeau, of Roberval. Presented
25th May, 1899.— Mr. CaBgraif. ..o oov. ovreresressvatun terns sevrnearennnn.... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of all papers, cor-
respondence, etc., in connection with the award of the contract to Mr. Thomas Gauthier, of
Montreal, by the department of public works for the dredging at Coteau Landing ; the call for
tenders, if any ; the amount expended out of the $21,000 voted, and to whom paid. Also corre-
spondence between Mr. Gauthier and Mr. McDonald, who did the work ; the amount of work done
in cubic feet, and how paid. Presentec 25th May, 1899.—Mr. Bergeron.

Printed for sessional papers.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of correspondence
between the government, or the department of public works, and Mr. W. Donaghue, or any other
person, in relation to the building of scows at Roberval to accompany the dredge at that place,
and to the awarding of the contract for the building of the said dredges to the said W. Donaghue.
Presented 25th May, 1899.—M7. Casgrain.......ooovveiiieiiniieiniiii i, o . Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of all leases, papers
and documents of and concerning the lease of certain property on Isle aux Noix, in the province
of Quebec, held by the government and under the control of the department of militia and
defence, showing the names of lessees since 1st January, 1895, to present time, and the amount of
rental paid by such lessees. Presented 25th May, 1899.—Mr. Quina..... ceesnenion. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return showing when
and for what period the steamer * Alaska ” was engaged on the survey of the channel in Lake
St. Francis, and the service the steamer * Alert” was engaged on during the same period.
Presented 25th May, 1899.—Mr. Taylor...coeeeniinnneieaniennnaa . one ceteeeaiaans Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return showing the
amounts paid to Tom S. Rubidge, superintending engineer of the Cornwall canal, for salary and
expenses from 1st January, 1897, to 1st January, 1899. A detailed statement of the amount paid
for cab or hack hire in the same period. A statement of the total expense incurred in connection
with the steamer ‘“Alert” ; also a statement showing how many days the steamer “ Alert ” was
engaged in actual survey work, from 1st January, 1897, to 1st January, 1899, and how many days
in any other service and the nature of the same. Presented 25th May, 1899.—Mr. Taylor.

Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all reports to
his excellency the governor general, minutes of council, reports, papers and correspondence in any
way relatingto the navigation of the Yukon or Stikine rivers, or to customs regulations in con-
nection therewith, including the transhipment of cargoes; aleo all reports to his excellency the
governor general, minutes of council, correspondence and papers touching the customs regulations.
and fees imposed in connection with Canadian goods passing through St. Michael's, Dyea,
Skagway and Wrangel. Presented 25th May, 1899.—Sir Charles Tupper.

Printed for sessional papers,

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence and papers connected with the removal of Mr. Fawcett from the position of Yukon gold
020mmissioner. Presented 26th  ay, 1899.-I,Z7llr. Davin..... ceeeras Creteeenetnnenan. Not printed.
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Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council, ordinances, commissions, appointments, bond certificates and oaths, relating to the
appointment of the sheriff for Yukon territory ; also copies of the same papers respecting the
appointment of the clerk of the court for the Yukon territory. Presented 25th May, 1899, —Si»
C. Hibbert TUPPEr. ..o vttt it tatetatseaieteasseeanssannessaaeseninins Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all corre-
spondence between the government of Canada, or any member thereof, and the United States
government, either directly or through the British government or its representative at Washington,
in reference to bonding or transit arrangements on the Pacific coast, and to the relief of destitute
persons in the Yukon or Alaska districts. Also any reports of ministers to the government on
these matters. Presented 25th May, 1899.—Mr. Foster...........oooiiivinninen.n.. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for a return showing the number
and names of all United States fishing vessels not possessing modus vivends licenses to which con-
cessions were granted in the Atlantic ports of Canada during the months of November and
December, 1898, and January and February, 1899 ; together with all correspondence between the
government or any member thereof and officers of the government, showing under what circum-
stances privileges were granted to any of said American vessels. Presented 26th May, 1899. —
M. MCAUIStEr. . . oottt ittt it iaaee ittt ittt aae e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for a return of copies of all
correspondence, instructions, reports, bills of costs and accounts, together with a statement of all
moneys paid by the Dominion government in connection with the prosecutions arising out of the
Dominion genersl elections of 1896 in the province of Manitoba. Presented 29th May, 1899.—

Supplementary return toNo 84. Presented 2nd June, 1899..........c.cuvenen..... . Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 7th June, 1897, for copies of all correspondence
between the government and any parties in the county of Brant relating to the appointment of
Dr. Levi Secord, of Brantford, Dr. McKee, of the same place, and Dr. Beer, formerly of Platts-
ville, in the county of Oxford, to the positions of head physician and assistants to the Indians on
the reservation in the township of Tuscarora, county of Brant. Presented 29th May, 1899.—
Mr. ClanCy.. .. oooeiuins et tenrnenoseesaeeensneessnenonasensos somuasnane o Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th Apnl 1899 for copies of all correspon-
dence, from July 1, 1896, to the present date, between the Canadian government and the imperial
authorities and between the Canadian government and the office of the high commissioner for
Canada in London, relating to the cattle embargo. Presented 27th May, 1899.—Mr. Montague.
Printed for sessional papers.
Copy of the order in council of the 7th October, 1898, providing for appointment of Mr. William
Ogilvie as a commissioner, under the provisions of chapter 114, R.8.C., to investigate the charges
and complaints referred to in such order in council ; copy of the commiesion issued under the
great seal of Canada, appointing Mr. Ogilvie such commissioner ; copy of his report of the 27th
April, 1899, and copies of the three public notices referred to in such report and attached thereto.
Presented 30th May, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton. .. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
Copy of commission which issued in favour of William Ogilvie, Eeq., under the provisiuns of
chapter 114 R.S.C., to hold an investigation and take evidence under cath with regard to certain
charges made against officials of the Dominion government in the Yukon territory ; and copy of
the evidence taken under such commission. Presented 9th June, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
Copy of further report, dated the 27th May, 1899, of William Ogilvie, Esq., commissioner appointed
under the provisions of chapter 114, R.S.C., and by commission issued thereunder, under the
great seal of Canada, to hold an investigation and take evidence under oath with regard to certain
charges made against officials of the Dominion government in the Yukon territory. Presented
7th July, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers,
Copy of the evidence which accompanied the further report of the 27th May, 1899, of William
Ogilvie, Esq., commissioner appointed under the provisions of chapter 114, R.S.C., and by com-
mission issued thereunder, under the great seal of Canada, to hold an investigation and take
evidence under oath with regard to certain charges made against officials of the Dominion govern-
ment in the Yukon territory ; of which further report a copy was laid before the House of Com-
mons upon the Tth July, 1899. Presented 12th July, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
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87d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th July, 1899, for copy of a report of William

Ogilvie, commissioner, relative to the values placed upon the steamers ““ Pingree ” and ‘‘ Low ”
for customs entry. Presented 27th July, 1899.—Mr. Paterson...................... Not printed.

88. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 22nd May, 1899, for: 1. The original contract entered

into between the government and the proprietors of the Drummond County Railway and the
Grand Trunk Railway Company. 2. The present contract or agreement entered into between the
same persons or companies. 3. A statement of all moneys paid to the proprietors of said railways
from the date of the non-ratification of the first contract to the 31st March, 1899. 4. An account
of the earnings and working expenses of the Drummond County Railway from the time of its
being first worked in connection with the Intercolonial Railway to the 31st March, 1899. 5. And
also an account of the total amount of money paid the Grand Trunk Railway Company for station
accommodation, runuing powers over its line, for bridge extension, or for any purpose whatever in
connection with the extension of the Intercolonial Railway system to Montreal. Presented
29th May, 1899.— Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.. .......... PO . «..Printed for sessional papers.

88a. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 22nd June, 1899, calling for copies of any or all supple-

89.

90.

21.

92,

23.

94'

2

mental agreements and traffic arrangements entered into between the railway department of
Canada and the Grand Trunk Railway Company, in connection with the contract entered into
between the aforesaid parties for the extension of the Intercolonial Railway to the city of Mon.
treal. Presented 26th June, 1899.—Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell. ... ... Printed for sessional papers.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1849, for copies of all petitions
addressed to his excellency the governor general by members of the Turner administration in
the province of British Columbia respecting the conduct of his honour the lieutenant governor
of that province, and praying for the appointment of a commission to inquire into the same,
together with all papers and correspondence connected with said petition ; and also copies of all
papers and correspondence in any way relating to the action of his honour the lieutenant gov-
ernor of British Columbia in dismissing the Turner administration in the said province. Pre-
sented 31st May, 1899.—Mr. Prior....ccceece-- Printed for both distribution and sessional papers,
Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for: 1. Copies of all cor-
respondence had with the departmens of inland revenue, during the last ten years, in relation to
the compulsory inspection of potash at the port of Montreal. .2. Copies of all petitions presented
on the same subject to the honourable the minister of inland revenue. Also copies of resolutions
adopted by the Montreal board of trade and others, urging the government to adopt some measure
to protect the Canadian trade in potash. Presented 31st May, 1899.—Mr. Préfontaine.
Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for: 1. Statement shpwing
the quantity of Canadian tobacco grown and manufactured during each year since 1890. 2. The
number of factories established since 1890—with the date in each instance—for the manufacture
of Canadian tobacco, or of Canadian and foreign tobacco mixed. 3. Copies of all petitions, appli-
cations and memorials presented to the government since 1896 in relation to the duties on tobacco.
Presented 31st May, 1899.—M7. Gauthier......... LT P R E TP PR PP Not printed.
Copy of the prospectus of the British Canadian Gold .‘l.?xelds of the Klondike Company, Limited,
and copies of correspondence and other papers on {'ile in the department of the interior, respecting
the alleged connection of Mr, William Qgilvie with that company. Presented 31st May, 1899,
by Hom. C. Sifton. ... coov voieriiiainen per onees eereeies errreeaiaes ....Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for statement showing the
amounts voted and the smounts expended, under their proper headings, by the Dominion govern-
ment on the harbour of Montreal during the last twenty-eight years ; also the amounts voted and
the amounts expended, under their proper headings, by the Dominion government on the harbour
of Victoria, B.C., during the last twenty-eight years. Presented 31st May, 1899.—Mr. Prior.
Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a return showing the actual
expenditure on reconstruction of the pier at China Point, in the province of Prince Edward Tsland,
the date of such payments, to whom the payments were made and the amount paid to each per-
son ; the amount paid for actual labour performed; the amount paid for material not used, and
when ; the quantity and kind of material purchased, al.ld the price ; the present actual condition
of the pier ; the progress made towards reconstruction ; and all papers, correspondence and
documents relating to or giving any information or particulars respecting the matters aforesaid.
Presented 31st May, 1899.—Mr Martin. .. 19 .......... e eriee i e Not printed,
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for a return showing all sums
expended to date upon the new wharf at Pointe Claire, P.Q. Also how far the works have pro-
gressed ; a-copy of the estimate of the cost of said wharf and statement showing how much it will
cost to finish said wharf. Copies of all advertisements calling for tenders, as well as of all tenders
and correspondence upon the subject. Presented 31st May, 1899.—Mr. Monk........ Not printed.

Return to an order of the House cf Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for cupies of all correspondence,
telegrams, papers, etc., in connection with the seizure of traps and ropes belonging to Messrs.
Benjamin Compton & Co., of Belle River, in the province of Prince Edward Island, on 30th July,
1898, by the Dominion cruiser * Acadia.” Presented 1st June, 1899.—Mr. Martin. .. Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all letters,
telegrams, cablegrams, memorials and other papers received by the right hon. the prime minister
of Canada, the Hon. J. L. Tarte, the miuister of public works, or the Hon. A. G. Blair, the
minister of railways and canalg, from the Northern Commercial Telegraph Company, Limited, the
Commercial Telegrapb Construction Syndicate, Limited, or the W. T. Henley Telegraph Works,
Limited, or from any director or directors, person or persons on behalf of or as representing any
of these companies, or from the high commissioner for Canada in London, or from any other
person or company respecting the construction by or for the Northern Commercial Telegraph
Company, Limited, of a telegraph line between Skagway and Dawson, or of a submarine cable
telegraph between some point in British Columbia and Skagway or Wrangel, or in any way
relating to either of their objects. Also copies of all letters from the right hon. the prime minister
of Canada, or from either of said other ministers to any of said companies or to any director or
directors or other person or persons acting or purporting to act on behalf of any of said companies
in any way relating to the construction of said telegraph line or cable line by, for or under the
charter of the Northern Commercial Telegraph Company, Limited. Also copies of all correspon-
dence between the Dominion government or any member or department thereof and the United
States government at Washington or any department thereof bearing upon the laying and landing
of a submarine cable between some point in British Columbia and Skagway or Wrangel or any
point between these places. Presented 1st June, 1899.—M7r. Prior........... .... Not printed,.

Supplementary return to 97. Presented 26th June, 1899............. .. ... ... Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate, dated 6th June, 1898, for a statement of the cost of the
voyages undertaken in 1897 by the honourable the prime minister and by the honourable the
solicitor general, to Europe, to the United States or elsewhere, together with the travelling
expenses of their private secretaries or of any other persons composing their following. Presented
29th May, 1899.—Hon. Mr, LaANATY .. .. vvvnreeiiein i iiiaeaninniiine cauen Not printed.

Protocol No. Ixiii of the Joint High Commission, Washington, respecting the boundary between
Alaska and Canada. Presented 5th June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all papers, plans,
maps, reports of fishery officers, correspondence and other documents relating to the existence of a
dam across river Jésus, near the town of Terrebonne, and the construction of a fishway therein
according to the requirements of the law. Presented 5th June, 1899.—Mr. Fortin... . Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a list of all persons
employed since 1st ‘August, 1896, by the minister of interior outside of the civil service employees
in Ottawa, for purposes of immigration, detailing the names and post office addresses of the
appointees, their rate of wages and allowances, the date and reason for dismissal where dismissals
have taken place, and the country or districts in which their work has been performed. Presented
5th June, 1899.—Mr. FOster..... ... «oiiiiiiiiiiniin cerniiiee e el aaeeas Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th Apnl 1899, for a statement of all persons
appointed to office or assigned to duties of any kind in the Yukon district since 1st August, 1896,
giving the names, post office addresses, rate of salary and allowances or expenses of each person,
the duties assigned, the date of his appointment, the date of resignation or dismissal, and the
reason therefor in the case of each resignation or dismissal. The above statement not to include
mounted police or Canadian militiamen, but to include paymasters in each branch. Presented 5th
June, 1899.—Mr. FOBLET .. ... ... muiereiiie ettt e, Not printed.

102a. Supplementary return to No. 102. Presented 9th June, 1899........................ Not printed.
102b. Copies of orders in council relating to the Yukon. Presented 21st June, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.

Not inted .
20 oan
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103. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for a statement of
" all persons or commissions of inquiry appointed to inquire into the conduct of employees of the
government since 1st August, 1896, giving the names of commissiohers, their rate of pay and
allowances, the aggregate total amount paid to each as pay and allowance, and the total expenses
of each commission outside of pay and allowance ; also the names and post office addresses of all
persons dismissed on the reports of the commissioners (Marine and Fisheries). Presented 6th
June, 1899.—Mr, Fosler...........couvn  enseraveretconanenn [ . Not printed.
1084, Supplementary return to No, 103. (Customs Department.) Presented 6th June, 1899.

Not printed.
103b. Return to hn address of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for a return showing
names of commissioners appointed by the government to inquire into the conduct of all employees
of the civil service in the province of Quebec since the 23rd of June, 1896, and the amount paid to

each commissioner as salary or travelling expenses. Presented 14th June, 1899.—Mr, Monk.
Not printed.
103¢, Return (in part) to an address of the Senate, dated 28th April, 1899, of the names of all commis-
sioners appointed by order in council or otherwise since the 9th April, 1897, to inquire into and
report upon charges preferred against any employee of the government, whether permanent or
temporary, of offensive partisanship, or of any misconduct whatever. 2. The reports of said
commisgioners, or of commissioners previously appointed, not already brought down, and a state-
ment showing the action taken by the government thereon. 3. The amounts paid each commis-
sioner since the 9th April, 1897, in fees, per diem allowance, travelling expenses and incidentals of
all kinds. 4. The names, ages, offices and salaries of all employees in the inside or outside service
of the government, whether temporary or permanent, who since the 9th April, 1897, have been
removed from office by dismissal, superannuation, or otherwise, whether on a report of a commis-
sion or otherwise, specifying in each case the grounds of dismissal, and the amount of superannua-
tion or gratuity granted, if any ; also the age, office, salary or remuneration of any and every
person appointed in the place of, or as a consequence of every such removal. Presented 28th

June, 1899.—Hon. Sir Mackenzic Bowell. ... .....c.cooie cineninnnn. Printed in abstract form.
103d. Supplementary return to No. 103, (Post Office Department.) Presented 5th July, 1899.

Not printed.
103¢. Supplementary return to No. 108c. Presented 4th July, 1899..... ... .... eeeiieneaeans See 103¢,
108/, Supplementary return to No. 103c. Presented 5th July, 1899.. ..... .......... ......... See 103¢.
103y, Supplementary return to No, 103. (Railways and Canals.) Presented 29th July, 1899.

Not printed.,
1034, Supplementary return to No. 103c. Presented 28th J uly, 1899........... ceeeriiien.o...8ee103c,

104, Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all statements,
claims, memoranda, correspondence, telegrams, etc., with the government of Prince Edward
Island and a delegation from that province, in March last, consisting of the Honourable Hector
C. Macdonald, Jas. W. Richards, and Benjamin Rogers, in regard to questions at issue between
the government of Prince Edward Island and the dominion of Canada. Presented 6th June,
1899, —Mr. MATUR . vveeens oeeancnnaersassosnsaneasssss sonsines Printed for sessional papers.
105. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for all papers and corre-
spondence, including orders in council, tenders and contracts in conne(ftion with the engraving,
printing and supply of paper for the denominational postal notes, with a sample of the notes
printed. Presented 6th June, 1899. —Mr. Foster. ....... «.oocevveeiiiieinn. «o...Not printed.
1054. Return to an order of the House of Commous, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement of all
separate issues of postal stamps, cards, or notes since 18t January, 1887, noting those that have
gone out of use, the quantity and date of each issue, and a sample of each issue, and giving in the
case of the jubilee stamps, the cos" and amount of cash returned to the treasury for each denomina-
tion. Presented 12th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster . . ............coiiiiin i Not printed.
105b, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a copy of contract for the
production of postal notes, and the cost of such per 1,000 of each denomination, exciusive of paper,
and for all correspondence between the contractor, the government and the queen’s printer. Also
for a statement of the number of reams of paper made for each denomination, by whom ordered
to be made, where made, and name of manufacturer, and who has now possession of the Dandy
rolls from which the paper was made. And also the following statements: Who furnished the
electrotypes, and where they were made, thg i‘late of first delivery of postal notes, and amount of
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gecurity given by the contractor, and whether the contractor has supplied the necessary accommo-
dation for government clerks for superintendence and storage for an ample supply of paper,
Presented 12th June. 1899.—M7. Foster.... .... ... iiiiviiiiinnnananinns . Not printed.
105¢. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, showmg in detail all
dies, plates or other parts, wholly or partially engraved, entered or imported by or for the use of
the American Bank Note Comrpany and the British American Bank Note Company, to be used in
the making of bank notes, postage stamps, postal notes and inland revenue stamps for the govern-
ment, with the valuation and amount of duty charged and collected. Presented 12th .June, 1899.
B Y P Not printed.
105d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for all correspondence had
with the post office department, or any member of the government, in reference to the quality of
the post cards issued by the post office department since 1st July, 1896. Presented 19th June,
1899, — M. FOSLer. ... e eer e et et tn s enaannanseentsaneescann s ion arrenne wrees Not printed .
106. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for number of jubilee stamp
plates engraved and their denominations, and cost of such plates. Cost of jubilee stamps per
1,000 complete. Also the number of plates engraved for the greater empire stamp, and the cost
per plate, with the cost per 1,000 stamps complete. Presented 6th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster.
Printed for sessional papers.
107. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all papers,
including affidavits, and of all correspondence between the government and the government or
public officials of the United States or other parties, concerning the case of Thomas Meagher, who
was arrested by United States customs officers in Canadian waters, in the river St. Clair, on 19th
August, 1898; was held in custody and grossly ill-treated by said officials tor some time and
afterwards imprisoned, and who was finally discharged without trial by order of the United States
government. Presented 6th June, 1899.—M~». Cowan...............oovvinia.e Not printed.
10S. Return of the names and salacies of all persons appointed to or promoted in the civil service during
the calendar year 1898, Presented 6th June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.
Printed for sessional papers.
109. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all corre-
spondence, reports, orders in council and instructions in reference to the admission of foreign
countries to commercial privileges under the so-called preferential clause of the tariff of 1897.
Presented 6th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster.. ... ............. ......... Printed for sessional papers.
110. Documents relating to the recent disallowance of certain statutes passed by the legislature of
British Columbia. Presented 7th June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.
Printed for both distribution and scssional papers.
110a. Further documents relating to the recent disallowance of certain statutes passed by the legislature
of British Columbia. Presented 21st June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier ........ ...Not printed.
111. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 189€, for a return showing by
departments, the expenditure in each year, beginning 1st July, 1890, for salaries in the outside
service of the post office, customs and inland revenue departments, detailed by posts and sub-posts
in the case of the inland revenue and customs, and by post offices in case of employeesin the
postal service, of all employees, whether temporary or permanent. Presented 7th June, 1899.—
Mr. MECMULEN . ..o oot ie e it ittt it ieiiee ceane e eiaeannes ... Not printed .
112. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 15th \dav, 1899, for copies of all complaints,
referred to on page 3 of the report of the deputy minister of interior (Annual Report of the Depart-
ment of the Interior for the year 1897), minutes of council, commission instructions and report of
Mr. Archer Martin, the commissioner, respecting the New Westminster crown timber office.
Presented 9th June, 1899.—Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper .. ........cooiiviennnron... Not printed.
113. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all instruc-
tions given by the government of Canada, orany department thereof, to Charles Russell, Esq.,
solicitor, London, England, or to the firm to which he belongs, or to any member thereof, in
relation to any case or business in which the said government or any department thereof was or is
concerned ; also copies in detail of all bills of costs or accounts rendered by the said persons tothe
government or any department since 1st July, 1896. Presented 9th June, 1899.—Mr. Bergeron.
Printed for sessional papers.
114. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence
between the Northern Commercial Telegraph Company and the department of public works
during the last six months. Presented 12th June, 1899.—Mr. Mazwell. ... ......... Not printed .
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Return to an order of the Houseof Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence,
telegrams, reports, contracts, tenders and all other papers and documents in connection with the
change in carrying the mails for Prince Edward Island between the Intercolonial Railway and
Cape Tormentine during the past winter. Presented 12th June, 1899.—M7r. Martin.. Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of all petitions,
correspondence, telegrams and instructions in reference to the granting of a bonded warehouse to
John Gow Scrimgeour at Cardigan Bridge, Prince Edward Island. Presented 12th June, 1899.—
Mr. Macdonald (King's)............- Ceeeseee eeeiaes Ceeeiereieseaenrans RN Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence
‘between the government or any member thereof, or any person or official in behalf of the same,
and the Canada Eastern Railway Company, or any person in behalf thereof, and of any reports
and papers in connection with any proposal to purchase for the government the said railway.
Presented 12th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster ...... RN caviens bereeerenatitenecases Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council, and all papers and correspondence had with the department of railways and canals or the
minister of railways by the officers of the Central Railway Company of New Brunswick, or by any
contractors or persons concerned in the construction of the said Central Railway Company of New
Brunswick, or any one in their behalf, in connection with the payment of subsidy or grants made
to the said company. Presented 13th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster...................... Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, telegrams and reports that have passed between the Dominion government and the
provincial government of British Columbia, or any person or persons acting on their behalf, in
regard to the Songhees Indian reserve at Victoria, B.C., since 1st June, 1897. Presented 13th
June, 1899.—Mr. Prior......-- et e eeee et aeaaeer et eeaeaen o e Not printed,

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence
between the minister or any officials of the department of interior and Mr. A. Soper, of Port Perry,
or other persons in reference to the suppression of the sale of liquor to the Scugog Indians.
Presented 13th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster...... ... «.oooieiiiiilLL, veveno. . Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all contracts or
agreements entered into by or with the postmaster general or the post office department or her
majesty or the government of Canada for the carriage of the mails into or out of the Yukon
territory or district or any part thereof ; and also copies of all advertisements for tenders for the
carriage as aforesaid of such mails, and all tenders received by the postmaster general, the post
office department or the government of Canada or her majesty the queen, for the carriage of mails
into or out of the Yukon territory or district, also copies of all reports, letters and communications
in writing from the post office inspector at Victoria, or any other post office inspector, or any other
officer of the post office department with respect to such tenders or advertisements or with respect
to the acceptance or rejection of any of the said tenders. Presented 13th June, 1899.—Sir C.
Hibbert Tupper. ... .....  ceceeonines sonsnnacancns Ceeereiiiarei e Ceeeaeas Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence,
papers, petitions, etc., in connection with the resignation of Dr. Morris as postmaster at Dundas,
Prince Edward Island, and the appointment of his successor and persons applying for the position.
Presented 13th June, 1899.—Mr. Macdonald (King's)...... ...oooooieiiiiiiiiiil., Not printed,

Return to an order of the House of ComnYons, dated 8th May, 1899, for: 1. A return showing the
number of letter carriers who were employed in the post office in Victoria, B.C., in the year 1895-6,
1896-7 and 1897-8 respectively and the number employed at the present time. 2. The salary paid
to each letter carrier employed in 1895-6 and salaries paid in the present year. 3. The provisional
allowance granted to said letter-carrier in 1895-6 and in 1896-7 and 1897-8. Presented 13th June,
1890, I PriOT: s eieneseescnnsaassaaasastasteaee Cietatat it ey .. .Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for a statement showing the
weight of every issue of the daily and weekly publications issued in Toronto and Montreal since
the introduction of the law requiring that all publications must be weighed and stamped before the
acceptance of same at the post office of issue of paper. Presented 13th June, 1899.—M7r, Quinn.

Not printed

23
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for & statement in detail of
all sums expended on account of the joint high commission between Great Britain and the United
States since its inception to date, with the names of all persons .connected therewith as commis-
sioners, secretaries, clerks and attendants and the rate and total amounts of compensation of each
as salary, allowances and expenses itemized. Presented 14th June, 1899.—Mr. Foster.

: Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copy of all instructions,
correspondence by letter or telegram between the government or any department or officer thereof
and the representative of the crown, or any other person in relation to the postponement of the
hearing of the appeal before the court of queen’s bench, in the case of the Queen vs. Coulombe
and others during the last term of the said court at Quebec, and of all documents in relation
thereto, Presented 14th June, 1899.—M7», Casgraim. .............cou veennenennnn. Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, petitions, resolutions and other papers in possession of the government, relating to the pro-
posed branch railway from Southport to Murray Harbour and other proposed railway branches in
the province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 14th June, 1899.— Mr. Martin....Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, showing: 1. Settlements (if
any) that have been made by the department of railways and canals since and during the last
session, with those parties who suffered from the construction of the Roche-Fendue and Calumet
dams in 1883. 2. The names of the valuators who adjusted the said claims, and by whom their
appointment was recommended. Presented 14th May, 1899.— M. Poupore.......... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for all papers and correspon-
dence in connection with the claim of the British American Bank Note Company for the balance
alleged to be due to the company for contract work done for the post office department. Presented
15th June, 1899.— M7, Foster.. .. . ..uuiuieineneae ieniennes thvenanneienecnee o Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, showing the names of persona
appointed to positions in the Toronto post office since 13th July, 1896, the date of each such
appointinent, the salary paid to each such person and the office to which each such person was
appointed. Presented 15th June, 1899.—Mr. Clarke..... . .......cov civriineuens Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate, dated 21st March, 1898, for ooples of all reports and surveys
made by officers of the department of railways and canals, regarding the straightening of certain
curves cn the Prince Edward Island Railway at or near North Wiltshire, and also a statement
showing : 1. The amount expended on straightening the said curves, and to whom paid. 2. How
was the expenditure made, by tender or by day’s work. 3. The nature and extent of the changes
made. 4. What further changes, if any, are contemplated. Presented 13th June, 1899.—Hon.
My, FErgUSOT. .. vt v it tiieiint ettt iiiaaeteass aras saesrasaiteaiiaterea, Not printed .

Return to an address of the Senate, dated the 25th May, 1899, for certified werbatim copies of all
letters or other documents written to the minister or any official connected with the department of
the interior, or to any member of the government, by H. H. Norwood, the person appointed by
the government to the position of gold inspector in the Yukon district. Presented 13th June,
1899.—Hom. Mr. Prémrose.......... co.veverivieis tave ven mrneienesninonescons Not printed.

Return (in part) to an address of the Senate, dated the 23rd March, 1899, showing the amounts of
customns and excise duties collected on goods imported into that part of the Dominion known as the
Yukon and Klondike country, from the first day of September, 1898, to the first day of March,
1899, specifying the character of the goods so imported and the countries from whence imported ;
together with a statement showing the quantity #hd character, as far as practicable, of Canadian
goods sent to the said Yukon district during the same period. Presented 13th June, 1899.— Hon.
Sir Mackenzie Bowell ... ....... oo viiiiniiiiinieaities o v taniase snossmssanes Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copy of a memorial signed
by the late Honourable John Norquay, president of the executive council of the province of Mani-
toba, on behalf of said council, praying to be heard before her majesty in council on the inter-
ference of the governor general in council in the practice of disallowing acts clearly within the
power of local legislature and asking that the same be discontinued ; which memorial was addressed
to the honourable the secretary of state of Canada with request that the same be transmitted to
her majesty in council ; also copies of all correspondence, reports to or from, and orders in council
in connection therewith. Presented 16th June, 1899.— Mr. LaRiviére.

94 Printed for sessional papers.
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135. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return showing the
amount spent by the government in the financial years 1896-7, 1897-8, and the proposed expen-
diture for the year 1898-9 on private piers and wharfs, and piers and wharfs not under government
control and not the property of Canada, together with the names of such piers and wharfs and the
owners thereof, as well as the sums spent on each for years mentioned. Presented 16th June,
1899. —Mr. Martif.....c..coovacrcncon-t sasecnne eeeerreccnan resaan veeeeneeeeea. . Not printed,

186, Return (in part) to an order of the House of Comwmons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a return of all
reports and recommendations of the commission appointed to investigate and settle claims for
losses arising out of the Saskatchewan rebellion of 1885 ; also a statement of all claims presented,
the amount paid in each case, also all claims presented and not entertained. Presented 20th June,

1899.—Mr. Davis....... teersarsenne e eeieieeeesesn hereiaens ae eaenrecteanaanas Not printed.
137, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all instructions,
correspondence and reports, accounts and vouchers, for exp connected with the expedition of

Chief Engineer Coste, of the department of public works, referred to in the annual report of the
minister of marine and fisheries, 1898, page 7, and also connected with the visit subsequently paid

to England by Mr. Coste in the same year. Presented 20th June, 1899.—Sir C. Hibbert Tupper.

Not printed.

138, Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all
correspondence, telegrams and reports between the departments of militia and defence and justice

or their agents, and the following claimants for compensation and damages in respect of the erec-

tion of fortifications at Macaulay Point, British Columbia, viz.: Fred. Bell, J. Jardine, W. F.

Bullen, R. W. Reford, Henry Moss, William Moss, J. G. Tiarks, Charles Kent, Thornton Fell,
Andreas Keating (B. L. Ker), Hans Ogilvy Price, H. F. Bishop, 8. J. Pitts, and any others that

may have presented claims in regard to same. Presented 21st June, 1899.—Mr. Prior.

. Not printed.

138¢q. Supplementary return to No. 138, Presented 20th June, 1889.........c0ounenee. . «..Not printed,
188, Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of the reports of
Walter Shanly, C.E., and T. C. Keefer, C.E., in connection fwith the proposed large locks at
Iroquois and Farran's Point. Presented 23rd June, 1899.— M. Taylor..............Not printed.

140. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for: 1. Statement of the
expenditure connected with the royal military college, Kingston, every year since its foundation.
2. Of the number of graduates in each year, and of their present place of residence and occupation,
88 far as known to the college authorities. 3. Of all general orders or regulations relating to the
employment of these graduates in the permanent corps, volunteers or other branches of the public
service. Presented 23rd June, 1899.—Mr. Casey......... e senieien Geerennaens .Not printed.

141, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all instructions,
correspondence, etc., in relation to the construction of wharfs at Mistassini and St. Méthode
(Tékouabé) ; a detailed statement showing the quantity of timber, iron and stone used in the said
works ; by whom the said articles were furnished ; the prices paid therefor to each person ; the
names of the carpenters and framers employéd and the prices paid them per day and how much
was received in cash by them, as also by the day labourers who worked with them ; all other
expenditure in relation to the said works ; copies of all correspondence in relation to the contracts
awarded to Messrs. Tétu & Savard, of St. Félicien, for making timber for the St. Méthode wharf ;
copies of the said contracts and of all further correspondence as to presenting payment of their
accounts ; a statement of the quantity of timber prepared by them, and of the amount paid to
them personally. Copies of instructions issued to J. B. Carbonneau, chief carpenter at the Mis-
tassini and St. Méthode wharfs ; correspondence as to cancelling of his instructions at St. Méthode
and the appointment of & chief carpenter in his place. Presented 26th June, 1899.—Mr. Casgrain.

Not printed.

1‘42-1 Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, showing the amounts paid
to each and all persons who worked at the Roberval pier in 1896; the number of days worked ;
the prices paid ; the quantity of timber and iron furnished, and the prices paid therefor; the
place where the same was obtained ; copies of all instructions, correspondence, etc., in relation to
the said work. Presented 26th June, 1899, —Mr. Casgrasn........coveeveens cveveo NOt printed,
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1899, for a statement of sums paid
a8 travelling expenses to the judges of the superior court for the province of Quebec coming from
outside districts to sit in the city of Montreal. 1. From the 1st of January, 1898, up to the
coming into force of the statute 61 Victoria (Canada), chap. 52. 2. Since the coming into force of
said statute down to the 1st of March, 1899. Presented 26th June, 1899.—Mr. Monk. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all tenders opened
the 14th day of May, 1897, for works on the Farran’s Point canal, showing the prices of different
tenderers for each item and the approximate quantities upon which the tenders were extended,
also the lump sum of each tender. Presented 27th June, 1899.—M~r. Clancy....... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for correspondence and
reports respecting increased wharf accommodation at Pictou, Nova Scotia, in 1892 and since.
Presented 28th June, 1899. —8ir C. Hibbert Tupper .. ....cvivveeiiiniennieneinnns Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all reports of any
survey held during 1897 or 1898 of Neufrage Pond, King’s county, Prince Edward Island. Pre-
sented 28th June, 1899.—Mr. Macdonald (King's)........ et tae et caaen Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of all unexpired
leases and unexpired renewals and modifications of leases, and of all papers and plans relating
thereto of all water lots, water power and bydraulic privileges in and along that portion of the
river Ottawa and its various channels within the city of Ottawa, from the westerly boundary of
the said city to the line of Kent street, produced into the Ottawa river, and commonly known as
the Chaudiére, issued by the government to any person, persons or company, and for plans show-
ing the position of such water lots, water power and hydraulic privileges. Also for a statement of
the amount of power each lessee is entitled to use, and the date of the termination of the lease
under which he is entitled to use it. Presented 28th June, 1899.—M~. Copp. ........Not printed.

Certain correspondence relating to the franchise of the different provinces as the franchise for the
elections to the House of Commons. Presented (Senate) 27th June, 1899, by Hon. Mr. Mills.
Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, giving the names of all the
weirs now under license in the county of Charlotte, in the province of New Brunswick, with loca-
tion of each, with date said licenses were issued, and with the name or names of the licensees of
said weirs ; also the names of all weirs licensed during 1898 that were not built and the names of
licensees of said weirs, and the number of years said licenses have been granted without weirs
having been built by such licensees. Presented 29th June, 1899.—Mr. Ganong. . ... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, showing: 1. The canals and
river works therewith forming the connection between the great lakes and deep water navigation
at Montreal which were completed on 1st July, 1896, the depth of water in each, and the cost of
each to that date. 2. The canals and connected river improvements which at that date were in
course of construction or enlargement, showing the work which had been done on each, the cost
to 1st July of such construction or enlargement, and the estimated cost to complete the contracts
then existing and amount of each ; the new contracts made since 1st July, 1896, covering work
other than that completed or under contract at that date and the amount of each. 3. The estim-
ated cost of completing these works to the proposed depth over and above the amounts involved
in contracts existing on 1st July, 1896. Presented 29th June, 1899.— Mr Foster.... .. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, showing the number of con-
tracts entered into by the government since the 30th June, 1897, in which there is a clause
prohibiting *‘ sweating ” ; the total amount involved in such contracts ; the name of the respective
department in which these contracts have been awarded ; the names of the companies, or firms,
or individuals to which such contracts have been given. Presented 29th June, 1899. —Mr. Clarke.

Printed for sessional papers.

Return to an address of the Senate, dated 23rd March, 1899, showing : 1. The number of persons
in the employment of the post office department on the 30th of June, 1896, and the total amount
paid to said employees for the year ending said 30th June, 1896. 2. A similar return giving the
same information for the year ending 30th June, 1898. 3. The number of employees in the said
service on the 12th day of July, 1896, and on the 16th February, 1899, Presented 20th June,
1899.—Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.. . . .... ........... e eeeaieeeriaeees eaas Not printed.
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Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council, applications, correspondence, papers, plans, etc., in the departments of interior and
marine and fisheries, respecting 37-29 acres or thereabouts of foreshore and tidal lands about two
miles below Steveston, British Columbia, situate west and immediately adjoining section 9, range
7 west, block 3 north, N.-W.D. Presented 30th June, 1899.—Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper.

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, showing: 1. The amount
paid in the province of Prince Edward Island since 1896 as fines for the infraction of the lobster
fishery regulations, the names of persons so fined, and the amount of the fine in each case. 2. A
detailed statement of the fines collected. 3. The disposition of those fines. 4. The cost of pro-
secution in each case. 5. The names of fishery officers receiving a share of such fines, and the
amount received in each by any officer. 6. The magistrate or other officer who tried such cases.
Presented 30th June, 1899, —Mr. Martin......coo. o cveveriiiiiieiiiiniiiaan., Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, petitions, reports, telegrams, etc., in connection with the proposed change of mail arrange-
ments for Grand View, in Prince Edward Island. Presented 4th July, 1899.—Mr. Martin.

Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement showing : 1. What was
the total average amount paid to the Ottawa Gas Co., per annum, for lighting the various
government buildings during the two years ending 18982 2. What 'is the total cost per annum,
by the present system of lighting? 3. Were tenders called for lighting the various buildings by
either gas or electricity ? To what company was the contract for lighting awarded ? 4. What is
the total number and power of inoandescent electric lights now installed in all the public buildings
in Ottawa, and cost of installation, including wiring and all other apparatus? 5. What was the
number and power of electric lights operated by the governruent electric light plant, and annual
cost of the same, during the two years ending 18987 6. What js the original cost and present
value of all governmant electrical plant and boilers in the public buildings in Ottawa? How many
men are employed to operate them? 7. Were tenders call‘ed for T,he wiring of any or all the
government buildings in Ottawa and the supply of all electrical appliances necessary for the same ?
From whom were offers received and what were the respective amounts of such offers? 8. How
was the parliamentary appropriation of §75,000 for extending the government lighting plant, and the
purchase of certain pumps for fire purposes, expended ? What are the items of such expenditure,
and to whom paid? Presented 4th July, 1899.—Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell .. ....... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for copies of all correspondence,
petitions, etc., in reference to the recent appointment of & postmaster at Clifton, New London, in
the province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 10th July, 1899.—Mr. Martin. ... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of specifications
and plans for the construction of deep water terminal facilities at St. John, N.B., including
wharfs, warehouses, elevators, tracks, etc., together with copies of tenders for the said works and
of any contracts entered into therefor. Presented 18th July, 1899. —3ir Charles Tuppcr.

Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for ooples of the contract
and specification in connection with the North Channel lmpfovement below Prescott, with copies
of any supplementary agreement or agreements entered into with the contractor; also plans
showing the location on which the contract was let and the present location. Presented 18th J' uly,
1899, — M. TaylOT ... \oo i tiere ettt tat et it iait ey eeaaaaa Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate, dated 20th Apnl 1899, for all correspondénce with the govern-
ment, or any member thereof, relating to the subject of the introduction of a prohibitory liquor
law by the government, together with all affidavits and other documents having relation to the
vote cast upon the question of prohibition on the 29th day of September, 1898, and the alleged
frauds in connection therewith. Presented 18th July, 1899.— Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.

Not printed.
Return to an address of the Senate, dated the 21st June, 1899, for copies of all correspondence

between the department of agriculture, the Prince Edward Island Fruit Growers’ Association and
the provincial premier, Hon. Mr. Farquharson, with reference to experiments in fruit culture now
being carried on in Prince Edward Island ; said correspondence to include all instructions to
Mr. Kinsman with reference to the nature of the work to be undertaken and the selection of
orchards for the purpose of carrying on said experiments. Presented 18th July, 1899.— Hon. Mr,

Ferguson...... oo veverineernensernsoanies et e e tae e e, Not printed.
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for: 1. Copies of all papers,
documents, correspondence, letters, etc., in connection with the appointment of Dr. Hall,
veterinary surgeon, of Quebec, for the purpose of inspecting cattle for the discovery of tuberculosis
at Hébertville or elsewhere in the county of Chicoutimi. 2. In connection with any part of said
work done by his brother. 3. Statement of the numnber of herds which he or his brother
examined. 4. Statement of sums of money paid for such inspection, travelling expenses, carters,
aids or assistants. 5. Statement of any sum or sums paid to David Ouellet, of Hébertville, in
connection with said inspection. Presented 19th July, 1899.—M~r. Gasgrain......... Not printed.

Supplementary return to No. 162. Presented 26th July, 1899.......... ... Cereeeees Not printcd,

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for a copy of the final
estimate or settlement of section number three (3) of the Luchine canal enlargement of 1875-1880
in detail. Presented 20th July, 1899.—Mr. McInerncy ....... .covvven vovne.onns Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commous, dated 26th June, 1899, for coples of the plans and
profiles of the substructures of the highway and railroad bridges across the Lachine canal at Wel-
lington street, Montreal, the dimensions to be in figures, also esometrical projections of the pivot
and rest piers (Abutments), showing the figured dimensions and elevations of the several parts,
including turntable, circular girder, wheels and machinery. Presented 20th July, 1899.—Mr
MeInerney . ..o cvenaeueennnaneccoseesrnsnss ariaaes Ce e seiiiieiesesssevanans Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899 for a copy of the report of
the royal commission appointed to inquire into the construction of the Wellington street and
Grand Trunk bridges across the Lachine canal at Montreal. Presented 29th July, 1899.—Mr.
McInerney..... i eeeeesenuts setecesaeseresansassenanores seanecs timsesnen Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 80th March, 1898, showing: 1. How many
were employed on the dredge ‘ Prince Edward ” as caretakers or otherwise since she went into
winter quarters at the end of last season. 2. How many wereemployed during the winter 1896-97.
3. How many cubic yards were removed by dredge * Prince Edward ” during the seasons of 1896
and 1897 respectively, and the cost per cubic yard each season. 4. Thenumber of days the dredge
““ Prince Edward ” was doing actual work in each month during the seasons of 1896 and 1897
respectively. 5. The cost of repairs for the dredge ‘‘Prince Edward” for the years ending
318t December, 1896 and 1897 respectively. Also all correspondence in connection with the dis-
missal of John N. Macdonald from dredge ‘‘ Prince Edward,” and the appointment of his suc-
cessor. Presented 22nd July, 1899.—Mr. Macdonald (King’s). Ce eeeeanas Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate, dated 25th April, 1899, for: 1 The number of acres of land
set apart for the purpose of education in the province of Manitoba and in the North-west Terri-
tories, respectively, under the authority of chapter 54, Revised Statutes of Canada, section 23.
2. The number of acres sold in Manitoba and the North-west Territories, the amount received in
payment therefor, and the amount now due thereon. 3. The total sum now at the credit of said
fund held by the dominion of Canada, how invested, and the rate of interest paid thereon. 4. The
amount advanced out of said principal sum 1n aid of education in the province of Manitoba and
the North-west Territories. 5. The sum recouped to the said principal out of the proceeds of the
sale of lands set appear for the purpose of education, and the amount now due to the said principal
sum. 6. And all correspondence relating to any further advances out of said school fund, either
to Manitoba or the North-west Territories. Presented 26th July, 1899.—Hon. Sir Mackenzie
BOWell. .o soiie et i e e e tieeieatae eaeiae e aeiaeans Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for a copy of all corres-
pondence between the government and tne boards of trade of the Dominion in regard to the
passage of an insolvency law. Presented 31st July, 1899.—M», Monk.............. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 31st July, 1899, for a statement of the amounts
paid for medical attendar:.ce and medicines for Indians in the electoral district of Yale and Cariboo
during the years 1896-7, 1897-8 and 1898-9, showing to whom payments were made and amounts
paid to each. Presented 31st July, 1899.—Hon. C. Sifton ... ....... .. « . e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 25th April, 1898, for: 1. Copies of all tenders
in 1897 for the supply of drugs to the North-west mounted police at Prince Albert and Battleford,
and the name of the successful tenderer and a copy of the contract. 2. Copies of all tenders for
the supply of drugs to the mounted police at Prince Albert and Battleford, for the year 1898 ; the
name of the successful tenderer, and a copy of the contract. Presented 7th August, 1899.—Mr,
Davin. .cceueenensinnnnn.  eeetrereiiiaearias ettt e e e Not printed.
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Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th August, 1899, for copy of correspondence
in relation to the suit Esquimalt and Nanainio Railway Company, versus the New Vancouver
Coal Company, as to the ownership of the coal underlying Nanaimo harbour. Presented 8th
August, 1899.—Hon. C. Sifton....... ettt e, e eeeeeieaaa, .. .Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 25th July, 1899, for a copy of the report of the
hon. the minister of justice, on which the order in council was passed for the discharge from
prison of J. K. Skelton and T. Dewan, tried and convicted of perjury before Mr. Justice Wetmore,
at Battleford, October, 1897, and subsequently sentenced to a term of imprisonment ; also copy of
affidavits supporting the application for the discharge of the aforesaid Skelton and Dewan.
-Presented 8th August, 1899.—Mr. Davifi.....co.cvnenenennnaini.... e, Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for: (a) Copy of all corres-
pondence or orders in council relating to the entering into an agreement by the government, or
department of railways and canals, for the operating by the same of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway during the fiscal year 1896, and a copy of the contract governing the same. (b) A state-
ment containing the period during which the road was so operated, also the total expenses directly
or indirectly connected with such operation, and the total revenue derived from the same.
Presented 8th August, 1899.—Mr. Bergeron . ....coveverioviiiiieiiennniennn.on,. Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for: (a) Copy of tenders
for the letting of sections four, five, six and seven of the Soulanges canal; also a copy of
advertisement for the same, and a statement of tenders moneyed out. (b) Copy of tenders for the
reletting of sections four, five, six and seven of the Soulanges canal ; also a copy of advertisement
for same, and a statement of tenders moneyed out. (¢) Copy of all correspondence or orders in
council directly or indirectly relating to the letting or the reletting of the above sections. Presented
8th August, 1899.—Mr. Bergeron .......oocoateuerentitintieteitiaiiiiiiiii., Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th August, 1899, for copy of correspondence
relative to the question of reducing the dock charges at Esquimalt dry dock. Presented 8th
August, 1899.—Hon. W. S. Flelding.... «ocoeeen ciiiiii ittt ttinaenna, Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 10th July, 1899, for copy of all papers in
connggtion with the applications made for, and the consideration of the commutation of the
sentence of death on Marion Brown for murder. Presented 9th August, 1899.—Mr. Wallace.

Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all cablegrams,
papers, correspondence and despatches or other writing upon which the right honourable the prime
minister of Canada based the statement in the house of commons on 10th June, 1898, as follows ;
I have the authority of the secretary of state for the colonies to state that he approves of the
principles on which the governor general acted, as based on the facts set forth in the letter of his
excellency to Sir Charles Tupper.” Presented 11th August, 1899.—Sir Charles Tupper.

Not printed.
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Department of Public Worka

To His Excellency the Right Honourable Sir Gilbert John Elliot Murray-Kynnynmond,
Earl of Minto, G.C.M.G., dc., dc., &c., Governor General of Canada.
My Logp,
I have the honour to lay before Your Excellency the Report of the Department of
Public Works of Caniada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898.

I have the honour to be,
‘ My Lord,
Your Excellency’s most obedient servant,

J. ISRAEL TARTE,
Minister of Public Works.

Otrrawa, 8th June, 1899.
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Belleville, Ont., dredging.............. ...
" openmg and closing navi-
" pul llc bmldmg [ B
Beleil, Que., prer protection .............
Berlm Ont., public building.............
Berttner(enhu) Que., repmntopner....,
w  (em haut), Que. .
" dradgmg ..........
Berthlervxlle, Que post office ............
Bic, Que., repairs to whatf... ...
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provement.......... ... ........
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w  genel ra.lly, N.W.T.,maintenance, &c.
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Cap Sa.nt.e, Que., channel i improvement....|........ 10)........ 6,44 .ol
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Water pler......... .....eiin viii...

Caretakers, engineers, &c., names of. .
Carleton (St. hn) N.B, post oﬂice
Carleton Place, O .
Cascumpec, P. E. I re 1rs .

Cayuga, Ont., post office. ........ooiiidi L.
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P, P P Page | Page | Page | P
Names of Places, &c. Pa:ﬁ. Pnarﬁ. Pa:tg%. Pa:tg& Part 5. | Part 6. Paartg?Z.
C
‘Central Experimental Farm, architect’s
TOPOTt . ..ov. oo vevnirniiensnerncnen]iiee vaifearanean )V T PPN PP veens
"Charlemagne, Que., dredging.............[........ 10 |........ 140 {... ..o oo
‘Charlottetown, P.E.I., dredging ..... . |........ L O Y
" Dominion building.|........ 3,17 3 L0 Y F s P
" marine hospital....|........0 3l fieiiiidiiiiniirenn e,
" opening and closing
C l:n:vigation. Qu deinartrree e ol ol il 4
teauguay, Que., ging...ooooviineeene o 10l | MO
Chatham, N’.'B., post office. g R PR AT | e el
Chatham, Ont., post office.... ... ... .|........ 5, 19 b1 70 RO FUUN PO PRI
*Chaudiére “ Union Bridge” repairs. .....|........ ) ¥ U P PP P DR
" Ottawa and Hull slide..........|....... ) 2 35 AN PR P PO P
‘Chicoutimi, Que., repairs topier.... .....[ ....... 10|........ 6,44 | .ovuifeiinii]iennnn,
‘Chief engineer, report of, on public works.|........|..cc.o. eeeu.n.. E: 2 O PO RS,
" cials, Public Works Department..|........J........0........ o0 Lo 17
*China Point, P.E.L, repairs........... ..[........ [ 2N DA U FOUUIIIN P B
‘Clifton, N.B., repairs to breakwater..... .{........ 9 ..., 5,30 {oou v ceiiifen vunn
" Ont., postoffice.............c.o. fevunnnn. Db 2 (Y PP SR IO P
%hOOOk, Que. w .. oiieiiien e, L . N O [ PR O PSR
‘Cobourg, Ont., dredging.. .......... RUUDURE PO 12 [........ 778,148 ... e
" postoffice............ ....0.. ... L5 L I Y P N PO
" repairs topiers............0........ 12 .. ... Y% ¢ (8 PO IO B
‘Collection slide and boom dues............[........ B .. N PO P IO
‘Collector of Revenues’ report.. ........... 12 (e e 3 ........
Collingwood, Ont., sepairp to breakwater. |........[..... il ¢ 3 DU U F,
" open%xllg and closing| .
DAVIGAtION. . ..o iieiens ievie e e e e ] 44
umbia River, B.C., improvement to|
channel................ ......... R 12 |........ T e
‘Columbia River (Narrows) B.C., dredging.|........ 12 f........ ,92 |
] (above Revelstoke) improv-
mgchannel........... ....... ... ..o feeeen, 12 |........ (O 2 IS Y B,
tracts let, report law clerk, with
names, &c..... e e eeeeieeeeaa 12 e e T1oee.
Cornwall, Ont., post office .......... ... l....... B,19 |.....ooleeee vl et
pondence, tabular statement of official 12 [ e
u du Lac, Que., repairs to wharf.....{........ 10 |........ 6,46 [....... ] ceeeiiifeinn..
Coteau Landing, Que., dredging.. .. . 10 |........ 140 | ..o e
" repairs to pier.....{........ 10 ........ 6,46 ... ) i feeilt.
Coulonge River, Que.,slide and boom repairs| ....... I 3 U RSN RO IO A
qu I}ay, N.S., repairs to breakwater. . ... e s - 2 4,9 | e
Cribbin’s Point, N.S., repairs to pier. ..., |........ 8|.... ... 4,10 ... o]
Point, Que., repairs.................|....... B (L2 O PR PN ..
cﬂl’at_»or’s rﬂ)ort, National Art Gallery ....[.. .....lcc ciiee ciievene e 33
Cushing’s Mills, N.B., dredging..... .. . |.ceooo|oneenini|innaiinl M3 ...
D
Dalhousie, N.B., post office. . .onvoveerreu]ieennnn. 3,17 ... ot b
" repairs to wharf ........0...... . 9l........ [ 20 U IR RN P
Dartmouth, N.S., public building. ....... | ..v.... 3,17 O FUORU DTS DD NP
Dauphin, Man., Dominion lands oftice ... .|........ [ 2 N PN I I N
. " immigrant building ......|........ 6 28 ... [P R
Digby Pier, N.S., TEPAIFS ....... cevinn foeennnns - 2 DS PN P, e
Dltcl}ﬁeld, Que., pier ... ............ R N P .. 52 I T P
Dominion buildings generally . .. ... ... oen ol 2. B OOTR I
‘Dredges and dredging plant ..............0........ 1B e [ e 1
" " ritime Provinces.|........[....... ‘ ....... 170 SN IDOUROE I
W om Ontario and Quebec. |..... .. |[........0..... .. 172! .. ... U DO
f " Manitoba..... .. . |....ooo o]l ot 173 P P
“ w  British Columbia ...|........[...... .|........ 173 |....... [T
" " Ship Channel, Mon- |
treal and Quebec. .. ..............u..... e b U4 N U L
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D
Dredging operations, report civil engineeron| .......J........] -..nun. 108 |........0..
Dumoine Kever, Que., slide and boom re- 13 )

BT~ R *- e P P TS EXT s
Duncan Rlver B.C., im rovement of . .... RPN 1210, ...... (' 1 DU P .
Dnncan,BC, Indian office ......... S D, |3 U S FUUIE DN DU P
Dundas, Ont., post office...... .. [P P L . Y F N
Dundee, Que., custom-house..............0... .... 0 . O L O P IR

E
ii}dmonbon, N.W.T., bridge Saskatchewan
AVET. o.oeennnnns cees 14 ....... L) U R SO D
" Dominion lands and
istry office . ....[........ 6,20 .. .. i s
lmm:fmnt building. .{........ 6, 21 P<* 20 DR DR D R P
Elkhorn, Mm Indian Industrial School..|........ e 26 ... e e ]
Emwployees graving docks, names of . B A ] FER TR 24
" principal of Public Works De-
partment, names of .. ........| ... o] e Lo e 17
" slides and booms, names of ....|........l..oooi oo i et 20
Engineer, Chief, reportof .........c..... ] i [ 2 P DU L.
Engineers, &c., pubhc buildings, names of |- .. ileees b e e 26
Esquimalt Igravmg dock, staff, &c ................ 12 177 5, 14
Etang du Nord, repairs..... - .... ......|....o...
Expenditure..............c.coveiiiiinannn 1,13

Experimental Farm, Ottawa, architect’s
=) ¢ o) o 2

Farnham, Que., post office.............. .
Firemen, &c., publ)c buildings, names of ..
Flint's Wharf repairs .. _..........

Fort Dufferin (St john), N.B, protection
B 3
Fort Francis Lock, Ont., construction.....

Fraser River, B.C., dredmng.. ..........
" improving ship chan-

nel,
Fraserville, Que., pubhc b\nldm 3
Fredencto;l,% g

Frenchman s Bay, Ont.,
Fuel, public buildings

G

nfewwn Creek Canal, N.B., dredging. .
Galt, Ont., postoffice ....................
Gana.noque, Ont., custom-house...........
Q post %ﬁi(lxs .............
, Que., opening and ¢! osmg mwlgatlon
Gat?r?eau Ri‘ver, Que., pronecnon work. .
" slides and booms, re-

Georgetown, ‘P.E. I., openmg “and closmg
navigation..... ........ ..o Ll

Georgevﬂle, N.S., wharf extension........
Que., rerairs to wharf.... ...
Godench Ont., com-tmcnon ...............
" opening and closing naviga-
3030 TN

" post office....... ...
" reconstruction of breakw’ter

.............. | P
{
............... i 44
............... Lo
..... " 44
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G

Grand Décharge, Que., maintenance.....
Grand Etang, N.S., repairs to pier.......
Grand Falls, N.B., repairing shear dam. ..
Grand Pabos, Que repairs to pier........
Grand River Bndge, Ont......... ....... .
Graving docks ... .......ol. el Ll
u employees..... ............
Groese Isle quarantme statlon, Que.. ....
Guelph, Ont., post office..................

Halifax, V 8., Dominion building... ....
" open and close navigation. ..
" assistant Receiver General’s

" examining warehouse. ... ..
" immigrant building ... .....
" qunra.ntme station..........
" graving dock subeidy.......
" engineer’s office............
penitentiary.,.... .... .....
Hamllton, Ont., post office... .....
" public building, repmrs
" custom-houee ............

Hantsport, N.S., construction of wharf..
Harbours and Rwets, Nova Scotia........
" " P. E. Island. .
" " New Brunswi

Hern Cove, N.B., repau-s to breakwater. | ..
ﬁgm s Shore P E % repairs topier. .

borough R et U S IR IR IR LR ARt IS e
struction .... .. ..o ceeiien e 9l.... .. PR PN P D, .
Hlltl;n (or Ma.rksvnlle) Ont., purchase of
Hnausa.,"Mi:i.,'éénstmcnonﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf"IIIIZZ I
Honora, Ont., construction ........... I PO
Hul, %u ., post office.......... ... ... {0 ...
" 'ond Creek Bridge, repairs.........[........
I
Indian Head, N.W,T. experimental farm.|........ 6, 21 <! 2 S AR I P .
Ingersoll, Ont plans for pubhc building..|........|........ b (20 PN DN PRI PO
postoffice ................0 ... P A (S T EP
Intercolomal lewa.y termmus (St. John),
sdredging .. ... ..o ween] eees dien Lo b & T N R Y P
Isle aux Grues, Que., repairs to pier.. ....' ...,.... 10 |........ 6,48 I..... ...0...oeaidiael, [
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) §
Isle Gros Bois, Que., dredging............ P P N MO ]
Isle Perrot, Que., wharf ) 101 - R BN 16 ]........ 6,49 [...... .0 ..ol
Isle St. Ours, Que., dredging.......... ...| ..ol 134 PR DU
Isle Verte, Que., wharf repairs,...........| ....... 10}........ 6,50 |........0... ... ......
J
Jumseg. N B, dredging..................f e L B O O
; N.8., repairs to breakwater .....|........ 81........ 4,12 o
Joﬂetw ue, postoffice .... ........... e e 4, 18 ) (U IR A N P
Judlque, .S., econstruction of breakwater.|........ 8l........ 4,12 0. .00 o . e

K
Ksmmuthum River, Ont., dredging.. ...
Kamloops, B.C., Domlmon lands office . .|....
Kamouraska, Que repairs to wharf. ..... e
Kelley’s Cove, N. S reconstruction of wharf, ...
Kincardine, Ont., reconstrucnon of pier.
" opening and closing of
navigation...........
Kingston, Ont , custom-house............. e s
" dred;gnﬁ ................
" drill hall.................
u graving dock maintenance
" examining warehouse. . .
“ harbour construction.. .. .. .
“ inland revenue office.. ....
" military college ..... ..
" post office........... e
" opening and closing "of
navigation.............
L
"Lotbiniére, Que., pier protection....... . |... ....
" d g NZe.vvr tove vonnn
Lourdes, Que., repairing wharf............ e

Lower St. wrenoe, Que., maintenance. .
Lunenburg, N.S., post office ...... .....
1’Ardoise, N.S., repalrs .............. .
Lachine, Qltlle, post office. . .............
TLake Cou

" ﬁauphltn, Qan Dom. landshoeifoe

" egantic, Que., repairing wharfs

« Slmg;:)e On., staﬁ &c ¢

«  St. John, Que wharfs.. ...,

w  Winnipeg, Man, construction of

wharfs..... ... ... ... ... .

Langevin Bridge, Alberta, repairs
Lanoraie, %ue.. repairs to pier.

Laprairie, Que., dredging.................
" post office.. ........... .
repairing pier............

's Rlver. N.S,, dredging ........ ...

Leth ndge, N.W. T court-house..
Dom. lands office, .

iching, Ont., staff, &c..... ... .

post office..... .....

Levw, Que gravingdock ........... ....
m:ml%rant building. .........

Le.vns Pomt P.E.L, repairs to wharf......
Lxghtmg, &c Ottawa bridges ............
public buildings. ..... ..... !

Lmdsay, Ont., post office.................
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P
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Page
Part 4.

Page
Part 5.

©
Fart .

Page
Part 7..

L
L’Islet, Que., repairs to wharf ............
Little Namws, N.8., repairs w wharf ...
Liverpool, N.S post office. .............
Lockport, N.S. L
Locks Crenien ee eesasens
London. Ont., custoné house. .. .........
C0. i e
Longueull, Que., repan-s to wharf..........
L’Ongna.], Ont., thrt promctlon.
M

Mabou, N.8,, repairs to channel works. ...
Macleod Bmige, N.W.T., repairs

w  custom-house.................... ..

v  court-house ..
Madawaska River, Ont. slides and booms,

repm L
l‘aue repmmtopler Ceaieessanes

Mutla.nd N. S construction of ferry whuf .

Major's. Trill Psr ....................
Manitoba, dredgi
" expendlture, harbours and rivers
" dredgi dn plant. . Gl budidines
" ex m.u'e, pubhic buildings.
n public bulldings ... e
" wharis, Lak innipeg.... ...
Margaree, N. S., construction. . ... .....

Margaretvilie, N.8,, reeonstmctmg pier..
Man-yzmlleq N’ B., posto ice......oo0eennn

Maritime vamees, dredging plant....... e

Matane, Que., repaire to pier... .........
Maria Street Bridge, constructlon and re-
MbNair's Gove, N.S., repairs to breakwater
Meaford, Ont., dredgmg ........

repairs to pler ............ .

Megantlc, Que TEPAIrs  ................
Merigomish. S construction. ..........
Meteghan éme, N.S., repairs to break-

s L7 S I T T TR

Metlakatla, B. C Indw.n oﬁice ........... .
Midland, Ont., dredgm .................
Mumnegash P.E. I, dredgl .........
anedosa, Man., Dommlon lands oftice. .
1mm1gmnt building.. .
Mlsoellaneous items.... ................
Mistassini, Que., freight shed.............
Mizzonette, N. B repairs to wharf
Moncton, N.B., post office ..............
Montague, P. EL .
Montmagny, Que., post office. .
" wantmg rO0I Tepairs. ......
Montreal, Que., custom-house ............ .
" drill hall ........ .... .
n Dominion bmldmgs ......
" civil service examiner’s
office..................
" examining warehouse... .. .
" immigration office.......
" harbour commission loan..
" ' " dredgmg .......
" inland revenue office .
u post office......
" opening and closmg navi-
gation ................
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m
Moosejaw, N.W.T., coun’honse. [ 7,21
Moosomin " |72
Morden, N S., repairing pner 8
Murray Bay, Qu " 11
. N
Nanaimo, B.C., harbour dredging......
" post office...... .. .
Napanee, Ont, W erernnenenras
Nappan, N.8,, experimental farm..... ..
National Art ery, curator’s rej
Navigation, datesof opemn and closing of.
Negro Point (St. John), N.B., breakwater. .
New Brunswick, dredgmg 'and dredgmg
Operations. ... ....ouvufereneansfenenenesliaiiiin, 13, 108 | .oovvia]eves vufienennn
" expendu.ure, harbours
and rivers............lvoeeee.n 2 IS ISR PR PR R
" expendnure, pnblu, build-
B EETTeTS 2 O O R P Al
" public buildings. ..... ...l YA PP P P P
repairs to wharfs, plers, el 5,20 | i e e e aee ol
New Carllsle Que., repmrs ....................... |3 0 FURN PR FURETIOE EUPPPPONE RO
Newecastle, N.B. Jtos,o 00 tvvr e ineaenn 3,17 [ DU SUNSIN BTN R
Newcastle, Ont redging.......... . .. ... 1240........ BT L 2 R R I,
’ slides and booms. . .......[....... | oo el RS PRI 41 ...
Newe&stle and Trent district works.......|..... ..|.c.oo ifeeniiit D7 A R O P
o District,elides and booms, repairs| ....... b1 20 D P SRR ORI
New G w, N.8., post office...........0........ 8, 17 L O Y O PN
New Lou on, P.E.L, repairs to harbour }

WOrKS .ot cor i et ieenen e e 2 6,25 [....ocifeeeenenefonainnnn
Newport, Que., repairs towharf.... ... .|........ 11 ]........ 6,61 |.......feeeeeii]iianiitn
New Westmmsbar, B.C., Dominion lands .

office...... .. | ... ... A T O P O EE T,
“ drillhall.........|........ 7 b | N IR (AU R I
" engineer’s office ..|........ S S P L [ P e
post office.... ... 721 B O T P
Niagara Falls, Ont., post office ..... .. [ ....... 5 lo.oo.... FO S R S PN
Nicomekel River, B. ., improving channel.|.. . ... 1. ... [/ U2 3 P DU
North Bay, Ont., oonstrucnon .................... 12 e e e
North Cardigan, 'P. E.I, repairs to pier ...|.... ... 9l........ 5,25 |........f..eenes e
North Rustico, PEIL opemng and closmg
of mavigation........ ... ......oeiiideee cidl ceiii i i e e e 44
North Sydney, N.8., opening and closing of
nav tlon ............................... R PR FOUT RN 4
postoffice . ..........|........ 3, 17 [ 2 R O A
‘North Wa.llace, N.8, constructwn, ferry
g pile. ... vii i e e 8i........ 4,16 ...
west Territories, expenditure, publnc
uildings.........[........ P10 R R P U P
" public b\n]dm .............. 28 e
roads and bridges.|. ...... D I Y
Notre Dame du Lac, Que., repairs... ....} .... .. ) S IR DU P PO TR PO
Nova Scotia, redgmg opemtums ........................... 108,109 { .......0.. - «oofevenenn.
" %endlture, public bulldmgu, ....... 317 e
" b“lldlnss ............................ 4 T P P R T
" repmrs to wharfs, piers, &e..|..... ..Joeeeeii]o it - S . 2 DO P P
1]
Officials, names’ of principal, Public Works

Dspnnment ........................ ) 7 3N PO DU DU R P 17
Official correspondence, comparative tables b b R D R PN O I 49
QOgilvie, N.S., repnirs to breakwater pier..|........ 81, v o] 416 i
Okanaghan Rlver, B.C., improving stream.!........ 1B3)........ 0 Ui X DR B P
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(1]
Old Man’s Bridge, Macleod, N.-W.T......
“Ontario, dredging............. ..........
" ex%enditure public buildings.... .
" pudli(gu bligglél;‘:d. e SR
" an e ging plant.......
,{)"."“Sevme, Ont., post oﬁieeg. e
Ori hay Ont. M heeenieas i
borne, N.S., dredging ..... ..... SO
awa, art gallery and fisheries exhibit. ..
" nk of Ottawa buildings, rent...
v boundary commission offices. ....
" ock paving ........... e
v asphalt walks.. ... el e
v buildings and grounds generally..! . . ..
v central chambers, rent..... ...... e
v Central Experimental Farm .. .
»  Chaudié¢re Union Bridge.......
*  coal shed, canal basin............ e
n  Civil Service commission office . ..
v departmental buildings. ........
" . " photographer’s office
Rl d\:trict slides and booms expendi-
UPE . .iiiiiienn e neeneees
= Durie’s Chambers, rent ... ..... .
" eastern block....................
' examining warehouse............
" French translator’s office.
‘™ gas inspector’s office .......
" &eologic&l musemw ...... .
Rl overnment House, repairs and
maintenance. .................. e
" Government House, grounds, &c .| ...
' electric lighting and pumps.
A ngevin Block . ... serrentonane
" Major's Hill Park maintenance. ..
" Maria Street Bridge...... .......
" maintenance of grounds..........
" militiastores.. .... ............
" Molson’s Bank, rent . .... ... ..
w  Naglebuilding v .... ........
" new nhouse ................ ...
" N. W. Mounted Police stores.....
" observatory.. ............. .. ..
™ Parliament building
' Ppost office repairs..........
o . n _asphalting ‘.-
. Printing Bureau. .. v............
" reconstruction Western Block ....|.. . ...
' repairing streets and bridges . ... .
™ rented buildings.................
' repairs and furniture ....... ... et
" removalof BnOW............. T e N P
:: River, slidesand boomsexpenditure|........ ) & 2 N S PN PR, gl
" L NI EEE R RS BRI IR PP RSN [PSPPSPIIRIS PP R B
. " (v_}v‘(:rks, slig:‘s and boo:ln: N PO PR o BT I N P AP
' " enaux boom expenditure.|........| I8 ....... foa]ee e
N Slater’s Cll;m«;lheu’ rente.......... ]1 2 .............. AU R PO .
' Ppers’ Bridge. ...... ... oo M e e
" Supreme ooufi building 19 b T8 R PN PO N N
" te!@ﬁhone BOTVICE .. .......... R R N L SR DS
" Wellington Street Bridge. ......[........ )L 3 PO PO AN AIRTORRE R
" yeslfegn Block ... e LR Rl R 5 B....... SO SR S
! orkshops, rent, salaries, &c.....[........] 20 [...... oo e iie e
“Owey. und, Ong':’ dredging . . (; Sowiaadrree 12 |. P (- 3 P UUU N P
Lo and closin,
oMV, P08 w0 g “
ter Pong, N.S., beach protection. .... coe
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P
Parliament buildings .................... ..

Partr‘i'dge Is d N B., disinfecting house,
Partridge Tsland, N.B., quarantine ééaitiéi{
Pembroke, Ont., post office..... ...
Penetanguishene, Ont., repairs to wharf .

Percé, Que., opening, andc osing navngatmn L

Peribonka, Que., maintenace..............

Peterborough, Ont., custom-house.........
" inland revenue office. .

post office Ceen

Petrolea, Ont., post office. ... ..........

Pebewawn Rwer, Ont., shdes and booms,
Phlhpsb| Que re
Pictou, N‘fg., custom
" openi a.nd closing navngatlon
" t O “ae ..
Piers below Quebec, mamtﬁna.noe ..........
Piopolis, Que., repairs to wharf..... ...
Pointe aux Esquimaux, repairs.. .........
Pointe aux Saumons, repairs. .......
Pomte aux Trembles (eu haut), Que., dredg-
Pomt Edward, Ont., dredgmg ............
Pond Creek Bndge, OnL....0vrvnr o .
Port Arthur, Ont., dredging........ ....
N post office.............
n repairs to breakwater. .
" opening and c]osmg

O T e S PO B TS 1] LUETRETSY IR U A, 44
Port aux Saumons, Que., im vmg hmbour ........ 3 N PO 6,62 0........0 .
Port Colborne, Ont., post office..... ouoi| .+ o.onn 5,20 .. .. J e ) P
Port Daniel, Que., repmrs to gler .......... 1] ... 6,62 ........f ... Ll
Port. Dovar, Ont., opening and closing navi-

[ o) T R EEEEE R EEREPRRTS PR 44
Port Elgm, Ont., dredging........... ....foooeen s 12 (....... b T L5 20 U DR P

construction ............ 12 e e e e
Port Edward Ont., dredging.............| .- ... 120, ... P RPN PRI RN
Port Hood, N.8,, repairs to pier, &c. ..... 8 (........ 4,16 |.......... |
Port Hope, Ont., post office. ... . c..lf ceeeis 6, 20 b2 S O PR T U P
n opening and closing navi-
gation.... . . L il e e
Port J 011, h S ‘reconstruction of wharf. ... 8........
Port L’Hébert, 'N. S., channel 1mprovement 8
Port Lorne, N. 8. repaxrsto bmkwater, &c 8 .......
Port Maitland, N, . " . 8
Port Mouton, N.S., dredging..... ... ... 8 1.
Port Rowan, Ont., repairs to pier......... 12 |.
Port Stanley, Ont., dredging.. .......... 12
" opening and closing

navigation...... ... .. ...l R S I T PO IR 44
Portage la Prairie, Man., new public build- o
Porta.ge 1a Prairie, Man, post office. .....J... .... [ I A Y R DO
Porter’s Lake, N.S., improving lake. .....1... ... 8. ol 416
Portland, N. ﬁ post office.... .... S PN 4,17 8 ] J
Prescott, Ont., "custom-house. . ......... . , 20 24 L e e

" dredging.............. P PO 12(........ b (N I R I
toffice........c.ovoniiifiiennnn, 6, 20 24 R R P
Pnnee Albert .W.T., court- -house and jall........ b NN DO PO FUR B,
land and registry office| ..... W2 e e P R P
Prince Edwa.rd Island, dredging operations| ... ...i........|........ 108,112 |.eeeiiniiiiianaifiin e
" expendlture, arbours |
and rivers..........[..... .. 8l ... .. RPN P DS P
" expenditure, public
buildings .......... e e 31T e e
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. P
Prince Edward Island, public buildings....|........|........ Sl e
" wharfs, piers, break-
P waters, &c...... ..
N[)erty urchased or sold by department e
P b eased by department.. . ...
ublic buildings, British Columbia... ...
" ﬁ’nemlly, printing, &c...
" anitﬁ:ba ..... o
o New Brunswick. ........
Public buildings, North. west Territories.
" Nova Scotis. ... .. ...
" Ontario..............

" éﬂnce Edwsrd Island..
P\lbn‘coH d N ‘t.D...l.]...
Pugwo,sh 1?1&8 Toow wrt}alxlrs wharf, &e..

Q

Q““O, N.B., repairs to breakwater . .....
uebec citadel Lmlqus ...............
clerk of works’ office..............
" culler’s office.... .... e
:’ g\::ténmhonse ..... e e
' ng operations
Arill hafl 1o
" engmeer s office..... ... ........
examining warehouse ..........
expenditure, harbours and rivers..
1mmli rant building, Louise em-

ment ............ ........ e e

expenditure, public buildings .
marine and immigration agency
" ubservatory.. .. .......o......l.
Opening and closing navrgatlon

" postoffice.................

n  works, wharfs, piers, &c..
Queen’s wharf building. ... ...
weights and measures office... ...

R
gRlVer Ont., construction. .... ...

" public buildings...... .. ........ O

Ttage, Ont construction of public T

building

ﬁ D%" N.W.T., Exsmlmon lands office..
Regi iver, Man., dredging............

N.W.T., clerk of works

" council buildings. .

" court-house.. .. RPN P

" Dominion lands office... ..

" Government House. ... ..

" immigrant building .....

" land titles office.........

" post oﬁicet.ﬁ. e
Resapiulation, oL
%9"211 ¢, B.C., improving channel above

Tohiba s N e e e

Richm bucto, N.B., dredging.............
Rid““""nd mQ\le., post otfics, ... ..11 1.
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Rimouski, Que., opemng and cloging navi-

gation............ ....
" post office..........cvuntn
irs towharf.........
River Kammlstnqma, Ont., dredgmg
" Rwheheu, Que. w ...
" conscmctmn, &e.....
w St ancls, e., dred ng{). ........
w  St. Maurice, » placing buoys, &e.
v Saugeen, Ont., dredgmg ..........
" St. ohn, N.B. M e e
" construction of wharfs
" T{)denham Ont., dredging.......... ..
" ames, Ont., repau-s ............
w Tobique, N. B dam and channel

construction.............ev.aun.n.
Riviére & la Pipe, Que., construction of

wharf . .. .. e 10
Riviére Beauport Que construction . . |........ 11
" Gatineau, Que., protection work..[. . . .. 11
" Ste. Anne de Ta Pérade, Que re-
S S TR 11
" St. Louls, ue., repairs. . . 11
" du Liévre, ue., locke oo cvin e aiien 11
w W TOVENUe..... | « .u eofiee...en
w du Loup, Que., post office ........[........ 4,18
" o repairs to railway
tr: ack ................ 11
w  Ouelle, Que., repairs to wharf. ....|....... 11
du Sué Que., repairs to walls.....}........ 11
Roads and bndges, expendlture, Ont......[........ 14
" Q bec eoafeeee on 14
Boberval Que., pler ......................... 10
Rondeau, Ont., repairs ............ R P 12
Rustico, P.E. I repairs to breakwater. .. .. e s 9
S
Sandy Bay, Que., construction............ e e 1
Sapper’s ndge constmctmn and repairs . .|...... . 14
Sarnia, Ont., opening and closmg nav1ga-
tgiom . ......... o0 .. N R T
n River, Ont., dredging..... ..... [........ 12

San,

Sault Ste. Marie, Ont openmgand closing
pavigation. ... ... il o

Shediac, N. B., opening and closing navi-

l:lon ...................
repairs to breakwater
Sherbrooke Que., post office .............
Sherrowséhanne. NSt i e

Ship Channel, Quebec-Montreal...........
Sh&gpegan, N.B., piers, dams, breastworks,

Skeena Rwer, B. C nnpmvmg channel .

Slides and booms, collector’s reports. .....
" Black River, repairs..
" Coulonge River, repmrs
" Dumome " "o
" engmeer ’s reports. .. ..
" expenditure . .
" employees. ............
" Gatineau River, repairs
" Madawaska River «
" Newcastle District, re-

port of engineer.....
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S !
Slides and booms, Newcastle District, rev-
[ - Y (RPN DU PR PN 41 e
" Ottawa District, report
of engineer.
" " revenue.
" PetawawaRiver, repairs
" St. Maurice District,
report of engineer....
" St. Maurice District,
revenue., . .. ....
n St. Maurice District,

Smith’s F,
Sorel. %lu alls, Ont., post office

Souris, P.E.

South

tephens’ Pier, P.E1L., repairs

tﬁ- aﬁgalthe des Monts, Que., improving
e

gz" Agnes, Que, repairs to wharf .. .. . .
t;;Ameet’ Que., addition to wharf. . . .

;e::nne du Saguenay, Que., repairs to|

expenditure..... .

e., opening and closing naviga-

tion..........
<21, repairs to breakwater. ... ..
Nation River, Ont., dredging. ..

Plers ... . 0 L ) 11
gb‘; Anne de Sorel, Que., constructing pier|... .... 11
p.ier nne de la Pocatiére, Que., repairs to n
gtt:: An’s, N| River, C.B., construction. . .. ...’ 8
<l Ann’s, N, River, C.B., opening and
St ang of navigation..... ........ ....
Ste Céthfmnes, nt., post office. .. . .. .
- Lroix, Que., dredging........... . .
Ste, I‘{:"!lmlnnding improvements. ... . ...

Ste. F¢
St prancis, N.B., improving channel......
St ‘;lnse;nce, Que., construction of block. .

. r, Que., post office......... ......
St. HYMi’n 4 o

8

na
St. Jof

n’s, Que., post office. ....... .... [..... ..

Se. John, N.B., custom-house. . . .. T P
arbour, breakwater, &c... . |........

" dredging.. ............| .......
opening and closing of navigation|........ ..
postoftice....... ......... ..o .

Y . savings
g& ‘v‘il!l:en, Que., Tepairs............ . oo [
St. Mic’hQue" post office................ e

)

St,'l P?"el’fﬂ. C.B., opening and closing of

Sp wRtion. .

St § h, Que,, post office. ... ... R P

Ste, ,},"Pht‘m,N. .. post office. ...... S PO

St 'T herdge, Que., excise office... ... .....0........
g h"‘mas, Ont., post office..............0...... .

S:e.JIrenee, Que., w :
pme.n des Chaillons, Que., channel im-
£ Joan des Chaill Que., dredgi

es Chaillons, Que., dredging. ..
s‘i,;’ean (Isle d’Orléans), Que., repairs tol
st. .. . Lo e P

éro,
St. J(_)h:}:’ 8::«3., post office. . .

- Maurice River works

lle, Que., improving pier
1clen, Que., wharf .. ..........

the, Que., post office...........
imrf extension .......

e., opening and’ c‘1<.)si‘ng. of

ael, Que., dredging .. .. ...

xiv
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S
St Valentine, Que., constructing Janding| " 61
............................................... N 3 Y R
Stoney Creek, N.B., repair: to groyne. .. .. e 10 ....... -7 A D B
Stikine River route to Yukon, B.C., im-
proving streams, &c... .............c0 ooeeiens 137....... 106 oo
Stratford, Ont., pOﬂt oﬂxce U P 6, 20 25 | e
Strathmy, Ont. v o 6, 20 25 | e
Summerside, P.E.L, dredgmg ............... 2% P B b R I
" opening and closing of
navigation........ [..oooideiee oo e e 45
" postoffice. ..........[........ 3,17 L 2 P R PO TR,
protection works ....... .2 TP FOUUSS RN IERURU TR
Summervﬂle, N.S, repau-s towharf.. ... .|........ . 4,19 [ ] e,
Surveys and mspectmns R P D v U, 195 (..o e
Sussex, N.B., postoffice...... .. ........]........ 4,18 9 S R D PO
Sydenham, Ont. dredging.. ............. .o ) D M7 | ]
Sydney, C.B., opening and closing of navi-
gation. ............... | LR EER TR PN R F, 45
" postoffice. ... ..........feeeeens 3,17 [ P R N S,
T
Tadousac, Que., repairs to pier............[........ e e
" opening and closing naviga-
3705 YNNI PP PRSI RN IS DU PR 45
Telegraph Lines, report on (Government
lines ............ ... 0| .o F: 3N P PSR
" revenue ............. J I ol I P 10 (... ...,
" expenditure,........ .. el 14,050 0 Ll L 0.l
" British Columbia, expen-
Coditare. ...l eeeeee DL 20 PN EEPTUTU R (O P,
" gfnemlly, expenditure...|........ 2L 3 PO N AP UUUE RO P
" ew Brunswick, expen—
diture .... .. ... ceeelen
" N. W. Territories, expen-
diture ............... . ceeenes
" Nova Scotia, expendlture ........
" Ontario N
" P. E. Island "
Quebec A I
Texas La.ndmg, Ont., dredging............|-.......
Thornbury, Ont., construction of break-
wa.ter ............... .-
dredging ... ..........| ......
Three Fathom Harbour, N S repairs to|
Works..........iiiiieiiiin e e
Three Rivers, Que., custom-house.........l........
" opening and closing
navigation........ f.o.ooeei e e i e 45
- post office.. ..........|...... 4, 18 14 ... o e
Ticouabe, Que., construction of wharf. .. .[........ 104........ 7 S Y PN P eens
Tj ish, P.E.I.. extension of breakwater, 9 5 g7
.......................................... L SRR B X
Toblque, N.B., construction of dam.......|........ 9 ... 33
Tobermory, Ont repairs to booms........[... .... 1200, 7,80 | . .. o el
Tolsmavi e, Ont repairs towharf........| ... ...] ... ool A I PO N
Toronto, Ont., assistant receiver general’s !
office ...... ... Lt 6, 20 . 25 L s e
" civil service examining office|.. ..... 2 i e e
" custom-house........ . .. . e 6, 20 b2+ 2 I R I
" dredil%......... ................ 12 oo o e e
" deillhall...... . . . ... .00 .. 6,20 |.... Ll e
" Dommum public buildings..|...... 20 f. e
" engineer’s office.........0... ... ..., 1 I e
" examining warehouse. ... .|.... .... 6, 20 b+ 20 IS DRI U
" inland revenue office . ..... [........ 6, 20 25 ho. e e
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T
Toronto, Ont, .y post office. ..... ...... ...l 6, 20 b T R S DA I,
" repairs to breakwater, &c...[. . .. 12 ........ 7,80 ... oo e,
u opening and closing nav 1ga-
tion....... I Y 45
T,I,::MN‘ N.B., Lazaretto................| ..... 4,18 9l ol PO EOU,
nt and Newc'est.le,l(()int gxmct works.|. .. ..f..... sl . 187 .. e
slide an m repairs{....... b I P N
'T"e‘“‘m,Ont toffice.... ... .... Jeee.i... 6,20 |.. .....0..... S DU P,
rout Cove, N.8,, extension of breakwater|........ 8 ....... 4,19 |........0L....o e
poare, NS, 08t OfiCe. ...\ v |l 3,17 6 ....... AR N PO
%0 Rivers, N.B., construction of wharf..|........ 10 ). ... B,3T ] oes ifeves e
Yn“mouth N.B., harbour improvement
804 Pier PepAIra. ..............00venrnn|oeenns 10|....... 5,87 oo e i
v
Valloyﬁem ., post
office.. .
anco“"el‘, %‘l ggzd harbour. ...
drill ﬂi ...............
post office. ......... ...
Vlcbon&, B.C., appraiser’s office . .. ....
" arracks...... ..........
" clerk of works office
" cnstom-house . . . .
" drill hn.]l ..................
" engineer’s office...... ....
" Indian office.. .... .
" new public building.......|........ cee e F2 2 U N R Y I
" marine hospital.. ... .....l........ 0 P PO BN O P P
" military store. ... ... [........ P2 U I DAY P
" post lt))thoe.a. .. N B 7 g% 1) U N Y P PN
Vi L weights an measureso ee .................... Y E T IR e e
ictoria Bay, Que., repairs to-pier........|........0....... e e 521 ..... B FURUTI U
W
Walke
rton, Ont., post office. ... ... ..... |oeeenn.. 6,20 ].......feeii e e IS P
Wallace, .S drodging . o000 i 8. SR I DRI IR ISR
Water o construction of ferrywharf.|........ 8. .... .. 4,20 ... ool
Well; S“PPIY public buildings.... .......0... ... 2% I P P e
weat n dtreet, construction and repairs| ........ bV 1 PO DR ESSIN AU PO,
WeltP ham, ue,poﬁtofﬁce ................ 4,18 |........]...... [ P PO
oint, P,E.1., repairs and extension
th'i;;'" ..................................... 91........ 528 ... ... ...
thte Ont., dredging................. | ....... 12]........ M7 ... T
Why, 'Water, N.S., construction of wharf..l........ 81 ... ... 4,2 ... ... .. e
Wuretg';:’mash NS, construction........[ ... .. 8l..... .. Y
t., opemng and closmg of
win, Vigation, . | r L el e e N FO 4

Wi qumrantme statlon
Indsor, N 8., construction and repairs. .
" "drill h;ill .................
Wi " post office..... ...... . ..
lndsm-, Ont,., construction of training weir
" opening and closing of navi-
\ gatig;l ..................
Winnis. post office.. .... ..........
““llpeg Man., clerk of works office. . .
crown timber office. ... ..
" custom-house ... .......
" Dominion lands office.. ..
" drill hall................
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Winnipeg, Man., examining warehouse... |........ 6, 20 - W
" immigration shed .......[..... .. 6, 20 D P
“ Indian office .... ......}1..... . 6 R ..
" opening and closing of I i
navigation. . ...... .. ... e o I 45
" postotlice.............. |........ 6, 20 28 L e e e
" Osborne barracks.. . . | = .......... -1 P R P
Winnipeg Lake, wharfson ............ ..| ....... 12 R A 1) U I
Wimipeg Lake, dredging Red River .....| ... ... 12 ..., T N O
Wolf Island, Ont., Kingston eustom-house.|....... 20 B P T
Wolseley, N.W.T., court-house....... ... e b1 S l ...............................
Woodstock, N.B., post office..............[........ 4,18 9
Y
Yamaska, Que., repairs to lock, &c.. .... [........ 1 ... i .............. 61]......
Yarmouth, N.S., beach protection, &c.....1 ... ... 8 ....... 4,21 | el L
L dredging ............. J....... | 81........ mry ..o
" post office ........ ... R P l 3,17 A PR DR PR R
York Bridge, Ont., repairs, &c . ..........|........ ! ) T 2 U A BRI SN DR
Yorkton, N.W.F., Dominion lands office. .;........ -2 B DU SR PO PO DU
Yukon District, expenditure, harboursant!
TIVEIB.. . .. il [ I 5 I R N PP D




Department of Public Worka

REPORT, MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS, 1897-98.

LIST OF 1LLUSTRATIONS,

IN ACCOMPANYING POCKET.

CHIEF ENGINEER'S REPORT.

8. Ship Channel, River St. Lawrence between Montreal and Quebec, November 1897 —
Scale: 1 inch = 4} miles.

W. Part of Lake Winnipeg and Red River, in connection with improvements for
havigation purposes—Scale 1 inch — 6 miles.

‘0:
SPECIAL APPENDIX, «A.”

I « Denison hydrograph ” put up on Queen’s Wharf, Toronto harbour, in the spring of
1898_1/10 full size.

IL Intgresting undulations on Lake Ontario, recorded by the ¢ Denison hydrograph’
In May 1898.

:0:

SPECIAL APPENDIX, “B.”

I «
T&c_heométre Sanguet " (auto réducteur) as adapted to Geodetic Levelling in connec-

tion with a new geodesic rod, by R. Steckel, Eng. in charge Canadian Geodetic
velling.

11 .
New geodesic rod with accessories, for use in connection with the Sanguet tacheo-
Mmeter,—1/10 full size.

I .
IL. Details of new tacheometer rod and accessories—} full size.

¢ .
8 47, 48, 49 and 50. Five typical double pages of proposed field book for tacheometric
Surveying and precision levelling combined, showing sights, readings, entries
and computations required.

5
8nd 6, Two typical double pages of tacheometer field book, showing sights, readings,
entries and computations required for geodetic levelling.



Department of Public Works.

PART L

REPORT

OF THE

DEPUTY MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 1897-98.

DEePARTMENT oF PuBric WORKS,
Ot1Tawa, Dec. 22, 1898.
The Honourable Josepr TsrAEL TARTE,
Minister of Public Works.

P 'S“‘,-Herewith I have the honour to submit the report of the Department of
ublic Works for the year ended the 30th June, 1898,

EXPENDITURE.

The expenditure during the year was as follows :—

Harbours, rivers, bridges, &e... ................... $1,087,358 85
Public buildings......... ..o 969,176 58
Telegraphs..........covviviiin ciiie e 78,297 62
Miscellaneous, including salaries, &c............... 108,983 82

$2,243,816 87

C°mP8red with previous years, the expenditure for the last year shows an increase.

Expenditure—1891-92 ............covvvninnni... $2,084,644 38
do 1892-93. ... . i i e 2,274,448 47
do 1893-94 . . ..o eearnnn, e 2,315,021 67
do 1894-95. .. ittt i e 2,033,219 53
do 1895-96.......c 0ttt 1,583,409 35
do . 1896-97 .. ot i i 1,744,654 21
do 189798 v eeeeeeeeee e, 9,243,816 87

9—i—1
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REVENUE.

The revenue of the Department amounted to $135,528.46, considerably larger than
that for a number of years.

Revenue for 1891-92 ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... $ 100,929 71
do 1892-93. ... ... . 126,186 25
do 1893-94..... e 119,779 36
do 1894-95 ...... e e e 101,846 27
do 1895-96. . ... ... .ot 102,439 12
do 1896-97.......... e 109,966 01
do 1897-98 . .. i e 135,528 46

The sources from which the revenue was derived are as follows :—

Slides and booms, Ottawa district ... .... & 60,765 90
do St. Maurice district. .. .. 29,893 41
= $ 90,659 31
Esquimalt Graving Dock......... ...... 8§ 6,227 92
Lévis do ...l 19,839 97
Kingston do ... RN 7,448 31
——— 33,516 20
Riviére du Lievre Lock.. ............... & 246 84
River Yamaska Lock................... 355 46
—_—— 602 30
Telegraphs. .. ... ..o il 10,750 65

$135,528 46

The revenue from slides and booms, graving docks and locks, exceeded that of the
previous year by $24,183.72. The collections from the Ottawa district slides were
$8,947.73 in advance of 1896-97, and for the St. Maurice district, $7,320.91 in advance.

The revenue from the Esquimalt Graving Dock was $6,227.92 being $1,286.97 less
than the year before : the tonnnge of vessels docked was 28,453 tons, or 539 tons more
than in the previous year, but the dock was occupied for only 91 days, or 12 days less
than the year before.

The revenue from the Lévis Graving Dock amounted to $19,839.97, being $7,439.40
more than for 1896-97. The dock was occupied for 156 days, as against 77 in the
previous year, and the tonnage of vessels docked was 18,913, or 2,059 tons more than in
the year before. The Kingston Graving Dock returned $7,448.31, being $1,087.71 more
than in the previous year ; and 136 vessels, or 84 more were docked therein, having a
tonnage of 17,623 tons, or 8,382.76 less than in 1896-97.

The returns from the locks at Riviére du Liévre and River Yamaska were $602.30,
an increase of $138.94 over the previous year.

The returns from telegraphs were $10,750.65, an increase of $1,378.73 over the
previous year. '

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

Before proceeding to review the operations of the Department in connection with
the construction and maintenance of public buildings, I feel it a duty to make reference
2



Department of Public Works.

% the loss which has been sustained by the death of the late Mr. Thomas Fuller, Chief
Architect of this Department, who entered our service on the 1st November, 1881, and
Was superannuated on the 1st October, 1896.

The late Mr. Fuller designed most of the important public buildings in the
pominion. In 1866 his plans were selected for the construction of the Parliament Build-
Ing in this city, a structure which is greatly admired for the harmony of its lines and the
beauty of its general appearance. Upon the completion of this building, Mr. Fuller was
entrusted, after having submitted competitive plans, with the construction of the new
Capitol at Albany, N.Y., and remained there until he accepted from the then Minister
of Public Works, in 1881, the post of Chief Architect of Canada.

From 1881 to 1896, all the public buildings constructed by the government were
designed by him, including among others the new Departmental Building on Wellington
Street, in Ottawa (geverally called the Langevin Block) ; the drill sheds in Toronto and
_Halif&x ; the new post office building in Victoria, B.C. ; the Hamilton post office build-
Ing, ete., ete.

Mr. Fuller has left in the Department the record of a brilliant architect and of a
Conscientious chief, applying to his work all the faculties with which he was so highly
endowed, while being firm in the defence of the interests with which he was entrusted.

i He has been succeeded in his important position by his trusted and most valualle
8sistant, Mr, David Ewart, who has been an officer of the Department in the Chief
Arehitect’s branch for the past 28 years, having entered the service in May, 1871.

Owing to Mr. Fuller’s retirement, the work executed during the fiscal year under
review has been carried out under the supervision of Mr. Ewart. At the end of the last
ﬁsf""l Year, the Department had under construction the drill hall at Halifax, the post
office af, Windsor, N.S., the reconstruction of the roof of the West Block on the Depart-
Menta) Buildings in Ottawa, destroyed by fire in 1897, and the post office at Vie-
toria, B.C,

The drill hall at Halifax was nearly completed at the end of the fiscal year 1897-98,and _
'8 now partly occupied. The same may be said of the uew post office at Victoria, B.C.

Towards the end of the fiscal year the reconstruction of the roof of the West Block
M Ottawa wag nearly completed, and the rooms contained in the attic covered by that
roof are now in a condition to be occupied ; a suite of them being, as a matter of fact,
O%Cupieq by the Department of the North-west Mounted Police.
_ he reconstruction of the public building at Windsor, N.8., which was destroyed by
ire !0 the month of October, 1897, was well advanced at the end of the fiscal year and
* W completed.
P W buildings have been commenced at Liverpool, N.S., and at Ingersoll and Rat
Ortage, Ontario. Public tenders have been called for their execution, contracts have been
::aé ed and the works being in each case under way. Properties have been purchased
erthierville and Montmagny, and the buildings situate thereon have been remodelled
. % Very moderate cost for the accommodation of the postal service. They were occu-
Pied for thege purposes at the end of the fiscal year.

Sketches have been made by the present Chief Architect, Mr. Ewart, for a proposed
eological Museum building in Ottawa, the matter being one that has been brought to
€ attention of the Department at various times. The plans are fairly well advanced,

2nd when it will be decided to go on with the building, they are in such a condition as
Completed within a very short time.

3
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The various minor services connected with the maintenance of the public buildings
throughout Canada, under the charge of this Department and under the immediate
charge of the chief architect, have been well performed. This work in itself may not
appear at first sight very important, but when the number and the value of the
buildings is considered, it can be seen that it requires from the chief architect constant
and close attention. There are upwards of 225 buildings to look after. The water
gas, light and drain services have to be inspected and kept in good condition. The
buildings themselves, which are for the most part constructed of stone or stone and
brick, require periodical repairs which, if delayed, always cause an additional expendi-
ture of money following upon each year’s delay in the work. About three years ago a
general inspection of all the buildings was made and reports submitted concerning the
requirements at each place. From year to year appropriations have been obtained and
the buildings have been put in a fairly good state of repair.

One of the matters connected with the maintenance of the buildings which requires
attention and will entail some additional expenditure is the substitution of electric
light for the present mode of lighting in our various buildings. Some of the buildings
are now lighted by electricity, others by gas, while a large number, especially in the
provincial towns, are still lighted by that old, obsolete and unpleasant method, coal oil-
In many of these towns electric light has been introduced and is used, whilst some-
times the most important buildings of the town, those owned by the government, still
offer for the carrying on of the public business no other means of illumination but the
crude method above referred to. When we come, however, to consider the total repre-
senting the cost of introducing the electric light in all the buildings, we pause, as we
have not at our command the appropriation required.

I may be permitted, to suggest that the necessary appropriation be cbtained
and that electric light be introduced in all the public buildings where the towns-
people use that mode of lighting.

As was outlined in last year’s report the public buildings in Ottawa have been
wired for electric lighting, and electric light is now used in the buildings -instead of
gas which was formerly used ; as regards ventilation and protection from fire, this has
been a great improvement.

For the supply of current a contract has been entered into with the Ottawa Electric
Light Company at the unprecedented (I believe) low price of $2.25 per light per year
for the first 3,000 lights, and $2.00 for any additional lights over that number, the total
number of lights in the buildings being a trifle over 6,000.

Steps have also been taken to carry into absolute effect a scheme for the protection
from fire of the Parliament and Departmental Buildings in Ottawa.

A new main has been brought up to the several buildings from the city’s street
main, and powerful Worthington pumps with Westinghouse electric motors have been
installed in each of the east, west and central blocks of the Parliament and Depart-
tal Buildings as well as in the Langevin Block. Upon trial, at various times, the pumps
worked in a very satisfactory manner, and they now, it is thought, afford a complete
protection against any such destructive fire as destroyed in 1897 the attic story of the
western block.
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HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

) The most important of the works connected with the improvement of harbours and
rivers, which the department has under its control, is without doubt the maintenance
of the channel between Montreal and Quebec, and as can be seen at page 134 of the
report of the Chief Engineer important work has been performed in connection there-
with during the fiscal year under review.

_ As you are aware, the operations conducted, first by the Harbour Commissioners
Since 1883, and by the department since 1389, have had in view the giving of a depth
of 27} feet at low water throughout the channel, the depth at some points of the river
being far in excess of that minimum where consequently no dredging was required.

Ever since the year 1830, when the Harbour Commissioners were constituted for
the Mmanagement of the harbour of Montreal, the deepening of the channel has had to
keep pace with the increase in the size of ships consequent upon the enlargement of
trade and commerce between the European countries and Canada.

. Ascan be seen by the following brief notes, the growth of the harbour and the
lmprovement of the channel have gradually followed the demands of trade. In the har-

ur, up to 1823, there were only two small wharfs between what is now the Custom-
00use Square and the foot of Lachine Canal, with about 1,120 feet frontage and about
< feet depth of water at the lowest stage. In 1825, the wharfing was extended and
Placed in about 5 feet of water. Between 1830 and 1832, several of the present wharfs
were built of piles with from 5 to 20 feet of water in front of them, the aggregate front-
ge reaching 4,950 feet. From 1840 to 1846, that frontage was extended to 7,070 feet.
With the exception of two new wharfs built in 10 feet of water, in the lower part of
the harbour, nothing further was done till 1856.

Dredging operations had, however, been already commenced to deepen the river

low the city and were by that time sufficiently advanced to allow of vessels reaching

Jhontrea] with a draught of 13 feet at ordinary low water, instead of 11 feet as before, and

ft' Was then determined to continue the deepening of the ship channel which, in 1844,
1 had been decided to carry down to a depth of 16 feet.

0 From a depth of 16 feet, the enlargement was carried to 20 feet in 1867, then to
22 feet at the close of 1878, to 25 feet in October, 1882, and ultimately to 27} feet, and
1t is evident that this latter depth will not long be sufficient for the enormous ships

Wwhich are now being built for the carrying trade, and which will require greater depth
accommodatidn.

The deepening of the channel to 274 feet has been proceeded with since 1883, and

tt 8t depth can now be found, under normal conditions, when the water is at its ordinary
Stage,

In 1895, however, during the lowest stages of the water, in the months of October and
Ovember, it was found that the water had become so low that during a few weeks of those
Taonths, the normal depth of 27} feet was not found at & few points the water showing dur-
'ng the two last weeks of October and November an average depth of 26 feet 6 inches,
ére was also a reduction in the depth of water in 1897, but this time for a shorter
Period, i, only one week in October, when the depth was less than 27 feet. I append

H
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hereto tables showing the average weekly depth of water observed in the ship channel
during 1895-96-97-98 : —

AvErAGE weekly depth of water observed in the Ship Channel of the River St. Law-
rence from May to November, in the Years 1895, 1896, 1897 and 1898.

1895. 1896. . 1897. 1898.
Week : Week : Week Week :

Beginning Ft. in. Beginning Ft. in. Beginning Ft. in Beginning Fe. in.
May 4...... 34 0 iMay 2...... 40 0 |May 1. .. 0
TR § DO 34 0| «w 9..... 3B 6 « 8 ... 6
w18, ..., 34 1 w16 . 34 3| w 15...... 2

w 25....... 32 7 w 23 ..., 32 10 « 22, ... 7
......................... w 30......] 31 8 w29,
June 1...... 32 2 |June 6... .. 31 3 (June 5...... 9
" 8....... 32 3] « 13 ..... 31 0| o 12..... 7

wo 15....... 31 4 o« 20..... 31 210 v 19, 8

" 22....... 30 10 " 27.. 29 10 " 26 . h
v 290 L. 31 0} ........ B T e U NN BN
July 6...... 30 2 |[July 4...... 20 2 |July 3 9
v 13, ... 29 0] o 1 29 0 v 10 0
w20, ..., 28 3 » 18...... 29 1 " T 0
w27 28 3, v 25...... 28 9 w 24 2
..................... . . w 3L 0
Aug. 3....... 28 0 5 |Aug. T...... (1]
w20, ... 27 10 0| o 14....., 7
w17, 28 2 5 w21, ... 3

" 24...... 28 6 0 w o 28...... [
w31, ..... 28 9 81
Sept. 7 27 10 4 {Sept. 4 7
27 8 8 w11, 4

27 4 6 w18, 10

e cee 3 " 25 - 0

2 5 0ct. 2... .. 4

0 3 " 9...... 0

9 01 w 16...... 5

10 4 wo 23...... 8

e e s 51 nw 30...... 0

26 2 3 |Nov. 6...... 5

26 3 7 w 1300, 10

" 16..... 26 10 2 " 20...... 6

wo 23...... 2T 0 6 v 27...... 8
w 80, ... 26 10 .. .o e

It will he seen by these tables that during nearly the whole season of navigation,
that is to say, up to the beginning of October, the depth of water is always in excess of
the standard depth of 274 feet, and that during the years 1896 and 1898, at no period
of the season was the water level below the standard depth.

At the opening of navigation, and well into August, the water averages 30 feet ;
and in 1896 and 1898, at the periods when, in 1893, there was only 26 feet 2 inches
and 26 feet 3 inches in the channel, there was a depth in 1896, of 28 feet 3 inches, and
in 1898, of 29 feet 5 inches.

These tables show conclusively that the year 1895 was an exceptional year, and
that the normal condition of affairs has been re-established during the succeeding
seasons,

It must also be borne in mind that the help of the tide is given to navigation nearly
as far up as Three {Rivers, and when the depth of water is reported from Sorel or
6
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Montreal, or shown by the semaphores, advantage can be taken of the tide in exceptional
years, such as 1895, in order to pass over the parts of the channel affected by it.

In the present state of the channel, as shown by the depths recorded, with proper
care and the proper handling of vessels by the persons in charge, one may say that
the navigation at 27} feet is safe for any vessels not loading beyond that draught.

The extraordinary low water of 1895 will not, we hope, occur again but as it was
due to circumstances outside of the control of the department, and as there might pos-
sibly be a recurrence of the same stage of water, the department has taken sieps to
refer the depth of the channel to that extraordinary low water instead of, as originally,
to the ordinary low level of the fall season, and for that purpose, since 1895, dredges of
the department have been at work widening the sharp curves of the channel, deepening
af; Points where the depth was not at the standard required and doing all possible to
give the necessary security to the large ocean steamers navigating the St. Lawrence.

During the season of 1898, upon your orders, the channel was tested and swept,
from the month of June to the month of September, in a regular manner with a plant
under the immediate charge of Mr. F. W. Cowie, an engineer of this department; a
lookout being kept at the same time for any displacement of the buoys marking the
channel, and whenever obstructions were met, a dredge was immediately upon the
obstruction being found put at work to remove the same.

The dredges under the control of the department, and operating in the ship channel
uring the year under review were the ‘Laurier,” the *“Laval,” and dredges No. 8,
1 angd 192, The ¢ Laurier” worked at Ste. Croix and Contrecceur; the *Laval”

Worked on the Barre-a-Boulard ; the “No, 12” at Ile Ste. Ours, Pointe a Citrouille,
h“mplain, Longue Pointe and Pointe aux Trembles; the “No. 11” at Pointe aux
rembles, Longue Pointe and Contrecceur ; and the “ No. 8” worked in the Harbour of
ontreal, until sent to Kingston.

The total number of cubic yards of material removed was 625,488 yards, the work
Uestion being done in 7,770 hours, or at the rate of about 81 yards per hour, and an
Average for the whole of the dredges of about 810 yards per day.

In g

The average, of course, fails to give an accurate idea of the work of each dredge as
the Work was done in different materials, the bottom being composed of either sand or
11:’18, Stone and boulders, stone and gravel, or clay and gravel. For instance, “No.
Worked at Longue Pointe and Contrecceur, performing dredging at a cost not
exee?di“g 5% cents per yard, while the dredge at Barrea-Boulard, where the material
Consisteq of stone, hard-pan and boulders, operated at a cost of 614 cents per yard.

£ The works of sweeping and testing the channel and the work of dredging were per-
tol‘med in a thorough and satisfactory manner but it was found that the plant at
he disPOSal of the department was not sufficient to admit of the work being done with

© celerity required by the trade. This moved you to order, after the necessary
ﬁm‘ds had been voted by Parliament, the construction of two additional steel dredges,
Which are in course of construction at the Government ship yards at Sorel. The ship
Yard is under the direction of Mr. James Howden, who also has charge of the dredging
Perations on the river, and is the general superintendent as well of the dredging being
Satried on in the provinces of Ontario and Quebec. The ship yard is located on the
McC&rthy estate, the property having beenqtmder rental to the department since 1889
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when the channel works were transferred from the Montrea] Harbour Commissioners to
the Government of Canada and placed under the control of this department.

The additional work required to be performed in the channel to meet the require-
ments of the trade and the consequent increase necessary in the fleet at the disposal of
the department have necessitated the enlargement of the works at Sorel. An option
for purchase has been obtained from the McCarthy estate for a sum to be fixed by
arbitration, and additional buildings have been erected to replace the old structures in
which the work could only be carried on under great difficulties.

In this connection it must be borne in mind that the dredging fleet, when transferred
to this department in 1889, was composed of old vessels, the machinery of which was in
a fairly good state but the hulls of which, being all of wood, were in an advanced stage
of dilapidation and could only be kept up by constant and costly repairs. -The average
healthy life of a dredge with a wooden hull is about 15 years. After that, the hull
deteriorates very rapidly and soon becomes useless. In that way several of the old
dredges handed over to us by the Montreal Harbour Comumission have had to be dis-
mantled and new hulls constructed to receive the machinery.

Since 1889 the department has built for the ship channel two new and powerful
dredges, the “Laval” and the *‘ Laurier,” and two new steel ones are now on the
stocks being rapidly constructed. Tkree new tugs have been built and are in commis-
sion, namely :—the ¢ Cartier,” the “St. Jean d'Iberville” and the “ Emilia.” The
remaining boats, such as the **John Pratt,” the “St. James,” the Brydges,” the
“ Ottawa ” and the “St. Francis” are old and keep together only by a miracle. At very
short notice they must all be refitted and provided with new hulls,

When the two new dredges shall be completed the fleet operating on the St.
Lawrence will consist of six powerful dredges, and the operations will be conducted in a
quicker and more satisfactory manner.

I do not think that I need make any lengthy reference to the necessity and
urgency of carrying on the work on the St. Lawrence with as great rapidity as possible.
The whole of Canada is interested in the performance of this work. Everybody
recognizes that it must be thoroughly and quickly done, and I have no doubt that
any efforts from the department, tending to procure better and more secure accom-
modation for the oceanic trade, will be met with hearty support by all who have
at heart the advancement of the country. Already the grain carrying trade has looked
to the Canadian route as an outlet for the transportation of the products of the great
West. Elevators are being constructed at various points on the route, and with the
improvement of facilities in the Harbour of Montreal, the Canadian route should become
the favourite, and should receive all the encouragement which it deserves.

The improvements in the Harbour of Montreal have also engaged the attention of
the department during the past fiscal year, and active negotiations have been carried on
between the various incorporated bodies of Montreal and the Government with a view
to increase the wharf accommodation and to procure better facilities for handling the
traffic which is about to come there.

Plans have been suggested and discussed, and it is to be hoped that we will shortly :
see a commencement of the works which are so urgently required.
8 . .
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While the dredging operations have been going on in the channel between Montreal
and Quebec, the interests of the other ports in Canada have not been neglected. A fleet
of dredges has been employed from the Pacific to the Atlantic ports, improving the
el.ltrance of harbours, the navigation of rivers and giving, with the limited means at our
disposal, all the relief that appeared to be required throughout the country.

In British Columbia, the dredge “ Mud Lark ” has been operating in the Harbour of
Nanaimo, the snag boat “Samson ” has been at work on the Fraser River, while the
dredge ““ Muskrat” has been operating on the waters of the Columbia River.

In Manitoba, the dredge “ Winnipeg ” has been working in the Red River.

In Ontario, the dredges “Challenge,” * Ontario,” Nipissing,” * Queen” and ¢ No. 9”
bave been constantly working during the whole season at different harbours.

In the province of Quebec, the dredges “St. Louis,” “Nithsdale” and “No. 1”
ave been working at points where improvements were most needed.

The “No. 9,” which formerly belonged to the ship channel, after having done work

for four seasons in the Kaministiquia River, had to be dismantled, the hull being
absolutely gone.

The “ No. 8” did magnificent work in the Harbour of Kingston.

. The fleet of the department, however, is old. That working in Ontario and Quebec
1s all composed of spoon dredges, the work of which is not what it should be, and it has
become necessary that new dredges be built in order that the required work be performed
Sajtisfactorily. Their number is also insufficient, and each year other dredges have to be
hired in order to do the work which our fleet is unable to perform. Dredging at Coteau

L&nding, for instance, which was a very important piece of work, had to be performed
by hired dredges.

In the Maritime provinces, the department has five dredges, the “St. Lawrence,”
the “Canada,” the “ Prince Edward,” the *“New Dominion” and the “Cape Breton.”
Since her construction, the “ Cape Breton ” has steadily worked in the Harbour of St.
John, N.B,, in connection with the improvements being carried on there by the City of
St. John. The «Prince Edward ” operates exclusively on the shores of Prince Edward
Island, while the ““St. Lawrence” and “Canada” alternately work in Nova Scotia and

ew Brunswick.

The «“ New Dominion,” a much smaller dredge, operated in the River St. John. In
these provinces also, the need of additional dredging machines is very much felt, and the
fleet should be increased by at least one, if not two additional dredges.

The operations carried on in connection with the construction of piers and wharfs
throughout, the Dominion are detailed at length in part four of this report, which is the
report of the Chief Engineer. Information is given in reference to all the works done
d‘“ing the year, the history of said works being given from their incipiency, and
the cost, up to date, of those works being also given.

Although only interim reports have been received from the Chief Engineer, who
departed in March last (1898), in order to study the best means of improving the water
Courses of the Yukon District, I have thought it advisable to make reference to the
8ame in this report, in view of the large influx of people to that country ; the new dis-

Coveries which are daily made attracting thereto a large concourse of people whose only
9—i—2
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means of access, at the present time, is by navigation through the lakes and rivers
which extend from the foot of the White Pass to Dawson City. From the meagre in-
formation at our disposal at the time of despatching the Chief Engineer for his examin-
ation, it was known that the stretch from the head of Lake Bennett to the White Horse
rapids could be made easier for navigation if certain obstructions were removed
and the water raised at some points by the construction of dams or other works.
Beyond the White Horse rapids to Dawson it was also represented that some improve-
ments were absolutely needed and would-be of great help to navigation. As soon as
the Chief Engineer shall have returned it is intended to take immediate steps for those
improvements.

As appendices to the report of the Chief Engineer, will be found two very impor-
tant monographs by Mr. Steckel, of the Chief Engineer’s office, one, on the Denison
Hydrograph, and the other, on the self-reducing Sanguet Tacheometer, as adapted to
precision levelling.

TELEGRAPHS.

Attention may be here drawn to the work commenced by the department for the
extension of the telegraph system on the north shore of the St. Lawrence from Pointe
aux Esquimaux eastward. Already, at the end of this fiscal year, nearly 100 miles of
the extension of the said telegraph line has been built and during the next fiscal year it
is proposed to push the work with great activity.

As wags outlined in my last annual report, it is the intention of the department to
give to the shipping navigating the St. Lawrence uninterrupted telegraphic communi-
cation from the straits of Belle Isle with the whole of Canada. The difficulties in the
way of constructing this telegraph line, are very great. The country is for the most
part barren and difficult of access. For a large portion, extending far into the interior,
the country is nothing but a bare rock with no vegteation and no trees of any size
whence the supplies of poles could be had. It can be seen at a glance that the con-
struction of a telegraph line must be attended with great difficulties and will cost per
mile a much greater amount than any of the lines which have been constructed yet in
Canada. The department, however, has taken the means of obtaining the best infor-
mation by having the ground examined, and it will in the performance of the work have
at its disposal all the information that it has been able to procure.

While examining the water route into the Yukon District, during the course of the
last fiscal year, the Chief Engineer of the department, Mr. Coste, was also instructed to
inquire into the possibility and best means of connecting the Yukon country with
eastern Canada.by means of a telegraph line. At the conclusion of the fiscal year his
report was not yet in possession of the department but it appears at present that
the first work to be performed, if the Government undertake to build the line, should
be the connecting of Dawson City with the nearest coast harbour, that of Skagway. A
telegraph line built along the water stretches from Dawson to Lake Bennett would not
only give the further telegraphic communication required but would, by the establish-
ment of stations along the route, render the communication and traffic much more easy
in that section, where such a large number of people have been travelling in order to

reach the famed northern gold fields. It is expected that such a line would yield a
10
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revenue which would pay a handsome surplus over the maintenance and operating
€Xpenses.

There are now 2,9584 miles of telegraph lines under the control of this depart-
Went, divided into 2,751} miles of land lines and 207} miles of cables, as follows :—

pem————
—_ Land Lines.| Cables.
Miles. Miles.
Newfﬂlmdland ....... O 14
NOV& Scotia. . .. .. PN 2294 22
OW BIUNSWICK . .. . v.n o eeirete e e e ie e ae e e eae e 76 1
Quebee ... 11T RO 1,142 164
Ontario """ T I T 24]
British L0203 Y S 693
R A T o AP 567
LY S 2,7514 2073

The Ontario lines make connection between Leamington, Point Pelee and points
on Pelee Island. The Quebec system is divided into five sections, that from Baie St.
aul to Chicoutimi ; the riverand gulf line from Murray Bay to Pointe aux Esquimaux ;
t.he quarantine line from Quebec to Grosse Ile, and the Anticosti and Magdalen Islands
line, The North-west Territories lines extend from Edmonton to St. Albert, a distance
of 6073 miles, and from Moosejaw to Wood Mountain a length of 90} miles. In
ritish Columbia there are the Asheroft-Barkerville line, the line from Victoria to Cape
1_338'19, the Nanaimo to Comox, and the Alberni to Nanaimo. The New Brunswick
'hes give communication between Chatham and Escuminac and between Eastport and
C&mPObello, Grand Manan, Cheney’s and Whitehead Islands.

The Nova Scotia lines run from North Sydney to Meat Cove where connection is
Made with the Magdalen Islands and St. Paul’s Island by cables. There is also com-
mmlication, under government control, between Mabou and Cheticamp and between

8Trington and Cape Sable. These lines and cables were, with few exceptions, kept in
8ood working order throughout the year.

The repoling of the line between Margaree and Cheticamp was completed last
Ovember and practically makes a new line of that section. The remaining portion
tween Margaree and Mabou, about 38 miles, will be repoled in the spring

I't' is proposed also to repole the 50 miles between Ingonish and Meat Cove. The
0P line to White Point has been withdrawn, having proved of no use.

GENERALLY.

The total volume of correspondence passing through the department last year was
Xcess of previous years. The number of letters received would amount to about
900 ; there were 18,791 sent and about 11,300 cheques mailed.

ine

ACTS OF PARLIAMENT.

last, At page 3 of part 7 will be found a list of such Acts as were passed by Parliament

Session having reference to the Department of Public Works.
11



62 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A 189Y

ART GALLERY.

But one addition was made to the art gallery during the year, an oil painting by
Charles Eugene Moss, R.C.A. This painting was presented to the gallery by the Royal
Canadian Academy, in accordance with the Act of Incorporation requiring diploma
pictures to be deposited in the National Gallery.

The number of visitors to the National Gallery who have registered their names
during the year was 13,236, a decrease of 6,064 since 1897.

The following table shows the number of visitors each year since the gallery was
inaugurated, according to the returns in the visitors’ book :—

188283 . . ot e e ) 8,261
18E3-84 . .\ s e 9,928
1884-85. .\ vttt e e 11,893
188586 . . . . vttt 8,792
188687 e s e 11,943
1887-88...... e e e 16,593
1888=89 . ..ttt e 14,241
1889-90. . .\ v e e e e 18,048
1890-91 ..o vve et eeee e, e 21,289
1891-92.......... e 20,026
1892908 . o o oo e 16,717
1893-94 ..ot e e e ... 13,366
1894-03 . . o v e e e e e 19,146
1895296 . . .o oot e 22,961
189607 . oo o e oot e 19,300
1897-98....... e 13,236

The report of the Curator will be found at part 7, page 33.

COLLECTOR OF REVENUE,

The report of the collector of revenue, which forms part 6 shows that the gross
collections, not including telegraph revenue, amounted to $124,777.81, an increase of
$24,183.72 over the previous year.

CONTRACTS.

A recapitulation of all contracts entered into by the department during the year,
will be found at page 7, of part 7. At page 12 of part 7, will be found particulars of
all the property purchased or sold during the year, and all leases entered into by the
department.

CORRESPONDENCE.

The usual comparative tables of the volume of correspondence, in the several
branches, will be found at page 49 of part 7. They show a steady increase in the

volume of work.
12
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EXPENDITURE.

The annual statement and classification of expenditure as prepared by the accoun-
tant, will be found in part 2.

GRAVING DOCKS.

Lo The Dominion Government owns and maintains three graving docks, viz. :— the
rhe, at Lévis in the province of Quebec ; the Kingston, at Kingston in the province

of Ontario, and the Esquimalt, at Esquimalt, near the City of Victoria, in British
Columbia,

.

The Atlantic Dock at Halifax is owned and controlled by the Halifax Graving
Dock Company (Limited), its construction being secured by subsidies from the Imperial
and Canadian Governments and from the City of Halifax.

The dimensions of the docks are as follows :—

The Lorne.—Commenced by the Harbour Commission of Quebec in 1873, was
Assuwmed and completed by the department in 1889.

Length. ... iiiian L, e 445 feet.
Width at copinglevel....................... ... .. 100 «
“ bottom ...............oiai Ll 3 o
“ entrance ........... e 62 «
Depth of water on sill at high water, ordinary spring tides. 264 «
“ “ neap tides.. 20} ¢

The Kingston was built by this department, having been completed in 1892,

Lengthonthefloor.............coviv i, 280 feet.
Width VN e e 47 «
“ atcopinglevel.......................... .l 79«
Depth......oovvvevnnt. e e 204 «
¢«  of water on sill at low water .................. 16 «
Widthof entrance. ..............ccccven.s e 55 «

(The level of Lake Qntario has a range of 3} feet.)
The length can be increased 23 feet by placing the caisson on the apron line.

The Esquimalt.—Completed by this department in 1887.

Length over keel blocks........................ . 430 feet.

Total length of dock...........conivunen Cereea 480-10 « .

Width at bottom. . ...ooovveinennnineieenn, vees 4] “
v copinglevel........... ..ottty © 90 “
“ | entrance ......... e . 65 “

Depth of water on sill at high water, ordinary springs. 26§ «
(Spring tides rise 7 to 10 feet, neaps 3 ;‘o-s.)
1
9—i—3
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The Halifax was built under agreement with and subject to the approval of this
department ; completed 1889.

Length .............. .... e e 595 feet.

Width at coping level. . . ... PP 102«
“ bottom................ .. .ol 0 L., T2
*  entrance.......... T 891 «

Depth of water on sill at ordinary spring tides......... 30 «

A fuller description of these graving docks will be found at page 174, part 4,
and the receipts from each at page 14, of part 6.

Officials.—A complete list of all the officials employed in the operation and manage-
ment of the graving docks, together with their ages, dates of appointment, salaries, &c.,
will be found at page 23, of part 7.

SLIDES AND BOOMS.

The reports on works of improvement and repair on the different slides and booms
wili be found at page 179, part 4.

BRIDGES,

Reports on the bridges under the control of the department will be found at page
189, part 4.

NAVIGATION, OPENING AND CLOSING OF.

The usual tables furnishing this valuable information will be found in part 7,
page 35.

OFFICIALS.

-

The list of officials, showing the names and terms of service of those who have
filled the principal positions in the department from the time of its inauguration in
1841 to date, will be found at part 7, page 17.

I have the honour to be, sir, your obedient servant,

A. GOBEIL,
Deputy Minister of Public Works.

Ottawa, 22nd December, 1898,

‘14
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PART 11

STATEMENTS OF EXPENDITURE

DURING

FISCAL YEAR ENDED 80ra JUNE, 1898
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PART IL

SraTEMENT A.—Showing the Amcunts Expended by the Department of Public Works
of Canada during the Fiscal Year ended 30th June, 1898.

Con- :
- Repairs Staff
Name of Work. :t'x;gcﬁg? and and Main- Total.
provements. Furniture. | tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS. $ cts. 8 cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Nova Scotia.

Annapolis post office, &C. ..« . «eveneneneananenanileriiiians 16017 | .oovven. .. 160 17
Antigonish " B O PP 11149 {........ ... 111 49
Arichat U PR 16621 | ...l 166 21
deck T2 R Y 25693 |........... 256 93
Dartmouth N e e ] e 17708 |........... 177 08
1f&x Assistant Receiver General’'s Office..........|............ 13205 ... .... ‘.. 132 05
Doniinion building............. ........... 972 33 72049 | ... 1,692 82

" drill hall.........0. oo .| 77,610 39

" examining warehouse............. ... .... . 436 51

" Immlgrant building..........cooiiiiinan 444 80
Liv, Lawlor’s Island quarantme station.......... 340 51
1verpool post office, &C.. . .e..ieiiniiiiiaiians 1,668 44
unenburg " e e e 48 82
N‘*PP&n expemmenta.flﬁfani ................... e % :}ﬁ
North Syfney PO 0o 8o oo 122 80
\ctou ouabom house ....... e e sl 20 44
.................................. 172 38

Ty dney post, oﬂke, e et e e e 199 93
............................ 77 86

‘“dml' post oﬂice [0 ) S 45 00

" (tempora.ry) ................ 76 45

" (DOW) e norene s e, 5,940 91

Y dnll hall (new) ........... e e 1,164 64
l_l&l’moui:h post office, &c........ooi Ll 69 42

eating, Lighting, water, &c., for all buildings in
Nova Seotia (for details 8ee page 17)...e..rureen]eeeeeiieae|ianeiainnns 21,187 62 | 21,187 62
Totals, Nova Scotia................... 87,510 85 4,008 18 21,187 62 | 112,706 65
Prince Edward Island.
Charlotbetown Dommul)‘n bu&(lling - l,l5g %
marme ospital.. ... e ..
Montﬂ&’ue post office. .............. . . 56 56 00
H Umnmers; {g lan:n)t: office, &c...... ..., ... 675 71
"“lng, lighting, water, &c., for all bmldmgs in|
Prince Edward Island (for details see page 17). 4,649 17
Totals, Prince Edward Island.......... 6,544 44
New Brunswick.

CAhurst post office, &0 .c.....vovrie <ereenlnan SO I TYS £ ) O 134 73
cﬁ’“:m;( Joxz;;)postotﬁee ............................ gggz i ggg
t office, &C...ovvvivrrrnnnniceereilonnneneeal 93t
Palhosio " % Bow e 9576 101 95 76
Mu Sncltfm W i eesiiereiseieeeee e ae ceee 37 i 18117 (............ 181 17

ville 2 U PPN L L 2 O AP 37 46
Moticton e 17797 ooeennnnnn. 177 97
SWeastle N PR 18291 |...o....... 11
Carried forward... . ...oeenreenereiss 3 37 46 87485 . .......... 912 31

9—ii—1 3



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.)

PArT I1..—STATEMENT A.—EXPENDITURE— Continued.

A 1899

Con- .
s Repairs Staff
Name of Work. s:;‘éc{l:: and and Main- Total.
provements. Furniture. tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. $ cts $ cts $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward...... .......0 ..o L. 37 46 7485 (........ 912 31
New Brunswick—Concluded.
Partridge Island quarantine station............. e 415030 ... L. o e 4,150 30
Portland (St. John) post office... ...........co o]t | 1739 | ..., .... 17 39
St. John custom-house........ .. ... ool el 541 24 | ... 541 24
" postoffice............. il 1,025 68 |. .......... 1,025 58
w savingsbank ..... .. ...l | eveenneenn 150 44 |........ ... 150 44
St. Stephen’s post oftice, &e. ... ... oLl L e 246 05 |............ 246 05
Sussex " F T P 493 |..... ...... 49 35
Tracadie lazaretto.......................con oL 491 08 2828 | ... .. 519 36.
Woodstock post office, &e ... .. ........ . 556 11 |....... ..... 556 11
He:mui lighting, water, &c &c., for all bmldmgs
in New Brunswick (for details see pagel7). ... .f. ..ol ol Ll 19,138 47 | 19,138 47
Totals, New Brunswick................ 4,678 84 3,489 29 | 19,138 47 | 27,306 60
) ice Quebec.
Aylmer post office.......
Berthierville post office, &ec..
Coaticook "

Dundee custom-house....................
Grosse Isle quarantine station..... ....... .. .....
Hull post office....... ... ... e e
Joliette post office.. ................. ... .
Laprairie v .
Montmafny post office, &ec.
Mont:
woodrillhall oo ol
" examining warehouse...... ...............
" inland revenue office...... . .. ..........
w postoffice ............. Lol
" " running elevator ..............
public buildings generally ...............
Qnebec citadel buildings .. .............. ... L
w  clerk of works office........
w  custom-house ...
w drillhall.........
w  examining warehouse
»  immigration office ......
w  immigrant building on P ncess Lovise em-
bankment

post
w  Queen’s wharf building

weights and measures office. ...............
Rlchmond post office, &c .........................
Rimouski " e e e
hivieredu Loup N
Sherbrooke W e .
Sorel "
St. Henri I e ieirenens seseseeeceaanaen
St. Hyacinthe M ittt treseeereeanan
St. Jerome "
St. Johns W e e e,
8St. Roch (Quebec) post office ... Ll L
Ste. Therese excise office....... ..................
Three Rivers custom-house.......................
postotfice...... ... Ll

Valleyﬁeld W et e e
West Farnham ..., .. ...l
Heating, lighting, water, &c., &c., for all buildings

in Quebec (for details aee pa.ge 18)

Totals, Quebee ,.......................

custom-house..... . .. . e eeieieeeeees e

>
D
-

»E8F EEE8a

538

e3283YK:

31,116 19

4,689 50

.2

om
(S
2
R

[y
-

woayRinn 38
SERERYILRIRRBELS

1,
14 55
44,089 46 | 44,080 46
46,373 58 | 120,609 66




Department of Public Works

Part II.—STATEMENT A.— EXPENDITURE—Continued.

Con- s ;
s Repairs | Staff
Name of Work. :‘trl"gcﬁg? ) and i and Main- Total.
provements. Furniture. ; tenance.
———————
PUBLIC BUILDINGS. $ cts. $ cts. 3 cts. $ cts.
Ontario.

Alexandria reformatory.. ... . . ceeeiiiieenn. 13 35
lmonte post office, & ... ... ove eiiane on - 300
Amherstburg post oﬂice ............................ 327 28
B prior W L e eeees o 9,976 83
AITio " 110 84
Belleville " 265 61
Berlin " 22 20
Brampton " 420
rockville N 4% 79
:ﬂeton Place o 25 18
yuga " 9 25
Chatham " 300 56
Cobour " 157 00
Cornwall " . 128 75
undasg " &c e e e 32 25
Galt " TR 66 99
G‘"‘anoque CUSLOM-hOUSE. ... v oveevnnnnn i 172 67
Godert postoffice . ..........oo0 ol Ll 8 60
Ode"(:h " &e .. 30 50
Guelph P 160 02
amilton W e 1,431 49
ngersoll B e e 8,990 99
Ingston custom-house ... ....oeiieiiiiiiia e 1,703 44

" examining warehouse . ...... ... ... 25 50

" mla.ndmrevenue office...... .......... .. 2_3 §53

" post office. e e e e e 1

Lindsay =\ &0, ..rverereno 30 76
ondon custom house .. ....oo. wvvrrerninniinnnns 2,(15% gz
post office.. ............. [ e
Napanca o Con I . 54 75
0“‘8&!‘& Falls post office, &c.................. .... 36 11
mngevﬂle 1 et e 58 10
i, T, 127 65
Ottawa Parlmmem.ary and Departmental b\nldmgs -

Installation of electric light and pumps ..... ... 7494221 | ..o v 74,942 21
econstruction Western Block after fire ........ 90,139 82 | .. ... Lol ol 90,139 82
lock. -paving driveway to boiler house, Parlia-

mentbullding.................0.0 el 203350 ... ool 2,033 50
agevin Block, dama.ges G. H. Perley propertv 600 00 |........c..iie e 600 00
pairs and furmture .................................. 101,235 45 |.... .. So...| 101,235 45
Otta eleﬁhomc BETVICE oo v ot i eeeeiienneenenansnee fovnnennnne ofiuevenens 3,999 63 3,999 63
tawa arhament grounds :—
phalt walks and roadways ........ ... ...... 14964 00 1. ... ... . . .l 14,964 00
eW greenhouse .. ............ooeounn e s 265 34 ..ot 265 34
Maintenance of rounds .........ccvovrneiaiiinlinireaneoniliiiiaa 5,000 00 5,000 00
MNOVAl OF BDOW . ... ... covr cevnrennes eene o cenne i 374 08 374 08
Major's Hill park fence wall.. ... .............. 4495 82 ... L. 4,495 82
Ot " maintenance....... .. T Y PR 2,837 34 2,837 34
tawa experimental fArM . ........occovet o0 aennnn 270550 | 1,931 09 |........... 4,636 59
" geological museum.. .............. R D 12200 {.... ....... 122 00
" post office, asphalting esplanade and lane .. 4,062 95 | ... eeieieoa 4,062 95
" postoffice TEPAIrS ... ..... i ceiiiiiiiiiiieeie e 1790 ;... ... | 17 90
" ]énntmg L PO S 57742 i.oeiiinnnt 577 42
" ideau hall, repairs and furniture...........[... . ...... J
" grounds, $2,460; anow, 8343 03
Pwatc}lman, 8502 50; fuel and hght $8,000. . ...l .. .e.aoet
Pembggke post oftice, &c..
P"“‘Olea . &e..
Pm't Arthur v L e
ort Colborne

7
1,100 00

212,203 20

T126,207 41| 23,516 63 | 362,017 34



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. )

PArT II.-—S1ATEMENT A.—EXPENDITURE— Continued.

A. 1899

Con- s
- Repairs Staff
Name of Work. ztggciﬁ? and and Main- Total.
pr ovements. Furniture. | tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continucd. 8 cts. $ cts. 3 cts. S cts.
Brought forward..... ........... ... 212,203 20 | 126,297 51 23,516 63 | 362,017 34
Ontario—Concluded.

Port Hope, postoffice.............. oo ol 35

Prescott custom-house . 3

" post office.. ... 40

Rat Portage post ofﬂce, &e. 305

G3
00
22
25
Smith’s Falls " 511 18
Stratford " 41 00
Strathroy " e e e e e © 99
St. Catharines v ..., ... ciieeeiiiea 408 56
St. Thomas Y 532 20
Toronto—Assistant receiver general’s and mland
revenue offices.......... . ....... . ... XL 793 44 1,388 16 {............ 2,176 60
Toronto custom-house ........ ............iaan. e . DIT 29 |..oevina .. 517 29
" drill hall .. .. oo oo i Lol oL 20000 [..... .. ... ool 200 00
" examining warehouse.. ................co]eeiiiiaian 2,059 29 |....... ... 2,059 29
u postoffice.. . ... o.....oo oo oo o eeeeeee 2,134 63 | ........... 2,134 63
Trenton v ...iiiiiiia..s O e 2780 {.....cnvnnn. 27 30
Walkerton » ... Lo L L.l R e 22528 |............ 225 28
Windsor o .. e e 12090 §........ . . 120 90
Heating, lighting, w a.ter &e. ., &c., for all buildings
in Ontario (for details sec page 18). .. ............p oo ool 172,709 28 | 172,709 28
Totals, Ontario........... .....oov.in 214,317 75 | 133,530 54 | 196,225 91 | 544,074 20
Manitoba.
Brandon experimental farm ..............o0
" namigrant building.... ..................
" st office, &e ... ... oLl e
Dauphin minion land office . ... ...
w  innnigrant building.... ..................
Minnedosa o ... .
Portage la Prairie post office, &e.... . ... . ...
Winnipeg, clerk of works oflice................... .
" crown timber office......... ..... e
" custom-house ..... ........
" Dominion lands office
" drillhall......... .........
" examining warehouse..., ...............
" immigrant building. . ........... ... ...
" Indian office . ..

postoffice. .... ... ... ... ...

|
Hoa.tmg, lighting, water, "&e., .y &c for all bulldmgs

in Manitoba (for details see page 20) ...................................... 12,561 08 12,561 08
Totals, Manitoba.................. ... 24,312 82 2,644 97 15,569 96 42,527 75

North-west Territories.
Calgary court-house...... ... ............. .. ... ! 163 00 853 00
" Bost office, &e...... .. ... 82 25 |. 632 25
" ominion lands office .... 325 . 325
w  immigrant building .... . 25 00 25 00
Edmonton Dominion lands and registry office........ 177 80 177 80
" (south) immigrant building ........ . . 43 00 43 00
Indian lHead experimental farm .................... 9 37 937
Lethbndge court-house..... ............. ... 13 10 13 10
postoffice.................ollll 164 15 622 55
Macleod court-house............. e e e 502 70 502 70
Carried forward... .. ........ ........ 1,608 40 1,18362 1. ......... 2,382 02



Department of Public Works.

ParT II.—STATEMENT A.—EXPENDITURE—Continued.

————

Con-

p Repairs Staff
Name of Work. ?;gc?::f and and Main- | Total.
provements. Furniture. | tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. 3 ots. 8 cte. $ cts, $ gs.
Brought forward..... ............. . 1,698 40 1,183 62 \.... ....... 2,882 02

North-west Territorics—Concluded.

Moosejaw Court-house. ... ......cooueeneeeinenninn.
M(_)()B()lnin L
rince Albert cl;mst-hcgme and jail('.ﬁ .................
L nd and registry office..... .... ...
Regina council buildings.............. . .. . ...
n  court-house......
v Dominion lands office
#  Lieutenant Governor’s residence............
' post office
n  regist
Hea_tm 3 l%lhg;xg, water, &c., &c., for all buildings
n North-west Territories (for details see page 20)

Totals, N.W. Territories.......c........

British Columbia.

Agassiz oxperimental 1arm. ............o .. ooee....
;Iana.lmo post office, &e. ...
New Westminster drill shed....... ...ccooev cvnnnnn
" Dominion lands office. ... ... el
" residexfxt!l: engineer’s office.... .....
" st office, &e... . ...l
v‘.‘nc‘)ﬁl"erpoetoﬁix?&c,.. e e e e
Ictoria clerk of works office... .... e e
" custom-house ...................0 . ol
v drillhall, & .. ... el ..
" marine hospital ........ e e
v post office(old)... ...l U
Will"| " (new)... ... ..ooov ciiiin .
H 1am’s Head quarantine buildings. ...... .. SV
ea!;m% lighting, water, &c., &c., for all buildings
In British Columbla (for details see page 21). ...
Totals, British Columbia. .............

PUBLIC BUILDINGS GENERALLY.

Prim;.ing’ stationery, instruments, advertising, travel-
ling, &c

13,189 03

28,819 89

79,470 58

7,116 81

7,116 81




62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899

Part I1.—STATEMENT A.—EXPENDITURE—Continued.

. Construc- Staff
Name of Work. Dredging. (tion and Im-| Repairs. | and Main- Total,
: provements. tenance.
HARBOURS AND RIVERS. $ cts $ cts. $ cts. 8 cts. 8 cts.
Nova Scotia.
Arisaig.. ... oo e 1,531 05 |...ove. . 648 70 |....vennn... 2,179 75
Bu.rrmg‘oon Passage (Sherrow Channel

Wharf) 2,668 89
Bayﬁeld 999 73
Boularderie— Wharf at Ross Ferry 524 97
Broad Cove.... .. 199 84
Cow Bay....... 9,988 40
Crlbbon s Point. v e 1,446 96
Digby Pier...... [ AN PR 798 43
Georgeville............... ... et 999 97 1,782 08
Grand Etang.... .... ................ e 999 85 ) 1,099 85
Halifax vamg Dock—Subsidy. ......[...ooooi]iieei . e e 10,000 00 | 10,000 00
Hantsport . .. 2,784 50
Harbours _generally, N.S. 1,114 60
............................... 399 28
Judi ue ............................ 181 11
Kelly’s Cove........... 299 72
L’Ardoise ........ ... 25 00
Larry’s River. 5,591 70
Little Narrows. .. 499 65
Lockepo ......... .. 5 .. 4,208 69
McNalr s Cove .... . 699 36
Mabou..... ........... 1,710 64
Maltland (Hants Co. ) .................. 996 76
ATEATEC.. ..o ivnt i titnernieenntanaaan 127 48
\iargamtvﬂle .................. e 6,474 20 6,474 20
Merigomish—Big Island......... .....[...... .... 96 81
Meteghan breakwater. ................0....c. ool . 3,141 99
Morden ...........ooooviiininn. . R PO e .. 1,992 75

North Wallace......... .. ... ..... O I 265
Ogilvie .. ............ coooioiiian e, N 1,637 39
Osborne,.........co0 v, . 20533 |.... ........ 205 33
Qyster Pond (Guysboro’ Co.). . A P 990 25
Porter’s Lake.... ............ ........ . 100 00
Port Hood........... 440 00
Port Joli........ .... 300. g0
Port I’ Hébert . 500 00
Port Lorne......... coovis vnveinnn.. e, 2,999 87
Port Maitland (Yarmouth Cn.)...... .. AP P 3,600 00
Port Mouton. ................ ceeieened 210432 L.l 2,104 32
8 895 00
g 9,005 9,005 92
St. Ann’s, North River, Seymour Point. 9 . 99 87
Summerville.. ....................... e e 100 02
Three Fathom Harbour................0 ..o o doeeeos o 500 19
Trout Cove. ....oovvneenvnne vuewen b i . 172 82 172 82
‘Wallace. . . L2600 |..... .... .| ..cooiuun.. 6,331 68
Whitewater...... . .. ...t 399908 [....... ....[ ........ 3,999 08
Whycocomag Do 3,000 00 P 3,000 00
Windsor, dams, dykes, &c., Avon River|... ..... 3,299 71 32858 f..... ...... 3,628 29
Yarmouth ....... .................... 6,906 03 | ... ... .. 3,234 51 |..... ..... 10,140 54
Totals, Nova Scotia. ............ 28,341 69 37,858 83 36,634 47 11,114 60 | 112,949 59

Prince Edward Island.

Annandale............oooiiiiiiiiiii i e e 10006 | ........... 100 06
Bay View........cooviiveninn voniiidnee voe o i 20 01 20 01
Belfast......... cooooien cviiiis cen | 499 45 |...... .. JOE PO 499 45
Brae. ... coiiiiiiiis i 514 63 |... ... e 514 63
Cascumpec. .... ..., S S 1826 (... . ..... 18 26
Carried forward. ... .....' ........... 1,014 08 13833 '............ 1,152 41



Vepartment of Public Works.

ParT II.—STATEMENT A.—EXPENDITURE.—Continued.

Construc- ! Staff
Name of Work. Dredging. Ition and Im-. Repairs. | and Main- Total.
provement. | tenance.
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Con.| & cts| $ cts. 8 cts| 8 cts| & cts
Brought forward ..... .... 1,014 08 13833 {..covnnnnn. 1,152 41
Prince Edward Island—Con.
ghina Point.... .............. VRPN OUUNUUUTRUIN [T 1B ... 13 13
arlottetown, .. . e $2,984 05
Llcss—:}befunds for dredg-
ing done at private
wharfs............ 560 00
Harbo ] 242005 | s e e | 2,424 05
Hipoours generally, PEL. ... ...... R N T 786 04 786 04
Hi ®Ing’ Wharf,, ... .......cooovn] oonnn [ N 40002 |....... .... 400 02
Usboro’ River wharfs—
Hl‘anberry, ...... T PN 2,075 35 |. 2,075 35
gty DL L 5,750 00 5,750 00
Low: Point . .. el 4,033 31 4,033 31
M.W‘_ Point Pier..... ..ooooiiven oo foee e 1,000 24
Noinigash. . .. 328 91
\IeW London. ... . .0 300 48
Roth Cardigan. .. L oL, 24 59
Sstico, . LT T 473 07
8‘:"18, Knight’s Point breakwater. . ....|............ 10,776 51 10,776 51
rephens’ Pler.. .. . PR NN et 655 77
imerside, gror;dtection WOrKS.. ......leeeniiiiiins 806 45 806 45
" dging. .....87,437 16
LESS—' Refunds for dredg-
ing done at private
wharf ..., ........ ,200 00 6 16 6.257 16
. —_— 237 16 1., ... e e e e
Tnish, .. T T T 4,003'65 (oLl . 4,093 65
8t Point.. ... 375030 |..covnenenii]iiene e en 8,750 30
Totals, Prince Edward Island.... 8,661 21 32,299 65 3,334 54 786 04 | 45,081 44
New Brunswick.
Quctouche ... . ... . | 2813 |...... ... © ,13
Clie Tormentine............ooooio [on v e [, 972 14 .. oenaen. 972 14
D;lton. P PN F 1,036 56 [........... 1,036
Harhb%““‘e' T N o 136 44 |............ (64
ours generally, N S T A P 1,114 61 114
ﬁ‘?mngoove.,...-y.‘ ....................... 5000 ... 1 7
‘Zonette . Ll DU ISR MR 24975 ...l 249 75
2riridge Island quarantine wharfe.....|.......... Joeeeonenn.. 20000 |....oenn..n. 200 00
R TN FE S 000 [...ooene..t. 50 €0
R.Chibuoto ., 11110 11T L 304682 | .. . il e 3,946 32
; ‘I‘;:!‘ St. John—
It:%n river and Grand
Oatke. . $ 1,228 80
Gushmgs Mills . .... .. 1,105 92!
Fogetown Creek Canal.... 983 04)
M"ederlcton .......... 3,727 45|
clean’s Wharf. .. 163 84|
L : $ 7,209 05i
ES8— Refund for dredg- |
G m? at private wharf.. 1,350 00| 5,859 05 |. 5,859 05
q{andFals ........................... T N 100 02
o Francis, | 297 90
§ebique 764 39
= John Harbour —
°rt Dufferin protection work.......J...... ..... 510 98
“8ro Point breakwater., ... ...... |.....oc..... 1,840 65
6,686 96 | 1,114 61 | 17,606 94

Carried forward....... . 9,805 379




62 Victoria.

Sessional Papers (No. 9.)

PART IL—STATEMENT A.—Expenditure—Continued.

A. 1899

Construc- Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. |tion and Im-| Repairs. Main- Total.
provement. tenance.
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Con. $ ‘cts. 8 cts 8 cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward .......... 9,805 37 |............ 6,686 96 1,114 61 | 17,606 94
New Brunswick--Con.
River St. John—Con
Hydrographic survey................0 ... 5178 72| .. . ieieen. 5,178 72
Dredging...... ...... .....
LEss—Refunds for dredg-
ingat private wharfs. . 7,637 87
Shlppeg .......................... 9, 97
Shediac....... e e 2 00
Stony Creek........o.ooiviiiieennan.. 500 00
Two Rivers............cooove viin e 442 82
Tynemouth Creek.............. ...... 510 00
Totals, New Brunswick............ 41,898 32
Quebce.
Ansed Beaufils..............oooh ciifiieie el e, 70 ) U U P 577 31
AnseauxCanards. ............ooooo i L 500 |.....000nnns 5 00
Anse aux Gascons............ R 5,000 00 |....... couulivienennanns 5,000 00
Bagotvﬂle, St Alphonse...............] oo oo e H98 98 . ... ......... 598 98
Bate St, Paul ...... ... ...l 3,505 75 |.... ... 3,605 75
Berthier (en bas) 98 15 [....... .... 98 15
" {en haut)................. ... 10,284 23 | ... ...... 850 ... 10,292 73
Bic. o e e 248 85
Boucherville 476 85
Cacouna. . 979 00
Cap & l’Axgle 754 44
CapSanté ............. e e e 423 49
Charlemagne. .
Chateanguay . .
Chicoutimi.. .................... P

Coteau du Lac
Cotear Landing
Crosa Point... . ......... cooioiinn.n
Etang du Nord.............. e
Georgeville........ ............. . .
GrandPabos.... ........ ...... ... .
Harbours generally. Quebec............
Tle aux Grues

Ile Gros Bois..
Ile Perrot ..
Isle Verte ..
Kamouraska.

Lake St. Johu, ]})llers, &e.—
Ashouapmouchouan.. e e e
Grande Décharge............... ....
Mistassinl, . ..ooooovvnine vene o
Peribonka ... ......... ... e
Riviére & la Pipe, wharf ... .. e
Roberval. e
Tikouabé (St VIethode) e e

Lanoraie «..oov e i e,

Laprairie . ......

Lévis graving dock.. . ....... .. ...

L 50 1 1

Longueuil.. .............. ...

Lotbiniére ..........c..oo0ivenn oL

19,175 71 |

10,769 03




Department of Public Works.

Parr TI.—StaTEMENT A.—Expenditure—Continued.

_Construc- Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. |tion and Im-| Repairs. Main- Total.
provemeni. tenance.
\“ ——
TARBOURS AND RIVERS—Con. $ cts. $ cts $ cts. $ cta $ cts.
Brought forward...... ..... 37,233 99 29,133 74 19,175 71 10,769 03 96,312 47

Quebec—Con.

Shermen, generally. .. .. ... .o foereoninen i i
Magog ., 5500 Vo 428
tane... T LD UL 160 68 396 22
M0ntn| ................................................... 52 46
Ry By e e 484 16
N Carhs{e .............................................. 17 95 .
Nowport River ... ..o e 2658 . .. .......
i,{:-t':e Dame duTac. ... ooumonnniidennen e 32 03
dilipshurg VT T TR O 711 79
PQ‘;"S below Quebec, generally....... . |... B P P
Pointe aux Esquimaux . 17 00
o!nte AUX Saumons. ...........ee..... 294 79
P Mte aux Trembles.. ..... .......... R EET TRy Torae .
RTt Daniel ... TR S PO ORI 170 61
R3“39u8ki.... e et e e 4,915 39 |. ..
Viere Beauport . ... .. el
" du Liévre lock . . 4,430 .04
" duloup............ . .o . 2,982 43
" du Sud, protection work. 976 1...
" atineat w0 L ... feeeeeieiaall| 441529 [..l.l.. L 29
"o Ouelle,....................... 1,004 65 65
" I}lchelieu, Beloeil pod
" Ste. Anne de la Pérade 48 00 00
" §t. Francis.............. ..... 2,081 45 |..... J O 45
" St. Lawrence Ship Channel*...| 198,955 98 |............|cceeee. ... 98
v St. Louis............ U PO CORTRO IR 10'00 00
" 8t. Maurice, channel between
Ste, Graundes Piles and Latugue.| .. ........ LA 43 [ .. ... ... .. .l 1,048 43
Ste. Agathe des Monts............oou feoenes oonss 20800 |....oooiiii] e 298 00
Ste, Anmicet, ... 2197 95 |............ N 2,197 95
Ste Annede Sorel ... ... 3514 68 | ... U 3bl4 68
Sto. Anne de Saguenay....... ...l e 257180 |....... ... oo o) 2,B7180
Ste. Anne Lapocatiére. . .. ... ........
ste. Croix, T
Seeamille. T T
8t II;- ulgence., ., ...l
St CheR. . e

2% Jean des Chaillons
g:‘Jealeed’Or]éaus ceti it seeea
8¢ Julien

Michel 4
St vﬁle:cine Bellechasse

levllle e e e e ... I R

eville e . 20600 |.. .........

%{’l‘r‘lmunvule ................... 1,252 08 | 3,999 99
"0gtun Channel piers

~—__ Carried forward ....... ... 362083 | 725106/ 352587 ... 14406 26

* .
This expenditure covers improvements and repairs of plant as well as working expenses.
11



62 Victoria.

Sessional Papers (No. 9.)

Part II.—StaTEMENT A.—Expenditure—Continued.

A. 1899

_Construc- Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. [tion and Im-| Repairs Main- Total.
provement. tenance.
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Con. 8 cts. 8 cts. 8 cts. 8 cts. $ cts.
Brought forward ..... ...... 3,629 83 7,251 06 3,525 37 1. ... 14,406 26
Ontario~Con.

Cobourg ... ....oiiiiiiiiiii i 1,352 61 4,352 47

Collingwood....... . .. .... ........ 31,472 39 ;... 31,472 39

Frenchman’sBay.. . ... ............. 1,242 85 1,242 85

Fort Franceslock.......coovevininviaii]oens ciiian, 40 30

Goderich .... ...t 7,258 41

Harbours generally, Ontario......... .. 1,366 49 4,307 66

Hilton, or Marksville. ..... FS S 5,225 24

Honora (Manitoulin Island) . ... .... | .. .. ..... 228 R1

Kincardine ... ..... ..... ... .. | 8,615 92

Kingston graving dock ...... ........ e 4,738 44

" bharbour. ... . .. ........ 2,595 56 6,431 40

Lakes Simcoe and Couchiching.........|..... ...... 27 50

LOrignal ... ... .... ... . c 13,850 27

Meaford ............... ... ......... 197 27 411 11
Midland ......... ... ... .$3,450 42

Less—Refund for dredging v
done at private wharf..... 49 756, 3,400 67

Newcastle.. .. .... .... .. ...........

NorthBay...........cooov oot
Owen Sound... .
Penetanguishene ...... ...............
Point Edward (Sarnia)
Port Arthur
Port Elgin........
Port Rowan. .
Port Stanley
Prescott .. ..... ... . .. ...l
Rainy River.... ....... ....... .....
River Kaministiquia... . . .... .....

River Sydenham
River Saugeen
River Thames
Rondeau ..... ....
South Nation River
Thornbury. . ..

Tobermoray .... ..........c.oe. oo,
Toronto.........cove vivt civininnnn..
Whitby ...l L
Totale, Ontario....... ......
Manitoba.
Hnausa

Lake Manitoba, additional outlet.
Harbours generally, Manitoba
Red Rivermouth......................

British Columbia.

Columbia River, above Golden. ........

" Revelstoke . ... .
narrows between Arrow
Lakes

"
Duncan River ....... ............ii..
Esquimalt graving dock .............

7,670 50

Carried forward

4,897 51
12

1,247 31 1,247 31
96,188 63 | 54,168 74 | 18,326 58 | 7,707 11 | 176,391 08
.......... 1365 |..oe o 13 65

........... 1,97 06 ... S 1,997 06
. 33247 | 332 87

7,997 14 | 7,997 14

T 14| 23358 ... .. .. |. ... 10,340 72

48097 51 | ... ... I IR SRR 4,897 51
.......... L972ea’| LI Lt oe

.......... 559908 | ...........| ...........l 5599 08
..... 2,956 75 ... |l 20056 T
....................... e e | 1745 'BE | 11745 84

1062807 ... ... 11,745 84 | 27,171 42



Department of Public Works.

Parr II.—StaTEMENT A.—Expenditure—Continued.

Construc- Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. (tion and Im-! Repairs. ‘Main- Total.
provement, tenance.
\ S
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Con. $ cts $ cts. 8 cte. $ cts. $ octs.
Brought forward ......... 4,807 561 ( 10,528 07 {............ 11,745 84 | 27,171 42
British Columbta—Con.
Fraser River, ship channel.............|.. . ... 60,276 48 .. veveereiieeinein 69,276 48
" " removal of snags, &c......| 13,851 87 |..... ... ... e L 13,851
NoTbours generally, B.C. ... ...ocvn|oveiiiin o e 2,679 50 | 2,679 50
91?‘““10, south channel . .............. ByOTT 77 |eoeeeieniidineeieiiaafoneeeneiaaas 5,977 77
1komekel River...........ccoivevvn. s D e 159 00 {.. .o ol 159 00
Sk Dagan River ................ ... B 50091 ) ... ..... 500 91
€ena River... ... . ... ..oviiiiieendone eianaas 3,200 00 |.......... 3,201 00
Bhoouver ... ... . ... 327068 [.... ool 0 e e e 3,270 68
illian’s Head quarantine wharf and
water service ........ .. P N 5,999 26 |.... ... e 5,999 26
Totals, British Columbia ... 27,997 .83 | 89,664 72 14,425 34 | 132,087 89
Yukon Provisional District.
Stikine River, Teslin Lake and Rivers
Wwes, Hootalinqua and Yukon—Ex-
BININALION, &C.........c0 corneeeneen|oanerenanae 14,000 00 [... veoei| e 14,000 00
Generally.
Harbours and rivers generally.......... 367305 | ... .o 4,949 42 8,622 47
DREDGES AND DREDGING
PLANT.
Maritime Provinces........ ........ . . 062366 | 7,99932 ............ 17,622 98
Mocario and Quebec .. ... ..o ooooieeees * 671953 | 1240228 | . ... ... 19,121 76
Bobitoba.,.... . ... oL . * . 1,748 55 1.vvnnnnnns 1,748 55
Titish Columbia.. ......oc veenenen. * 3,483 64 ,958 65 1....... ... 9,442 29
Totals, Dredges .... ..ovveeeloeeneannnnns ' 10,826 83 | 28,108 75 |............ 47;935 58
SLIDES AND BOOMS.
%‘t- Maurice district. .. .. ..vovn oeenrenelioeaneninns | 1,65159 | 814872 7,67878| 17,479 09
SAWR diBtrict. ... . .0oveoensienes |oeereeneen]ereeee el 22,310 25 | 22,310 25
wa River.,......... . RN PN, TI381 | 4,200 07 |...oenvnnnn. 4,914 88
" Chenaux boom, allowance
Gat: to Improvement Co...|....... 1,799 30 1,799 30
atineau River, QUe............ooovelie oo coneeilenniiiinins, 825 85 825 85
Bodonge T 2,785 29 2,705 29
Pk " 2,507 02 2,507 02
Mo Boine B e 2,362 27 2,443 27
tdawaska River, Ont.... ......... 687 87 1,237 87
TrecleWawa . qeseremnease 1,414 39 |.... .| 1,480 39
Cops,(oF Newcastle) district .. . ..... 99919 | '1,970°00 | 3,169 14
€ction of slide and boom dues e e 2,474 81 2,474 81
Totals, Slides and Booms ... |..... ...... 3,262 35 | 23,931 67 | 36,233 14 | 63,427 16
\ ————————— e e e [ — T T

* working expenses apportioned to harbours and rivers above,
13



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899
Part II.—SrareMent A.—Expenditure—Continwued.
Construc- Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. [tion and Im-| Repairs. Mainten- Total.
provement. ance.
. i
ROADS AND BRIDGES. 8§ cts 8 cts S cts. $ cts.} $ cts.
Quebec.
Hull, Pond Creek bridge..... .. ....0foiiiiiiiiiiiiian, 21001 {..... ..... 210 01
Ontario.
Burlington Channel bridge. ...........|.... .....o0 L 430 35 2,090 23 2,520 38
Ottawa ci (y’bndges and streets maintain-
yovernment—
Chaudlere “Union Bridge”.......... . coiiieiiiderinnnnnnns 1823 ..., ....... 158 23
Chaudiére minor bridges, &c.—
Ottawa side .........cooiiiiiiiee [viveinr viiifinniienon. 1,271 45 | ......... . 1,271 45
Hull side . N 1,166 44 397551 ... ..... 1,563 99
Mavria street bndge ............ R . e 79231 . ........ 79 23
Sapqers bridge.. ..., ciiiiiiiiie i, 2,966 09 1534 |.....o.en 3,081 43
Wellington street... .. . ...........l ..o ... 6,610 78 381134 | .......... 10,422 12
nghtmg all the above, $2,210; water-
$213.56 ; snow cleanmg, 8304 08 ... . ..... e 2,727 64 2,727 64
York %ndge ............................................ 7 50 25 00 32 50
North-west Territories.
Banff Bridge (Bow River)..............| ... . |l 949 79 |...... ... .. 949 79
Battleford ndge (BattleRiver)........; ... ... foiiiill, 183 271 83
Calgary Brid ge(Bow River)...... ... e e e 37414 |.. .. ...... 374 14
Edmonton Brid Fe (Saskatchewan). ... .|........ 43,669 14 |...... .. f...... ... 43,569 14
Bnd esgeneralv,(lNWT.... ................... e . 836 35 836 35
acleod Bridge (Old Man’s River)......|............0 ..ol Lo 579 35 e 579 35
Totals, Roads and Bridges.,.. ... 54,312 45 8,666 11 5,679 22 | 68,647 78
TELEGRAPH LINES.
Nova Scotia.
Cape Sable )3 1T RS DRI PR PR 153 68 153 68
Cheticamp v . ... .. ...l B T 1,228 00 956 2,184 63
LowPoint o ceveininiianniennn cnnf enevveens| ceen el 0 ol 54 15 54 15
Meat COVe m .ooviininieieneinnenen fovemeneinn ) on e Jaeiaeiiaea 1914 5 1,914 55
St. Paul’s Islsnd - R Y 932 80 |........ 932
Prince Edward Island.
P.E. Island and mainland cable (subsidy)|.... .......| .. ..o ... Lol 1,946 66 1,946 66
New Brunswick.
Bayof Fundyline ...... .......coooiifoviiie vonfiee oeenil 2,147 80 1,146 11 3,293 91
Escuminac line........ccoveve vevevniiieen ciiiiii i e e 505 39 39
Quebee.
Anticosti—Gaspé line. .. ... e el . 2,887 31 2,887 31
Grosse Isle quarantine Ve, L 66 00 738 74 804 74
Magdalen Island line............... T O 2,485 22 2,269 03 4,764 25
North Shore St. Lawrence lines—
Eastof Bersimis . ....... ccooovve cii] connn onnn 12,780 34 |............ 3,758 34 | 17,538 68
West W e O T P 3,898 55 3,808 55
Isle aux Coudres connection.. ..... N P 1,267 83 |.... oioiieeieiiienan. 1,267 83
St. Alexis and Anse St. Jean.........j... . ...... 2 014 52 | . 2,014 52
Carried forward. ..........l.......... 1.4 17,062 69 6,809 32 1 40,229 14 | 44,151 15




Department of Public Works.

ParT II.—StATEMENT A.—Expenditure—Continued.

Construc- Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. [tion and Im-| Repairs. Mainten- Total.
provement. ance.
TELEGRAPH LINES—Con. $ cts $ cts. 8 cts. $ cts. § cts.
Brought forward .... ....{...... .... 17,062 69 6,859,32 40,229 14 44,151 15 .
Maritime Provinces and Gulf, generally.
88. “ Newfield’s " cable laying plant, and
storage tank at Halifax..... .... N 2,249 84 |.......... 2,249 84
General expenses. ... .............ocoooeee oo o LT 2,607 81 | 2,507 81
Ontario.
Pelee Island line .............. .....|oeeee on. 91082 (. .. ....... 15116 { 1,061 98
North-west Territories.
Generally ..., ......coooooiie v e e . 14,353 22 | 14,353 22
British Columbia.
An)'3I'l'li-Cape Bealeline........ ... .l..... ..... 1,327 12 . ... oo L. 1,327 12
Ashcroft—Barkerville line... . . ........ TR IR SRR 313012 | 3,130 12
V' haimo—Comox line ....... ......... 3,990 83 3,990 83
Ictoria—Cape Beale line 4,154 50 4,154 50
Gencrally.
Te]egﬂlph service gemerally .... .... {0 oo, 1,371 05 1,371 05
Totals, Telegraphs .. .. ........l... .... ... 19,300 63 9,109 16 | 49,887 83 | 78,297 62
MISCELLANEOUS.
Statue of Her Majesty the Queen in com-
M‘“emoration of the Diamond Jubilee..| .... ...... 425 05 425 05
Onument to Hon. Alexander Mac-
¥ enzie. ., .. e e e P P 41940 . .... ..... oo e e 419 40
uneral of the late Sir John Thompson.|... ...... . B 7,063 24 7,053 24
Tatuity to the widow of late D. Me- !
Farlane ... ..., T Y A A 140 00 0 140 00
Tatuity to widow of late William Com- i
T U PO IO R 37 50 37 50
P"‘;veays and inspections. . ............. i veiiiiiiieenns .. 17,387 47 | 17,387 47
blic Works Agency, B.C............| ..o . L 1,790 82 P 1,790 82
%mwral'y employees—
eCretary ang Accountant’sstaffs ....0........ . | ... oo e, 19,991 95 | 19,991 95
hief Architect’s staff ... «..... ....|...ovoeoereelninoesnoniifoienanninins 20,000 00 | 20,000 00
1ef Engineer’s n ....... ceeviee liveniviineen] vinnriiee | e e 38,138 43 38,138°43
upt. Telegraph Service staff .. ..... ST s P 2,900 00 2,900 00
Partmental photographer, one-haif
salary.............. AN P PO deveenn UTTUE FUOR 699 96 699 96
Totals Miscellaneous ... ........|.cceve.nns 844 45 1... 108,139 37 | 108,983 82
—_—
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62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899
Parr II.—STATEMENT A.—Expenditure—Concluded.
Con- | .
: Repairs Staff and
Name of Work. Dredging. a:grﬂ%uonv e! and Main- Total
m PrOVE) Purniture. | tenance.

ents.
RECAPITULATION. S cts. $ cts. S cts $ cta. $ cts.

. Totals, Public Buildings.— i !
0va SCOti vt e 87,510 85, 4,008 18 21,187 62| 112,706 65
Prince Edward Island....... ...... 0. . ... ... 612 17 1,283 10, 4,649 17 6,544 44
New Brunswick...... ........ .....[ .. ... .. 4,678 84 3,480 29° 19,138 47f 27,306 6O
ebec........ .« e ceee e e o 43,119 89 31,116 19 46,373 58| 120,609 66
Ontario.. ......o ceviviiinnenns o0 el 214,317 75{ 133,590 54! 196,225 91} 544,074 20
Manitoba. . A 24,312 82 2,644 97 15,569 96 42,527 75
North-west Territories. ......oovovoe 1ovee v oo, 11,455 38 4,175 48 13,189 03 28,819 89
British Columbia.......... .........1 .......... 65,128 21 3,060 72 11,281 65 79,470 58
Public buildings generally ..........[ ... oo 7,116 81 7,116 81

Totals, Harbours and R’lvel‘s —_

Nova Scotia. . . 28,341 69 37,858 83 35,634 47 11,114 60; 112,949 59
Prince Edward Island ............. 8,661 21| 32,299 65 3,334 54 786 04] 45,091 44
New Brunswick .. . 17,463 24 15,621 51 7,698 96 1,114 61 41,898 32
Quebec...... ... il 241,177 17 66,820 38| 43,018 67 14,960 60, 865,976 82
Ontario. . .....covvreennneninnnnn. 96,188 65 54,168 74 18,326 58 7,707 11} 176,391 08
Manitoba. ... ..... 43 B8[.... .ol 10,340 72
British Columbia ...................0 27,997 83} 89,664 72. . ........ 14,425 34 132,087 89
Yukon Provisional District . .......[............ 1400000/............{ ........... 14,000 00
Harbours and Rivers generally.......] 3673 05/..... ......|............ 4,949 42 8,622 47
Totals, Dredges and dredgmg pla.nt 28,108 75...... veieaes 47,935 58
w  Slides and boom 23,931 67 36,233 14 63,427 16
v+  Roads and bndges §,656 11 5,679 22 68,647 78
w  Telegraph lines............... 9,109 16 49,887 831 78.297 62
w  Miscellaneous............ ... |ooooooiiil| 0 B4 4B 0Ll 108,139 37\ 108,983 82
Grand totals .. . .... ...... 431,499 98, 861,460 03; 361,127 38 589,729 48| 2,243,816 87

(End of Statement A.)



Department of Public Worksa.

Part II—Continued.

STaTeMENT B.—Showing the cost of the following services for each Public Build-
ing, viz. :—
Rent; Salaries of, and Supplies for, Caretakers, Engineers, &c.; Heating ; Lighting;
Water ; (the total for each province being carried into Statement “A.”)

]
! Salaries ;
_ Rents. 55 ng?rfe ers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
o &e.
i 1
Nove Scotid. $ cts. 3 cts. $ cts. 8 cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Amherst post office. ... ...l e e 388 27 253 60 324 75 20 00 986 62
Annapolis T P 389 55 149 37 146 96 40 00 725 88
Antigonish v ..o e e 381 51 72 35 16 65 10 00 480 51
Arichat custom-house.. ........ ..... Y P, 52001.... ... [ 52 00
" postoffice. . ............... .. 7400 ... ....|.......... 74 00
w  savings bank.. 35000 ... o]eeee e 35 00
Baddeck post office. . ... U 82 50 2219(.. .. ... 300 02
Dartmouth PR R 248 92 63 36 124 20 12 75, 449 23
Halifax assistant receiver general’soffice! 1,200 00f.......... 57 60 74 10 52 20, 1,383 90
w  Dominion building........... e 1,982 08 683 19| 2,849 32 979 89; 6,494 48
" engineer’s office............ . 360 00[........ P IO e 360 00
n  examining warehouse........ 1,000 00 345 93 134 75: 52 80 114 36 1,647 84
v immigrant shed.............. e 568 00 306 28 425 33[.. . ... 1,299 61
" penitentiary..... ............. 024|........ .. ....... [ PP 0 24
Lunenburg post office. ..., ...........|-.. ... 297 05| 150 50 192 50 59 00 699 05
l\iew Glasgow « 287 00 153 95 357 34 100 00 898 29
North Sydney « 35471 104 550 316 00{ 20 16| 795 42
Pictou custom-house 288 10 1764 .... .. |.......... 405 74
n  post office.. ............ ... .. 18 76 - 87 12 160 75 3 50 270 13
Sydney [T N PO 369 26 185 65 348 52 25 00 928 43
Turo W eeeaaas 490 45 236 00; 278 76 45 00/ 1,050 21
Windsor 200 02 176 60, 100 72 25 00 f
armouth .  ........ 389 98 220 50, 630 20 108 00| 1,348 68
Totals, Nova Scotia carried to!
Statement A, page 3.......... 2,560 24| 7,194 92, 3,396 51| 6,431 09| 1,614 86| 21,187 62
Prince Edward Island.
Charlottetown Dominion building.....|.. ...... 1,706 16 454 93 987 75 225 00{ 3,373 84
" engineer’s office. .. ..... 230 00f........cfeeee e e 230 00
Montague post office.................. e 187 57 49 64 B TB ... 260 96
Summerside *  ............ ... e e 387 52 269 80 127 05{.... ... 784 37
Totals, P. E. Island carried into ~
Statement A, page 3.. ... .. 230 00 2,281 25 774 37| 1,138 55| 225 00| 4,649 17
New Brunswick.
Bathurst post office, &c............ .. L 431 92| 367 9 1250 ... .. 812 37
Carleton, St. John, post office, &c. ... . 91 67 43 73 151 05 12 00 298 45
hatham post office, &C.............. 294 20! 257 80 125 28).......... 677 28
Dalhousie  «  iieiieieee aileens 380 87/ 199 13 924.... ..... 589 24
redericton « 0 ... iieiieeiiilieies ae. 378 67 269 90 600 63 50 00] 1,299 20
Moncton Y 393 14 223 10 397 20 167 50 1,180 94
ewcastle [T [ 394 35 231 95 213 90|......... 840 20
Portland, $t. John, post office. ... .... 130 90|.. . .... 3196.......... 950, 172 36
t. John custom-house............... 22 00] 1,733 04] 1,049 35! 439 46 506 83| 3,750 68
" post office.................. cee eeeed| L1279 41 468 82| 3,591 35| 392 68/ 5,732 26
" savings bank............... [ors oo 2 00 250 38 114 41 17 52 384 31
Carried forward.............. [ 152 90, 1 ;,379 271 3,394 071 5,655 02 1,156 03] 15,737 29

9—ii—2



62 Victoria.

Sessional Papers (No. 9.)

A. 1899

Part 1T —StateMeNT B.—Showing the cost of the following services for each Public
Building, &e.—Continued.

I
|
i Salaries
—_— | Rents. Engi(:feers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total
x &e.
New Brunswick-—Concluded. ‘ $ cts. 8 cts. 8 cts. $ cts. 8 cts. 8 cts.
Brought forward...... . ... . 152 90} 5,379 27| 3,394 07| 5,655 02‘ 1,156 03| 15,737 29
St. Stephen’s post office, &c. 378 67 114 38 406 20 64 00 963 25
Sussex " .. 194 66 195 30 830,...... .. 398 26
Tracadie lazaretto ..... ... 150 000 1,075 701... .... .......... 1,225 70
Woodstock post office, &coooio 408 43 211 54 160 00, 34 00 813 97
Totals, New Brunswick carried ! i
into Statement A, page 3..... 152 90| 6,511 03: 4,990 99| 6,229 52 1,254 03| 19,138 47
|
Quebce. i
Aylmer post office........... ... ..., !
Coaticoo W e e I P
Dundee custom-house.................
Hull post office, &c.... ....... ......
Joliette e e
Lachine »  ......... e e
Laprairien, ...
Lévis immigrant building......... .
Montreal Civil Service exam. office
" custom-house..... ......... : : : ,665 T
" Dominion pubhc buxldmgs ......... L1000 ... L 1,130 00
" drill h'l . . F S ! 511 00 . R 511 00
w exammmg warehouse... . .. |.... ... i 1,338 320 1,584 20 542 92 572 05 4,057 49
" immigration office.......... 416 60 ... ... P P P 416 60
" inland revenue office........[.......... i 595 66 159 56, 160 08 103 79| 1.019 09
ot office ... LT | 435160 646 11 411120 1,445 77 10504 68
Quebec cullersoffice. .................}.... ... © 51385 262 96!.... . l.......... 776 31
w custom-house..................|....... L. i 518 45 658 55 49 87 800 00| 2,026 87
" Dommmn public buildings..... . T N o el 39 50 39 50
v  engineer’s office.......... ... . 144 00 . .. T EE T : 144 00
»  examining warehouse. . A P ; 1,388 27 735 74 379 450 00° 2,612 00
w  immigiant building........... | .. ..., [P 377 20 675 00........... 1,052 20
w observatory............. . .. TR P PO 50 00 50 00
w postoffice....... ....... ¢ 1,327 13 733 89 943 4 766 00. 3,770 46
Queen’s wharf building e 306 86..... ... 750 00 1,056 86
Rnchmond post office ........... 927] . 210 00 FU P . 219 27
Rimouski W e i 141 79 288 85 1170.......... 442 34
Riviére du Loup (Fraserville) post office(.. ..... 247 16 297 00 1075).... .... 554 91
Sherbrooke post oftice, &e............. 443 34 284 93 453 25 37 50, 1,219 02
Sorel L P 529 94 255 10 236 60 250 00 1,271 64
St. Henri W e e P P 111 00 103 44 29 28 243 72
St. Hyacinthe » ... ... ..o ] oL 401 09 176 50 232 55 150 00! 960 14
St. Jérdéme M ieieiereien aa C 75 00 161 25 176 00 57 84! 470 09
St. John’s " 330 76 126 60 250 00 6000i 767 36
St.Lin o« ... 300 000.... . .. Lo e e 300 00
St. Roch, Quebec postoffice.. .......[.......... 7 20| 60 40 4. 139 01
Three Rivers custom-house............[.......... 296 22 309 21 99 62 84 00 789 05
post office. ... ....... B 388 03] 187 50 97 98 60 00 733 53
Va.lleyﬁeld W e 254 70(.......... 52 00 29 00 45 00, 380 70
West Farnham o ..o ... Lo Ll L, 2 45 5475 60 00 10 00 127 20
Totals, Quebec, carried into State-
ment A, paged................ 14,215 30 17,044 21| 9,861 41| 9,502 31| 6,466 23; 44,089 46
Ontario.
Almonte post office, &c............. B D 384 62 139 71 31 96 152 00 708 29
Amherstburg pont ofﬁw &e..... ool Ll 400 86 171 50 116 00 3250 720 86
Barrie w1 eeeeeeenei] 39317 24250 14641 50 ooI 832 08
Carried forward....... ....|..... ... 563 71 294 37 234 50; 2,261 23

1,178 65
18



Department of Public Works.

Parr II.—StareMeENT B.—Showing the cost of the following services for each Public
Building, &c.—Continued.

Salaries
_ Rents. Engi‘;feers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
&e.
Ontario—Continued. 8 cts. 8 cts. 8 cts 8 cts. $ cts. 8 cts.
Brought forward......... .. [P 1,178 65 553 7 294 37 234 50| 2,261 23
Be\lqvine post office, &c.... ....... . 587 22 320 62 381 60 53 25 1,352 69
Berlin T I 386 02| 272 82| 280 93 44 00 983 77
Brampton " 387 62| 151 58] 170 80 492 75423
rantford N T, 590 65 295 76/ 302 99 63 00| 1,252 40
rockville W e 390 991 221 400 496 65| 170 00| 1,279 04
arleton Place n c.o.veieinoaii|ieeain.. 288 90| 113 00 50 20/, ......... 452 10
uyuga, W el 45 84) 10500 52 70\.......... 203 54
Chatham B R, 372 52 191 98 183 57 40 00, 788 07
Clifton D R 298 20 237 60 325 00 51 00 911 80
Cobourg N T 389 82 196 64/ 288 20 45 50 920 16
ornwall R B 457 86| 250 00| 482 10 93 25 1,283 21
Dundasg D, 500 00....... . 16 48 6339.......... 579 87
Galg W TR 304 62| 17475 204 20 4148 905 05
ananoque custom-house . ...........0 ... Lol 145 60 94 00(.......... I 239 60
. " post office, &e
Goderich W ee e eeeeeanns
Guelph W e

Kine, post office...... ..... ..... 000 00 by
ngston custom-house................ 5] 42 35 27
examining warehouse........1...... ... ..ol 2265.......... 0 55 23 20
inland revenue office... ... {..........) . ... el L 84 60 64 65 149 25
military college. ............[..........0 1,360 00 .........0......... |........ .. 1,360 00
LN post office........... PR R 176 65 467 10 27 48 779 78
Lindsay post office, &c. ... .. .. ... 157 80, 7500 2000 638 47
London custom-house. ... .. . ...... 494 24| 434 81! 140 00| 2,075 37
Na...  Ppost office... ... 467 94| 1,329 56 80 00| 2,483 00
Oapaueq post office, &c. 187 25 166 92 69 45 888 642
O"_&ngevﬂle post office, & 134 19 141 00 20 00 718 09
Oﬂlha " .. 150 25 78 40 31 250 365 24
ttawa experimental farm . 1,753 78| 158 03 204 00| 2,115 81
" geological museum............1 ...... 913 27 205 500 ......... 1,646 77
" nationsl art gallery and fisheries
museum ., .... .... [P 511 27 97 33 .. 608 60
" north-west mounted police
Stores. ... .......ve s Looiiiiiinin i 69 91 ... ... ... .l 69 91
" parliamentaryanddepartmental
buildings................... 29,081 16! 19,249 66] 14,500 00! 84,931 82
" post office............ ...... 174 18] 2,044 17,.. ....... ,058
*  printing bureau.. 4,052 80 611 90|.......... 7,829 92
Ot " supreme court........ ... ... 445 75 63901 ......... 1,852 40
tawa rented buildings :—
nk of Ottawa (gept,. of the In- |
terior). ... ... ...l 1,600 00 ... ...... L 60 49 90 82 1,751 31
undary commission offices. . .... 20000, .........0......... } 6 31 8 40 264 71
Coal shed (canal basin)............ 400 000 . ........l..coo e e I 400 00
Central chambers (Dept. of the In- |
terior),.............. .. ... 0000, ...... 0 e e ! 200 00
Civil Service Commission offices. . . B L 11 O RN TN U 16 00
epartmental photgfrapher’s oflice 136 000 .........|........ . 300.......... 139 00
urie’s Chambers (Militia Dept.). . 180 00(..... ....j.eennnnnn 1230.......... 192 34
Xamining warehouse ............ 80 00,..........0 ....... 12 60 36 07 897 67
French translators’ office ......... 315 00 237 9435 944 44416
€ological museum annex ........ 60000 ...... ... ...l .. 76 76 676 76
Molson’s Bank (Maxrine Dept.) ... 399 98/, ... ... 1574)..... ... 415 72
agle building (Customs Dept.)...| . .....i..... ... oo L.l 16 30 32 40 48 70
ervatory ............. . ... PO A 3200...... .. 32 00
later's chambers (Model room).. | 1,275 001..... ... . L 104 70| 1,379 70
VOrkshnps and lumber yard of
Depe. of Public Works . . ....... 830 00 | 528 00; 1,132 76i 360 90 122 83| 2,974 49
Carried forward............ 7,560 98 f91,930 621 7,841 331 31,654 721 17,657 821143,141 95
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Farr II.—StaATEMENT B.—Showing the cost of the following services for each Public
Building, &c.—Continued.

Salaries
—_— Rents. Engi:)rfeers, Heating. ,Lighting. | Water. Total.
&e.
Ontario.—Concluded. 8 cts.! $ octs. $ cts., 8 cts.] B cts| 8 cts.
Brought forward..... ..... 7,550 98% 41,930 62| 7,841 33; 31,654 72! 17,657 82:143,141 95
i
Pembroke post office ...............00 Lol 418 65 208 20 198 00 56 G40 880 85
Peterboro’ custom-house.. ..... ... ... .. ..., R 109 00 78 75 62 50 250 25
" postoffice ....... ... 0ol | 526 15 161 91 433 00 93 75 1,214 81
Petrolia " &eeooon o Ll ‘ 434 99 136 82 24 20| 32 23, 628 24
Port Arthur « &ce o e ! 321 35 153 01 3335 .. ...... i 507 71
Port Colborne v ..ol Ll | 272 46 31 25 TL300.... ... | 375 21
Port Hope " &coe v 1 428 15 192 50 245 80 ..... .... | 866 45
Prescott custom-house. ...... ....... ... booee e 181 65 ... ... 35000 216 65
W postoffice ....... ... Lo Lol ! 419 16 114 05 149 35 35 00 717 56
Smith’s Falls post office, &¢ .. ...... | ......... I 31280 136 23 43 47 85 00/ 627 50
Stratford wo &e bl ' 675600 41561 190 40 G4 67| 1,346 28
Strathroy W e e e 412 00 169 85 28 75 3 09 613 69
St. Catharines [T S 426 21 231 05 200 37 57 00 914 63
St. Thomas [T I 415 00 210 00 536 25 86 19| 1,247 44
Toronto Civil Service examination
office ....... .. i, 45 00, .. . .. A P R 45 00
Toronto custom-house. . B . 64D 65 349 29 114 03 21 75, 1,130 72
" Dominion Public bulldmgs S P 1,220 32 R R ..l 1,220 32
woodrllhall . [o7gs6 94 o L o 856 94
w  engineer'soffice ............. 30000 .. ...... o 8 00 .. 308 00
w  examining warehouse...... .i........ 4,396 99: 1764 13 76 68 139 63! 5,377 43
" inland revenue office ........|.......... 617 50 266 46 270 18 30 44 1,184 58
" post office. ........ ......... 120 00 908 86: 804 13} 2,846 65 584 80, 5,264 44
Trenton W SO0 4485 198000 21610 75000 033 95
Walkerton o cevioeniiians o | 38498 22650, 156 52 156 00! 782 00
Windsor W e 694 23 481 25 730 38 96 000 2,001 8
Wolf Island, Kingston, custom-house. .!.... .... |.... i 3492 ... ... e 31 92
Totals Ontario carried into i
Statement A, page d...... 8,015 98| 57,183 46- 49,923 52| 38,355 45| 19,230 87! 172,709 28
Manitoba. :
]
Brandon experimental farm..... ... ... ... 149 50i.... .... R 149 50
" immigrant building..........[......o 0 Ll 148 35}.... ... el 148 35
w__ post office, &c......... Ao el 641 08 565 80 644 65 76 00; 1,927 53
Lake Dauphin Dominion lands office. . 220 00(. ....... 67 37|.......... 987 37
Minnedosa Dominion lands office. .. . . 13500 ......... 95 00...... | ... ... 230 00
Winnipeg clerk of works office ........[.... e 4500 ... .o e, . 4 50
" crown timber office.. .......1.. .. L oL 233 80..... ....|. R 233 80
" custom-house. . 14 13 584 50 251 60 96 00| 946 23
" Dominion lands oftice. . ... |ovmvvordeeeeinieners oo 41 99 30 00 71 99
" engineer’s office. . ......... B8 OO0 .... ... ... .. e 58 00
" examining warehouse.......[....... . |.. ... .. 384 10 972 ......... 393 82
" immigrant shed ........ ... 75 00 730 59 168 33 125 00; 1,098 92
" postoffice..... ... ...l . 2,643 58| 2,570 49] 1,247 00 550 00| 7,011 07
Totals Manitoba, carrxed into State-
ment A, pageb... ... ..... | #1300 337829 5529500 2,363 20| 877 00| 12,561 08
i
North-west Territories. i
Alameda Dominion lands office. . ... .. 155 00}..... .... 37 95 192 95
Banff park buildings. . ..............0 ool 100 12......... 100 12
Battleford Dominion lands office . .....|..... el 7 00 7 00
Carried forward............ 155 00] ........ ME0T ...l anaa, 300 07




“epartment of Public Works.

Part II.—StaTEMENT B.—Showing the cost of the following services for each Puklic
Building, &c.—Concluded,.

Salaries
—_— Rents. Eng?lfeers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
&e.

North-west Tcrritories. $ cts.| $ cts.] $ cts.| $ cts.] B cts.| 8§ cts
Brought forward............ 155 00} .. ... 4507 ... oofeennn .ul 300 07
Calgary court-house, &c........ 1,378 85
v immigrant building. ... 128 27
w  land and registry office.. 82 30
w  postoffice.. . ... .. ...... ... 1,953 39
Edmonton Dominion lands office . . 101 4
.o immigrant shed ....... R 162 50
" registry office ............. .. 579 25
Indian Head experimental farm....... 223 50
Lethbridge court-house. . . .. eees .. 200 81
" Dominion lands office. ..... 60 00
" post office................. 549 94
Macleod custom-house........ ....... 81 75
w  court-house................... 309 75
Mooeejaw court-house. ............... 510 15
Moosomin W e eeeeaeaa 961 18
Prince Albert &c....oo ..nl. 1,086 57
n land and registry office. . 511 80
Red Deer Dominion lands office. ... 161 00
Regina clerk of works office..... ... 66 15
w court-house.................... 1,626 41
»  Dominion lands office.......... 470 60
w  immigrant building ........... 9 00
" land titles office..... .......... 490 25
v postoftice..................... 214 55
Wolseley court house. ............. e 768 55
Yorkton Dominion lands office......... 207 00

Totals N.W. Verritories carried
into Statement A, page 6..... 1,457 10| 5,777 99| 4,287 27 816 67 850 00 13,189 03
.
British Columbia.
Agassiz experimental farm.............0 ... oL Ll 54 50..........0..... ... 54 50
Duncan Indian office. ... .cc.coovvvieiidinnns coiidirion 1844 ... ... .......... 18 44
mloops Dominion lands office.... .... 165 00(.......... 25 50(..........0...... ... 190 50
Metlakatla Indian office. .... ..coeuead covn ceanlovees ue 2025 ... deeealll 29 28
Nanaimo post office, &c........ccoovvofeeven .on. 627 55! 126 35| 275 00 45 00| 1,073 90
New Westminster engineer’s office..... . 461 00 129’ 345 822 ......... 516 67
" Tost office, &c......).... ..... 616 00| 104 69 191 35 56 01 967 056
Vancouver drill hall... .........cc... ) oocees e s 5816[.... ....|..... .. 58 16
o post office, &¢......... B 507 76 379 70| 1,266 15 177 56| 2,381 17
Victoria appraiser's office ...o........|-.. ...l e 15 22 22 40 24 00 61 62
" barracks..........oe0 vnen T 3222 .........0.... ceeees 32 22
w  clerk of works office..... .... 130 00| 575 .... .... 0.......... 136 45
N Ccustom-house ... vevvevervenfiveens ceeleraesennnn 132 62 52 20| 25 12| 209 94
w o drillball....oooeenineanandons OO P 158 29 f.ocoviiii)eennninns. 158 29
" Indianoffice ...coevveeveni]envenibonnnas 4227 . e 42 27
n military store......cc.coeciiee] ceeeniniifirecneanes 922 ... . 97 22
w  postoffice........cieeiiiiiiiifiiiiiiiian 642 307 128 92| 1,134 45 27 78] 1,928 40
. weights and measures office...;...... ... ... ..l 2900 .... ... 8 00 35 00
William’s Head quarantine station.....|..........|... Cevena 858 10 [...oiiiiiifern vrnnnn 858 10
Totala British Columbia carried

into Statement A, page7...... 756 00] 2,412 81| 2,319 95 | 2,950 47 360 42! 8,799 15

(End of Statement B.)
21
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Part II—Continued.

SraTeMeENT C.—Showing amount loaned by Government under the authority of special
Acts of Parliament and upon the recommendation of the Minister of Public Works,
during the fiscal year 1897-98.

To Montreal Harbour Commissioners for improvement of Montreal Harbour (Act 59 Vict.,
L0113 0 ) $110,000 00

A. G. KINGSTON,
DepPARTMENT OF PuBLic WORKS, Accountant.
AcCCcOUNTANT'S OFFICE,
Orrawa, 20th February, 1899.
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PART III

REPORT ON PUBLIC BUILDINGS
THROUGHOUT THE DOMINION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30t JUNE, 1898

BY THE

CHIEF ARCHITECT

O—iii—1






Department of Public Worka.

REPORT OF THE CHIKEF ARCHITECT.

DePARTMENT OF PusLic WoORKS, CANADA,
Cuier ArcHITECT'S OFFICE,
OTTAWA, 14th December, 1898.

S1r,—I have the honour to submit the following report on the construction
of new works and the repairs made to public buildings under the control of this
department, for the fiscal year ended the 3oth June, 1898.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

D. EWART,
Chief Architect.
E. F. E. Roy, Esq,
Secretary, Department of Public Works, Canada.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

CHARLOTTETOWN.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The heating boiler was retubed and repaired; the woodwork of the post-
Master’s room was repainted; repairs were made to the plastering, roof covering
and plumbing, and a wire boundary fence was erected.

SUMMERSIDE.

The gate posts were renewed. The original heating furnace, being worn
out, was removed and two new hot water (Buffalo) furnaces were put in, the hot
Water coils and plumbing were repaired; part of the inside woodwork was painted
and the plaster tinted; repairs were made to roof covering and an asphalt sidewalk
with crossings laid along street line.

3
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PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

AMHERST.

An asphalt sidewalk was laid along the street line.

ANNAPOLIS.

The space between post office box screen and ceiling was screened with wire
mesh. The roof was repaired and flag-staff painted.

ANTIGONISH.

The shingling of roof was renewed, minor repairs were made to woodwork,
painting, &c., and a new smoke pipe for furnace was supplied.

ARICHAT.
POST OFFICE.

A fire-proof safe was supplied for the use of the officials.

BADDECK.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The inside and outside woodwork and fence were painted, the plastpr kalso-
mined; repairs were made to the coal house and some matting was supplied.

DARTMOUTH.

A coal bin was constructed in cellar.
Work superintended by C. E. W. Dodwell, resident engineer and inspector

of public buildings, Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

HALIFAX, N.S.
DOMINION BUILDING.

The electric light wiring being inefficient and not in accordance with the re-
gulations of the board of underwriters, was taken out and the building properly
wired. Fittings were supplied for the inspector of customs’ office and the parcels
office; hose and couplings were supplied and extensive repairs made to furniture,
post office boxes, heating and water service.

Work supervised by C. E. W. Dodwell, resident engineer and inspector of
public buildings, Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

Contractor for wiring, Graham & Pickles, Halifax, N.S.

4



Department of Public Works.

DRILL HALL.,

This building is roofed in and is expected to be ready for occupation by the
close of the calendar year. Tenders are invited for a heating and ventilating
apparatus and for wiring the building for electric light. Plans are being prepared
for the various fittings and furniture.

Plan, &c., prepared and work superintended by this department. Resident
engineer and inspector of public buildings, Nova Scotia, C. E. W. Dodwell, C.E,,
Halifax, N.S.

Clerk of works, Dominick Healy, Halifax, N.S.

Contractor, John E. Askwith, Ottawa.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The roof covering was repaired throughout; a partition was put in to form
stamp room and the goods hoist overhauled and repaired.

Work supervised by C. E. W. Dodwell, resident engineer and inspector of
public buildings, Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

IMMIGRATION BUILDING.

The water-closets were repaired under the supervision of C. E. W. Dodwell,
tesident engineer and inspector of public buildings, Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

QUARANTINE (DEEP WATER TERMINUS).

The steward’s residence was thoroughly repaired, and the detention building
was furnished with tables and chairs.

Work supervised by C. E. W. Dodwell, resident engineer and inspector of
Public buildings, Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

LIVERPOOL.
POST OFFICE.

On January 13th last, a site was purchased on the corner of Main and Market
streets, having frontages of 60 feet and 100 feet respectively. Plans are in course
of preparation and tenders for the construction of the building are to be asked at
an early date. There is to be a main building 41 feet by 31 feet consisting of a
stone basement; to accommodate the heating furnace, fuel and stores, a ground
floor for the post office, a first floor for the customs and inland revenue offices
(4 rooms), and an attic for the caretaker’s apartments. The walls on the ground
and first floor are to be brick and the attic wooden mansard, the flat covered with
pitch, and gravel and the slopes with slate. There is to be a one storey annex
24 feet 8 inches by 26 feet 2 inches, of brick on a stone foundation, with, wood
roof. On the street corner the brick work'is to be carried up into the mansard
as a gable and to be surmounted by a turret.

LUNENBURG.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

The roof covering was painted. A Dominion ensign was supplied.
5
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NAPPAN.
EXPERIMENTAL FARM.
A water service was put in to supply the residence and outbuildings; addi-

tions were made to silo and to the heating apparatus at residence and some usual
and ordinary general repairs were made.

NEW, GLASGOW.,
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.
The rain water conductors and down-pipes were repaired and in part reno-

vated, the plastering of the interior of the building was kalsomined, the wootl-
work painted and the stonework of walls and fences repointed.

NORTH SYDNEY.
POST OFFICE, &C., BRUILDING.
A large portion of the plumbing was generally overhauled and put in order.
PICTOU.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

Repairs were made to woodwork and plumbing. The sewer was overhauled
and repaired; the walls and ceilings were whitewashed and general repairs were
carried out. y

SYDNEY.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

Repairs to furnace, heating apparatus, brick wall and woodwork and painting,
glazing and plastering done; new door locks were supplied.

TRURO.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

The heating apparatus was repaired; the cesspool was cleaned and some
minor general repairs effected.

WINDSOR.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

Previous to October 14th, 1897, on which date the building was destroyed
by fire, the brickwork of the gables and chimney was pointed and the gable cop-
ing reset, the galvanized deck roof and the flag-pole were repainted, and the
building was wired for 14 electric lights.

6



Department of Public Worka

The building is being re-erected by days’ labour, after a slight change in
Plan; the staircase annex being replaced by a one storey annex 20 feet by 16 feet
Inside dimensions, and the stairway being placed in the main building. The
additional office will be furnished with a brick safe. There will be a water-closet
and urinal room on the ground floor in rear of the main stairway, and one in attic
above the one on ground floor . '

Plans for a heating apparatus are in course of preparation.

Work superintended by J. H. Ellis, clerk of works, from the departmental
staff, Ottawa. ‘

YARMOUTH.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

A part of the outside woodwork was repainted.

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK.

BATHURST.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new entrance porch was constructed, a brass screen supplied to the post
office, repairs to yard gates, &c., made.

CARLETON (St. John), N.B.
POST OFFICE. .
Repairs were made to slating and flashing of roof, to water service, stoves,

pipes, &c., under the supervision of W. J. McCordock, of this department, St.
John, N.B. i A

FREDERICTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.
i A new hardwood floor was laid in post office, repairs were made to the plaster-
Ing and glazing, the ceilings were whitened, the walls and painted woodwork

were painted one coat and the hardwood fittings and floors oiled. New floor oil-
cloth was laid in postmaster’s room and some furniture repaired.

MONCTON.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The flagging of sidewalk was relaid and repaired and repairs made to tank,
letter boxes, plumbing, &c.

7
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NEWCASTLE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new lamp for entrance door and a quantity of office furniture were sup-
plied.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND.
QUARANTINE STATION.

The building referred to in my last report, intended as a shelter for the disin-
fector, baths, water tanks, &c., was completed and furnished with a steam-heating
apparatus.

Works under the charge of W. J. McCordock, of this department, St. John,
N.B. '
Contractor, Mr. Jno. Duffy.

PORTLAND (St. John).
POST OFFICE.

Repairs were made to plumbing, sewer, water service, stoves, &c.
Work carried out under the supervision of W. J. McCordock, of this depart-
ment, St. John, N.B.

ST. JOHN.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

The rooms of the signal officers, in the south tower, were finished and paint-
ed. Some large plates of glass over main entrance, which were broken, were re-
placed, and minor repairs were made to roof covermg, heating, bells, locks, win-
dows, &c., &c. Y P

Work carried out under the supervxslon of W. J. McCordock of this depart
ment, St. John, N.B.

POST OFFICE.

A portion of the hardwood floor of the public lobby was renewed; the worn-
out galvanized iron gutters along east side of building were removed and re-
placed by new. The hoist was repaired, altered, renovated and improved gener-
ally, and the w.c,, bells, floors, heating apparatus and glazing repaired ; new locks,
keys and some artxcles of furniture, &c., were supplied.

Work carried out under the supervision of W. J. McCordock, of this depart-
ment.

SAVINGS BANK.

A large plate of glass was inserted in wall between banking and assistant
receiver general’s room; a new brick coal and ash vault was built; the flag-staff
was renewed and painted; the outer walls were pointed; the woodwork, iron gates,

8
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fence and rain water conductors were painted and repairs were made to pump,
fire-box, electric bells, window sashes, cords, weights, &c.
Work carried out under the supervision of W. J. McCordock. of this depart-
ment. .
ST. STEPHEN.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The wooden wharf was renewed. A Dominion ensign was supplied and
some minor repairs executed.

SUSSEX.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
Some new blinds were supplied for windows.
TRACADIE.
LAZARETTO.

An additional storage tank was placed in attic, supported by posts resting on
basement floor; the foundation of the steam pump was raised and the connections
altered. '

WOODSTOCK.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Some new tubes were put in heating furnace; the brickwork, plastering and
painting were thoroughly repaired and some repairs were made to plumbing.

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.
BERTHIERVILLE.
POST OFFICE.

The property Cadastral No. 182, fronting on Edouard Street, south-west of
lot 152 and north-east of lot 183 with buildings thereon, was purchased (subject
to ground rent) and altered to render it suitable for a post office. It is a wooden
building, veneered with briek, consisting of a two storey main portion 32 feet by
29 feet, a kitchen wing 11 feet by 12 feet and a one storey wing for a public lobby
13 feet square.

FRASERVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The plumbing was repaired.
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HULL.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
The woodwork of the building was repaired.
GROSSE ISLE.
QUARANTINE STATION.

Western Division.—At Dr. Church’s residence the interior walls and ceilings
were papered; storm sashes and doors were provided for all windows and en-
trances; a wood shed 24 feet by 18 feet by 15 feet was erected in the yard; in-
closure fences and gates were provided for yard and paddock; the barrier fence
was repaired and whitewashed, and some repairs made to glazing, plastering, &c.

The SS. “Challenge ” was wired for electric lighting, and was cleaned and
repainted.

Work superintended by Ph. Béland, clerk of works, Quebec, P.Q.
LAPRAIRIE.
POST OFFICE.
Repairs made to dormer windows, roof covering and water pipes.
FARNHAM.
POST OFFICE.
Springs were provided for entrance doors.
JOLIETTE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The woodwork of the interior was repainted; additions were made to the
heating apparatus, and water service; springs were provided for the entrance door,
and repairs were made to double windows, wainscot, ceiling, floors, roof and side-
walks. .

MONTREAL.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

New halyards and block were supplied for flag-staff; repairs were made to
roof covering, gas pipes and water service; a part of the furnace smoke pipe was
renewed and two water-closet cisterns supplied.

Work done under the supervision of C. Desjardins, clerk of works, Montreal.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.
The floors of sections 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 were relaid in maple on a concrete

foundation. The circular stair in section 10 was renovated. The old hydraulic
10
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press was taken up and the openings in floor and ceiling made good. A new
partition was put up in the express office. The brick arches of sections 7, 8, g and
10, and the sides of elevator wells were repaired.

Work superintended by C. Desjardins, clerk of works at Montreal.

INLAND REVENUE BUILDING,

A new floor was laid in the caretaker’s kitchen in basement. On ground
floor, caretaker’s apartments, the ceilings were painted and the walls papered. In
the two rooms devoted to the sale of stamps the walls and the ceilings were paint-
ed, the woodwork was varnished, and a desk, counter, cupboards, &c., supplied.
Extensive changes were made to the ararngement of the partitions, furniture, fit-
tings, plumbing, gas, &c., on first floor to suit altered requirements of officials.

Work done under the supervision of C. Desjardins, clerk of works at Mont-
real.

POST OFFICE.

‘Lhe freight hoist between basement and attic floor was changed to electric
power and a room constructed to contain the motor. The front plate of the letter
and newspaper drop was taken off and replaced by one of aluminum. A new
counter was put in lobby for stamp yendor, and a new oak entrance door put in.
On the first floor some new ventilators were put in windows; a new store-room
made for stationery; a separate toilet and water-closet room fitted up for the ladies,
and that for the men repaired. The cupboards, shelving, counters, &c., for Brit-
ish mail were enlarged and altered; repairs were made to the roof covering, plumb-
ing, water and gas service, and minor general repairs effected.

Work done under the supervision of C. Desjardins, clerk of works at Mont-
real.

MONTMAGNY.
POST OFFICE,

On 31st May 1898, the Government acquired the unexpired g9 years lease
(dated 1892) of cadastral lotsi 222 and 223 from the municipality and purchased
the town hall thereon from the Quebec Seminary. As a consideration for the
conveyance of the lease the municipality is allowed the use of the town hall and
offices, and for the building the Seminary received the sum of $5,000. The
building is of brick 8 feet by 40 feet, one storey of brick on a stone foundation
and surmounted by a mansard storey. A building 20 feet by 40 feet adjoining
the town hall, and similar in style of construction, for the accommodation of the
post office, and a part of the town hall building is also to be devoted to this pur-
pose.

Plans, &c., for alteration and addition prepared by this department.

Work superintended by Ph. Béland, clerk of works, Quebec.

QUEBEC.
CITADEL, GOVERNOR GENERAL’S QUARTERS.

. The flag-staff was renovated and repaired. The usual annual cleaning, paint-
Ing and preparations for His Excellency’s visit were carried out under the super-
vision of an officer of this department.

11
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CUSTOM HOUSE.

Carpets and furniture were supplied to the offices of the collector and in-
spector of inland revenue, the walls were papered and the woodwork painted.

Plans are being prepared for alteration of the heating apparatus.

Work inspected by Ph. Béland, clerk of works, Quebec, P.Q.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

Repairs and renewals were made to the painting, glazing, plumbing and
carpentry.
Work inspected by Ph. Béland, clerk of works, Quebec, P.Q.

MARINE AND IMMIGRATION AGENCY BUILDING.

The heating furnace being worn out, was replaced by two “ Buffalo” fur-
naces; the heating mains in basement were altered and a large quantity of heating
surface added, thus extending the apparatus. '

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

Work superintended by J. Cowan, of this department.

Contractor, Chas. Vezina, Quebec.

OBSERVATORY.

The clapboarding of the north side was renewed; a new tar and gravel roof
was put on ; the dome, water tank, sashes and carpentry generally were repaired.
A new bath was put in; some papering and painting was done and a foot-path
from the building to the main road put down.

POST OFFICE.

The woodwork of the inside and outside of the building was painted.
Work superintended by Ph. Béland, clerk of works, Quebec, P.Q.

DRILL HALL.

The galvanized roof covering of drill hall and armouries was completely re-
paired. :
Work superintended by Ph. Béland, clerk of works, Quebec, P.Q.

RICHMOND.

POST OFFICE.

Building completed and occupied.

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

Clerk of works, N. Nicholson, Richmond, P.Q).

Contractors for building and fittings, Paquet & Godbout, St. Hyacinthe, P.Q).
Contractor for heating apparatus, J. Lamarche, Montreal.

12
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RIMOUSKI
POST OFFICE.
This building, which was previously described, is completed and occupied.

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.
Work superintended by J. P. M. Lecourt, Ottawa, and Ph. Béland, Quebec.

SHERBROOKE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.
A postal bag-rack, gas fittings, fixtures and box locks were supplied; parts

of heating apparatus were renewed and the roof covering and post office locks and
lock boxes repaired.

ST. HENRIL
POST OFFICE.

The glazing was repaired.

ST. JEROME.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The post office clock was repaired; sidewalks were repaired and renovated.

ST. JOHNS, P.Q.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Alterations of and additions to the post office fittings, giving increased faci-
lities for public business, were carried out. New hot water furnaces were put in
and some changes made in the hot water heating apparatus.

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

SOREL.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The public lobby floor was relaid in hardwood and oiled; the plaster ceiling
of the furnace room was renewed in galvanized iron. The plaster of walls, ceil-
ings, cornices, &c., of ground floor was repaired, cleaned and kalsomined; the
woodwork and floors painted, excepting the floor of the public lobby which! was
oiled. The water service pipes throughout were renewed; a special 3-inch fire
service pipe, with hydrants and hose on each flat, was put in; the furnace, heating
coils, gas pipes and fittings were repaired and bronzed.

Work superintended by P. E. Parent, CE.
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THREE RIVERS.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

New sidewalks and steps were laid along street line and to approaches; the
hardwood floors were reoiled two coats; all walls and ceilings inside the building
were cleaned and painted ; the basins of second and third floors were renewed and
vented ; plaster of walls and ceilings as well as the roof covering was repaired.

Work done under the supervision of 'F. X. T. Berlinguet, resident engineer,
Three Rivers.

POST OFFICE.

New sidewalk of plank was laid along street line. The outside of walls and
the woodwork of building were repainted or reoiled ; the plastering was repaired
and the ceilings kalsomingd. A new urinal, ventilated, was put in first floor ; a
man-hole and ladder were provided in roof; the porch; was lowered and repairs
were made to the plumbing, locks, lock boxes, &c.

Work done under the supervision of F. X. T. Berlinguet, resident engineer,
Three Rivers.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.
AMHERSTBURG.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new 6-inch tile drain, 100 feet long, was carried from the building to sewer.
The brickwork of furnace was altered, and a new flue built.
Work superintended by John Cowan, of this department.

ALMONTE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
A door check sprihg was placed on entrance.

ARNPRIOR.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The construction of this building, which was described in my last report, is in
progress. Plans and specifications for a hot water heating apparatus and for post
office fittings are prepared. :

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

Contractors, Messrs. Fortin & Fortin, Pembroke, Ont.

Clerk of works, H. Miranda, Arnprior, Ont.

BARRIE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Minor alterations and repairs were made to the heating system.
Work superintended by John Cowan, of the departmental staff, Ottawa.
14
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BELLEVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Lock boxes were repaired.
BERLIN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repairs were made to the water tank and letter receiver.
BROCKVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The floor and inside woodwork were painted; ladders for roof clearing anil
iron guards on hot water risers in post office lobby were supplied. Outside walls
were painted and minor repairs made. The galvanized iron covering of deck
roof was renewed and a quantity of floor il cloth and carpet supplied.

CHATHAM.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Alterations were made to the brickwork and smoke pipe of furnace; some
new cleaning doors made and some hose supplied.

GALT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The brickwork of hot water heating furnace was altered; the walls and ceil-
ings were kalsomined and the woodwork painted.

GANANOQUE.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Repairs were made to the heating furnace, under the supervision of J. Cowan,
of this department.

GUELPH.

The brickwork of hot water furnace was altered and a new sweep-door and a
new damper provided. .
Work done under the supervision of this department.

HAMILTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING,

Repairs were made to the roofs of the main building and the examining ware-
house as well as to the plastering of the customs offices. Alterations were made
in the passage to some of the w.c’s to render them private.

15
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The external woodwork throughout the building, the rear stairs and floor of
customs and urinal rooms were painted and halls, corridors, long rooms and
offices of the customs and inland revenue departments were kalsomined. A new
floor was laid in post office vestibule; a telephone cabinet was erected in post
office. The plastering and cornices were repaired throughout. The caretaker’s
sink was renovated and altered, and foul air extract flues put in basement w.c.’s.
New grate bars were supplied to furnace; new fittings, furniture and linoleum to
several offices, and the yard and alleyway gravelled.

INGERSOLL, ONT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

On 6th August, 1897, a site was acquired on the S.W. side of Thames street
and N. of King street, being the corner of Thames and Charles streets, measuring
102 feet 2 in. by, 60 feet, and plans are prepared for a building proposed to be
erected thereon.

The building is to consist of a main building 56 feet by 38 feet, two storeys,
basement and mansard with a tower 15 feet square on street corner, and a one
storey annex in rear 26 feet by 29 feet. The outside walls are to be brick on a
stone basement with wooden mansard. The basement of the main building is to
be for furnace room, fuel room and stores; the ground floor main building is to be
for the post office, and the annex for the weights and measures, examining ware-
house and closets. The first floor is for custems and inland revenue, and the
attic for caretaker’s quarters.

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

KINGSTON.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

A pair of new wooden gates for the yard; a new hot water boiler and bath,
also a step-ladder were supplied.

A new hot water heating apparatus was put in, the original steam boiler,
steam radiators, &c., being utilized in the new work.

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

Work done under the supervision of Arthur Ellis, architect, Kingston, Ont.

Contractors for heating apparatus, Purdy, Mansell & Mashinter, Toronto,
Ont.

POST OFFICE.

The street letter boxes were painted:
Work superintended by Arthur Ellis, architect, Kingston, Ont.

DRILL HALL.

Plans are being prepared for this building which is to be situated on Montreal
street adjoining the public school grounds.

16
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LONDON.
CUSTOM HOUSE.
The plaster ceiling of the basement was renewed and replaced by a metal
ceiling; the roadway was paved, and some minor repairs effected.
Work superintended by H. C. McBride, architect, London, Ont.
POST OFFICE.
Repairs were made to the newspaper bunks, post office stools and electric

bells and some hose was supplied.
Work superintended by H. C. McBride, architect, London, Ont.

LINDSAY.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repairs were made to roof covering, four window shades were supplied, and
a railing placed in part of the general delivery wicket. :

NAPANEE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
Some earth filling of ground and ballasting of foot-paths was done. The

walls and ceilings of the caretaker’s quarters were kalsomined and the woodwork
of same painted. Repairs were made to the water service.

PETROLIA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The water service of the building was connected with the town service.
QRANGEVILLE,
PUBLIC BUILDING.
The post office door and screens were painted.
OTTAWA.
CENTRAL EXPERIMENTAL FARM.

New floor boarding and fittings were put in the dairy building, and two
closets for ladies’ use fitted up there; a new floor was laid in the horse stable; alter-
ations were made in the residence of Dr. Fletcher, including the removal of the
w.c. and bath from front to rear of first floor. A large quantity of shelving for
storage of books, reports, &c., was supplied ; an addition was made to the
carpenter’s shop, additional fittings were supplied to the poultry house, the
piggery was repaired and new tables were supplied to greenhouse.

17
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Repairs were made to greenhouse. The residence of the horticulturist was
cleaned, tinted, painted and papered.

A contract for the erection of a new laboratcry building was entered into,
and it is now in progress of construction. It is to measure 5o ft. 6 in. by 39 ft.
6 in., and to consist of a stone basement, divided by brick partitions into four
rooms, as well as a stairway and entrance hall and wc.; a ground floor of brick
walls and partitions similarly divided, excepting the w.c.; and wooden attic contain-
ing three rooms. The basement is to have a granolithic floor and the remaining
floors are to be wood. :

Plans are prepared for a hot water heating apparatus.

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this department.

Contractor, John J. Lyons, Ottawa.

EASTERN BLOCK—DEPARTMENTAL BUILDING.

The rooms of the Hon. the Secretary of State were cleaned and painted; the
furniture recovered; blinds supplied as well as a steel filing cabinet.  Pigeon
cases were provided for the Privy Council and Auditor General; shelving for the
Indian Department and Auditor General; double windows for the Privy Council
and Auditor General; furniture for the Indian Department; new linoleum for the
Auditor General, and a new w.c. was fitted up for the Indian Department. General
repairs and cleaning were done to various offices.

The steam pipes in connection with the new boilers were covered with as-
bestos-magnesia pipe covering. New rubber hose was supplied for the outside
hose cart and linen fire hose throughout building inside. Gas fitting was done
and fixtures supplied to a number of rooms and offices of the Indian Affairs.
Electric bell-hanging was done for Departments of Indian Affairs, Secretary of
State and Justice. ‘

Telephone wiring and repairs were done for the Secretary’s office, Department
of Indian Affairs, and for the Commissioner of Dominion Police. A new wash
basin and new w.c., with ceiling ventilation, were placed in the attic for the use of
the Department of Indian Affairs.

The entire building is being wired for electric lighting.

An electric triplex double action power pump, having a capacity of 750 gal-
lons per minute, was connected to the 8-inch water service pipe and to the hydrant
system of the building.

Contractors for electric pump and electric wiring, Messrs. Ahearn & Soper.

All the other work done by departmental staff.

Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.

Clerk of works, F. Breton.

GEOLOGICAL MUSEUM.

The Baskerville building, adjoining the Museum, was leased for museum
and office purposes, and was cleaned, repaired and fitted up with partitions, shelv-
ing, tables, trays, drawers, trestles, office furniture, stoves, &c. New doorways
were made and a verandah added.

A new overflow waste was taken from attic tank to drain. The rented annex
was piped for gas and furnished with fixtures and globes.

Work done by the departmental staff.

Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.

Clerk of works, F. Breton.
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GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

At the Hall the porches and stairs to chapel and basement were removed and
a new entrance hall, of wood, 30 it. by 13 ft. and 12 ft. in height, was built. A
doorway was broken through brick wall and fitted with double glazed doors;
stairways were provided to chapel, to ground floor and to furnace room of chapel.
The cut stone stair at private entrance was taken down, renovated and rebuilt.
The felt and gravel roofs of studio and housekeeper’'s wing were renovated. The
new roof of the conservatory and that of the new entrance hall were covered with
galvanized iron and the roof of the glass verandah with shingles. A part of the
greenhouse roof was renewed. New hardwood floors were laid in kitchen, scul-
lery, pastry room, passage to larder and basement passage from kitchen steps to
corridor. Flooring was renovated in servants’ hall, still room, foot of basement
stairs, stovehouse, greenhouse, pit and potting shed. New treads were put in
basement stairs, back entrance stair and kitchen stair. The woodwork of green-
houses throughout was extensively renovated, and a large quantity of shelving,
plant tables, staging, potting tables, &c., provided. The brick wall of the boiler
room at greenhouse was rebuilt. The rain water down pipes at the front were
taken down and replaced by new. The woodwork of sinks in pantry, still room
and men’s mess room was removed and new frames and tops put in, and various
renewals of lining, flashing, connections and traps were made. Alterations were
made to stovehouse heating, to water pipes fittings, &c., and new gas pipes were
put in to new entrance hall and cloak rooms. The brick wall of greenhouse
boiler-room was taken down dnd rebuilt, and repairs were made to brickwork of
hearths, smokejack, furnace setting, conservatory walls, &c., and some of the
stonework and roof flashings were pointed. Some minor renewals were made to
the plastering. The galvanized iron roofs, flashings, and conductors were re-
paired. The glazing of greenhouses, vinery, &c., was largely renewed,.and the
putty of the greenhouse glazing renewed throughout. The verandahs, tennis
court, principal stairs, shutters and all the greenhouses, conservatories, stovehouse
and vinery were painted, the hardwood floors were oiled, and the major portion of
the plastering distempered. '

The movable cloak room usually put up in front of the house, for entertain-
ments, was altered to suit erection at side of new entrance, and the ground was
graded and trees cut down to make site suitable.

The hoist was strengthened and repaired; an inside porch to kitchen was
built, trestles, waiter trays, refreshment tables, window screens, packing cases, step-
ladders, &c., &c., were made from time to time; repairs were made to furniture;
curtains and carpets and additions made to the kitchen utensils, crockery and
glassware.

At the cottage a new kitchen sink and a new cistern were put in; a new floor
was laid in kitchen and new tops put on kitchen table and sink table, and a part
of the roof was reshingled.

The roof of coal shed at stables, ice-house, laundry shed and lumber shed
was reshingled. .

A stair of three flights with landings was built from the skating rink to the
toboggan slide; a new toboggan track was put in and parts of the framing of the
slide were renovated or repaired. )

The old store building, between ice-house and stables, was demolished and a
new store 36 feet by 26 feet by 16 feet high, in two storeys of wood, was con-
structed. The planking of Hall court yard was taken up and replaced by new.
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The mouth of drain at Ottawa river was extended 190 yards to below low
water mark and a pier built over the mouth for protection. Several choked
drains were opened and cleaned and some repairs made to branch drains.

A new sidewalk and crossings were put in to replace a large quantity of old
which had been taken up and the old sidewalk and crossing repaired. Some
fencing was demolished and rebuilt, some gates were supplied and the greater
part of the fences repaired, straightened and otherwise improved. Some of the
fencing and gates were painted. )

The grounds, gardens, lawns and plant houses were maintained efficiently by
the contractors.

The usual periodical cleaning and the packing and unpacking were done;
arrangements for and attendance on entertainments were furnished and the rinks,
slides, &c., &c., kept in order. ' 3

Work carried out and maintained under the supervision of this department
by the departmental staff.

Clerk of works, Wm. M. Hutchison.

Contractors for the maintenance of the grounds, lawns and conservatories,
Sorley & Sims, Ottawa.

Contractor for the removal of snow, Thos. Whelan, Ottawa.

GOVERNMENT PRINTING BUREAU.

The roof covering was painted with cement paint; the stationery room and
passages were cleaned, tinted and painted; partitions were put up in the stationery
room and some new furniture and carpets supplied.

The piping of the water supply and the waste pipes of the front of the build-
ing being choked with rust and organic matter, moreover being too small, were
taken out and replaced by others of larger size and galvanized. A large part of
the steam heating coils had to be renewed. Three broken urinals were replaced
by new ones and a quantity of new hose was provided.

Work done by the departmental staff.

Mechanical ‘engineer, Wm. King.

Clerk of works, F. Breton.

LANGEVIN BLOCK.

Plastered partitions on metallic lathing were provided for the Interior De-
partment and the Agriculture Department, and glazed partitions for the Agri-
culture Department. The office of the Hon. the Postmaster General and that of
his deputy were carpeted, curtained and furnished with chairs, desks, filing cabi-
nets, &c. A large quantity off wooden shelving was put in for the Interior De-
partment; some iron shelving covered with leather for the Archives Branch of
the Agriculture, and some steel shelves in Post Office Department vault. The
models of the Patent Branch of the Agriculture Department were removed to the
Slater Block, Sparks street. A mail room was fitted up in the Agriculture De-
partment with all the necessary letter boxes, cupboards, counter, pigeon-holes, &c.
For the Interior Department various rooms were cleaned, tinted, painted; altera-
tions were made to cupboards, shelving, bookcase, &c.; offices were fitted up and
furnished, and a large number of double windows was provided.

A great many new wash basins were put in the Department of Interior, the
Post Office Department and the Department of Agriculture, many new gas
jets were put in the Department of Interior, the Post Office Department and the
Department of Agriculture. The hot water heating coils on the attic floor were
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altered and added to suit the alteration in arrangement of the offices, and some
changes and repairs made to furnaces and apparatus throughout. The freight
elevator was overhauled. The basement was cleaned and kalsomined throughout;
the furnaces, piping and elevator-plant were painted.

The entire building is being wired for electric lighting. .

An electric triplex double action power pump, having a capacity of 750 gai-
lons per minute, was connected to the 5-inch water service pipe and to the hydrant
service of the building.

Contractors for pump and electric wiring, Messrs. Ahearn & Soper, Ottawa.

All the remaining works done by the departmental staff.

Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.

Clerk of works, F. Breton.

MAJOR’S HILL PARK.

Repairs were made to the greenhouse; the roadways and foot-paths were put -
in order, and the grounds were maintained efficiently by the contractor.
Contractor for maintenance of grounds, Thos. E. Davis.

MILITIA STORE BUILDING, RIDEAU CANAL LOCKS.

A w.c. and a sink complete with all water and waste connections were put in
for the caretaker.
Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.

PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

Cleaning, tinting, painting and papering were done in the Speaker’s apart-
ments of both Houses as well as in the dining rooms, restaurant, passages, kit-
chen, bath rooms; w.c., &c., &c., of the Senate and the Commons side. A new
stair was built to connect the Senate Speaker’s ante-room with! his dining room;
new partitions were put up in the Commons Speaker’s apartments ; a new bath and
w.c. were put in for the Speaker of the Commons ; the desks and chairs of both
chambers were cleaned and shellacked; some floors and passages were painted,
carpets beaten, furniture and fittings repaired and some shelving supplied.

Alterations of, and additions to the steam heating surface were made in the
apartments of the Speaker of the House, Black Rod and the Senate housekeeper.
Gas fitting was done and fixtures supplied to several rooms; some electric lights
were installed in the stationery vaults of the House of Commons, in the Senate
Speaker’s quarters and in the vaults of the Library. A bath and w . with neces-
;:;ry connections and drainage were put in the apartments of the Speaker of the

ouse.

An electric triplex double action power pump, having a capacity of 750 gal-
* lons per minute with motor, &c., was connected to the 8-inch water service suppiy
and to the system of hydrant pipes of the building. In addition to the existing
hydrant system about 500 feet each of 4-inch and 3-inch pipe were put in; there
are now 33 hose valve connections with hose racks, play pipes and about 2,6cc
feet of linen hose. For the outside of the building, two hose reels and 400 feet of
rubber hose are provided.

The' entire building is being wired for electric lighting.

o Contractors for supply of pump and electric wiring, Messrs. Ahearn & Soper,
ttawa.

21

-



62 Victoria. - Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1399

All other works done by departmental staff.
Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.
Clerk of works, F. Breton.

PARLIAMENT GROUNDS.

The summer house and lawn seats were painted, and greenhouse, lover’s
walk, roadways, summer house, lawn seats, &c., were repaired.

The eastern greenhouse building being unsuitable is to be removed and a
new greenhouse built on the same site. The new building is to be 120 feet long
by 24 feet wide, the side walls of brick on a stone foundation, the floor concrete,
the roof framed in wood and having wooden tables on iron supports. In the
construction of the hot water heating apparatus it is intended to utilize the ma-
terial of the original apparatus so far as it will go.

The failure of the city water service to the buildings to meet the wants of the
firemen during the destruction of the western block roof, resulted in the laying of
a 12-inch special main from Sparks street through Metcalfe street to the north
side of Wellington street where it divides into two branches of 8-inch going east
and west, one branch entering the grounds east of the western block and passing
up to the Parliament building, through which it passes joining the remaining
branch which enters near the eastern gateway and reached the Parliament build-
ing after having passed around and to the eastward of the eastern block, forming
a loop of 8inch pipe from which 8-inch branches are taken off to the fire pumps
in the Parliament building, the eastern and western block.

The Parliament building, eastern block, western block, and the Langevin
block have each an electric triplex double action power pump with dynamo and a
guaranteed capacity of 750 gallons per minute. The inlet is connected to the ser-
vice pipe from the street and the discharge to the hydrant pipes of the building;
that in the Langevin block being also connected to the discharge of the elevator
system to the tanks in attic.

The snow was removed.
Contractor for the maintenance of the grounds, J. N. Grieves, Ottawa.
Contractor for the removal of snow, Anthony Butler, Ottawa.

REPAIRING STREETS, &C.

Limestone was quarried on the canal reserve, broken, spread on Wellington,
Canal and Maria streets and covered with coal cinder. The space under Dufferin
bridge between the roadway. and pier was levelled up with earth. The rubbish

brought from the western block was used to construct a road from St. Patrick
* street to the Nepean Point gate, and new crossings made on Maria and Canal
streets.

Repairs were made to the coal shed and to the sidewalks and crossings of
Wellington street, Cartier Square, St. Patrick street, and those at the museums.
Scraping, ¢leaning and repairs were made to roadway of east and west Canal
streets, those on both sides of locks, Nepean Point roadway, Wellington street,
Bank street and Maria street. Rubbish and scrapings were removed from the
east block, west block, the workshops, Printing Bureau, the museums, and the
various streets to Nepean Point; the grass at the Geological Museum and Cartier
Square was kept clipped and the ashes removed from the old pump house, the
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Langevin block, museums and Printing Bureau; the various roadways, sidewalks,
foot-paths, roofs and yards were kept clear of snow during the winter.

Work done by the departmental staff.

C. Leblanc, foreman.

Contractors for the removal of snow, J. Shea and E. Murphy, Ottawa, Ont,

WESTERN BLOCK—DEPARTMENTAL BUILDINGS.

The work of rebuilding the roof, referred to in my last report, has been car-
ried on continuously, and some of the attic offices are expected to be ready for
occupation by the close of this calendar year. As it was decided to restore the
building to its original form, the original outlines are being strictly followed. All
the materials, where possible, are to be non-inflammable, the framing of iron, the
partitions and roof pugging of porous terra cotta, and the doors and frames copper-
covered; the slopes of roof are covered with copper, and the flats with pitch and
gravel.

A brick fire-proof vault was constructed for the Hon. the Minister of Public
Works, and provided with steel shelving. Cleaning, tinting and painting were
done to various rooms in Department of Railways and Canals, and in Department
of Inland Revenue. New furniture and carpets were supplied to Inland Revenue,
Customs, Marine, Trade and Commerce, Railways and Canals, and Public Works
departments.

The electrical testing room of the Inland Revenue and Customs laboratory,
were fitted up.

Gas fitting was done and fixtures furnished to a large number of rooms.
Electric bell connections were made in several rooms. Steam radiators were put
in some of the corridors and offices, and some of the coils were cut and al-
tered. Wash basins and sinks were put in some of the offices, as well as sinks for
the use of the charwomen.

The entire building is being wired for electric lighting. An electric triplex
double acting power pump, having a capacity of 750 gallons per minute, was con-
nected to the 8-inch water service supply, and to the hydrant system of the build-
ing.

Contractors for electric pumps and electric wiring, Messrs. Ahearn & Soper,
Ottawa.

All other works done by departmental staff.

Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.

Clerk of works, F. Breton.

SUPREME AND EXCHEQUER COURT BUILDING.

The rubber-lined fire hose throughout the building having become unservice-
able, was replaced by an equal quantity of linen hose.

The building is being wired for electric light.

Owing to the weight of books in the attic, settlement of some of the walls
took place, necessitating repairs to plastering, painting, &c.

Contractors for electric wiring, Messrs. Ahearn & Soper, Ottawa.

All the remaining work done by departmental staff.

Mechanical engineer, Wm. King.

Clerk of works, F. Breton.
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OTTAWA BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS GENERALLY.

In addition to the works mentioned in connection with the various buildings,
the property of the Government, there are similar works of repair, painting, fur-
nishing, tinting, &c., &c., in connection with a number of rented buildings, as well
as works of a general character, such as the erection and taking down of porches,
the winter boarding of outside steps, the moving of furniture, the putting up and
taking down of summer blinds and winter sashes, the beating of carpets, minor
repairs to glazing, painting, woodwork, furniture, &c., the supplying of packing
cases of which over 800 were made for the various departments during the year,
&ec., &ec.

PORT ARTHUR.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
Repairs were made to the roof and water tank.
PORT HOPE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
A new furnace smoke pipe and some matting were supplied.
PRESCOTT.

POST OFFICE.

Minor repairs were made to the heating furnace under the supervision of J.
Cowan, of this department,

CUSTOM HOUSE.

A new smoke pipe was supplied to furnace.
RAT PORTAGE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

On 10th April, 1894, lots 176 and 177 (Block No. 2) 100 feet square were
acquired as a site, and on 4th July, 1898, a contract was entered ‘into for the con-
struction of the building.

The building is to be brick with stone dressings and on a stone basement.
There is to be a main building 61 ft. 4 in. by 44 ft. 4 in. two storeys, basement and
attic and an angle tower 15 feet square, also a one storey annex, 19 ft. 6 in. by 25
feet. The basement is to be for furnace room, fuel and stores, the ground floor
for the post office and examining warehouse, the first floor (six offices) for the
customs and inland revenue, and the attic—excepting one office in the tower—
for caretaker’s apartments. The walls are to be brick on a stone foundation with
mansard attic covered with shingles and pitch and gravel.

There are to be separate brick vaults for the Post Office, Customs and Inland
Revenue Departments; lavatories with w.c.’s, &c., on ground, first and attic floors.

Plans, &c., prepared by this department.

Contractor, Wm. Grierson.
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ST. CATHARINES.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building was wired for 65 16 c.p. electric lights,

The brickwork of heating furnace was altered, new baffling plates prowded
and some minor changes made in the heating apparatus.

Alterations were made to the gas fitting of the tobacco and petroleum test-
ing machines, and new smoke flues provided for same.

Heating alterations superintended by J. Cowan, of this department.

STRATHROY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.
A new force pump was supplied and connected to the water service.

STRATFORD.

PUBLIC BUILDING.
A check spring was furnished for front door.

ST. THOMAS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The hot water furnaces being worn out, were taken away and replaced by
new Star hot water furnaces, and some changes were made in the piping of the
heating apparatus. Some new stone and gravel walk was laid.

Heating repairs and renewals superintended by John Cowan, of the depart-
mental staff, Ottawa.

TORONTO.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

A check spring was put on the main entrance door; the basement water sup-
ply main was renewed; a new radiator was supplied the chief inspector’s office,
and some general minor repairs were made to the plumbing, heating, &c.

Repairs mainly by mechanical staff in charge of W. J. Smith, engineer.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The express department was rearranged, a new floor laid and new steam coils
and wash basin put in, and some general repairs made and furniture supplied.

Work superintended by S. G. Curry, architect, Toronto.

INLAND REVENUE,

Extensive renewals of and additions to plumbing and drainage as well as

general repairs to the building and heating boiler were effected.

Work superintended by S. G. Curry, architect, Toronto.
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POST OFFICE.

The one storey rear annex roof was temporarily covered with composition
roofing; six new sorting cases were furnished the post office; a new counter put
in the customs parcel office; the receptacles for parcels were enlarged and the
street letter boxes were repainted.

Work superintended by S.-G. Curry, architect, Toronto.
WINDSOR.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A filter for the potable water was supplied.
Repairs to locks, lock boxes, &c., were effected. -

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.
BRANDON.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM.

A quantity of new fencing was put up; the woodwork of superintendent’s
house and boarding house was painted; plumbing was put in superintendent’s
house; drains were laid about the buildings; repairs were made to stables and
usual and ordinary repairs to buildings and fences effected.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

.

The eaves troughs and entrance gates were repaired and minor repairs done
to the painting, glazing and carpentry in various parts of the building.
Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg.

DAUPHIN.

IMMIGRANT SHED.

This building was constructed during April and May, 1898, on a site beside
the railway siding, is a wooden two storey structure 60 ft. by 30 ft. on plan with a
one storey annex in rear 20 ft. by 10 ft. for baggage and fuel. On the ground
floor are the agents’ offices, kitchen, men and women’s dining rooms and the
stairs; on the first floor are dormitories, wash rooms, store and stair. It is heated
by stoves. .

Plans prepared by this department.

Work done by days’ work under the superintendence of D. Smith, clerk of

works, Winnipeg, Man.
ELKHORN.
WASHAKADA INDIAN INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.
This building, which is in course of construction by the Department of In-

dian Affairs, is being carried out from plans partly prepared by this department
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and under its supervision. It is to replace the Indian school at the same locality
destroyed by fire 13th November, 1895. The site is on the Government property,
one-quarter of a mile to the south-west of the town. The work is done by days’
work, thus utilizing the labour of the institution. The heating and ventilation are
being done by contract.

The building is of wood on a stone basement having two brick veneered
storeys and a shingled mansard attic. The plan is cruciform and has a frontage
of 113 feet by a depth of 79 feet, the main portion being 39 feet by 40 feet, the
two side wings 34 feet by 37 feet each, and the rear wing 34 feet by 39 feet. The
basement contains the laundry, boys and girls lavatories, baths and w.c’s, two
brick rain water tanks, tha hot water heating and ventilating apparatus, hot air
pumping engine, coal bins, &c.,, &. On the ground floor are school rooms,
teachers’ rooms, dining room, kitchen, pantry; &c.; on the first floor are dormi-
tories, teachers’ bedrooms, baths and closets, &c., and on the attic floor dormi-
tories, bedrooms and store rooms, &c. The boys dormitories, schoolroom, closets,
baths and stairway occupy one wing throughout, and those of the girls the oppo-
site one. The rooms are heated by hot water coils placed in the rooms. The
schoolrooms, dormitories and w.c’s are connected with a brick foul air extract
shaft through which the smoke pipe of the furnaces passes. The fresh air supply
is passed through hot water coil chambers in basement before admission to the
schoolrooms and dormitories. :

Pland, &c., prepared by this department, and work superintended by D. Smith, -
clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

Contractors for heating and ventilating plant, Plaxton Bros., Winnipeg.

WINNIPEG.

FORT OSBORNE BARRACKS.

A sidewalk was laid in front of the drill hall and grounds on the south side
of Broadway.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.
PORTAGE LA PRAIRIE.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building which was described in previous reports is completed, fitted
and occupied. When the basement of the building was completed the site was
changed and the building was constructed ten feet broader than was originally
planned.

Plan, &c., prepared by this department, and works supervised by D. Smith,
clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man. '

Local clerk of works, John Toye succeeded by John Duncan.

Contractors for building and fittings, Viau & Lachance, Hull, P.Q.

o Contractors for heating apparatus, Purdy, Mansell & Mashinter, Toronto,
nt.

WINNIPEG.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Minor repairs were effected to elegtric bells, glazing, plumbing. &c., and some
new grate bars for boiler as well as some rubber hose supplied. -
Work superintended by D. Smith, Winnipeg, Man.
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"CROWN TIMBER OFFICE.

The vault was fitted up with shelving, cupboards, &c.; a coal bin was put in
the cellar; a hot water coil, burst by frost, wag made good, the boiler repaired,
and some minor repairs made to rain water conductors and glazing.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The sills and joists of rear portion having decayed had to be made good as
well as some of the wall posts and floor.
The roof was reshingled and reflashed.
The gas pipes were altered and extended. Repairs were made to doors,
partitions, furnace, warehouse truck, &c.
" Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

IMMIGRATION HALL,

Four additional w.c.’s with necessary plumbing and woodwork were put in;
some hose was supplied; part of the caretaker’s apartments was whitewashed, and
some repairs were made to lathing, plastering and a hot water heating coil.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

POST OFFICE.

In the post office additional electric bells, blackboards and step-ladders were
provided; some of the sashes were reglazed, and repairs were made to gas pipes,
ironmongery, doors, lock boxes, &c.; a cement floor was put in boiler room and
boiler repaired; in the post office inspector’s office the floors were painted; the
partition glazed with enamelled glass; window ventilators were put in and a
quantity of furniture supplied as well as general minor repairs to woodwork and
painting done; new glazed partitions were put in the Indian office; new cupboards
in the dead letter office, and some furniture was supplied to the Department cof
Public Works office.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

'
NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES.
CALGARY.
COURT HOUSE.
The entire site was inclosed and divided by board, picket and wire fences and
gates; all the woodwork painted.
Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

POST OFFICE.

The site was inclosed by board fences and gates, painted.
Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.
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IMMIGRATION SHED.

Eight closet boxes and new doors were put in and some sidewalk laid.

EDMONTON.

IMMIGRATION SHED.

A brass lined hand pump was supplied.

INDIAN HEAD.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM.

General repairs were effected to buildings, fences, &c.

MOOSOMIN.
COURT HOUSE.

A well was sunk, a hand force pump, supply tank, hydrants, hose, &c., &c.,
for fire service prov1ded a new furnace smoke pipe, some ventilators for cells,
new batteries for electric bells and some door bars were provided.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

REGINA.

COURT HOUSE.

A fire protection apparatus (McRobie’s patent) with all the necessary pipes
and fittings was put up in and connected with the water supply of the building;
some stationery cupboards for the judge and window screens were furnished, and

general repairs were made to heating pipes, plumbing, windows and interior work
generally.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

A new flag-pole was provided and erected; general repairs were made to the

plastering, plumbing, painting and woodwork and the furniture reupholstered,
repaired and varnished.

Work superintended by D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.

POST OFFICE.

Repairs were made to pump, safe and locks, and some stove linings supplied
under the supervision of D. Smith, clerk of works, Winnipeg, Man.
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BRITISH COLUMBIA.
AGASSIZ.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM.

An addition to bull shed was constructed, and general repairs were made to
buildings, fences, &c.

NANAIMO.

" POST OFFICE.

A urinal was put in the basement; a new storm porch was built inside the
post office lobby; screens were put up in the custom-house to keep out the public,
and a partition in the gas inspector’s office was changed to increase the accom-
modation. The roof and the whole of the windows were repaired.

Work superintended by Wm. Henderson, clerk of works, Victoria, B.C.

NEW WESTMINSTER.

DRILL HALL.

The armouries were fitted up with gun racks; a counter and shelving were
put up in the military clothing store ; a detached one storey wooden building,
connected with the hall by a passage, was constructed and fitted up for earth
closets, and a urinal with water connection, from the supply of the building, was
put in.

Work superintended by Wm. Henderson, clerk of works, Victoria, B.C.

POST OFFICE.

All the external woodwork including shingling of roof, the internal walls of
customs lobby and of land offices and the woodwork of inspector of customs and
collector of customs offices, were painted, and the walls of the two last mentioned
papered.

The walls and ceilings of the post office, customs offices, fisheries offices, and
of the halls and lobbies were kalsomined. A wire screen was provided and fitted
up in the money order office, and fittings and furniture were supplied to the in-
spector of customs office. Repairs were made to the tin deck roof, the wooden
sidewalk and the cement surface drain about the building.

Work superintended by Wm. Henderson, clerk of works, Victoria, B.C.

VANCOUVER.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

New steps were put in at the post office entrances; fittings, furniture, &c.,
were supplied to postmaster, deputy postmaster, steamboat inspector and railway
mail clerk. Ventilators were provided in windows of custom-house, and the posi-
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tion of the customs counter was altered. Repairs were made to drains, locks,
hinges, hoist, glazing, plumbing, &c.
Work superintended by Wm. Henderson, clerk of works, Victoria, B.C.

VICTORIA.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

The hearth and fire grates throughout have been relaid and reset, and a new
flag-pole with halyards put up.
Work superintended by Wm. Henderson, clerk of works, Victoria, B.C.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building is being fitted up for occupation.

An electric passenger hoist and an electric freight hoist—the latter for the
mail bags—are being put in. A hot water heating apparatus is also in course of
construction. A contract is entered into for a steel vault in the receiver general’s
branch. Granolithic pavements have been laid about the building on Govern-
ment, Courtney, Humboldt and Wharf streets. The electric light has been in-
stalled throughout the building.

Plans and specifications prepared and work supervised by this department.

Until 1897 work supervised by F. C. Gamble, when he was succeeded by
Wm. Henderson, Victoria, B.C., resident clerk of works.

Contractors for the building, Elford & Smith, Victoria, B.C.

do post office fittings, Weiler Bros.

do savings bank fittings, B. C. Furniture Co., Limited.

do savings bank deposit vault, J. & J. Taylor, Toronto, Ont.
do hoists, John Fenson & Son, Toronto, Ont.

do heating, Jos. Lamarche, Montreal, P.Q.

do paving, B. C. Roofing and Paving Co., Victoria.

do light installation, Geo. C. Hunton & Co., Victoria.

POST OFFICE.

Minor repairs were made to plumbing, gas fitting and roof covering.

WILLIAM’S HEAD.

QUARANTINE STATION.

Two additional brick chimney shafts were erected on the first-class passenger
detention building, and the floors of the main hall and the dining room have been
stajned and varnished.

A lean-to addition was made to laundry building the entire length, divided
into dressing rooms, &c., and the plumbing in the laundry building renewed
throughout. An addition to the disinfecting house was also made. The drains
and sewers throughout the station were repaired, overhauled and made good and
serviceable. The portion between tide marks was renewed and encased in con-
crete. Electric wiring was installed throughout the building and wharf, the cur-
rent to be supplied by the vessels in port. A 10-M. gall. filter was attached to
the water service and a second telephone wire added to the line from Victoria to
the station.

Work superintended by Wm. Henderson, clerk of works, Victoria, B.C.
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DOMINION BUILDINGS GENERALLY.
FUEL.

Tenders were invited by public advertisement for the supply of coal to 151 of
the public buildings, and coal and wood were supplied to over 200 buildings in all.

LIGHTING.

The lighting of the various Dominion buildings is under the control of this
branch of the department. Of these buildings 85 are lighted by gas, 65 by incan-
descent electric light, one by natural gas, and the remainder by coal oil. At
several of the last mentioned, the entrance is illuminated by an arc light outside.

WATER.

The water supply for the various public buildings, excepting the peniten-
tiaries and military buildings, is controlled by this branch of the department ; 125
buildings at 71 localities have water service connected with water supply of the
local waterworks companies, the remainder being in general supplied by wells,
pumps and tanks.

ENGINEERS, FIREMEN, &c.

The various engineers, firemen and caretakers of the buildings, 249 in num-
ber, including employees at Parliament and departmental buildings at Ottawa,
and the heating apparatus of the Dominion public buildings, with the exception of
that of the various penitentiaries and some military buildings, are under the con-
trol of this branch of the department.

GENERALLY.

Repairs and alterations have been executed and sundry articles of furniture,
&c., provided, and cleaning, painting and other improvements carried out in con-
nection with a number of buildings, not herein reported.

D. EWART,

Chief Architect.
Chief Architect’s Office,

Ottawa, 3oth June, 1898.
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PART IV

CHIEF ENGINEERS REPORT

ON

HARBOUR AND RIVER WORKS, INCLUSBIVE OF GRAVING
DOCKS AND DREDGING OPERATIONS. ALSO ROADS,
BRIDGES AND SURVEYS THROUGHOUT
THE DOMINION.
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER

DEerPARTMENT OF PuBLIC WORKS OF CANADA,
CHieF ENGINEER’S OFFICE,
Orrawa, 22nd December, 1898.
E. F. E. Roy, Esq., Secretary,
Department of Public Works.

Sir,—I have the honour to submit my report on the various works under my
charge during the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898,

These works comprise the construction and repair of wharfs, piers, break waters,
dams, weirs, bank and beach protection works; the improvement of harbours and rivers
by dredging ; the construction, maintenance and operation of Government dredging
plant ; the construction and maintenance of graving docks; the construction, mainten-
ance and working of slides and booms; the construction and maintenance of inter-
provincial bridges and approaches thereto, and of bridges on highways of federal
importance in the North-west Territories and the maintenance of military roads ; also
hydrographic and ordinary surveys and examinations, inclusive of precision levelling
and geodetic measurements which are required for the preparation of plans, reports and
estimates, the testing of cements, &c.

I have the honour to he, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LOUIS COSTE,
Chief Engineer.

Y—iv—1%
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WHAREFS, PIERS, BREAKWATERS, BANK AND BEACH PROTECTION
WORKS, DAMS AND OTHER HARBOUR AND
RIVER IMPROVEMENTS.

The following is a list of places by Provinces, where such works were carried on during
the fiscal year 1897-98, showing the nature of the work done :—

NOVA SCOTIA.

Places. Counties. Remarks.
Arisaig...... ... ... ... Antigonish.................... Repairs to pier.
Avon River, . Hants.............. .... ... Filling around pier road bridge at Wind-
sor to prevent further scour.
Bayfield..... ................ Antigonish..... .............. Reconstruction of stone covering of break-
water.
Boularderie (Ross Ferry)...... Vietoria...........ocovvuennn. Road made from wharf to highway.
Broad Cove..........covennn .. Inverness..................... Repairs to wharf.
CowBay......coovveeeune.n. Cape Breton.................. New outer work and heavy repairs to
breakwater.
Cribbins Point................ Antigonish.................... Repairs to pier.
Georgeville. ...... ............ " e e ‘Wharf extension.
Grand Etang... .............. Inverness. ................... Repairs to stone slopes_around pier.
Hantsport .......... ... .. Hants.. ................ Construction of new wharf.
Joggins. ...l Cumberland............., ... Repairs to breakwater (completion of).
Judique.... .......... .. .... Inverness................ ..|Construction of breakwater.
Kelly’s Cove. ................. Yarmouth............... .... nstruction of top of breakwater wharf.
Little Narrows................ Victoria. ........coooovn vnnn. Part reconstruction of and repairs to pile-
wharf,
Mabou... ... il Inverness............ ........ Repairs to channel protection works.
Maitland.... ................. Hants........................ Construction of ferry wharf.
Margaretville................. Annapolis................. .. |Reconstruction of part of gier.
McNair'sCove................ Antigonish.., .... ... ... .. Raising stone slopes of breakwater and
reballasting cribwork.
Meteghan Cove................ Dighy.....cocoiiiiiiii Construction of re-enforcing block of crib-
. work along breakwater.
Morden.....ooveoiiiennan. ... Kings. .. ReYairs to pier and clearing away gravel
along the same. K
North Wallace................ Cumberland .................. Construction of pile ferry slip.
Ogilvie... ....vveeeieneninin. 8. ... Construction of re-enforcing block of crib-
work alongside the breakwater-pier.
Oyster Pond ..... ............ Guysboro’........ ... ........ Beach protection.
Porter’s Lake.......... ...... Halifax......... ... .. .. ... Opening outlet of lake. .
PortHood................... Inverness ................ ... Close-piling outer face of pier and other
repairs.
Port Joli... ............. ... Queens.. ... ... ............ Partial reconstruction of wharf with a view
of extension.
Port L'Heébert......... ...... Queens and Shelburne. . ....... Ren}l‘ov;_xl of rocks from channel leading to
wharf.
Port Lorne.................... Annapolis. . ... ......oo ... Construction of re-enforcing block at outer
end of breakwater and general repairs,
Port Maitland. ............. Yarmouth.... .|Extensive repairs to breakwaters.
Pubnico Head..... .......... " PN Repairs to wharf and construction of new
head block.
Pugwash .......... Cumberiand .{Construction of new wharf.
Summerville Hants........................ Repairs to wharf. .
Halifax.............. ........ Repairs to beach protection works.
Trout Cove........ ighy. ... Extension of breakwater pier.
Wallace . ...... Cumberland........ ....|Construction of ferry wharf.
Whitewater.................. Kings........ . Con;trl}ction of a new block and span
‘ wharf.
Windsor.......... ccooovnennnn Hants............. .... ..... Construction of a training weir of brush
‘ mattresses and cribwork.
Yarmouth Harbour........... Yarmouth.............. : Repairs to Stanwood beach protection

works, including construction of new
groyne.




Department of Public Works.

'PRINCE EDWARD ISL

AND.
Places. Counties. Remarks.

Annandale.................... Kings....... ....coooviiiia Temporary repairs to pier.

Bay View................... ‘Queens ......... ............. Repairs to roadway leading to pier.

Belfast (Halliday’s Wharf). ... v ... . .. ... ......... Addition of new block to pier head.

TAE........  ee.ieiniines .. Prince... . . ..... ... ....... Extension of breakwater.

Higgins’ Shore................ W e e Raising outer portion of pier and general
repairs.

LewisPoint............. ... JKings. L. e L Renewals and repairs to pier.

Miminegash................... Prince ... ................... Repairs to northern breakwater.

‘New London. . . ..  ..... %ueens ....................... General repairs to harbour works,

North Cardigan..... .... ... Kings.. ...l Small repairs to pier.

Rustico......... vov evn... .,ﬁueens ...................... Repairs to breakwater.

Sourig....... ...l Kings................... . |Construction of new head block and other

! works for strengthening breakwater at
. f Knight's Point.

Stephens’ Pier.... ..... .... T Reconstruction of head block of pier, &ec.

Tignish...... .. ............ {Prince..................... ... Extension of breakwater-piers, brush-
work, &c.

West Point...... .. ........ W e e Extension of pier and repairs.

NEW BRUNSWICK.

Buctouche....... ........ ..., Kent ... ................... Light repairs to quay.

Cape Tormentine ...... ...... Westmoreland. . ............ ira to breakwater-pier.

Clifton .........cooovv. ... Gloucester............ . ..... Renewals and repairs to breakwater.,

Dalhounsie..................... Restigouche............ .. .. Repairs to ballast wharf.

Fort Dufferin................ St. John .... ....... et Extension of retaining wall at base of fort.

Berring Cove....... . ..... Albert........................ Repairs to breakwater.

Mizzonette. .... ........ .... Gloucester.................... Construction of new pier head of cribwork.

Partridge Island..... . ......{St. John...................... Cribwork foundation for disinfecting
house, boat slip, &c.

QUACO... ...ieiil iiiiien.. W Repairs to angle fenders and sheathing of
west pier.

River 8t. John and tributaries.|........................ .. Assis::;we given towards construction of
wharfs.

L Boat channels opened through shoals and
bars ; dams built and repaired.

Shediac..... ..o iiiiinn. Westmoreland................ Repairs to angle plating of breakwater.

Shippegan... ................ Gloucsster........ .... ..... Extensive repairs to piers and dams.
Construction of breast works and
groynes and closing of false channels
with stone work, &c.

8t. John Harbour........ .... St.John................ ..... Extension of break on breakwater at Negro
Point, construction of yne and
protection of lighthouse with blocks of
granite. .

Stony Creek.... .. . . ..... |Albert........ P Repairs to groyne built to deflect current.

TwoRivers... .. . ..... ... v iiiiiiieee.. veessass...|Construction of wharf.

Tynemouth ... ............. St. John.............. v.esesr. |Removal of shingle and gravel from
entrance to harbour and small repairs to
west, pier. :

QUEBEC.

Ansed BesuFils ... ......... !Gaspé ......................... Construction of a retaining wall.

Anseaux Gascons..... ....... Bonaventure............... .. |Construction of breakwater.

Baie St. Paul......... ... ... Charlevoix............ ........ Reconstruction of part of npgrowh and
repairs to the shore end of the pier.

Beauport .. ... L. 3uebec ....................... |Extension of eribwork wharf.

loetl. ..o erchéres....... ......... ... Construction of cribwork guard wall.

Berthier (en haut)... ......... Berthier.................. ... Minor repairs to ice piers.

Berthier (en bas)............. Montmagny .................. Repairs to flooring of landing pier.

1C o e Rimouski................. .. General repairs to covering of wharf.

Boucherville ........ .. ... Chambly ....... . e General repairs to landing pier.

Cacouna.............. .. . |Témiscouata ... ............. Extension of wharf.

CapalAigle.......... . .... Charlevoix ................... Thorough repairs to wharf.
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QUEBEC—Concluded.
Places. Counties. Remarks.

Cap Santé .... ..... ..|Portneuf. ........ . .. ......|Removal of boulders along foreshore of
river.

Chicoutimi ..... ............. Chicoutimi. ...... e e Minor repairs to flooring, shed and waiting
room.

CoteauduLac......... ...... Soulanges. ...... .. ... .... Repairs to flooring of wharf.

Coteau Landing...... e W i e Thorough repairs to landing pier.

Gatineau River.. ... ...... .|Ottawa . .. . .. ......... Protection work on east bank.

rgeville ...... ... oL, Stanstead............. .. ... Replanking of outer block.

Grand Pabos....... .......... Gaspé..... ........c0i.ei... Sheathing seaward face and raising outer
end of work.

Isle aux Grues ........ ..... Montmagny ... ............ Renewing part of flooring.

Isle Perrot....... AVaudreul .................... Cox}gtruction of a landing on the north
side,

Isle Verte.... .... .. ....... Témisconata..... ............ Flooring of wharf entirely renewed.

Kamouraska. ................. mouraska.................. General repairs to wharf. .

Lake Megantic . ............. Compton ....... ....... .... Repairs  to wharfs at Piopolis and at

ake Megantic village.

Lake St. John.... ...... . .. Chicoutimi... .. .. ...... .. Addition to wharf aca%oberval. Freight
shed at Mistassini. Construction of
landing block at Riviére a la Pipe, and
construction of a small landing at Ti-
couabé.

Lanoraie ......... ....... ... Berthier ................ . .. Repairs to flooring.

Laprairie..................... Laprairie ... ... ........... Revetment wall of cribwork.

Llslet ...... ................ Lilslet.... . . .............. General repairs to wharf.

Longueuil............. ... ... Chambly.......... e e Minor repairs to roadway.

Lotbiniére ........... ........ Lotbiniere.. ......... ... .... Construetion of isolated block.

Magog .. . ..ol L. tanstead............. . .|Urgent repairs to flooring.

Matane ...................... Rimouski..... ....... ...... Sheathing outer end of pier.

Montmagny ..... ..... Montmagny ... ........ ..... Repairs to waiting-room.

Murray Bay... .... .. Charlevolx ............... .... Sheathing western side and front of west
wing of pier.

Newport.............. ....... Gaspé ...... . . Minor repairs to wharf.

Philipsburg... .... ......... Missisquoi......... Repairs to earth approach to wharf.

Port au Saumon ........ .. ..|Charlevoix... .. |Removal of part of ashoal of boulders.

Port Daniel.......... ........ Bonaventure. .|Levelling up of shore end of pier.

Rimouski....... ..|Rimouski.... Temporary repairs to the top of wharf.

Riviére du Liévre. ..[Ottawa............ Reconstruction of retaining walls..

Riviére Ouelle............ ... Kamouraska.... ...... ...... Renﬁwing sheathing and general repairs to
wharf.

Riviéredu Loup .... .. ..... Témiscouata........... .. ... |General repairs to foundation of railway
track on wharf.

River St. Maurice............. Trois-Riviéres................. Pl:)rchase of materials and placing of

uoys.

Riviéredu Sud................ Montmagny ..... .. ........ Repairs to retaining walls.

St. Anicet......... . e Huntingdon ............ ..... Addition of a wing to old wharf.

Ste. Anne de la Pocatiére... ... Kamouraska ................. Renewing flooring. .

Ste. Anne du Saguenay.. .... |Chicoutimi .......... ........ Erecting platforms between piers.

Ste. Anne de Sorel........ ... Richelieu..................... Construction of three new piers.

Ste. Agathe des Monts .... ..|\Terrebonne.... ......... .....|[Improvementsto channel of river.

Ste. Croix........... Ceeee .{Lotbiniére........ e Removal of boulders.

Ste. Famille.. ............... Montmorency ......... ...... Fllli.lllg with cribwork spaces between
cribs.

Ste. Irenée................ _...|Charlevoix......... .. ..s....|Extension to wharf.

St. Fulgence...... . .. .. ...|Chicoutimi ................... Construction of isolated block.

St. Jean des Chaillons....... Lotbiniére .................... Improvement of channel close to the docks.

8t. Jean (Isle d’Orléans)...... Montmorency................ General repairs to pier. .

St. Valentin ..........o00vnn.. St. Johms. ... ............... Construction of a landing pier.
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ONTARIO.
E
Places. | Counties. Remarks.
Bayfield..............covot ‘Huron (South)................ Reconstruction and repairs to north pier.
Bowmanville.................. Durham (West)............... Pile protection and repairs to east pier.
Burlington Channel........... Wentworth (South) ........... Repairs to piers and automatic gates
placed at bridge.
Cobourg...............co.... Northumberland.............. Repairs to west and east piers.
Collingwood . .....ovenoiiin Simcoe (North)....... .. ..... Repairs and dredging.
Goderich............c.oo.ooutn Huron (West)................. Work of reconstruction on breakwater.
Hilton or Marksville.......... OB . ... Purchase of wharf.
Kincardine.................... Bruce (West).................. Reconstruction of superstructure of north
pier and sheet piling.
LOrignal. .................... Prescott.... .................. mstruction of earth and trestle
approach.
Meaford. ....ooovvvvnnninen Grey (East). .... ............. Pile protection work.
Owen Sound..... ............ o (North).................. redging.
Penetanguishene.............. Simcoe (East.................. Repairs to wharf.
Port Arthur.................. Algomsa ...................... Breakwater repaired.
Port Rowan .................. Norfolk ..... ....cooov vunnn. Repairs to landing pier.
Thornbury.................... Grey (East)... ... ........... Construction of breakwater.
Tobermory. .................. Bruce (North). .. ............. Booms repaired.
Tolsmaville................... Algoma ..... .. ............. Repairs to wharf.
Toronto ...........ccoue u... Toronto City ................. Repairs to breakwater, dredging and con-
struction of groynes.
MANITOBA.
‘Wharfs on Lake Winnipeg ....0.......cooiiiiiiiiiii .. Construction of new wharfs for the accom-

modation of the lake trade.

Columbia River above Golden..
Columbia River Narrows
tween Upper and Lower
Arrow Lakes...............

Duncan River.................
Fraser River

Skeena River......... ..

Stikine River Route to Yukon
District via Glenora, Teslin
Lake and the Rivers Lewes,
Hootalinqua and Yukon.....

Williams Head Quarantine Sta-
tion.. ............. PN

BRITISH COLUMBIA.

Yale District..................

Yale aud Cariboo District.. .. ..

.|New Westminster District.....

Cassiar and Yukon Districts. . .

Victoria District

.|Clearing navigable

Improvement of navigable channel.

Improvement of narrows by dredging, &c.

Removal of rocks.
Removal of s and other obstructions.
Improvement of Shi{; Channel, &c.
i channel of snags, drift
timber, sweepers, &c.

Removal of overhanging trees, snags, &c.
to improve stream for navigatvion by
small steamers.

Removal of points of rock, snags, &c.,
from navigable channel.

Examination and improvement of streams,
lakes, &c., for navigation purposes.

New wharf. Repairs to wharf and im.
provement of water service.
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PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

ARISAIG.

Arisaig, Antigonish county, is on the Northumberland Strait, 15 miles to the east-
ward of Merigomish the nearest harbour.

The works at this place consist of a pier built by the Provincial Government prior
to Confederation, the charge of which was assumed by the Federal Government in 1870 ;
and a breakwater built in 1886-88.

The pier originally consisted of an approach 245 feet in length, and an outer por-
tion 174 feet long varying in width from 40 to 44 feet. Repairs and improvements
have been made from time to time, including the construction, during 1889-91, of an
extension 100 feet in length. The depth at the outer end of the extension, at extreme '
low water, is 10 feet. Spring tides rise 5 feet.

The breakwater is now 300 feet in length and 20 feet in width on top, with an L
at the outer end 40 feet in length. The depth at the outer end, at extreme low water,
is b feet.

In 1896-97, the sum of $1,239.38 was expended in repairing and strengthening the
seaward face of the pier, and in constructing and placing the substructure of a block 24
by 24 feet on the seaward side to strengthen the face works and to secure and retain a
proposed extension of the stone talus.

During the fiscal year 1897-98, the sum of $648.70 was expended in making repairs
to the pier, including the completion of the 24 by 24 feet block, the materials for
which were procured and its substructure placed and ballasted in 1896-97, about 250
cubic yards of large stone were placed on the seaward side, the covering was repaired
and some 20 cubic yards of ballast placed in face-chambers at the outer end of the
breakwater.

AVON RIVER.

This river rises in Avon Lake near the head-waters of the Chester, in Halifax
county and runs N.N.E. through Hants county into Minas Basin. Total length about
30 miles. The town of Windsor is situated at the confluence of the Avon and 8t. Croix.

The Provincial Government of Nova Scotia having represented to the department
that the currents set up by the training weir built by the Dominion Government in the
Avon River at Windsor, in 1896-97, below the public road bridge over this river at the
ypper end of the town, had scoured out a hole along the first pier from the Falmouth
side of the bridge ; this hole was filled with stone in January and February, 1898, at an
expense of $328.58.

BAYFIELD.

Bayfield, Antigonish county, is on the south shore of St. George’s Bay, 8 miles
east from Antigonish harbour, and 15 miles west from the entrance to the Straits of
Qanso. The harbour or road-stead is sheltered, by Pomquet Tsland, lying 1,900 feet to
the eastward of Pomquet Point, and by outlying reefs, from all directions, excepting
between north-east by north and west.

A breakwater 400 feet in length was constructed at Pomquet Point in 1879, and
extended 310 feet in 1888. The work consisted of a crib core 18 feet in average width,
covered with stone sloping on the seaward side three to one, and on the inner side one and
one-half to one. It continued undisturbed until the occurrence of the great gale of 1st
December, 1890, when the stone covering was stripped off nearly to high water level,
to within 160 feet of the inner end.

8



Department of Public Works.

During the years 1892-93, 1893-94 and 1895-96 the breakwater was repaired and
extended. The work done included an extension 70 feet in length with an L or return
at the outer end 40 feet in length.

During the fiscal year 1897-98 the sum of $999.73 was expended in reconstructing
the stone covering of the breakwater in places where it had been disturbed. About
4,000 superficial feet of surface was reconstructed with 263 cubic yards of large stone,
163 cubic yards of which was old stone displaced and 200 cubic yards of new stone
brought one mile to the public wharf, thence by scow a quarter of a mile to the
breakwater.

BOULARDERIE (ROSS FERRY).

Ross Ferry Landing, Victoria county, is on the northern side of Boularderie
Island, 13 miles to the westward of the principal entrance to the Great Bras d'Or Lake.
The public wharf built in 1884-85, a mile and a quarter to the eastward of Ross
Ferry Landing, having fallen out of repair, a new wharf was constructed in 1895-96
and 1896-97 about midway between the old wharf and the ferry landing.

During the fiscal year 1897-98 the sum of $499.97 was expended in constructing a
road from the wharf to the highway, a distance of about 320 feet ; and $25 in repairing
and strengthening the corners of the wharf.

BROAD COVE MARSH.

Broad Cove Marsh, Inverness county, is on the Gulf of St. Lawrence, 12 miles to
the southward of Margaree Harbour.

A wharf, 400 feet in length, constructed in 1888, was seriously damaged in 1893
and 1894, being subsequently carried away to within 207 feet of the inner end. In 1894-95
the inner 207 feet was reconstructed and protected by close fendering.

The reconstructed work was examined on the 17th December, 1897, when it was
found that ballast, for a length of 56 feet, had gone out of the face-chambers on the
seaward side, through openings at the bottom.

During the months of December, 1897, and January, March and April, 1898, the
sum of $199.84 was expended in reballasting the empty face-chambers, raising' the
outer seaward corner one foot 6 inches and in renewing floor stringers and cap timbers.

COW BAY.

Cow Bay, Cape Breton county, is on the eastern coast of Cape Breton Island,
about 18 miles eastward of Sydney harbour. Extensive coal mines in the vicinity
make it a place of considerable importance.

The bay is two and a half miles wide at the mouth and being open to the Atlantic
from the east affords no safe anchorage during gales from that quarter.

Prior to 1867, with some aid from the Government of Nova Scotia, a breakwater
was built on the north side of the bay by Messrs. Archibald & Co., proprietors of the
Gowrie mines.

The breakwater is 1,386 feet in length and was originally about 44 feet in width
and had a depth, at the outer end, at low water, of 17 feet. The area of the basin
enclosed between it and the loading pier of the Gowrie mines is about 17 acres, 10
acres of which had originally a depth of from 9 to 17 feet at low water. Spring tides
rise § feet.

In 1873, while repairs undertaken by the department were in progress the break-
water was seriously damaged by the great gale of the 24th of August. After the gale,
operations were resumed, the balance of the amount appropriated being largely supple-
mented by Messrs. Archibald & Co.

In 1874, Messrs. Archibald & Co.’s interest in the breakwater was acquired by the
Dominion Government, and a contract entered into in May, 1876, for repairing and
strengthening it ; the structure was completed in July, 1877.

9
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Extensive repairs have been made nearly every year since 1877 and the work has

been strengthened by the addition of counterforts, or outer face works, and by close

iling.

P The breakwater, prior to the gales of the 3rd and 8th February, 1895, consisted of
an inner work extending from within 220 feet of the shore end to the outer end, and
of counterforts with connecting outer face works, from within 580 feet of the shore end
to within 56 feet of the outer end. The outer and inner works are about 22 feet apart
and were connected by tie walls. The spaces between them were filled with earth and
stone ballast.

During the gales referred to, a breach was made through the breakwater near the
outer end and 140 feet of the outer face work (including 70 feet recently reconstructed)
destroyed, and the work opposite to it was carried away, down to below low water ; about
25 feet of the outer work between the two outer counterforts was also destroyed ;
ballast was washed out in several places and some close piling was carried away.

During the year 1895-96 the sum of $3,999.87 was expended in urgent repairs and
reconstruction ; close piling and reballasting portions of the outer face works ; placing
concrete in face-chambers ; reballasting, and renewing the covering of the two outer
counterforts ; slight repairs to the inner counterfort; renewing the covering of three
tie walls between outer and inner face work and in cutting away loose timbers at the
ends of the outer and inner face works next the breach.

In October, 1896, the outer portion, which withstood the gales of February, 1895,
was carried away and the seaward face, from 1,128 feet from the inner end inwards,
was badly damaged.

During the fiscal year 1897-98, $9,988.40 of the amount appropriated ($10,000)
was expended in making urgent repairs on the breakwater.

The repairs effected include : placing concrete in face chambers and reballasting
105 feet of narrow outer work (201 to 306 feet from inmer end); constructing new
outer work 137 feet in length (445 to 582 feet from inner end) and 15 feet in width,
with concrete in face-chambers and outer face close piled; reconstructing 64 feet of
central work (462 to 526 feet from the inner end); slight repairs to the inner counter-
fort ; placing concrete in face-chambers and reballasting 100 feet of outer works (600
to 700 feet from inner end); placing concrete in face chambers and reballasting and
close piling the central block ; finally, bulk heading and filling with concrete and ballast.
the outer ends of central and inner works at 1,128 feet from the inner end.

The amount available for the year 1898-99 will be applied in completing
urgent repairs to the outer works, including the reconstruction of about 130 feet of
outer face works between the two outer counterforts.

CRIBBIN’S POINT.

Cribbin’s Point, Antigonish county, is on the west side of St. George’s Bay, &
miles to the southward of Cape George and five miles to the northward of the entrance
to Antigonish harbour.

The wharf at this place, completed in 1891-92, extends 300 feet in a southerly
direction from the point, and has an approach 195 feet in length. The wharf is 20 feet
in width on top for a distance of 120 feet from the inner end and 30 feet for the
remaining 180 feet ; the inner 50 feet being of stone and the outer 250 feet of close-
faced timber work fully ballasted. The depth at extreme low water, at the outer end
of the wharf, originally 11 feet, is now about 9 feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet.

The face timbers having been weakened by the ravages of the  teredo,” the sum
of $3,000 was voted for expenditure during 1896-97 to place a talus of stone on the
seaward side and close pile the outer end with creosoted timber. Of the amount
available $1,552.44 was expended in quarrying and placing stone.

During the fiscal year a sum of $1,446.96 was expended, viz. :—$837.95 in Sep-
tember, 1897, in procuring 80 pieces of creosoted timber for close piling and $609.02 in
driving and securing 63 creosoted piles ; continuing the placing of quarried stone on
the seaward side and reballasting two empty face-chambers at the outer end.



Department of Public Works.

GEORGEVILLE.,

Georgeville, Antigonish county, is on Northumberland Strait, 64 miles south-west
from Cape George.

The wharf at this place, as completed in 1891-92, extended 207 feet. to the line
of 5 ft. 6 in. depth at extreme low water. It is 20 feet in width on top, with an
L 20 by 20 ft.; making the width at the outer end 40 feet. The approdch, 87 feet in
length, is of stone and the remainder of the work of squared timber, close-faced, fully
ballasted and protected by sheathing and fenders.

The sum of $1,800 was made available for expenditure during 1896-97 to con-
struct an extension 44 feet in length with an L 20 by 24 feet. Active operations were
commenced on the 7th of June and were in progress at the close of the fiscal year when
the substructure of the extension was constructed and made ready for launching, with
the exception of placing fenders and sheathing. The expenditure amounted to $773.84.

During the year 1897-98, the extension was completed and slight repairs to
the old work were effected, the total expenditure amounting to $1,782.

The depth at extreme low water at the outer face of the extension is 6 feet 6
inches.

GRAND ETANG.

Grand Etang, Inverness county, is on the Gulf of St. Lawrence, about midway
between the harbours of Margaree and Cheticamp.

‘Works designed to improve the entrance to the pond and make it available for the
use and shelter of fishing boats and small vessels, commenced in 1893-94, were com-
pleted the following year, with the exception of the excavation to low water between the
piers and the removal of a bridge and abutments.

In 1895-96, a pile bridge was constructed within the pond ; the superstructure and
one of the abutments of the old bridge were removed and part of the channel was
excavated to one foot below extreme low water; the following year the channel was
deepened from end to end to 1 ft. 3 in. at extreme low water, or to 4 ft. 6 in. at
extreme high water. '

During the year 1897-98 the sum of $100 was applied in repairing the stone
slope at the back of the pier on the west side of the channel, including the placing of
55 cubic yards of stone in the slope and 12 cubic yards of covering stone.

HANTSPORT.

Hantsport, Hants county, a prosperous. village of about 1,500 people, is situated
on the left or west bank of the Avon River, here a mile and three-quarters wide, about
half way between Windsor, the county town, and the mouth of the river, where it
enters the Basin of Minas. It is also an important station on the Dominion Atlantic
railway, scven miles north-west from Windsor, and fifty-three from Halifax. The
chief business of the place has been, in the past, the building, repairing and cwning of
large wooden sailing vessels. Although this has somewhat declined in late years, it is
still of considerable importance, there being nearly 25,000 tons of shipping owned in the
place. For eight months of the year a steamer runs to St. John, N.B,, and intermediate
ports ; another small steamer runs to Windsor and other ports on the river. There
being no public wharf in the place, the department decided to build, and a contract was
awarded to Messrs. Simmons & Burpee, of Fredericton, on the 16th June, 1897, for the
consyruction for the sum of $5,947. According to contract the work was to have been
finished at the end of the fiscal year 1897-98, but, owing to unforeseen difficulties in pro-
curing materials this could not be accomplished. It is a substantial structure of stone
filled cribwork, about 200 feet long, 32 feet wide, with an outer face 64 feet long; at
the outer end it is 26 feet high. At high water there is a depth of 23 feet along the
outer face. The tides rise nearly 40 feet so that at low water there is no water near

11 .



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899

the wharf. At the close of the year 1897-98 the total expenditure was $2,784.50
and the work was not expected to be completed before the 1st of October, 1898.

JOGGINS,

“The Joggins,” Cumberland county, is a small settlement of some three to four
- hundred people, situated on the south-east side of Chignecto channel, the northern arm
of the Bay of Fundy. It is about ten miles from the head of Cumberland Basin, and
fourteen miles from Maccan station on the I. C. railway with which it is connected by
the Joggins Railway built in 1889. About a mile to the east is situated the colliery of
the Joggins Railway & Coal Company; the coal being brought down to the loading
pier by means of a wire rope tramway. A breakwater, which protects the company’s
loading pier, was built over twenty years ago by the Joggins Coal company. In the
year 1875 the department extended the head of the hreakwater a distance of 120 feet ;
making its present total length 280 feet. In 1890 and 1891 it was repaired by the
department at a cost of $2,200 and $1,000 respectively. In the year 1896-97
the sum of $1,500 was expended in extensive repairs and renewals, and during the
year 1897-98 the sum of $399.28 was expended in completing the repairs. The floor,
with stringers and guard timbers, was renewed for a length of 207 feet, 40 feet in length
of the outer end was close sheathed and four new mooring posts were placed in position.
This breakwater is now in excellent condition.

JUDIQUE.

Judique, Inverness county, is on the east side of St. George’s Bay, 10 miles south
from Port Hood and 16 miles north from the entrance to the Strait of Canso.

A contract was entered into in April, 1898, for the construction of a breakwater at
McKay’s Point, near the entrance to Judique Pond, for the sum of $14,143. The work
under contract is to be 725 feet in length and 20 feet in width on top, with an L at the
outer end, 20 feet long of open faced cribwork fully ballasted, close fendered at the
outer end and protected on the north side by a talus of stone ; the substructure to be of
creosoted North Carolina or Virginia short leaf pine, and the superstructure of native
timber. The depth at the outer end at extreme low water will be 6 feet 3 inches.
Spring tides rise 4 feet 6 inches.

Up to the close of the year the contractors were engaged in procuring materials
and in preparing for construction.

Total expenditure in 1897-98, $181.

KELLY'S COVE.

About two and one half miles south of the centre of the present town of Yarmouth
lies Kelly's Cove. Fifty to a hundred years ago Kelly’s Cove was the harbour of the
place and round its shores was all that constituted the town. At the present date it is
merely a shelter for about a dozen fishing boats and there are but few houses in its
immediate vicinity.

Spring tides rise 16 feet and neaps 13 feet.

The present wharf, which is the only one left, was built before Confederation by
the Provincial Government ; the structure is old and a good deal decayed though the
bottom timbers are still fairly good. It is 97 feet long, 23} feet wide, and 15} feet high
at the outer end, where at high water of ordinary spring tides there is about 12 feet of
water. The work is of ordinary round log, stone filled cribwork and not floored. Im-
mediately to the south-west of the wharf stands a piece of cribwork, built to protect the
beach, 118 feet long, 4 feet high and about 8 feet wide and of which the 30 feet next
to the wharf has been destroyed by the waves,

During the year ended 30th June, 1898, the sum of $299.72 was expended in
partially rebuilding the top of the breakwater.wharf and the renewal and repair of 100
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feet in length of the beach protection work adjoining the wharf. This wharf is but
little used and is of minor importance.

LITTLE NARROWS,

Little Narrows, Victoria county, is a coutraction of the St. Patrick’s channel of
the Great Bras d’Or Lake at a point seven miles to the eastward of the village of Why-
cocomagh.

The public wharf was built in 1897-98 on the south side of the narrows ; it consists
of a shore block 474 feet in length, 20 feet in width, and a pile extension 82 feet in
length with a return 40 feet by 20 feet at the outer end where a depth of 14 feet is
available. The level of the lake is nearly constant,.

The wharf is used by one of the steamers of the Bras d’'Or Steam Navigation com-
pany plying between Little Bras d’Or, Baddeck and Whycocomagh, and is a place of
shipment for cattle and farm produce.

In August and September, 1897, a sum of $499.65 was applied in partly recon-
structing and repairing the pile wharf and in renewing the piles of three out of five
bents of the approach and repairing the covering of the same.

MABOU.

Mabou Harbour, Inverness county, is on the west coast of Cape Breton Island,
six miles north-east from Port Hood.

The entrance was formerly at the southern extremity of a range of sand hills and
by an intricate channel obstructed by a bar, over which there was a depth of only 4 feet
at low water.

In 1870 a survey was made and a report submitted on the project of opening a
channel through the sand-hills at their northern extremity.

The work was commenced in 1872. A pier on the south side of the new channel
was completed in 1876, and the same year the old channel was closed. Expenditures
were made nearly every year from 1876 to 1894, in repairs to the pier, the construction
of brush and stone works on the south side and of protection works on the north side
of the channel and in dredging.

During the year 1897-98 the sum of $1,999.96, was expended in repairing the
protection works on the north side and in raising the brush and stone work on the
south side of the channel.

The minimum depth at extreme low water in the new channel is 8 feet 3 inches.
Spring tides rise. 4 feet.

MAITLAND.

The village of Maitland, Hants county, with a population of about 1,500 is situated
on the west side of the mouth of the Shubenacadie River, which enters Cobequid Bay at
the south side. The Bay is the eastern extension of the Basin of Minas, a large and
important estuary of the Bay of Fundy. A public wharf was built by the department
between 1873 and 1876 at a cost of $6,342. Communication with Truro, the county
town of Colchester county, is by public road, but the Shubenacadie River, at this point
over half a mile wide, must first be crossed by means of a ferry available the year round
except for the few winter months. On the Hants county side the ferry boat has always
landed on the beach and, at low water, considerable trouble is experienced in getting
passengers and teams to and from the ferry boat. ’

To facilitate the crossing of the river the department expended during the
year 1897-98 the sum of $996.76 in conatructing a ferry wharf of cribwork, 170 feet
long and 20 feet wide. The work ie partially an extension and reconstruction of an
old private wharf but its location at the foot of a public stréet makes it entirely a
public work. 13
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MARGARETVILLE.

Margaretville, Annapolis county, is the largest and most important village on the
south coast of the Bay of Fundy from Digby Gut to Scott’s Bay. Itis 42 miles from
the former, 36 from the latter, and 8 miles north from Middleton, which is an impor-
tant station and junction of the Dominion Atlantic railway. The village has a popu-
lation of about 500 people engaged in fishing, farming and to a small extent in lumber-
ing operations and general trade. In March, 1897, the departinent awarded a contract
for the reconstruction of the outer 185 feet in length of the work that was totally
destroyed by gales in October, 1890 and March, 1894. Awount of contract, $10,854.
During the year ended 30th June, 1898, the work was completed, the total
expenditure amounting to $6,474.20. The new block is 185 feet long, 42 feet wide and
from 22 to 32 feet high. It is well and substantially built of stone filled cribwork of
the usual type. The pier has now a total length of 425 feet and reaches a depth of 28
feet at high water ordinary spring tides, which rise about 30 feet.

The work being high and dry at low water for most of its length, it receives very
little injury by worms but its exposed position on a straight open coast subjecis it to
the onslaught of heavy seas from N.W. to N.E.

MCNAIR’S COVE.

McNair’s Cove, Antigonish county, is on the west side of St. George’s Bay, two miles
south of Cape George.

A breakwater, 400 feet in length was built on the north side of the cove in 1872-73.
Repairs were effected from time to time up to 1887-88, when the work was constructed
over a distance of 160 feet from the outer end. During the years 1890-94 the outer
end of the work reconstructed in 1887-88, was protected by close piling with creosoted
timber, and its seaward face by a talus of quarried stone. In 1896-97 a small amount
was expended in raising the talus that had settled. '

During the year 1897-98, the sum of $499.80 was expended in raising the
talus on the seaward side of the work reconstructed in 1887-88, which had again settled
in places, and in reballasting face-chambers on the seaward side where the ballast had
gone out through damaged face-works; and $199.56 in procuring materials to be used
in repairing the seaward face of the work recunstructed in 1887-88.

The depth at extreme low water along the inner face of the work reconstructed in
1887-88 varies from 13 feet at its outer to 7 feet at its inner end. Spring tides rise
4 feet.

METEGHAN COVE.

Meteghan Cove, Digby county, is situated on the south-east side of St. Mary’s Bay,
25 miles north of Yarmouth, 20 miles south of Weymouth, 3 miles from Meteghan
River and 40 miles from Digby, the county town. The nearest railway station on the
Dominion Atlantic railway, which runs approximately parallel to the coast and has its
terminus at Yarmouth, is about seven miles distant. Ordinary springs rise about 21
feet and neaps 18 feet. The whole coast of St. Mary’s Bay from Digby to Yarmouth is
thickly settled and is, in fact, almost one continuous straggling village the distance of
65 miles. Meteghan, next to Digby and Weymouth, is the largest and most imiportant
settlement on the Bay shore, having a population of about 1,000 people engaged in
farming, fishing, lumbering and general trade. The works at this place consist of a
breakwater and a landing pier, both of cribwork, built from 40 to 50 years ago by the
Provincial Government and the inhabitants. The pier is about 300 feet long by 20 feet
wide, the breakwater 20 to 26 feet wide runs out for a distance of 925 feet: from the
shore and has a return of 85 feet at the outer end, which is 24 feet wide and 30 feet
high ; standing in from 20 to 21 feet depth at low water ordinary spring tides.

Since 1875, at which date the harbour works appear to have been taken over by
the department, they have been many times extended and repaired. The total expendi-
ture by the department since Confederation is $23,313.
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During the year the sum of $3,141.99 was expended in constructing a
re-enforcing block along the whole length of the outer face of the ell of the main break-
water. This work which was rendered necessary by the eating away of the bottom timbers
by the “limnoria” and the consequent settlement of the breakwater is 100 feet long, 12
feet wide and 22 feet high. The upper portion of the ell was also rebuilt 35 feet wide
and 4 feet high, which restored it to the height of the main work. The new work is
thoroughly well and substantially built of round log cribwork, well fendered, ballasted
and close sheathed on all exterior faces.

The lower portion of the seaward face of the main breakwater to a height of some
12 feet above low water spring tides has been damaged by the “limnoria.” Within the
next few years expenditures of several thousand dollars will be required if this impor-
tant work is to be preserved. Along the inner face of the main breakwater where
vessels lie to load timber, deals, piling, &c., there is a depth of water, at high water
spring tides, of 12 to 16 feet.

MORDEN.

Morden or French Cross, Kings county, population 120, is situated on the south
shore of the Bay of Fundy, 50 miles east of Digby Gut and 9 miles north of Aylesford
station on the Dominion Atlantic railway. Spring tides rise 33 feet, neaps 25 feet.

The breakwater-pier at this place was begun in 1846 at the joint expense of the
inhabitants and the Provincial Government. It is built of round log cribwork filled
with ballast and close sheathed on the seaward side and end. The work is 365 feet in
length and varies in width at top, from 28 feet at shore end to 45 feet at outer end
where it is 26 feet in height. From 1st July, 1867, to 30th June, 1897, the department
expended upon this pier a sum of $8583.45, of which $5,560.06 was for works of
construction and $3,023,39 for renewals and repairs.

During the year 1897-98 the sum of $1,992.75 was applied as follows: (a)
Completing the work, commenced in 1896-97, of closing a gap 121 feet long that was
made through the middle of the pier in February and October, 1895, by violent gales.
(5) Completing some minor repairs to the other portions of the work. (c) Removing,
by hand digging, some of the gravel on the eastern side of the work which at present
obstructs vessels seeking a berth alongside.

NORTH WALLACE.

North Wallace, Cumberland county, situated on the north side of Wallace
harbour, directly opposite the village of Wallace proper, does an extensive farming
business. A public wharf was built by the department between 1888 and 1890 at a
cost of $3,577.79. The length of the wharf is now 345 feet, of which the outer 180
feet, being along the edge of the dredged channel, can be used by small craft for ship-
ping. During the year 1897-98 the sum of $265.88 was expended towards cons-
tructing a pile ferry slip on the west or upper side of the wharf. Owing to unfor-
seen difficulties in procuring materials the work could not be finished previous to the
close of the fiscal year ; at that date, however, all materials had been purchased and
arrangements made for pushing the work to completion.

OGILVIE.

Ogilvie’s Pier, Kings county, is 55 miles east of Digby Gut, between Victoria and
Harbourville, and 11 miles north of Agylesford station on the Dominion Atlantic
Railway. .

Agout 1854 a pier which serves as a breakwater was built here, in a northwest-
erly direction from the Bay of Fundy shore, at the joint expense of the inbabitants
and the Provincial Government. It is 270 feet long, about 35 feet wide on an average,
and about 27 feet high at the outer end which is dry at low water. Springs rise 39
feet and neaps 33 feet.
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No repairs were made to the original structure which became decayed and worm
eaten in a number of places. Hence the pier had to be frequently strengthened and
repaired by the department; the expenditure up to 30th June, 1897, for works of
repair, renewal, &c., amounting to $4,251.63.

During this fiscal year the sum of $1,537.39 was spent in constructing a re-enfore-
ing block on the eastern side of the breakwater which was leaning over and threatening
to fall into the dock. The new block or buttress, 153 feet long, 10 feet wide and
the full height of the work has been well and substantially built of stone filled crib-
work and the breakwater is now in fairly good condition.

OYSTER POND.

Oyster Pond, Guysboro’ county, is one of several large ponds on the north shore of
Chedabucto Bay which form the only boat harbours between Cape Argos on the western
side of the southern entrance to the Strait of Canso and Guysboro’ harbour, a distance
of 15 miles.

In 1876, the entrance to the pond was improved by hand dredging and protected by
the construction, on its eastern side, of a breakwater 180 feet in length ; in 1883-84 the
breakwater was extended 105 feet over a level bottom, dry at low water. The width
of the inner work is 14 and of the extension 16 feet. In 1896-97 the breakwater was
repaired and strengthened.

A contract for the sum of $1,846 was cntered into in February for the construction
of a beach protection work on the west side of the entrance ; operations were com-
menced in June and were in progress at the end of that month, when the estimated
value of works performed was $930.25 and the total expenditure incurred $990.25.

PORTER'S LAKE.

Porter’s Lake is a long and narrow sheet cf water lying nearly north and south
and situated about the middle of Halifax county, or about 15 miles east of the city of
Halifax. It is about 17 miles in length, from a quarter to half a mile in width, and is
navigable for moderate sized vessels to its extreme head.

When in its normnal state the lake stands at a nearly constant level of a few inches
above high water of ordinary neap tides, and discharges directly into the Atlantic
through a beach of gravel and sand from one to two hundred feet wide.

Since 1880 the outlet of the lake has several times been so completely blocked up
by sand and gravel that the water level rose one to two feet, causing the flooding of its
shores, of the public road, the washing out of numerous culverts and small bridges as
well as some damage to the crops on the adjacent low lying lands.

Between 1880 and 1897 the department expended on three or four occasions
small sums in opening the outlet by hand dredging, and in 1897-98 a sum of $100
was applied in doing similar work to afford slight temporary relief to the sufferers from
the flooding of the lake shores.

PORT HOOD.

Port Hood, the shire town of the county of Inverness is on the west coast of Cape
Breton Island, 20 miles north of the northern entrance to the Strait of Causo.

The harbour was formerly a secure one, Smith’s Island, which is two miles in length
and forms its western side, having been connected with the mainland by a range of
sand-hills. In 1839 the sea made a breach through this protection. The opening, at
first narrow, was enlarged by the tidal currents with increasing rapidity until it was
swept entirely away and its site eccupied by 15 feet of water. The harbour is now
unsafe during northerly gales except in a small cove on the east side of Smith’s Island.

The pier, which is on the eastern side of the harbour, was commenced by the Pro-
vincial Government in 1865-66. I¢ was originally 550 feet in length and 24 feet in
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width, with an L at the outer end 100 feet in length and 25 feet in width. It came
under the charge of the Federal Government in 1871, since which time extensive repairs
and renewals have been made, including the construction of a new block, 125 feet by 25
feet at the outer end, in 1873 ; the placing of slopes of heavy stones on each side in
1883-84, the construction of a block 50 by 22 feet at the south end of the L in 1888-89,
and the construction of a block 71 feet by 24 feet at the outer end in 1889-90.

During the year 1897-98 the sum of $400 was expended in close piling 123
feet of outer face over existing close piling, in slight repairs to covering and in replacing
a small quantity of ballast, and $40 in urgent repairs to the covering of the outer end of
the work.

PORT JOLI.

Port Joli is a harbour six miles long, north and south, by a mile wide, situate in the
southern corner of Queens county. Near its head is a scattered settlement with a popu-
lation of about 250 people engaged chiefly in farming and lumbering. Nearly thirty
years ago the Provincial Government built a little wharf consisting of three isolated
blocks of poorly built cribwork from 15 to 20 feet square and about 8 feet high. They
were about 200 feet from high water mark and were of very little use. During the
year 1897-98 the department expended $300 in rebuilding these three blocks with
a view to the subsequent extension of the wharf to the shore. At the face of the outer
block at high water there is about 9 feet of water. Spring tides rise about 7 feet.

PORT L'HEBERT,

Port L’Hébert is a harbour 6 miles long north-west and south-east by about half a
mile wide. Itissituate on the south-east coast of Nova Scotia on the dividing line between
the counties of Queens and Shelburne. At its extreme head on the Queens county sideis a
small private wharf, about 500 feet long, of poorly built pile and cribwork combined.
From this wharf is shipped the output of two saw-mills, situated within a mile, owned
by private parties. The shipments aggregate about a million feet per annum. At the
head of the wharf is a depth of about 16 feet at low water spring tides, but the channel
leading to it being narrow, crooked and obstructed by rocks, vessels have some difficulty
in approaching it. During the year the department expended the sum of $500 in
removing some of the worst rocks from the channel. The work was done by means of
the steam wrecking barge, the  Aid,” owned by private parties in Liverpool.

PORT LORNE.

Port Lorne is a settlement of about 300 people, situated on the Bay of Fundy
coast, Annapolis county, 32 miles from Digby Gut and 6 miles north-west from Para-
dise station on the Dominion Atlantic railway. A breakwater was begun in 1835 at
the joint expense of the inhabitants and the Provincial Government. In 1873 and 1874
the department spent $3,500 in extending it ; in 1879-80 the sum of $745.76 in repairs ;
in 1882-83 the work was again extended at a cost of nearly $5,000, and it has since
been several times repaired. The breakwater-pier proper has now a total length of about
310 feet and is 36 feet wide and 25 feet high at the outer end. In order to divert the
brook, which during freshets tore away the loading berths for vessels on the eastern side
of the pier and threatened to undermine and destroy the breakwater proper, a training
pier of cribwork 110 feet long by 10} feet wide and about 16 feet high, has been
built about 150 feet to the eastward. During the year the sum of $2,999.87 was
expended in constructing a re-enforcing block, on the seaward side of the outer end of
the breakwater, 178 feet long, 27 feet high and 13 feet wide. The top of the outer
block was also rebuilt, levelled up and connected at the same level with the new block.
The rest of the seaward face to the end of the work, as well as the end of the work itself,
was close sheathed. The end break, 4 feet high, was renewed, and new cap timbers
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and mooring posts provided. The shoreward half of the structure was refloored and
other miscellaneous repairs were done. This breakwater is now in first-rate condition.

PORT MAITLAND.

Port Maitland, Yarmouth county, is a prosperous and important fishing and farming
village, with a population of about 400, situated on the south-east side of the mouth of
Bay of Fundy, 12 miles north of the county town of Yarmouth.

Spring tides rise 18 feet and neaps 13 feet.

The harbour works were begun about the year 1859, by the Provincial Government,
they consist of an eastern and a western or main breakwater of cribwork. The former is
400 feet long and some 20 feet wide, and the latter is 500 feet long, 22 to 25 feet wide,
and has a return 5t feet long, 24 feet wide and 27 feet high along which there is a depth
of 19 feet at high water ordinary spring tide ; these breakwaters or piers enclose between
them a snug high water harbour of 2} acres in extent.

During the year the sum of $3,600 wasexpended in making important repairs
and renewals to both the main or western breakwater and the breakwater on the eastern
gide of the harbour. On the main breakwater a re-enforcing block was built, on 147
piles driven to hard bottom along the whole outer face of the ell, 78 feet long, 12 feet
wide and the full height of the wharf, to obviate settlement due to soft bottom and
the eating away of the bottom logs by the  limnoria.” The inner or northern side of
the shore end of this breakwater has also been rebuili and straightened and along the
western or seaward side of the main breakwater a re-enforcing block or buttress was built,
364 feet long, 10 feet wide and from 7 to 16 feet high. This work also was rendered
necessary by the ravages of the limnoria.

On the eastern breakwater or wharf a T was built at the outer end, 50 feet long on
the face, 20 feet wide and about 15 feet high. Tt is built of solid stone filled cribwork,
well fendered, ballasted and close sheathed. To prevent settlement, which was a defect
of the old block, the T was built on 21 piles driven to hard bottom and cut off Jevel with
the beach. About 30 feet in length of the shore end of the same breakwater was
rebuilt. With the exception of a few general miscellaneous repairs still necessary, this
work is in thoroughly first-rate condition. The Port Maitland harbour works are of
considerable importance and fully justify all expenditures hitherto made upon them.

In August and September, 1897, the department also built a lighthouse on the
outer end of the ell of the main breakwater, at a cost of $256.58 ; the expense being
defrayed by the Department of Marine and Flsheries.

PUBNICO HEAD.

Pubnico Head is situated in the extreme south of Yarmouth county, about 20 miles
south-east from the county town. Itis 8 miles long, north and south, by three-quarters of
a mile to one and one half miles wide. At the extreme head is a settlement of some five or
six hundred people engaged in farming, lumbering and fishing. The Coast Railway has a
station here, 31 miles from Yarmouth. Some ten or twelve years ago a little wharf was
built by the inhabitants, aided, presumably, by the Provincial Government. It was 57 feet
long, 28 feet wide and at the outer end 12} feet high, consisting of a stone bank
approach 15 feet long, a span of 21 feet and a roughly built block of round log erib-
work 21 feet long.

In order to increagse the accommodation of the wharf and to lengthen the time at
which schooners can approach and lie at it, the department, during the fiscal year,
expended the sum of $895 in thoroughly repairing the old structure and building an
additional block and span at its outer end. The new block is 28 feet wide across the
wharf, 18 feet long in length of wharf, and 15 feet high, giving about 11 feet of water
at the outer end at high water of ordinary spring tides. The span connecting the new
block with the old work is 9 feet long. At low water there are only two or three feet
in depth at the outer end. The new work has been well and substantially built and is
of great benefit to the locality.
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PUGWASH.

T JPugwash, Cumberland county, isa town of nearly 2,000 people, situate on the south
side of the Straits of Northumberland, 50 miles west of Pictou, 10 miles west of Wallace,
and 20 miles east of Baie Verte. It is the terminus of the Pugwash branch of the
Oxford and New Glasgow division of the Intercolonial railway. From ten to fifteen
millions feet of deals are annually shipped to Europe. Up to a year ago the only wharf
from which lumber could be shipped was the railway wharf, but as this had a frontage
of only 60 feet, not more than one vessel could load at a time, and there were often
several awaiting their turn.

% To facilitate this important export trade, the department, in May, 1897, let a
contract for $8,640 for the constrnction of an additional wharf. Work was be’gun in
June, 1897, and finished in December of the same year. The wharf is a substantially
built structure of stone filled cribwork, 145 feet long, 50 feet wide, and with 16 feet of
water at its outer end at low water spring tides. From midway between high and
low water to the bottom of the work it is constructed of creosoted timber on account
of the prevalence and destructiveness of the “limnoria.” The wharf is so located as
to be reached by a spur track of the Intercolonial railway and it has already proved
of great advantage to the locality.

SUMMERVILLE.

Summerville, Hants county, is a village of 400 or 500 people, on the right bank
of the Avon River, about midway between Windsor and the mouth of the river. A
public wharf was built before Confederation by the inhabitants, aided by the Provincial
Government. It is 275 feet long, 29 feet wide, and 20 feet high at the outer end, where
at high water there is about 18 feet of water. The work was extensively repaired by
the department in 1890 at a cost of $3,414.52.

During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898, the sum of $100.02 was expended
in renewing some portions of the floor that were rotten and dangerous and in the
bolting of a few new fender piles.

THREE FATHOM HARBOUR.

Three Fathom Harbour, Halifax county, is situated on the Atlantic coast about
fifteen miles to the eastward of Halifax Harbour. It is formed by islands connecting
gravel beaches and though small, is well sheltered from all quarters and the small vessels
which frequent the coast can enter and leave it at all times of the vide. It is the
rendezvous of a large number of fishermen, principally inhabitants of the surrounding
country, and during the fishing season is a busy place.

To prevent the sea from breaking through the narrow shingle beach that separates
the harbour from the Atlantic, the department, in 1878, built cribwork along the crown
of the beach. The work was extended and repaired in 1889 and its total length is
1,050 feet ; it is built throughout of round log cribwork.

During the year the sum of $500.19 was expended in raising and thoroughly
repairing 200 feet in length of the work that had been undermined by the sea. The
work still requires an expenditure of about $500 for further repairs and to build a
short return block on the end to prevent the sea getting round and attacking it in
the rear.

TROUT COVE.

Trout Cove, Digby county, is a small indentation about 1,000 feet long and 600
feet deep on the Bay of Fundy coast of Digby Neck. It is about midway and has the
.only breakwater affording shelter to fishing boats between Digby Gut and Petit Passage,
being 18 miles south-west from the former. Spring tides rise 23 feet and neaps 19 feet.
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The settlement at and near the Cove, which is called Centreville, has a population
of about 300 people engaged in fishing and farming. The fishing fleet comprises from
25 to 30 boats of 16 to 18 feet keel, two schooners of about 30 tons each as well as
one small steamer which, during the open season, runs to and from St. John, Halifax,
Yarmouth and Lunenburg with freight, fish, lumber, &c. There is a factory for the
canning of Finnan haddies and kippered herring, which is doing a large business.
Within a short distance of the Cove is excellent ground for cod, haddock, hake,
lobsters, &c. A breakwater was begun in 1856 by the inhabitants, aided by the Pro-
vincial Government. It was extended by the department in 1876 a distance of 178
feet ; in 1880 and in 1881 extensive repairs were made to the old portion of the
breakwater of which 100 feet had been destroyed in 1879. Since the last date it has
been repaired several times by the department. For the purpose of increasing the
usefulness of this work the department determined to lengthen it and on the 12th of
April, 1896, a contract was awarded to Messrs. Reid and Archibald for the sum of
$3,896, for the construction of an additional block 100 feet long. Up to the lst of
July, 1898, timber was being procured and delivered but the work of construction had
not been begun. With the new extension, the breakwater will have a total length of
474 feet on the north side, a width of about 30 feet on top and a height of 28 feet at
the outer end, where there will be a depth of 24 feet at high water spring tide.

WALLACE.

Wallace Harbour, Cumberland county, is situated on the south side of the Straits
of Northumberland, about midway between Pictou Harbour and Bay Verte. It isat
the mouth of Wallace River and is well protected from all winds. On the south side of
the harbour, which is three-quarters of a mile wide, is situated the village of Wallace
with a population of about 800 people. The industries of the place are chiefly farming
and the quarrying and export of freestone, of which there are large and valuable beds
in the immediate neighbourhood.

To facilitate communication with the north side of the harbour, a thickly settled
district, the department in March, 1897, awarded a contract for the construction of a
ferry wharf for the sum of $2,329. This wharf was finished in September, 1897, it is
a composite structure 320 feet long, the shoreward 170 feet being of block and span
work 18 feet wide, and the outer 150 feet of pile work. The outermost 90 feet is built
of double width so as to form an inclined slip where the ferry boat can lie at any stage
of tide.

WHITEWATER.

Whitewater, Kings county, is a small farming and lumbering settlement of some
two or three hundred people, situated on the west coast of the Basin of Minas, about
three-quarters of a mile south of Cape Blomidon and 10 miles north-east of the village
of Canning.

To facilitate the shipping of lumber and for general purposes the department
expended during the fiscal year the sum of $3,999.08 in constructing a public wharf 285
feet long, 20 feet wide, and has an ell on the outer end 35 feet long where there is, at
high water of ordinary spring tides, a depth of 17 feet water. The rise of tide here
being 30 feet the wharf is high and dry at low water. It is constructed of block and
span work, the blocks being of solid cribwork 19 feet in width and the spans 14 feet in
clear opening. The work was well and cheaply built by days labour.

WINDSOR.

Windsor, the county town of Hants, with a population of about 4,500 people, is an
important town situated at the head of the estuary of the River Avon, on the Dominion
Atlantic Railway and 46 miles north-west from Halifax. The shipping registered at
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the port for the year ended December, 1896, amounted to about 131,000 tons. In the
neighbourhood are extensive quarries of gypsumn which is shipped by water to the extent
of 120,000 tons annually.

A couple of millions feet B.M. of lumber alsoforms part of the annual exportation
by water. Up to about a dozen years ago the wharfs of the town were comparatively
free of mud and at high water the largest vessels could lie alongside to load or discharge.
Within the last few years, owing partly no doubt to the construction of the new high-
way bridge, the mud has accumulated in front of the wharfs to such an extent that it
is only at extreme high water that moderate sized vessels can approach or leave the
wharfs. Several of the leading shippers and merchants have on more than one occasion
spent from one to two hundred dollars in digging and removing the mud but it again
deposits and renders the expenditure useless. With the object of scouring away the
accumulated mud from the wharfs the department expended the sum of $3,299.71 in
constructing a training weir down stream, from the corner of the Falmouth abutmentof the
road bridge, at an angle of 45 degrees with the bridge. The weir is constructed of brush
mattresses at the bottom and cribwork on top, it was constructed under great difficulties,
owing to the great rise and fall of tide, about 40 feet, the strong current at ebb and
flood tide and the shifting quicksands on which the work stands. The length of the
work finished during the year was 89 feet ; a length of 63 feet had the foundation cribs
in place and a further length of 50 feet had the brush mattresses and stone foundations
ready to receive the lower cribs. The weir is designed to be 600 feet long, at which
length there is little doubt but that it will accomplish the object of its construction.

YARMOUTH HARBOUR—STANWOOD BEACH PROTECTION.

Yarmouth, Yarmouth county, is situated at the south-western extremity of Nova
Scotia. It is a thriving and prosperous town of nearly 7,000 inhabitants, next to
Halifax the largest and most important in the province of Nova Scotia. It is the
terminus of the Dominion Atlantic railway and the headquarters of the Yarmouth
Steamship company, the fine Clyde built steamers of which make regular trips through-
out the year to Boston.

There are several important manufactories in the place but the leading business is
shipping, of which a larger tonnage is owned here than in almost any other lozality in
Canada.

At low water Yarmouth harbour, in which spring tides rise 16 feet and neaps 13
feet, consists largely of mud flats covered with eel grass. The harbour is formed by a
succession of shingle and gravel beaches (called Stanwood Beach) aggregating about one
mile in length, which connect tke northern end of Cape Fourchu Island, also about a
mile long, with the southern end of Stony Point on the main land and separate the
harbour from the Bay of Fundy.

In 1867, it was found that the part of the beach between Cape Fourchu and Stony
Point was gradually wearing down and that unless this action were arrested the sea
would eventually sweep away the beach and destroy the harbour. The Government of
Nova Scotia began the work of protecting the beach by constructing 200 feet of crib-
work at Stony Point. Between 1873 and 1875 the Public Works Department con-
structed the remaining 2,800 feet of protection work required to reach Cape Fourchu and
added buttresses to stop the movement of the gravel.

Between 1875 and 1888, the protection works although substantially built of stone-
filled cribwork and close piled on their seaward face, had to be repaired and strength-
ened at various intervals ; the expense amounting to over $25,000.

Between 1888 and 1896 no further works of repair were undertaken on the beach
protection, which became dilapidated and decayed ; breaches being made through it by
the sea at various places. During the fiscal year 1896-97 the sum of $2,983.62 was
expended in carrying on the most urgent works of repair, and in 1897-98 a further sum
of $3,234.51 was expended in continuing and completing these repairs. This last sum
was applied in rebuilding a length of 50 feet at the eastern end of the protection work
and constructing a groyne, projecting at right angles from the said end, for a distance
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of 175 feet. The new groyne is 25 feet wide and 11 feet high, substantially built of
round log and stone filled cribwork. The object of constructing this groyne was to
protect the beach, at the north-eastern end of the main cribwork protection, by accumul-
ating the gravel and breaking up the waves before they expended their force on the
beach. It has admirably fulfilled its purpose as gravel has accumulated, at the junction
of the groyne with the main work, to a depth of 12 feet, obviating all risk of further
damage. An additional appropriation of three or four hundred dollars will be required
for expenditure during the next year to completely finish the repairs to the main

beach protection and to cover its eastern end with plank to prevent the ballast from
being washed out.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

ANNANDALE.

Annandale Pier, King’s county, is situated on the north side of Grand River, near
its entrance into Boughton Bay. The pier, originally constructed by the local govern-
ment, was taken over by the Federal Government in 1883. It consists of a shore abut-
ment or approach 300 feet in length and 23 feet wide, with a pier head fronting on the
channel, 140 feet long and averaging 36 feet in width.

The abutment or shore approach (excepting on a short span of 18 feet in length
planked over), is constructed of close faced timber work, filled in with brush, stone and
clay, the roadway being formed of the latter material while the pier head is formed
partly of cribwork and partly of piling, the whole of which is covered by planking
spiked to floor stringers. On the channel face of the pier there is a depth of seven feet of
water at low waterspring tides, or 12 feet at high water springs which here rise five feet.
The pier being a very old structure when assumed by the department and being exposed
to attacks of the teredo”, it has been found necessary to incur expenditures nearly
every year to keep the structure in a passable state for traffic, and to prevent its outer
portion, which is carried on piling, from falling into the channel.

During the fall of 1897 the sum of $100.06 was expended ; 27 piles or supports being
put under the caps and floor stringers on different parts of the pier head, three rotten floor
stringers replaced and 1,000 feet B.M. 3-inch planks used for renewing the floor where
broken and unsafe. The work can, however, be considered to be only of a temporary
nature as the entire pier head should be rebuilt.

- BELFAST.

Belfast Pier, Queen’s county, locally-known as “ Halliday’s Wharf,” is situated on
the south side of Orwell Bay about one mile from the village of Eldon. This pier,
constructed by the Government of Prince Edward JIsland previous to Confederation, was
taken over by the Federal Government in 1883. It has a length of 600 feet and, at its
outer end stands a head block forming an | which is 28 to 30 feet in width and 145
feet in length along the channel, where a depth of about five feet now obtains at low
water spring tides or 14 feet at high water.

The pier head had originally a length of 140 feet but when retopped in 1889 was
shortened 10 feet ; the result being that the submerged remains of the old work at its
north-eastern end rendered this part unserviceable during low water owing to danger of
vessels being damaged when approaching the pier.

During the year a new block 28 feet wide by 15 feet long and of an average
height of 15 feet was added to the pier head at the eastern end so as to cover the obstruct-
ing ballast and timbers.
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That part of the pier has thus been rendered available to vessels at all times,
proving of much benefit, during stormy weather, to the passenger steamer
“ Jacques Cartier,” which makes tri-weekly calls at the Belfast pier on her passage to
and from Charlottetown and other points on Orwell Bay. General repairs were also
made on the roadway and the expenditure incurred in 1897-98 for these repairs and the
construction of the new block amounted to $499.45.

To place the pier in a thoroughly useful condition some dredging along the inner
side of the head block and over the area sheltered by the L is required ; moreover, an
opening left in the pier at about 200 feet from the head block should be closed to
prevent drift material passing into the sheltered area.

BAY VIEW,

Bay View Pier, Queen’s county, is situated on the eastern side and near the mouth
of Hope River which flows into New London Harbour, about 3% miles to the eastward
of its entrance. The pier has a total length of 509 feet and is 20 feet wide for the
first 409 feet from the shore, thence its width gradually increases towards its outer end
where it is 35 feet. ’

The work is not exposed to any heavy sea, but extreme high tides accompanied by
storms from north to west usually cause damage to the roadway which is formed of clay
and gravel filling with the exception of a small portion at the outer end.

A washout and settlement in the roadway occurred under such circumstances in
the early part of the fall of 1897. The damage done was made good with broken stone
and clay well packed together at a cost of $20.01 ; the plank covering, guard timbers,
&c., that had broken loose, being refastened.

BRAE.

Brae Harbour, Prince county, is situated at the mouth of the Brae River on the
northern side of Egmont Bay, 8 miles east of West Point and about 6 miles south of
Coleman Station on the line of the Prince Edward Island railway. At the mouth of
the river an area carrying a depth of six feet at low water is well sheltered by * Brae
Island ” and would prove a good fishing station and harbour of refuge for small vessels
as well as a most convenient place of shipment for the surplus produce raised in the
district, were it not that approach to it is obstructed by a sand bar, almost dry at low
water, that extends completely across the entrance and which is parallel with the shore
and at a distance of about 400 feet out from the eastern end of the island.

In 1890, with a view of improving this harbour the inhabitants of the surrounding
district began the construction of a brush breakwater so as to contract the entrance,
originally 800 feet wide, and deepen the same by the increased scour thus induced.
They built a length of 350 feet, 18 feet wide, composed of poles, brush and some ballast
with clay filling on top. To this the department added a length of 200 feet in 1891-92
and in 1895-96 repaired or, more properly, rebuilt the inner or original weak work con-
structed by the inhabitants.

As no benefit as regards deepening by scour had resulted from the work thus
lengthened to 550 feet and a further extension of at least 500 feet being considered
necessary to attain the desired improvement in the depth, it was decided to build during
the year an additional length of 100 feet of breakwater. Most of the materials
required for this addition were procured during the early part of the winter of 1897-98,
with the intention of proceeding with the construction of the lower portion of the work
through the ice in March last. Owing to the serious illness of the foreman in charge
at the time when the condition of the ice was favourable for carrying on such work,
nothing was accomplished further than procuring the following materials now on the
site of the breakwater, viz..—

57 4% tons square timber 12 inches by 12 inches.
85 hardwood piles 20 feet long, 9 inches at small end.
134 cross ties 24 feet long, 10 inches at small end.
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149 ballast poles 20 feet long, 6 inches at small end.
46 longitudinals 22 feet long, 10 inches at small end.
2,000 pounds iron § inch and 1 inch.
12 tons stone ballast.
Total expenditure in 1897-98, for labour and materials, $514.64.

HIGGINS SHORE.

Higgins Shore |Pier, Prince county, is situated on Egmont Bay, about 10 miles
north from Cape Egmont, and about 6 miles west from Richmond Station on the line of
the Prince Edward Island railway. It has a width of 20 feet 6 inches, and is 453
feet long, extending out to a depth of about two feet at low water spring tides and giving
at high water a depth of seven feet ; spring tides here rising five feet. The pier, which was
constructed many years ago by the local government, has solid close faced timbers on
sides and outer end, securely tied together by cross ties placed at 10 feet centres, and
central Jongitudinal timbers in each course extending over the whole length ; the entire
body of the work is filled with brush and stone, with clay on top to form roadway.
During the year the sum of $400.02 has been expended in raising the outer 150
feet of the pier two feet in height, some new face timbers, guard timbers, cross ties and
fenders were also put on this length, and the entire length of the roadway was made up
with broken stone and gravel filling. The work, which had become impassable, is now
in good condition for traffic.

LEWIS POINT)

Lewis Point Pier, King’s county, is situated on the north side of Cardigan River,
a short distance below Cardigan Bridge (the head of navigation) and about eight miles
from its entrance into Cardigan Bay. The pier is 575 feet long, being composed of a shore
abutment of 365 feet in length, two intermediate blocks each 35 feet long and an outer
block 79 feet in length with intervening spans, each about 20 feet wide, out to the
outer block which is 33 feet wide. At the outer end and sides of the outer block there
isnow a depth of 12 feet at low water or 17 feet at high water springs, the approach
from the channel to the pier and the berths at it having been improved by dredging in
1894-95. During the year the whole of the top portion of the pier, including
span beams, covering, &c., have been renewed, and the faces of the head block fender-
piled at four foot centres with hard wood spars, and the roadway of approach was made
up where required with broken stone and gravel, the whole pier being thus placed in a
good and serviceable condition at an expense of $1,000.24.

MIMINEGASH.

Miminegash Harbour, Prince county, is situated on the north-west coast, about 15
miles from North Cape and 18 miles from West Point. Before its improvement by the
department, it was merely one of the numerous ponds along the coast that empty into
the Straits of Northumberland through shifting sand beaches, the channels of which
often change their course and are sometimes blocked when severe storms occur. The
pond at Miminegash is sheltered to a great extent by *Miminegash Reef,” a ledge of
rock nearly a mile long, which lies parallel to the shore at a distance of about half a
mile ; it was the one mostly sought by fishermen during stormy weather, and after an
examination of the ponds on the coast was selected in 1878 by the department when
work was commenced for the formation of a harbour. The works built at Miminegash
consist of piers or breakwaters on each side to make the outlet permanent, its width
being reduced to 56 feet. The breakwater on the north side has a length of 535 feet,
and that on the south side a length of 350 feet, there being also inward of the latter a
beach protection 270 feet long to guard against scour and the formation of a new chan-
nel or outlet back of the southern work. Owing to age, scouring and destructive
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action of the ‘“teredo,” the works have become weakened in many places, and are now
often damaged when severe storms occur. This happened during the fall of 1897, when
serious damage was done to the outer end of the northern breakwater, to the close
piling, to a number of face timbers and some ballasting being carried away. Repairs were
made with a view of placing the breakwater in safety for the winter and spring, a total
expenditure of $328.91 being incurred. The work done consists in the replacing of
face timbers, close piling and ballast carried away from the outer block and protecting
the inner part of work with brush, poles and piling.

NEW LONDON.

New London Harbour, Queen’s county, is on the northern coast of the island,
about 10 miles east from the entrance into Richmond Bay.

Within its entrance, which is about 1,200 feet wide, the harbour has a width of
about three miles and receives the waters of the ¢ South-West,” the * French,” the ¢ Stan-
ley,” and the ‘“Hope” rivers, which are navigable for short distances. On these rivers
there are wharfs or shipping places from which a considerable export of the surplus
produce raised in the surrounding districts is made. All these districts are thickly
settled and well cultivated, and large quantities of general merchandise, coal, lumber,
limestone, &c., are imported by water for the use of the inhabitants; there being no
railway facilities as in many other places on the island. The harbour is largely used
as a fishing station and as a harbour of refuge and is very conveniently situated, being
near some of the best fishing grounds on the Gulf of St. Lawrence.

For the improvement of the entrance to the harbour, which is obstructed by a shift-
ing sand bar, works were commenced by the department in 1878 ; they consist of beach
protection and breakwaters on each side of the harbour mouth.

A work having a length of 1,120 feet, was built on the eastern side, and one 460 feet
long on the western side the object being to preserve and extend the beaches by confin-
ing the current so as to cause increased scour and deepen the water over the bar ; the
result obtained is most satisfactory.

The depth of water has been increased by as much as six feet, giving a depth of 12
feet at low water and making New London harbour one of the best on the coast. The
works are built partly of cribwork close-faced and of square timbers. The western
work has never been damaged so as to require repair, but the eastern one being exposed
to a strong current, at times to a heavy sea and to the cutting action of ice, &e., has
often suffered serious damage owing to the inner portion being too slight to withstand
a severe storm. Whenever found possible, with the sum available for expenditure, the
breaches made through it at various times have been closed by rebuilding the work in a
more substantial manner and it is hoped the whole breakwater will thus be fully
secured.

During the year the sum of $300.48 was applied in reballasting and making
up portions where settlement had occurred on the east pier and placing brush on its
outer side so as to cause sand to accumulate.

NORTH CARDIGAN.

North Cardigan, King's county, is situated on the north side of the Cardigan
River, about five miles from Cardigan Bridge and station on the line of the Prince Edward
Island railway and is one of the Prince Edward Island piers assumed by the Federal
Government in 1883-84. This pier has a length of 381 feet, consisting of shore abut-
ment 100 feet long and seven “blocks” with intervening “spans”; it is from 23 to 25
feet wide to the outer block or pier head, which has a width of 32 feet ; the “ blocks ” are
from 19 to 25 feet long and the “spans” vary from 14 to 26 feet. The approach and
all the blocks are constructed of squared timber, close-faced work filled with brush, stone
and gravel, the latter being used to form the roadway, with the exception of the two
outer blocks, and the spans which are floor stringered and planked over.
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Being an old structure, much out of repair when assumed by the department, this
pier has to be repaired nearly every year to keep it in passable condition. During the
fall of 1897 the sum of $24.59 was expended on repairs ; broken stones and gravel fill-
ing were put in where settlement had occurred in the roadway and 1,500 feet B.M. of
timber used in relaying broken and decayed planking.

RUSTICO.

Rustico Harbour, Queen’s county, is on the northern coast of the island, about
midway between  East Point” and “North Cape,” and the most important fishing
station on the coast. For the improvement of its entrance, which like all those of the
harbours on the north coast is obstructed by an outer shifting sand bar, the department
built during the years 1881-82-83-84 a breakwater on each side for the purpose of
confining the current at ebb tide and by scouring increase the depth of water. The
desired improvement has, to some extent, been secured ; since the construction of the
works some two or three feet more water are carried over the bar and the depth is now
at low water 8 to 9 feet, or at high water spring tides from 11 to 12 feet, and this depth
may be further improved by maintaining in good condition and extending the present.
works.

The breakwater on the northern side is, in a way, the most important as it protects
an inner low beach on which most of the fishing stages and fish houses are erected. It
was originally 1,240 feet long (that on the south side being only 450), but up to 1893 a
length of 120 feet had been completely carried away by different storms and a further
portion 150 feet long seriously damaged, the direct cause of which may be laid to the
ravages of the “teredo.” These marine pests by their unceasing attacks on the timbers
below low water so weakened the structure as to render it unfit to withstand the move-
ment of the ice or the severe storms to which the site is exposed.

During 189596, to prevent further damage, extensive repairs were carried out,
by contract, on the outer portion of the work, an outer block 30'x60’ being constructed,
the adjoining 140 feet widened, raised, &c., and that part of the work generally placed
in good condition.

Considering that the under portion of the breakwater constructed of piles, brush
and stone had through age become in parts low and unsafe and that much of the
sheathing of the sloping face of the adjoining section, had for the same reason been
destroyed, works of repair and renewal were carried out on both the said sections during
the year at an expense of $473.07. A length of 185 feet of face was resheathed and
all low parts made up with new piling, braces, walings, &c.

SOURIS

Souris Harbour, King’s county, situated on the southern side of the island about.
16 miles westward from East Point, is most important both as a harbour of refuge and
port of shipment, being easy of access and perfectly safe over the portion protected by
the breakwater at Knight’s Point.

Souris is the eastern terminus of the Prince Edward Island railway and has a
deep water wharf, from which shipments can be made later in the fall and earlier in the
spring than from any other of the island harbours.

During the season of navigation it is largely used by coasters and fishermen as a
port of call. The works constructed by the department afford good accommodation and a
perfectly sheltered area (carrying from 12 to 20 feet of water at low tide) sufficient for
alarge fleet. The breakwater has a length of 1,200 feet, 270 feet of which were constructed
previous to Confederation by the local government. The whole of this work stands in
deep water and is exposed to the full force of the sea during southerly gales and to
the shoving and cutting action of the ice in winter.

Since its construction the breakwater had to undergo extensive repairs, chiefly
owing to the poor quality of stone procurable in the vicinity for ballast and the ravages.
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of the teredo which, in nearly all the island waters, destroy timber works in a few years
to such an extent as to render them unfit for resisting the forces to which they are
exposed. Almost the whole of the seaward face of the breakwater has thus been destroyed
or so weakened as to render its reconstruction or protection necessary, and this work
has during late years been proceeded with in sections of various lengths.

Since the 1st July, 1896, the sum of $1,000.09 has been expended in completing a
length of 110 feet of new facing commenced in the previous year. This work is a
distance of about 350 feet from the inner end of the breakwater and immediately inward
of the new face constructed in 1893 under contract by Messrs. Wightman and Mellish,
and is a similar construction.

The construction of a solid close-faced block of creosoted timber, 80 feet in length
by 40 feet in width at outer end of breakwater with the placing of a stone slope for a
length of 395 feet inward, was let by contract on the 17th February, 1896. These works,
which had been in progress during the year 1896-97, were satisfactorily completed
on the 8th September, 1897.

The following works were carried out, during the year by days labour:—The old
end block of the breakwater was connected with the new head block; 90 feet of the
middle section of the breakwater was refendered, reballasted, &c.; the outer narrow
section, 395 feet long, was reballasted and of the inner part the planking was repaired
and some ballasting, &c., done.

A quantity of planking, face timbers, longitudinals and cross ties was procured for
proposed raising, levelling up, &c., of inner section of breakwater but the materials
could not be used owing to the lateness of the season and the insufficiency of the balance
available.

The expenditure incurred during the year for the works and materials above
described amounts to $10,761.43.

STEPHEN’S PIER.

Stephens Pier, King’s county, is situated on the southern side of the Montague
River, about 6 miles above its entrance into Cardigan Bay, and immediately below
“Lambert’s Pier ” and Montague Bridge. It consists of two wings or approaches about
50 feet apart and extending out from the bank of the river to the edge of the channel
where the pier head has a frontage of 100 feet. The wings or approaches are respec-
tively 90 and 115 feet long and are formed of close-faced timber work, the space
between them being filled with brush and ballast discharged from vessels, gravel and
clay being placed on top ; these wings were originally connected with the pier head by
“gspans ” or openings floor stringered and planked over.

The pier head is formed of pile bents, capped, floor stringered and covered with
planking. This head block having become unsafe owing to age and destructive action
of “teredo”, was almost entirely rebuilt during the summer of 1897 ; 31 new bearing
piles being put in and the floor stringers, covering, guard timbers and mooring posts
being renewed. The timber facing of the eastern approach or wing was rebuilt during
the year 1897-98. The expenditure incurred during the year for works of renewal and
repair amounts to $655.77.

TIGNISH.

Tignish Harbour, Prince county, is situated on the north or gulf coast of the
island, about six miles southward of North Cape, and is formed by the mouth of the
Tignish River which empties into the Gulf of St. Lawrcnce.

As on each side of the mouth of this river the coast is quite straight, gales from
north-east to south-east throw in a heavy sea. When moved by such seas the shifting
sands of which the beach is composed, frequently completely blocked the mouth of the
Tignish River which would remain closed until broken through by a freshet or other
abnormal disturbing cause. To keep the river permanently open and to confine the
channel to one place in its bed, the government of Prince Edward Island, in 1868, com-
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menced the construction of works on both sides of the mouth of the river to contract
the stream to a width of 40 feet ; the effect of this contraction has been to increase the
current and the river has not since been closed to navigation. The original
works have since their transfer to the Dominion been repaired, ruised and extended by
the department ; breastworks have been constructed on low lying sand beaches on both
sides of the river to prevent the breaking through of the sea, and a portion of the
channel has been dredged. These works have proved a benefit and have been the cause
of a large increase in the business of the place. The principal difficulty is now, that the
harbour is not large enough to accommeodate all the vessels and fishing boats desiring to
useit. As portions of the piers have become much decayed and injured hy the scour
and ravages of the teredo, works of repair were commenced on these piers in 1896-97,
when the southern breakwater pier was partly placed in a good state of repair by reball-
asting, rebuilding the top and close-pile fendering portions of its channel face.

During the year repairs of a similar nature have been continued on both the
southern and northern breakwaters. The remaining portions of the channel face of
the southern breakwater were close piled, 320 feet in length of the northern breakwater
pier rebuilt including new floor stringers, covering and close piling on channel face and a
further length of 120 feet close-piled. The outer block was repaired and re-covered,
and the breastwork extending from the northern breakwater to the high ground built
up with brush, where it had settled, for a distance of 600 feet. A sum of $1,923.31
has been expended on the above works of repair and renewal.

On the 8th March, 1898, a contract was entered into for the enlargement of Tignish
harbour by extending the two breakwater-piers inwards, building brushwork, &c. At
the close of the year the works let by contract were about half completed. Total
expenditure incurred in conmnection with Tignish harbour works in 1897-98, $4,093.65.

WEST POINT.

West, Point Wharf, Prince county, so called from being the most extreme western
point of the island, is situated on the north side of Egmont Bay along the eastern shore
of Northumberland Strait, is about 14 miles west from O’Leary Station on the line of
Prince Edward Island railway and about 30 miles by water from Summerside. A pier,
one of those assumed hv the department in 1883, was built previous to Confederation
by the local governwent to afford landing and shipping facilities for the district;
there being at the time no wharf or harbour in existence where vessels drawing more
than a few feet could call along the whole coast between Summerside and North Cape,
a distance of 60 miles. West Cape being midway was considered a favourable site
for a pier, and the original work built at this point is said to have proved of great
benefit up to the spring of 1884, when it was seriously damaged on the breaking up of the
ice. A large field of ice was at that time driven upon it during a severe easterly storm
and the entire outer portion of the pier moved out of position, the face timbers being
broken and a large quantity of ballast washed out, and subsequent storms, ice shoves and
drifts almost completely destroyed the structure.

With a view of providing urgently called for and much needed improved landing
and shipping facilities, the department entered into contract 7th December, 1897, for :
(a) Building up to 4 feet above high water and repairing the existing portions of the
old pier, 290 feet long and 27 feet wide ; (b) constructing an extension 325 feet long
by 30 feet wide at top to reach 8 feet depth at low water spring tides. The works of
reconstruction and extension were commenced during the month of March, 1898, and
at the close of the year have been about half completed.
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1

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK.

BUCTOUCHE

By a narrow and winding channel, navigable for 11 or 12 miles, and four to five
fathoms deep in some places but with a ruling depth of only eight feet, Buctouche
River flows into Northumberland Strait about midway between Richibucto and Shediac,
the embouchure being about 18 miles from each of these places.

At the village of Buctouche, Kent county (population 600), four miles from the sea,
a quay for local traffic was built at right angles to the bridge and parallel to the river
bank, in 1884-85. The work is of round timber, fendered with piles, and stands in a
depth of 17 feet at low water, the length of face and width of top being respectively 300
feet and 40 feet. The trade carried on includes a small quantity of deals, hemlock bark
and oysters. Latterly some coal, brought in schooners from Cape Breton, has been
landed at the wharf and carried thence by rail to Moncton, 32 miles distant.

In 1894, a sum of $1,500 was applied towards rcpairing damages to the wharf top
occasioned by a fire disastrous to the village. In December, 1897, 20 fenders and 18
lineal feet of cap-timber, which had been procured but not before placed in position
were put on and secured, at a cost of $28.13. The revenue collected by the Marine
Department during the year ended 30th, June 1898, was $29.27

CAPE TORMENTINE.

Cape Tormentine, at the extreme eastern end of Westmoreland county, is the
most prominent headland on Northumberland Strait and the south-western terminus of
the winter ferry route betwecen Cape Traverse on Prince Edward Island and the main-
land. Spring tides rise 7§ feet, neaps 3} feet.

Between 1886 and 1892 a breakwater-pier was constructed at this cape with a
view of forming an artificial harbour for purposes of interprovincial communication, at
the extremity of a peninsula which is the nearest point on the continent to Prince
Edward Island. The harbour works carried out comprise a straight pier 2,500 feet long
with head and return, each 400 feet in length, enclosing a basin about four acres in area
with a ruling depth of 15 feet at low water, or 22 feet 8 inches at high water spring
tides. For a distance of 1,300 feet from the shore the pier is a rubble mound 20 feet
wide on top with pitch slopes of 2 H. to 1 V., while the remainder of the straight por-
tion (400 lineal yards), is built of close-faced cribwork 30 feet in width. The head and
return are of similar cribwork, but are 40 feet in breadth, from the base to low water,
decreasing to 30 feet at the finished top (four feet above high water spring tides) and pre-
senting a sloping face sheathed with hardwood to the north and east. A branch line
thirty-six miles long, connects the pier with the Intercolonial railway at Sackville.

There being a storm wave at least six feet in height at Cape Tormentine, it was found
that although the rails were secure where spiked to the covering of the cribwork, they
were liable at the elevation of four feet above high water to be washed off the embank-
ment or rubble mound which afforded no facilities for bolting. To pravent interrup-
tion in the traffic from this cause, the rails were raised two feet along the embankment in
1893-94. At the same time, a freight shed was built and protected by & break. The
tops of the cribs receiving the foot of the hardwood sheathing composing the sloping
face having been destroyed by the teredo, the planks thus left hanging are exposed
below to upward wave motion, a force found by Stevenson to be 84 times greater when
exerted vertically than when directed againt the side of the breakwater. These planks
were secured in 1893-94, as far as the worm-eaten condition of the timber permitted. In
the following fiscal year, 321 lineal feet 23f worm-eaten longitudinals supporting the
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sloping hardwood were replaced by new timber, a space of 90 lineal feet of new planking
was laid and the remainder of the face secured wherever bolt-hold could be found in the
honeycombed wood.

In 1895-96 similar temporary repairs were made, 414 lineal feet of worm-eaten
longitudinals being renewed with fresh timber and 117 lineal feet of sloping face being
relaid.

In 1896-97, repairs of the same kind were made for 154 lineal feet of the
sloping face, in which 534 lineal feet of longitudinals were used. There being
some slight difference of duration in favour of hardwood, hirch longitudinals were for the
most part inserted and secured with screwbolts. The ramp, 165 feet long, leading from
the embankment to the cribwork was also covered with 3-inch plank in order to permit
the passage of carts for occasional local traffic. The expenditure incurred in 1896-97
was $566.98.

Daring the year, new hardwood longitudinals (generally four tiers) were placed in
the work and secured with screw bolts, for a distance of 252 feet, to which the planks
of the sloping face were secured. For a further distance of 50 feet the face-timbers were
partially renewed. The expenditure for this year amounted to $972.14.

The harbour is used during the season of navigation by vessels engaged in the deal
trade with the United Kingdow, since it offers facilities for transferring deals in clean
condition from train to ship without the loss of class and so of price. For this purpose
it has to some extent superseded the open roadstead of Baie Verte, formerly a centre of
the deal trade.

On account of the prevalence of the teredo, any works built in the future in
Northumberland Strait should be constructed of creosoted timber, stone, or concrete.
The worm-eaten condition of Cape Tormentine requires that the course hitherto custom-
arily adopted in similar cases, .e. external protection with stone, should be taken. For
the quay-face of the winter berth it would be best to use concrete. Although the top
appears in good condition, the substructure of the cribwork of the pier has been so
injured by the teredo that the upper works notwithstanding their sound state, are liable
to be sheared off the impaired foundation by ice or storm. The revenue collected by
the Marine Department during the year ended 30th June, 1898, was $575.31.

CLIFTON.

At Clifton, in Gloucester county, ten miles west of Grande Anse, and 17 miles
east of Bathurst, a breakwater, originally 425 feet long, built by private persons to
facilitate shipment of stone from large quarries at that place, was acquired by the
department in 1878 and extended in the same year. The work, of round and square
cribwork partially protected by stone, is now 750 feet long over all; 220 feet of this
length being a pier-head placed at an acute angle with the approach in order to give
shelter between east to north-west. Formerly the deepest berth was said to give 12 feet
at low water, but the depth has now been reduced by shoaling to eight or nine feet
alongside the breakwater. This artificial harbour affords the only shelter for coasting
vessels and fishing boats between Caraquette and Bathurst, a distance of about 37 miles,
Spring tides rise 7 feet.

Between August and December, 1897, several small breaches made in the seaward
face of the work were closed by the insertion of new face-timbers and 102 square
hardwood fenders, 9 inches thick, laid close, and extending from the bottom to the top
of the break (an average distance of about 20 feet), were placed round the north-east
angle of the breakwater which forms the artificial harbour. The break, four and five tiers
in height, was also renewed for a distance of 32 feet. In parts where removal of covering
became necessary to effect the repairs, any voids discovered were filled with ballast. As
the bottom is rock, close-riles could not be driven ; in order both to protect the work
and to secure the feet of the fenders, generally in six feet at low water ordinary spring
tides, a slope of 145 feet in total length made of large stones, averaging nearly a cubic
yard each, was placed round the angle. These blocks, when raked down by action of
the sea, will form the foundation of a stone slope intended to be placed round the whole

30



Department of Public Works,

work, and effectually secure the bottom of the fenders. This measure served well
during the winter of 1897-98. After these repairs had been concluded, costing
$850 a heavy storm at the close of navigation stripped about 75 pieces of old
covering from the unrepaired portion of the top, and removed some ballast, which neces-
sitated the expenditure of a further sum of $186.56 to make good the damage done.

Eight new stringers from 12 to 20 feet long were placed in position, rather more
than 6,000 feet B.M. of new covering was laid, a new tie-rod inserted, and a quantity
of ballast two to four feet in depth was placed in the work, the repairs extending over a
distance of 88 feet. The total expenditure for repairs, &c., amounted in 1897-98 to
$1,036.56. The revenue collected by the Marine Department during the same year
was $18.38.

DALHOUSIE.

This town, in Restigouche county, at the head of Baie des Chaleurs, ranks third
on the list of deal ports of New Brunswick. The harbour gives secure shelter in six or
seven fathoms, and during navigation is the best in the province. Dalhousie is the
only harbour suitable for a coaling station for the fleet on the gulf coast of New
Brunswick. :

For use of vessels engaged in the deal trade, the department added in 1887 to the
Intercolonial railway pier, a ballast wharf 300 feet long and 23 feet wide, placed
parallel to the shore in about 15 feet water at low water, now reduced in places to about
five feet by shoaling. .

Expansion of the ice, consequent upon the cracks caused by tidal fluctuation,
exerts from the shore a shearing stress against the top of this work, which was in 1897
partly thrust off for a distance of 118 feet, the overhang being 10 feet. Pending re-
construction the wreck was removed in October, 1897, and the structure placed in con-
dition to resist the winter, at an expense of $136.44. The revenue collected by the
Marine Department during the year amounted to $94.34.

FORT DUFFERIN.

Fort Dufferin, St. John county, was originally built by the British Government
on Negro Point at the western entrance to the harbour of St. John; a ten-gun battery
being placed in position on this point, which is 60 feet in height above high water mark.
This fort is now maintained by the Dominion Government, which also built an important
breakwater at this point for the protection of the harbour of St. John.

In order to preserve the headland called Negro Point from erosion by the waves,
this department built in St. John harbour a retaining wall, of sheathed cribwork,
extending 815 feet in a northerly direction from the inner end of the breakwater. The
work is seven to 14 feet wide on top and about nine feet in mean height. The crest for
almost the whole length is surrounded by a break 2% feet high.

During the year 1896-97 a gap 81 feet long in the break was repaired, 200
lineal feet of longitudinals were renewed inside and 128 cubic yards of ballast were
restored to the work, while the sheathing was patched at intervals along the face with
hardwood planking. Tn order to raise the beach and reduce the area of timber face
necessary to be repaired, towards the end of 1896, a groyne 40 feet long, 10 feet wide
and four feet in mean height, was built of hardwood piles, timber and stone. In 1897 the
final extension of the cribwork, a distance of 130 feet, was begun and by the end of the
year 1896-97 brought within two tiers of the full height.

In the present year the new extension was completed, ballasted and sheathed ;
small repairs were also made to the sheathing of the old work; the expenditure
amounting to $510.98.

HERRING COVE.

Herring Cove, Albert county, is situated 114 miles west of Cape Enragé, forming
the western extremity of Salisbury Bay an indentation of the Albert coast of the Bay
of Fundy. Spring tides rise 37 feet, neaps 30 feet.
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A breakwater 215 feet long, 31 feet wide on top and 43 feet high at the outer end,
was built in this cove by the Federal Government in 1873, at a cost of $13,113.45. The
inside face of the work is of square timber, while the outside, strongly battered, is of
round timber closefendered. Founded on a reef under the lee of Mathew’s Head and
directed towards Owl's Head, the work trending towards the land lies in the general
direction of southwest waves and affords, during storms, some slight protection from
under-tow to small craft, if beached in the extreme angle of the cove.

The cove is noted for good holding-ground and is one of the two places on the New
Brunswick coast of the Bay of Fundy, east of St. John, considered to present natural
features favourable for the construction of a harbour of refuge.

The vessels carrying deals from Alma to the United Kingdom, anchor off this
breakwater to receive cargoes by lighter. Alma, two miles distan{ & the terminus of
the Albert Southern railway.

During the year 1896-97, works of repair were carried o. on the upper-
works of this breakwater, generally decayed from age. The cribwork break extending
the whole length of the work was removed aund rebuilt, while the decayed part of the
closefendering was almost entirely replaced by sound material. The expenditure amounted
to $990.75.

During 1897-98, the work performed consisted in placing five rows of new floor
stringers, each row extending for 200 feet ; in laying about 18,000 feet B.M. of new
covering on the top of the breakwater ; in renewing the cap-timber, 12 inches square,
for a distance of 160 feet ; in placing 15 new fenders, varying from 13 to 30 feet in
length, against the side of the work ; and in completing the repairs to the close-sheath-
ing of the seaward face by the addition of 51 pieces, five to nine feet long. Eighty-two
yards of rock were also blasted from a reef which prevented vessels from coming along-
side the work. The expenditure was $500.

MIZZONETTE.

This work, nine miles east of Grande Anse, Gloucester county, was builtlby the
department in 1889 on the southern shore of Mizzonette (Maisonnette) Point, and
inside Caraquette harbour for a local boat landing. The wharf, 12 feet wide on top,
and 500 feet in total length, is constructed of round timber in the form of blocks and
spans of 12 and 20 feet respectively. The head, also of round timber, is 20 fect square
and stands in about two feet at low water. Spring tides rise six feet.

For an unimportant boat landing, this work, already becoming worm-eaten, is very
long, and since there appears to be the same depth of water at a point 300 feet distant
from the shore, as was found at the outer end, it is proposed to shorten the work and
reduce the cost of maintenance. To this end, a cribwork block 17 feet long, 12 feet
wide, and 10 feet high, was built during 1897-93 with the object of forming a new pier
head ; the covering between the new block and the shore was also repaired in places
and the approach restored. The expenditure incurred amounts to $249.75.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND,

Partridge Island is a rocky eminence standing at the mouth of St. John harbour
and dividing the entrance into east and west channels. The island is devoted to quar-
antine and lighthouse purposes.

At the northern end of Partridge Island two narrow piers of cribwork give shelter
to the boat landing of the station. Between them a substantial block of cribwork 50
feet long and 22 feet wide, begun and nearly finished in 1896-97 as a foundation for
the disinfecting house, was completed in the succeeding year; a boat slip, intended
for use at low stages of the tide was partially built and a new mooring post put in and
minor repairs made at the end of the west pier.

The expenditure for the year ended 30th June, 1898, amounted to $676.69.
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QUACO.

Quaco, St. John county, is on the northern coast of the Lay of Fundy, about 30
miles to the north-eascward of the entrance to St. John harbour. The bay is semi-
circular and lies open to the south-east between Quaco Head and Macomber Point, some
two miles apart ; its depth from a straight line drawn between these two points being
about a mile. A small river discharges into the eastern end of the bay near its mouth,
and a harbour of refuge has been formed there by the construction of breakwaters,
each 300 feet in length, one on each side of the mouth. The harbour is dry at low
tide, and only accessible for coasting vessels and schooners which come to load timber,
&c., or to seek shelter for about six hours during each tide. Spring tides rise about 30
feet and neaps 23 feet.

The west breakwater which had been damaged by storms for a distance of
149 feet, the sheathing and several longitudinals of the sloping cutside face being
stripped off and a quantity of ballast washed out, was repaired during the year
ended 30th June, 1897 ; besides which the east breakwater was protected by brush and
stone placed along the foot of the cribwork to prevent scour from the fresh water stream.

On the western breakwater the longitudinal face-timbers of the damaged part were
generally renewed with birch, 14 inches square, and secured where possible with screw
bolts. The stone washed out was replaced and some additional ballasting done. The
face was also covered with new sheathing for the distance mentioned, two fenders were
renewed and a ladder placed near the shore end. Thirteen new fenders were also
placed on the east pier, and the decayed tops of five others replaced by sound material.
Small repairs were made to the covering and sheathing, and another ladder placed against
that work. The expenditure in 1896-97 amounted to $1,377.51.

In 1897-98 by the striking of a schoouner the corner fenders and sheathing of the
west pier were started from their position. The damage thus done was repaired by an
expenditure of $30 applied to closing a small opening and strapping the angle.

RIVER ST. JOHN AND TRIBUTARIES.

During the year 1897-98, assistance was given by the department to the
following wharfs built by the Provincial Government of New Brunswick :—

To Chipman wharf, 80 feet long in the face and standing in about eight feet at low
water, $300. This wharf is situated at the village of Chipman on Salmon River in
Queen’s County, at the head of the Grand Lake system of navigation.

To Burton wharf, 56 feet long in the face, standing in about four feet at low water,
$180. This work is near Oromocto, in the County of Sunbury, on the main river
St. John.

To Court House wharf, 42 feet long in the face, standing in about six feet at low
water, $240. This wharf is also on the main river and in Sunbury County.

Ruver Tobique.—For the passage of tow-boats on the Tobique, 19 channels, 18 inches
deep and 30 to 75 feet wide, were made through as many shoals for an aggregate length
of 3,525 feet. On the same river the construction of a dam at the Forks was begun
and was about half completed by the end of the year when the expenditure on this
tributary amounted to $764.39.

Grand Falls.—At Grand Falls, the end of the shear dam, injured by ice, was cut
off and the opening closed at an expenditure of $100.

St. Francis.—By an outlay of $297.90, channels were made on the St. Francis
through Gros Bar, Jones’ Bar and Cross Lake Rapids, an aggregate length of 1,000 feet ;
while at Abb’s Island and Horseback Rapids, tow-boat navigation was improved by the
removal of boulders and ledge rock. The expenditure incurred in 1897-98—for
works carried out on the River St. John and tributaries—amounted to $1,832.29.
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SHEDIAC.

Plating bolts at the foot of the sloping face of the breakwater, at Pointe du Chéne
(Shediac), Westmoreland county, which had been slightly started by ice, were driven
down at a cost of $2.

SHIPPEGAN.

In the passage from the Baie des Chaleurs to the Gulf of St. Lawrence, between
Shippegan Island and the mainland, two fathoms can be carried almost right through.
The obstruction to the strait lies at the southern end and consists in a bar of littoral
drift 800 yards wide between the 12-foot lines, over which formerly only 3} feet, but
since construction of the works, nearly 64 feet are found at low water.

To the fishing fleets of Shippegan, Caraquette and other parts of Baie des Chaleurs
the outlet to the gulf by way of Shippegan Gully is of the utmost importance ; it fur-
nishes means of avoiding a long and hazardous voyage round Point Miscou besides
effecting a gain of two days per week in reaching and returning from the banks. The
mouth of the gully (lying 16 miles north of Tracadie and about the same distance east
of Caraquette) is bordered by beaches of sand above water level ; this sand is apparently
deposited upon a heavier drift of shingle.

The works at Shippegan are intended to preserve and to deepen the channel
between two sandy beaches by which access is given for fishing boats to the sheltered
waters of Shippegan harbour. The depth of this channel is maintained by tidal scour,
hence it is of the utmost importance that no other opening of any kind than the navi-
gable channel should occur in the beaches.

From 1875 to 1889-90 the works were confined to the east side and consisted of a
dam 890 feet long of brush, stone, and piles, built to close a run through the beach and
protection works constituting the pier, 1,220 fqet in total length, one-third being ecrib-
work, while the remainder resembles in composition the dam.

The west pier, 1,104 feet long, is constructed of pilebents 10 feet apart, carrying
walings to which close-piling is secured. The interior is filled with layers of brush and
stone. Between a cribwork spur of the eastern breakwater or pier-head and the west
pier-head, a distance of 718 feet, the scour induced by contraction has been sufficient to
produce an additional depth of three feet nearly all across.

The east pier having been breached by the sea in three places, the west pier-head
having been damaged, and the west beach so denuded of sand by the wind as to be
completely cut through to the danger of the channel (by loss of scour), extensive repairs
were begun in September, 1897. During this year the breaches on the east side
of the gully were partially closed with cribwork and with piles for a distance of 210 feet,
and wholly closed for a distance of 134 feet by work virtually involving reconstruction
of the pier. The eastern pier-head was protected at the corner with close-piling ; the
cribwork strengthened with piles and walings ; the dam on the eastern beach repaired for a
distance of 452 feet ; and an apron 375 feet long applied to stop leaks. Some of the
work performed on the east side was rendered necessary by storms which raged in
November, 1897.

On the west side, 39 close-piles were driven round the pier-head which was refilled
to a depth of five feet with brush and stone ; while 2,000 feet B.M. of covering were laid
at the inner end. To restore the crest of the beach a breastwork 1,684 feet long, formed
of stakes, poles, brush and shingle having on each side hurdle groynes at intervals of 40
feet, was more than half built during the year ended 30th June, 1898. This work, 17
feet wide across the hurdles, is intended to catch the sand when driven by the wind and
to raise the beach sufficiently high to allow bent grass to be planted, when further
denudation will be prevented or retarded. Although not yet finished, it has caused an
increase in elevation of a foot in the beach for about one-half its length.

A false channel, originally five feet deep and 120 feet wide, was closed with brush
mattresses and ballasted with stone. After the mattresses had been placed, another
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false channel, 43 feet long, 15 feet wide and of the same depth, made by high tides
through the beach, was closed in a similar manner.

Total expenditure incurred in 1897-98 ... ... ........ $9,999 97

Materials to the value of about $1,500 remained available for the continuation
of the work next year.
The value of the fishery of the districts benefited was, in 1{ 97-98, $629,696.

ST. JOHN HARBOUK—NEGRO POINT.

Negro Point is a headland about 60 feet above high water mark, at the western
entrance to St. John harbour, which is formed by the estuary of the River St. John on
the northern side of the Bay of Fundy.

Spring tides rise 28 feet, neaps 22 feet.

In addition to convenience of position for distribution by rail of cargoes landed at
the city of St. John, St. John harbour is remarkable principally for great tidal range
and for consequent freedom from ice in the winter months. The harbour is open,
broadly speaking, from south-east to south-west, but southerly waves are broken by
Partridge Island and south-west waves are mitigated by Negro Point breakwater ;
while the foul ground, a shoal tailing down from the peninsula on which the city is built,
must have more or less effect in moderating the force of south-easterly seas rolling
round Mispec Point.

By Partridge Island, a rocky eminence devoted to quarantine and lighthouse pur-
poses, the entrance of St. John harbour is divided into east and west channels. In the
former or main channel a depth of 21 feet is found on the bar at low water ordinary
spring tides, according to the chart. Half a mile inside the crest of the bar, a depth of
five fathoms is found in the narrow fairway, while higher up and between the principal
wharfs on either side of the harbour (500 yards broad at that point) 12 fathoms are
given in mid-channel. The west channel, 10 to 14 feet deep at low water and originally
1,200 yards wide, has been contracted by Negro Point breakwater extending 2,200 feet
in a south-westerly direction from the headland, so styled.

The official reasons for undertaking this work are thus stated in the reports of the
Minister of Public Works for 1875 and 1382 :—

¢ 1875.—This break water extends south-easterly from Negro Point at the western
“ entrance of the harbour of St. John. When completed, it will extend a distance of
¢ 2,250 feet, closing up the west channel to that extent, leaving, however, a width of
¢ 1,000 feet between the outer end and Partridge Island. The object is to break the
< force of the seas which roll into the harbour of St. John during the south-west gales
“ in the Bay of Fundy and which render it dangerous and almost impossible at such
“ times for vessels to make the harbour.”

¢« 1882.—South-westerly winds threw in a heavy sea through the western channel
“ which rendered it difficult for vessels to make the harbour as they were in danger of
* being driven on the foul ground on the eastern side of the channel. In the spring of
« 1875, a breakwater, 2,250 feet long to partially close the western channel, was hegun,
“ and in September, 1877, completed.”

Reference to the chart will show that as long as the present opening remains the
object of the breakwater has been only partially fulfilled. In dealing with reduction of
the bar, a more cogent reason than improvement of shelter may be found for the exten-
sion of the work to Partridge Island.

The breakwater consisted at first of a cribwork core, 30 feet wide at the base and
15 feet wide at the top (5 feet above high water ordinary spring tides), protected on both
sides by stones sloping to seaward at the rate of two horizontal to one vertical
and landward at the rate of ove to one. By the month of February, 1879, 1,300 lineal
feet of the cribwork had been swept away to a depth varying between 13 and 19 feet
from the top, the stones having been raked duwn by wave-action to a slope more nearly
approaching the angle of repose of the material. 1In 1880, temporary repairs were made,
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and in 1881 a contract, completed six years afterwards, was entered into, whereby the
lost cribwork was replaced by heavy stones and the seaward slope made 3 to 1. Even
this flatter inclination proved too steep for stability, consequently, notwithstanding their
size, the stones, though smoothly laid, were soon displaced by the sea. A length of 50
feet of the breakwater, extending at full height beyond a masonry pier built under the
same contract to support a beacon, was also swept away. From 1891 to 1894, desultory
repairs were made by the addition of large stones, chiefly deposited about the end to
prevent the lighthouse from being undermined.

In May and June, 1895, four large blocks of concrete were placed for the same
purpose in front of the pier at its base. In 1895-96, seven concrete blocks founded at
about the level of low water neaps, were built in situ around a quadrant of the outer
end, to receive the foot of a slope proposed to be laid of heavy granite blocks inclined at
4 to 1. The blocks were from 59 to 91 tons each, all but the heaviest being laid in one
tide. The granite pier was also re-enforced by a semi-circular skin of concrete 7 feet in
average thickness and strongly battered, placed around the front and brought to the
level of high water springs. The footing blocks were 15 feet long, 12 feet wide, and
unless varied for the sake of foundation, three feet high in the face, sloping upward at the
rate of four to one on the top. Each block was free to settle independently, but all were
keyed together by splayed concrete joggles. Inside part of the space within the quadrant,
stones of the original work, added to sone sinall granite, were collected and grouted as
far as funds permitted, in default of the heavy granite (which will require special plant)
necessary for the slopes of this breakwater ; but weight is the great desideratumn.

Pending consideration of works necessary for deepening the entrance to the harbour,
which might possibly involve the extension of the breakwater, nothing more was done
during the year 1896-97 than appeared requisite to protect the unfinished superstructure
just begun and to preserve the lighthouse, except the completion of a break at the
shore end. )

To this end, 135 blocks of concrete forming aprons were laid in position at the outer
end of the work between October, 1896, and June, 1897. A quantity of stone which had
swept round the point of the breakwater from the seaward to the harbour side was also
replaced in position. Some of this stone was laid outside the heavy footing-blocks built
in the previous year and some applied to restoration of the crest of the work at the back
of the lighthouse. Breaches carried below the level of high water have been made by
the sea at five or six points in the rubble mound between the lighthouse and the shore.
An illustration of the violence of the seas which break against the Negro Point break-
water is furnished by the removal of a stone of five tons a distance of 76 feet in one winter.
A marine dynamometer secured to the masonry of the lighthouse records the wave-force
at 4,000 lbs. and upwards per square foot.

In order to retain along the seaward face of the work, for natural protection, the
littoral drift formerly swept by the waves over the top into the harbour, a break of piles,
brush, stone and timber 270 feev long, eight feet wide and four feet high, begun in 1895,
was completed in 1896-97, and extended 140 feet along the timber work during that year,
with good effect. As a result of the construction of the break, the foreshore has
advanced seaward 62 feet along the face at the level of the top of the breakwater, while
at one point the beach has increased in height 24 feet and in breadth 75 feet.

A general accretion of the beach has taken place. In addition, a tongue of drift
observed after the erection of the break, when near the shore, has at the foot of the talus
on the seaward side, travelled 200 yards or more towards the end of the breakwater.
The formation of this spit, generally 10 feet wide, and two feet high, against the work,
indicates that the drifting sand, gravel, shingle, &c., which formerly went over the
breakwater into the harbour, will in time afford important natural protection to the
work and will reduce the length of face to be maintained.

During the year 1897-98, as a measure of precaution, 152 yards of granite were
obtained and deposited about the lighthouse for protection during the winter; while
stones, previously removed by the sea, were replaced in position.

The advance of the foreshore rendered necessary the extension of the timber break,
which was carried a distance of 80 feet farther along the top of the breakwater. A
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small groyne was also built for the purpose of obtaining some information as to the extent
of the littoral drift near the shore end. To preserve the timber, the tops of the piles and
the knees of the break were given two coats of pitch.

The expenditure in 1897-98 was £1,840.65.

STONY CREEK.

At Stony Creek, Albert county, eight wmiles below Moncton, on the Petitcodiac,
there is a groyne of round and square timber 290 feet long, 20 feet wide on top and 36
feet high at the outer end, which has been built by the department, 1873 to 1875 ; the
object being to deflect the current from a reef said to be dangerous to vessels and to
protect the river bank from erosion.

During the year ended 30th June, 1898, four tiers of the end were rebuilt
and the corners fendered, one being sheathed and strapped. The cap-timber was also
renewed for a distance of 294 feet, and fenders were placed against the sides. The
work was filled with brush and stone for a distance of 140 feet and a new mooring-post
was placed at the end.

The expenditure was $500.

TWO RIVERS.

Two Rivers is a small cove of Chignecto Bay on the shore of the county of Albert,
about six miles from Anderson’s Hollow, and the same distance from Harvey.

Under contract dated 6th of April, 1898, the construction of a wharf, intended to
facilitate the shipment of agricultural products, was begun on the 25th of the following
month.  The work is to consist of a pier-head, 40 x 35 feet, connected by stringers
crossing an opening of 20 feet with a shore block 40 feet wide and 56 feet in mean
length. The whole is of round cribwork, approached by a ramp 35 feet long. At the
close of the year the pier-head, intended to stand in 14 feet at high water, was
11 feet high at the outer end, and four feet high at the inner end ; while the shore block
had been brought up to a height of three feet from the foundation.

Expenditure up to 30th June, 1898, 8442.82.

TYNEMOUTH CREEK.

Tynemouth Creek, St. John county, 21 miles east of the city of St. John, is one of
the several small havens, dry at low water, found on both shores of the Bay of Fundy,
which are only useful on account of the high range of tide. Tides rise here about 928
feet. Inside a beach of gravel and stones, is a tidal basin, accessible to small vessels at
high water by an opening at the east end of the beach.

In 1874-75 the department built a substantial cribwork pier on the rocky fore-
shore of the eastern cliff to prevent vessels from taking ground on that side.

In 1882-83, another work to maintain the channel was built on the point of the
beach on the opposite side.

In 1894-95, a sum of $225 was applied in replacing some of the fenders and cover-
ing of the east pier and in removing part of a rocky ledge obstructing the channel.

In 189798, a sum of $510 was expended in removing 813 cubic yards of shingle
from a shoal obstructing the entrance, and in effecting minor repairs to the west pier.
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QUEBEC.

ANSE A BEAUFILS.

Anse & Beaufils is a small fishing settlement in the county of Gaspé, on the Gulf
of St. Lawrence, 6 miles south of Percé. Spring tides rise 5} feet, neap tides 3 feet.
Across the mouth of the river Anse & Beaufils, which flows through the settlement, a
bar has been formed by the accumulation of sand. This bar encloses a small basin
which is used by the fishermen as a harbour of refuge for their boats during stormy
weather. For a short time in the spring, an entrance is kept open by the current of
the river, but as soon as the freshets are over the entrance is closed and the fishermen
have to haul their boats over the bar into the basin.

In the session of 1897 a sum of $1,600 was granted by Parliament for construction
of a retaining wall from deep water in the Gulf to deep water in the basin, and for
cleaning by hand of a channel through the bar, along the south face of the wall. Owing,
however, to delays in procuring materials no work was done, the only expenditure
incurred being $577.31 towards the purchase of timber, iron and tools.

ANSE AUX GASCONS.

The village of Anse aux Gascons, in the county of Bonaventure, is situate on the
north shore of Baie des Chaleurs, in the municipality of Port Daniel East, seven miles to
the eastward of Port Daniel and 42 imiles west of Percé. Spring tides rise 6 feet, neap
tides 3 feet. The locality is considered to be one of the best fishing stations on the
Baie des Chaleurs, the fleet cunsisting of over 60 boats in sumnmer and 100 in the fall.
The codfish catch averages from 4,000 to 5,000 quintals every season, beside which large
quantities of salinon and lobsters are also obtained. The bay is entirely open to south-
erly gales against which it affords no protection. In order to enclose and protect an
area with sufficient depth of water at extreme low water spring tides to accommodate
the largest class of fishing boats and trading vessels of moderate draught, a sum of
$5,000 was appropriated by Parliament in its session of 1897 towurds the construction
of a breakwater, 400 feet long and 20 feet wide. Tenders were called for the work, and
on lst February, 1898, a contract was entered into for its construction for the
bulk sum of $11,494. The work was well under way at the close of the last fiscal year
when a sum of $5,000 had been expended.

BAIE ST. PAUL, CAP AUX CORBEAUX.

The village of Baie St. Paul, in the county of Charlevoix, with a population of about
1,400, is situated on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, sixty miles east of Quebec.
It is built on both sides of the Rivi¢re du Gouffre, which empties into a bay one mile
and a quarter deep and three miles wide at its entrance. The bay is dry at low tide
with the exception of some small channels. Spring tides rise 20 feet, neap tides
13 feet. In 1874-75 an isolated block 200 feet long and 25 feet wide, with a
head 60 feet long and 50 feet wide, was built in 12 feet of water at low water
spring tides, on the west side of the bay at a distance of 3,000 feet from shore at
high tide and 600 feet at low tide. This block was built for the accommodation
of the lightships when taken to or removed from their moorings in the St. Lawrence,
and was also used by steamers as a landing pier. But as it was not connected with the
shore the accommodation it afforded to passengers and freight was so poor that it was
decided to build a landing pier on the east side of the bay, at Cap aux Corbeaux, three
miles from the village. .
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Construction.—During the winter of 1881-82 timber was procured for the proposed
structure, which was completed in 1885 at a total cost of $35,933.71. It was then 712
feet long, 30 feet wide, and its head stood in seven feet of water at low water spring
tides. In 1887 an earth embankment and cribwork approach were built at a total cost of
$1,170.60 to connect its shore end to the road built by the municipality. Owing, however,
to the insufficient depth of water at its head the pier could not be and was not used by
steamboats, and passengers and freight were still landed on the isolated block from
which they had to be conveyed in row-boats or scows to shore. It was therefore decided,
in 1888, to add yearly to its length until a depth of about 14 feet at low water spring
tides was reached. With this end in view four extensions, aggregating 354 feet in
length and 30 feet wide, were built by contract, at a total cost of $24,512.84 including
superintendence. The first extension—60 feet in length—was constructed in 1889 at
a cost of $4,867.92; the second, 94 feet in length, in 1890 and 1891 at a cost of
$7,327.13 ; the third, 100 feet in length, in 1893 at a cost of $6,372.79 ; and the fourth,
also 100 feet in length, in 1895, at a cost of $5,945. The depth of water at the head
of the pier at low water spring tides was therefore increased from seven feet in 1885 to
eight feet in 1889, nine feet in 1891, 10} feet in 1893 and 113 feet in 1895. The pier,
as it now stands, is 1066 feet long, 30 feet wide throughout, and 37 feet high at its
outer end. Its top stands 53 feet above high water spring tides. It is built throughout
of close-faced cribwork filled with stone ballast. The face timbers are 12" x 12” dimen-
sions, and the cross ties and longitudinals are round logs not less than 14 inches
diameter at the small end. :

In order to reach the proposed depth of 14 feet at low water spring tides, and
complete the pier in accordance with the scheme laid out in 1888, a further extension
145 feet long is required. Plans and specifications for this work, which will constitute
the head of the pier, have been prepared—a portion of the amount required was granted
by Parliament last session—and tenders will be called for its execution.

Repairs.—In 1886 some minor repairs amounting to $82.16 were effected, and in
1888 a further sum of $35.66 was expended. In 1893 the spring thaw and rains caused
an extensive landslide which completely obstructed the road leading to the pier for a
length of 200 feet. Another approach has therefore been built some distance out from
the one built in 1887, in order that, should another land slide occur, which is very
probable, the new approach would not be interfered with. The new approach which is
260 feet long, 15 feet wide and of an average height of nine feet, was built of cribwork
filled with stone and gravel at a total cost of $898.47.

In November, 1893, a sum of $124.27 was expended in renewing 234 deals in the
flooring of the old portion of the wharf. In 1895 general minor repairs were effected to
the amount of $379.77. In November, 1896, the approach built in 1893 was raised 2}
feet on its total length of 260 feet, 18 toises uf stone ballast were placed in it, and it
was covered with 3-inch deals. Thirty fenders were placed on its seaward face to
strengthen the work. Part of the flooring of the pier was also renewed, 300 deals being
employed. These repairs were executed by day labour at a cost of $900.42.

During the past year 1897-98, the earth embankment, which constituted a portion
of the approach built in 1887, was washed away and was rebuilt of cribwork filled with
stone ballast, on a length of 100 feet. The width of the new work is 12 feet and its
average height 10 feet. Two courses of face-timbers and cross-ties at the shore end of
the pier were renewed on a length of 550 feet and new floor stringers, flooring and
snubbing posts put in. Some 12” x 12" timbers in the western face of the structure, at
its outer end, which had been broken by the ice, were renewed, and this face was
sheathed with 6 inch maple 15 feet long on a distance of 200 feet. .

The work was done by day labour, during the months of July and August, at a
cost of $3,505.75.

The total amount expended on this work is $67,543.65, as follows —

Construction.. ... «.........oiviiiinneennnnnnns . $61,617 15
Repairs.......... ... ... il i, 5,926 50
Total.......oov it ennns $67,543 65
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BEAUPORT.

The village of Beauport in the county of Quebec, is situated at the mouth of the
river of the same name on the north shore of the River St. Lawrence, two miles below
the city of Quebec. It contains two large flour and grist mills, nail, match, grindstone,
cement, lime and cotton factories, and the building stone, of which there are extensive
quarries, is in great demand, large quantities of it being annually shipped. Spring tides
rise 21 feet, neap tides 13 feet. At low water spring tides, the water of the St.
Lawrence recede about 3,700 feet from the mouth of the Beauport River.

In 1888 a wharf 200 feet long, 25 feet wide, and eight feet high at its outer end,
situated on the west shore of the Beauport River at its mouth, was purchased from Mr.
Edouard Caron for the sum of $800. The purchase was made subject to the structure
being thoroughly repaired and raised three feet by the vendor. The work was completed
to the satisfaction of the department in 1890 when the total amount paid out, including
legal expenses, was $932.07. The wharf was then 11 feet high at its outer end which
stood in 10-80 feet of water at high water spring tides. In 1890 the filling of the wharf
with stone ballast was completed and its approach raised at a cost of $300. In order to
provide increased shipping accommodation a close-faced cribwork extension, 121 feet
long and 30 feet wide was built to the old work during the past year, at a total cost of
$3,352.58. The new work is 14 feet high for half its width and from seven to nine feet
high for the other half, and affords an increased depth of six inches of water at its outer
end at high water spring tides. Its foundation has been carried down to a depth of five
feet below the level of the beach in order to render dredging along its face possible
should it be required. The total amount expended on this work is $4,584.65.

BELEIL (GUARD PIERS).

Beleil is a post village in Verchéres county, on the north side of the Riche-
lieu River, with a station on the Grand Trunk railway, 21 miles north-east of Montreal.
It has an express office, one store, two hotels, one saw mill and the works of the Hamil-
ton Powder Co. Population 400. The Richelieu River leaves Lake Champlain at its
northern extremity and after a course of 80 miles enters the St. Lawrence at Sorel. It is
broader and more rapid in the former than the latter part of its course, and near its
centre it expands into the Basin of Chambly. The Richelieu forms an important part of
the navigation between the St. Lawrence and the Hudson River.

South of the Grand Trunk railway bridge which crosses the river at Beleil, the
Government huilt a number of piers and booms on both sides of the channel to facilitate
the passage of steamers and barges coming down the rapid current of the river and
going through the narrow passage of the draw-bridge, and to prevent them from being
carried out into shallow water. There are eight piers or four on each side of the
channel, distant from 80 to 100 feet from one another.

From 1885 until 1888 some slight repairs were made to the booms at a cost of
$353.43. In 1890-91 three of the piers were rebuilt from the water line and some
slight repairs were made to the booms at a cost of $1,500.35. In 1891-92 two other
piers were rebuilt from the water line at a cost of $1,193.38, In 1895-96 some slight
repairs were made to the booms at a cost of $144.79.

In 1896-97 it was found that the guide piers on the west side of the river,—four
in number—built many years ago, were in such bad condition that they could not
properly be repaired, and an entirely new line of guide works was adopted. It was de-
cided to build a solid cribwork wall from the Grand Trunk railway pile abutment
upward, following the line of a 15° curve (about the natural curve of the shore) for a
distance of 337 feet; to remove the four old piers and booms, and to dredge a wider
channel for the free passage of boats. During the year some dredging was done
amounting to $730.45 and $2,170.12 was expended in procuring stone, iron, &c., re-
quired for the construction of the cribwork. In 1897-98 the sum of $5,974.28 was expen-
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ded in building the cribwork up to an elevation of 15 feet. This work when completed
will be 337 feet long, 15 feet wide and 20 feet high.
The total amount expended on this channel since 1885, is $12,066.80 as follows :—

Repairs and reconstruction of mooring piers......... $ 3,191 95
Construction of cribwork guidewall ... .......... . 8,874 85
Total. .................. .12,066 80

BERTHIER (EN HAUT).

Berthier (en haut), in the county of the same name, is a town of 1,600 inhabitants
situate on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, 45 miles below Montrz2al, and opposite
the town of Sorel.

Construction.—In order to protect the village and wharfs against the action of
drift ice, the sum of $2,000 was appropriated by Parliament in 1686 for the construc-
tion of an ice pier which was completed in 1887, at a total cost of $1.611.04. Being
found too low, it was raised three feet in 1888 at a cost of $99.97.

Sufficient protection was not, however, atforded by the work to prevent considerable
damage being done by the ice during the spring floods of 1896. A new ice
pier 25 by 30 feet high, was therefore constructed in 1897 on the edge of the beach, at
the upper end of the town, at a total cost of $2,584.16. The piers have answered all
expectations.

Repairs.—1In 1892, minor repairs were effected to the ice pier built in 1887, at a
cost of $13.50. In 1897 attention was called to the fact that the only protection the
lower part of the town had against ice shoves, was a low ice breaker at the head
of the Richelieu and Ontario Navigation company’s wharf. The ice breaker
being very much out of repair, and the formation of the shore such that the construe-
tion of a new pier, in an equally good position would have been costly and an impediment
to navigation, permission was obtained from the company to repair and increase the
héight of their work. This was done at a cost of $733.29.

Minor repairs were last year effected to the ice pier built in 1897 at a cost of $8.50.

The total amount expended on the above mentioned works is $5,050.46, as follows :

Construction....... ... ..... ... 0o 84,295 17
Repairs....... ........... e 755 29
Total................... ... ... %5050 46

BERTHIER (EN BAS).

The village of Berthier, in the county of Montmagny, is situate on the south shore
of the St. Lawrence, 24} miles below Quebec. Spring tides rise 20 feet, neap tides
13 feet.

Construction —A. landing pier was completed at this place in 1853 at a cost
of $37,724.14 and the sum of $1,760 expended for repairs up to the 30th June, 1867,
The pier, which was built of cribwork filled with stone ballast, was 466 feet long, of a
uniform width of 32 feet, with the exception of its outer 57 feet which was 60 feet
wide and 34 feet high at its outer end, which stands in from six to eleven feet of water at
low water spring tides. In 1883 an appropriation was made for the construction of an
extension 100 feet long and 30 feet wide with an arm 80 feet long and 30 feet wide standing
in a depth of 14 feet at low water spring tides. It was built by contract and com-
pleted in 1886 at a total cost of $11,310.39.

Repairs.—In 1877-78 the pier was thoroughly repaired ; some of the face-timbers
and ties which were decayed were renewed, and the whole roadway was planked over to
prevent the broken stones of which it was made from being washed out by the heavy
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seas which frequently broke over the pier. The total expenditure for repairs to this
work since Confederation was then $9,024.15. Owing, however, to the age of the
main portion of the work, constant repairs were required, and up to 1896, a further
sum of $3,656,14 was expended in renewing portions of the flooring, cap pieces, corner
sheathing and moving parts, and for the reconstruction of the moveable slip which was
broken during the fall of 1889,

During the past year, portions of the flooring were renewed, 250 planks being used
for the work. The repairs were done during the month of August at a cost of
$98.15. :

The total amount expended on this work is $61,812.97 as follows : —

Construction—Prior to Confederation.. ..... ........ $37,724 14
Since C s 11,310 39
Repairs.......... oo i 12,778 44
Total.......... ........0 .. ....... 861,812 97

BIC.

Bic is an important village and summer resort, in the county of Rimouski, on the
south shore of the St. Lawrence, 170 miles below Quebec. It contains a number of flour,
saw, and carding mills and two cheese factories. Spring tides rise 14} feet, neap tides 18.

Construction.—In 1884 it was decided to build a landing pier to accommodate the
extensive local trade of the village. The work was carried out by day labour and
completed in 1887 at a cost of $15,931.08. It is situate to the eastward of a
group of islets which lie at the mouth of the Bic River, and is 1,120 feet long over all,
of a uniform width of 20 feet apart from its outer 85 feet which is 30 feet wide, and 15
feet high at its outer end, which stands in 12 feet of water at high water spring tides,
and dries at low water of both spring and neap tides. The pier consists of 22 cribs placed
25 feet apart connected with platforms. The shore end crib is 35 feet long and 20 feet
wide, the two outer ones which constitute the head of the pier, are 30 feet square and
the remaining nineteen are 25 feet long and 20 feet wide. An opening 50 feet wide has
been left between the second and third cribs from shore, in order not to interfere witha
branch channel of the river. The cribs are substantially built of close-faced cribwork,
with 12 x 12 inch timber, and filled with stone ballast.

Repairs.—Minor repairs were effected to the work in 1894 at a cost of
$197.50, and in 1896 a further amount of $587.22 was expended in renewing portions
of the flooring, cap pieces and stringers which had become decayed. During the past
year, 16,215 square feet of the flooring out of a total area of 22,952 square feet were
renewed with 3-inch spruce deals ; also 1,500 feet of 8 x 8 inch capping. The floor
stringers were raised and strengthened where required, placing upright posts under them,
and a crib nine feet long 20 feet wide and six feet high with vertical posts tosupport the
flooring, was built in the centre of the 50 foot opening originally left in the shore end
of the work. These repairs were eftected by day labour at a cost of $1,248.85.

The expenditure on this work is $17,964.65. as follows :—

Construction.... ...... ...cceeivenneeenniiaa., $15,931 08

Repairs... .. ... oo e 2,033 57

Total. .ot e e $17,964 65
BOUCHERVILLE.

The village of Boucherville is situate on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, in
the county of Chambly, 9 miles below Montreal.
Construction.—During the winter of 1888-89 the Boucherville Navigation com-
pany built a block 544 feet long and 23 feet wide, with a breakwater 10 feet longat the
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upper end, at a distance of 175 feet from the shore. The block was handed over by
" the company to the municipality of Boucherville in the summer of 1890. During the
winter of the same year the department was asked to connect the block with the shore,
and an examination of the locality was made at a cost of $20.85. In 1891 anapproach
of solid cribwork, 175 feet long and 24 feet wide, was built at a cost of $3,663.68.

Repairs.—During the last year the sum of $1,079.19 was expended for general
repairs. The upper or western face of the work, the breakwater and the outer face
of the head of the pier were sheathed down to low water line, with 3-inch hemlock
deals, the flooring of the slip was renewed, and the corners of the head of the pier and
of the slip, the slanting face of the breakwater and the angle formed by the flooring
and face-timbers along the whole length of the western tace of the approach were
entirely covered with boiler plate § inch in thickness.

The total amount expended on this work is $4,763.72, as follows :—

Construction . ... .............cive e voeoe...... 83,684 53
Repairs ............ ..... e ceveiena.. 1,079 19
Total............ e e e $4,763 72

CACOUNA.

Cacouna, one of the favourite summer resorts of Canada, is an important village
in the county of Témiscouata, on the south shore of the river St. Lawrence, 120 miles
below Quebec. Spring tides rise 193 feet, neap tides 9} feet.

In order to accommodate the trade of the village and surrounding localities, it was
decided in 1891 to commence the construction of a landing pier off Indian Point and
to add yearly to its length until a depth of about 13 feet of water, at high water spring
tides, would be reached. To more promptly provide the needed landing accommodation
the construction of the pier was commenced by day Jabour, during the same year, at its
outer end by the building of an isolated block 103 feet long, 24 feet wide at the top
and 27 feet wide at the base, and respectively 17 feet 3 inches and 163 feet high at the
outer and inner ends. The work, which was built of openfaced cribwork, with 12 by
12 inch timber and sheathed on all its faces with 3-inch spruce deals, was completed
in 1894 at a cost of $6,828.03. Its head stands in 12 feet 9 inches of water at
high water spring tides, and is about midway between high and low water lines of
spring tides, about 875 feet distant from the former. In 1895 an extension shorewards
60 feet long, 22 feet wide and 16 feet high at its inner end, was built in the same man-
ner as the main blcck at a cost of $2,017.34.

During the past year a further extension towards Indian Point, 143 feet 8 inches
long, 22 feet wide and 15 feet high at its inner end, built of close-faced cribwork and
sheathed on all faces with 3-inch spruce deals, was added to the structure at a cost
of $3,679. Materials, timber and iron, worth $1,300 were left on hand and will be
uged in the extension to be built next year. The work is now 306 feet 8 inches long,
which leaves a length of about 568 feet yet to be built to connect it with Indian Point.

The total amount expended on the work since it was commenced in 1891 is
$13,824.37.

CAP A L’AIGLE.

The village of Cap a I'Aigle is on the north shore of the River St. Lawrence, in the
county of Charlevoix, 93 miles eust of Quebec and three miles below Murray Bay.
Spring tides rise 20 feet, neap tides 13 feet.

Construction.—During the seasons of 1881 and 1882 a landing pier, 160 feet long
and 35 feet wide, with a depth of water of 18 feet at its outer end, at low water spring
" tides, was built to accommodate the local trade at a cost of $2,946.26. In 1883 a
combined waiting-room and freight shed was erected on the pier at a cost of $250, and
In 1884 fenders and moving parts were placed on the structure, the amount expended
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being $345. In order to meet the requirements of the fast increasing traffic
of the locality, which is without railway communication, and to provide increased accom-
modation to the steamers and numerous schooners calling at the pier, an extension 50
feet long, 40 feet wide, and of an average height of 42 feet, was built by day labour
during the past year, along its eastern face at a cost of $4,754.44. The pier is
now 160 feet long and 35 feet wide with an arm 50 feet long and 40 feet wide. The
depth of water along its outer face is 18 feet at low water spring tides. It is entirely
built of cribwork filled with stone ballast and sheathed with rock elm or maple six
inches in thickness. :

Repairs.—Owing to its exposed situation the pier has frequently been damaged by
ice, and up to 1894 a sum of $1,270.13 had been expended for repairs. In 1897 it was
again thoroughly repaired at a cost of $816.49.

The total amount expended on this work is $10,382.32, as follows : —

Construction. . . . .. e e 3 8,295 70
REPAITS vrve e oo iiie o e 2,086 62
Total.....c. oo oo i ceeoo.. 810,382 32

CAP SANTE.

The village of Cap Santé, the chief town of the county of Portneuf, is situate on
the north shore of the St. Lawrence, five miles below Portneuf, and 31 miles above
Quebec. Spring tides rise 14} feet, neap tides 8% feet. At neap tides the boats can
only approach the landing pier when the water has risen to the height of 7 feet 9 inches,
and even then only with danger, owing to the numerous boulders which are strewn along
the foreshore of the river. The boulders form part of a reef which extends along the
line of low water at a distance of about 1,100 feet from the head of the pier. The work
of blasting the most dangerous boulder from the channel leading to the pier was com-
menced in 1889 when a sum of $252.43 was expended. The channel was further
improved in 1890 at a cost of $500.85. During the last year a number of other boulders
was blasted and removed at a cost of $423.49.

The total amount expended at this place is $1,176.77.

CHICOUTIMI,

The town of Chicoutimi, in the county of the same name, is situate on the south
shore of the Saguenay River, 71} miles above Tadousac, and at the head of navigation.
The Richelieu and Ontario Navigation company’s boats calls two to six times a week at
the Chicoutimi pier, during the season of navigation, with passengers, freight and mails.

At the mouth of the River Chicoutimi, about one mile above the pier, there is an
extensive lumbering establishment belonging to the Messrs. Price who export large
quantities of sawed lumber, laths, shingles, &c., to Europe and elsewhere, in ocean vessels
and large schooners which ascend the Saguenay to the town. Spring tides rise 15 feet,
neap tides 8 feet.

Construction.—The landing pier was commenced in 1873 by the St. Lawrence Tow
Boat company and completed by the Dominion Government, to whom it was handed
over in 1874, at a cost of $14,193.40. From 1874 to 1882 inclusively, it was extended
and improved at a total cost of $2,823.76. The pier was then 282 feet long, and con-
sisted of an approach 248 feet long and 30 feet wide and of a head block 34 feet long
and 127 feet wide forming two wings respectively 70 and 27 feet wide. On the upper
or 70 foot wing was a combined waiting-room and office 20 feet square.

The depth of water at the-.end of the pier, which was originally 10 feet at low
water spring tides, was then reduced to 7 feet by the accumulation of slabs and sawdust
from the mills at the mouth of the Chicoutimi River.
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In 1883 the shore end portion of the approach on a length of 38 feet was embedded
in an embankment upon which the station and sheds of the Chicoutimi branch of the
Lake St. John Railway are now erected. The length of the approach was thereby
reduced to 210 feet. In 1884 the approach was widened 70 feet by filling in with
slabs the whole space, 210 feet in length, between the upper or 70 foot wing and the
shore, and a store house 40 feet long and 24 feet wide was erected on this extension at
a total cost of $2,145.84. The filling was not, however, carried up to the level of the
top of the pier until 1885, when the extension was floored in a manner similar to the
rest of the work. A separate waiting-room was also erected on the lower or 27 foot
wing. The amount expended was $2,042.11. In 1890 a cribwork retaining wall 14
feet wide was commenced along the slab filling built in 1884 and the flooring was
repaired where required at a total cost of $1,005.81. In 1891 the cribwork retaining
wall was completed, a shed 28 x 20 feet built at the southern end of the pier and the
flooring was repaired at various places at a cost of $1,802.70. In 1897 the pier was
again widened by the addition of cribwork 30 feet wide along its lower or eastern face,
from the lower or 27 foot wing to shore, a distance of 210 feet. The cribwork was fully
ballasted and floored with 3-inch tamarack planks, and 25 fenders were placed along its
face ; the pier was also sheathed for a length of 50 feet along its northern face in order
to complete the sheathing all around the work. The total expenditure incurred was
$4,992.96.

As now completed the pier is 245 feet long, and 130 feet wide. It is 29 feet high
above the bottom of theriver at its outer end, which stands in about eight feet of water
at low water spring tides.

Repairs.—In 1883 and 1886 minor repairs were effected to the flooring, &ec., at an
aggregate cost of $288.55. In 1887 a slip was built at the outer end of the pier, the
waiting-room was painted and general repairs performed at a cost of $1,390.35.
. In 1889 the flooring of the pier was almost entirely renewed and six fenders, 14 inches
square, were placed along its outer face at a cost of $1,631.65. In 1892 and 1893 the floor-
ing of the pier was again completely renewed on a length of 210 feet and a width of 110
feet with red spruce planks five inches in thickness; the east side of the structure was
raised 18 inches ; the waiting-room was painted both inside and outside, and two mooring
posts were renewed. The expenditure incurred during the two years was $3,024.04. In
1894 a sum of §1,999.60 was expended for the construction of a moveable slip and the
purchase of two crab winches to raise it. During the years 1895 and 1896 a portion of
the outer face and the whole of the eastern face of the structure were resheathed with
red spruce six inches in thickness, and the portion of the flooring not completed in 1893
was laid. Expenditure during the two years, $3,991.88. During the fiscal year a sum
of $239.79 was expended on minor repairs to the flooring, sheds and waiting-room.

; The total expenditure on this work is $41,572.44 and may be subdivided as
ollows :-—

Construction.. . . . . e R ... $29,006 58
Repairs....... ..o v ciiiiiie i 12,565 86
Total.... ...... e 841,572 44

COTEAU DU LAC.

The village of Coteau du Lac, in the county of Soulanges, is situate on the north
shore of the St. Lawrence, thirty-six miles and a half above Montreal

Construction.—In 1888 the construction of a landing pier was commenced, and
was completed in 1889 at a cost of $6,918.71. It consists of a head block of solid
cribwork, 101 feet long and 21 feet wide, with a cribwork extension, 40 feet long and
47 feet wide, built along the middle of its inner face, and of a block and span approach
75 feet long and 26 feet wide. The outer face of the head block is 15 feet high above
the bottom of the river and stands in 10 feet of water at ordinary low water. Across

45



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899

the inner end of the extension to the head block is built a freight shed of the full width
of the extension and 20 feet long, with a passageway for vehicles through its centre.

Repairs.—During the year 1894-95, sundry repairs were effected to the structure
at & cost of $249.99. In 1896-97 most of the floor stringers and the whole flooring of the
pier, which were decayed, were removed, new floor stringers were put in and the whole
structure was refloored with 4-inch hemlock planks at a cost of $694.58.

In 1897-98 sundry repairs were made to the corner sheathing, capping, etc., at a
cost of $200.41. .

The total expenditure on this work is $8,063.69 as follows :—

Construction. .. ... .........ouiiuiie v, $6,918 71
Repairs.......... .. ..... ... ... ... oo 1,144 98
Total...... e e 88,063 69

COTEAU LANDING.

Coteau Landing, the chef-lieu of the county of Soulanges, is situate on the north
shore of the St. Lawrence, at the foot of Lake St. Francis, thirty-six miles above Mon-
treal, and two miles from Coteau station on the Grand Trunk railway.

Construction.—In 1871, a mooring pier was built by the department at a distance
of 880 feet from shore, and in February, 1872, a contract was entered into for the en-
largement of the pier and its connection with the shore by a block and span approach.
The work was completed in October, 1875, at a cost of $11,453.88. It consists
of a head block 249 feet long and 24 feet wide, with an ice breaker 30 feet long at its
upstream end, and of an approach 880 feet long and 12 feet wide except for a length of
92 feet near the head block where it is 24 feet wide, to give vehicles room to pass. The
head block, and the portion of the approach 92 feet in length immediately adjoining,
are built of open-face cribwork filled with stone ballast, and the remaining portion,
788 feet in length of the approach, is a block and span structure. The outer face of
the head block is 18 feet high above the bottom of the river and stands in 12 feet of
water at low water.

Repairs.—Minor repairs were effected to the pier in 1882 at a cost of $8.00. The
structure was considerably damaged by ice in the spring of 1896 and was thoroughly
repaired during the same year at a cost of $1,544.42. TIn 1889 the department com-
menced the reconstruction of the block and span portion of the approach, which was
completed during the year 1889-90 at a cost of $4,005.91. The new approach has
a general width of 12 feet, with two sidings 115 feet long and 12 feet wide for the passing
of teams. In 1891 the reconstruction of the head block 279 feet long, 24 feet wide was
commenced, and was completed in 1892 at a cost of $5,658.42. In 1897 the wharf was
again thoroughly repaired. Some of the stringers were renewed and the whole of the ap-
proach, and a portion of the head block were refloored with hemlock planks 4 inches in
thickness at a cost of $1,797.03. During the last year the outer face of the head block
was resheathed with 6-inch hemlock at a cost of $314.20.

The total amount expended on this work is $24,781.86 as follows :—

Construction...........coocieuin ciiie L, $11,453 88
Repairs and construction......... .. .. ........... 13,327 98
Total ..........c.. it $24,781 86

GATINEAU RIVER.

(Protection to east bank.)

The Gatineau, a river of Quebec, rises in alarge lake in lat. 48° N, long. 75° 30' W.,
flows south, entering the Ottawa river near Hull, is 400 miles in length, draining
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an area of 9000 square miles and is navigable for canoes for upwards of 300 miles. The
timber berths on this river and its tributaries are very extensive. About 280,000 saw
logs are floated down annually.

In 1890-91, it was brought to the attention of the department that the east bank
of the river Gatineau, below the Canadian Pacific railway bridge (which is about two
miles above the outlet) was being rapidly washed away by the action of the current,
and it was feared that if nothing were done to check this, that the water in the spring
would enter into a coulee which at some points was only five feet from the river,
and damage and perhaps destroy a great portion of the village of Gatineau Point.
Some protection work was done without delay by the construction of a retaining
wall, about one mile above the Gatineau Point church, to stop any further encroach-
ment on the river bank, along which runs the public highway. This wall is 340
feet in length and is built of pile work. The space between the front row of piles and
the bank is filled with fascines and stones. The cost of this work was $1,506.96.
In 1894-95 a further expenditure of $1,288.10 was made to protect another portion of
the eastern bank about 800 feet below the former work. Is was also built of pile
work, 320 feet in length and the space between it and the bank was filled with fascines,
stones and earth.

In 1897-98 it was found necessary to expend a further sum of $3,989.95 in protecting
the eastern bank, for a distance of 340 feet above the bridge and 2,900 feet below it,
in order to stop once for all this continual erosion of the bank which at some places has
washed it away for a distance of 200 feet inward. This protection consisted in the cons-
truction of pile work walls as already described for a length of 240 feet above the
Canadian Pacific railway bridge and in different lengths, making a total of 1681 feet,
below the bridge. These works have proved sufficient to check any further encroach-
ment.

The total amount expended on this work is as follows :—

Fiscal year 1890-91.... . ... ........ ....... .. ... %1506 96
do 1894-95............ R 1,288 10

do 1897-98. . .. o 3,989 95
Total......ovne it i $6,785 01

GEORGEVILLE WHARF,

Georgeville is a village on the eastern side of Lake Memphremagog, in the county
of Stanstead, and 11 miles to the southward of the village of Magog at the head
of the Lake. Tt is a port of entry of considerable importance, and all steamers, plying
between Magog and Newport (State of Vermont U.S.A.), call at the wharf.

This landing pier was built by subscriptions from the several steamboat companies
which kept it in repair until 1888, when its control was assumed by the Govern-
ment. At that time it had a total length of 210 feet and a breadth of 18% feet, and
was supported on six cribs ; a wing of say 56 feet by 12 feet had been added at the
outer end where the depth available at ordinary low water was about 9% feet. As
originally completed it stood 18 inches above extreme high water, but owing to a perma-
nent rise in the lake, caused by the construction of a dam at Magog, its top was till
1888 level with the surface of the water, the consequence being that during periods of
high water or when the wind blew strongly from the south, the paddles of steamers
fouled with the pier, and received more or less damage. The top of the wharf including
the arm down to low water mark, was moved bodily to the west by ice in the spring of
1888 and many timbers were either completely torn away or broken, the platforms
sustaining also considerable damage.

During the year 1888-39 some urgent repairs were made : the top timbers of every
crib excepting the two shore ones, being renewed as well as the platforms and flooring over
the whole surface of the wharf at a cost of $661.43. In 1889-90 the sum of
$1,995.27 was expended for the construction of two cribs 12 feet wide, 37 feet long and
16 feet high, which were set in front of and firmly bound to the two which actually
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formed the head of the wharf, to increase its resistance against ice shoves. The whole
wharf was rebuilt from low water mark and raised two feet higher than its actual
level. In the course of 1895 the approach to the landing block being defective the
municipality removed the flooring and platforms between the shore and the fifth pier
and filled the whole with a solid earth and stone embankment 160 feet long. In 1897-98
some stringers were renewed and the whole outer block was replanked. A new waiting
room was also built at a cost of $678.96.
The cost of repairs made to this wharf may be summarized as follows :

1888.89—Urgent repairs....... T . R 3 661 43
1889-90—Construction and repairs..... ... ..., .. 1995 27
1897-98—Repairs to outer block ... ... .. ... 678 96

fotal . . ... ... 83,335 66

GRAND-PABOS.

The harbour of Grand-Pabos, in the county of Gasps, is situate at the mouth of the
river of the same name on the north shore of Baie des Chaleurs, 30 miles west of Percé,
and about midway between Cape Despair and Pointe Maquereau.

In 1885 the department commenced the improvement of the harbour, which lies
within the mouth of the river, by the removal of dangerous rocks which obstructed its
entrance. This work was continued in 1887 and 1889, when a sum of $2,582.93
was expended. In 1890 a combined training pier and breakwater of close faced crib-
work 215 feet long, 24 feet wide and about 10 feet high along its western face was
built on a reef which extends in an easterly direction off the west shore of the river
into the bay. The amount expended was $32,906.95. Tn 1893-94 the pier was
extended to shore, the dimensions of the new work being: length 120 feet, width 21
feet, average height 11 feet. It was built of closefaced cribwork and completed during
the year with the exception of the flooring, outside sheathing and some ballasting
at a cost of $1,999.53. Work was resumed on the extension in 1894-95 and the
portions unfinished were completed. Some dangerous rocks lying in mid-channel of the
river and along the face of the work were also removed, the amount expended being
$1,558.99.

The training pier, which is now 335 feet long, has confined the river waters into
one channel about 75 feet wide, seven feet deep at low water spring tides, and practi-
cally clear of all obstructions. A few jutting points of rock will, however, have to be
removed to make it perfectly safe at all times of tide.

Repairs.—In 1896-97, a sum of $500 was applied in sheathing with spruce flatted
to 10 inches in thickness, a length of 200 feet of the inner face of the training pier
which had been damaged by ice. The repairs commenced in 1896-97 were completed
during the past year at a cost of 3799.15. The seaward face of the pier for a length of
309 feet, and its outer end, were sheathed with spruce flatted to eight inches in thick-
ness and from 10} to 15 feet in length. The outer end of the work on a length of 150
feet was raised about 15 inches, and new stringers and flooring put in.

The total amount expended on this work since it was undertaken in 1885 is
$10,347.55, as follows :—

Tmprovement of channel ................. ... ... % 2,582 93
Construction of training pier.... ................. 6,465 47
Repairs to do . . 1,299 15

Total ...................... e £10,347 53

ILE AUX GRUES.

Ile aux Grues, or Crane Island, with a population of about 640, is an island of
7,873 acres in extent which lies in the St. Lawrence, opposite Cape St. Ignace, 30 miles
below Quebec. Spring tides rise 18 feet. Neap tides, 10 feet.
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Construction.—In 1862 an isolated block and lighthouse were erected near the
upper end of the island, in the harbour of Pointe aux Pins, at a cost of $10,334.42.
The block was placed about 140 feet above low water line of spring tides and was used
as a landing for passengers and freight during the period of high water. To enable
vessels to call and land passengers and freight at low water, a contract was entered
into in November, 1881, for the construction of a pier 171 feet long, 25 feet wide at its
inner end, 35 feet wide at its head, and 27 feet high, projecting from the block into
four feet of water at low water spring tides. The work was completed in 1883 at a
cost of $11,716.17, but as it was not connected with the shore the accommodation
it afforded to passengers and freight was so poor that it was decided to complete the
structure. On the 30th January, 1884, a contract was therefore entered into for the
construction of a cribwork extension to shore, 468 feet long, 25 feet wide and from
seven to 15 feet high, which was completed in 1885 at a cost of $9,848.27. The
right of way from the shore end of the pier to the main road which had not been secured
was purchased in 1894 at a cost of $200, and in 1895 a sum of $45.55 was paid for pro-
fessional services in connection with the purchase.

The pier is now 639 feet long, of a uniform width of 25 feet apart from its outer
75 feet which is 35 feet wide, and 27 feet high at its head which stands in four feet of
water at low water spring tides. A portion of the block built in 1862 still remains,
on the eastern side of the present pier. The whole work is built of close-faced cribwork,
with square timber 12 by 12 inches dimensions, and is filled with stone ballast. Its
outer end and corners, and the inner corner of the portion 35 feet wide are sheathed
with timber eight inches in thickness. The cross-ties and longitudinals are round logs
not less than 14 inches diameter at the small end.

Repairs.—No repairs were effected to the pier up to the past year ; but, during the
month of August, 1898, a portion of the flooring which had become dangerous was
renewed, a path four planks wide was laid over the old flooring on the whole length of
the structure ; two ladders were placed, one on each side of its outer end, and a snubbing
post renewed. The work was done by day labour at a cost of $105.58.

The total amount expended on the work is £32,249.99, made up as follows :—

Construction, before Confederation ................. $10,334 42
do since do ... 21,809 49
Repairs .......covviveinvnns. P 105 58
Total cuervviennee coviiiiiiiiins s $32,249 99

ISLE PERROT-—WHARFS.

Isle Perrot, a post village in the county of Vaudreuil, one mile from Ste. Ann’s,
is situate on the south side of the island of the same name and has a Roman Catholic
church, for a population 860. Both the Grand Trunk and the Canadian Pacific
railways cross the northern end of the island, but the nearest stations to the village are
Vaudreuil and Ste. Anne de Bellevue. The island is in the St. Lawrence, south-west
of the island of Montreal, between Lake of Two Mountains and Lake St. Louis and is
about seven miles long.

Isle Perrot, South Side.—In 1886-87 a contract was entered into -with Mr. D.
O'Brien for the construction of a pier of cribwork consisting of a block, 120 feet long,
30 feet wide, in a depth of eight feet of water at a distance of 581 feet
from the shore. It was completed in the year 1887-88 at a cost of $5,264.26.
During the years 1888-89 and 1889-90 the sum of $7,156.29 was expended in
building an approach 16 feet wide from the shore to the outer block. This approach
consists of ten cribs four of which are 12 feet and six 20 feet in width and connected at
top by timber spans of stringers and planking. The shore abutment has a length of
184 feet and its top is covered with a layer ;f gravel. A freight and shelter shed 16
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feet by 20 feet has been erected and its cost is included in the above amount. Last
year, 1896-97, & sum of $395.93 was expended in making general repairs to the wharf.
The total cost of this work is as follows :—

Cost of construction. .. ... ...ccievriiieisnncrannnne $12,420 55
Repairs. ..o vveiiiieiin ciecr ittt . 395 93
0 7 R $12,816 48

Isle Perrot, North Side.—In 1897-98 a small wharf with a right of way on the
north side of the island was purchased from Mr. Joseph Leduc for the purpose of pro-
viding a convenient landing on the Ottawa River shore. This right of way is 400 feet
long and extends from the public road to the wharf, the first 355 feet having a width of
30 feet and the remainder near the river a width of 100 feet. The wharf is close to
and parallel with the shore, and is 20 feet wide by 52 feet long, at the head, being
inadequate to the requirements of the traffic and in a dilapidated condition; an outer
block was built close to the old wharf with a landing face of 80 feet and a width of 20
feet. This work, done by day labour, was commenced in June, 1898, and was not
completed at the end of the fiscal year. Itis built of cloasefced timbers to a height
of 19 feet and is sunk in 13 feet water.

A good road on the site of the right of way was also built from the public road to
the wharf.

Amount expended . ... ... il 8841 98

ISLE VERTE.

The village of Isle Verte, the chief town of the county of Témiscouata, is situate
on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, 16 miles below Rivitre du Loup and 131 miles
east of Quebec. It has a population of 4,500 and contains flour, carding and saw mills,
and carriage and threshing machine factories. Spring tides rise 19 feet. Neap tides,
12 feet.

Construction.—In 1888 the construction of a landing pier was commenced by the
building of an isolated block 50 feet long, 40 feet wide and 20 feet high at a distance
of 1,300 feet from high water line of ordinary spring tides. The sum expended was
$3,606.30. The approach was commenced in 1889 and completed in 1893 at a
cost of $15,991.50. The pier is now 1,307 feet long, and consists of an open-faced
cribwork approach 1,257 feet long, 21 feet wide, of an average height of seven feet,
and of a head block 50 feet long and 40 feet wide. The head of the pier, which is 18
feet high above the bottom of the river, is dry at low water spring tides, but stands in
16 feet of water at high water. The top of the pier is two feet above high water spring
tides.

Repairs.—In 1894, the north and east sides of the head block were sheathed with
rock elm four inches in thickness, and strenghthened by three iron straps four inches
wide and § inch in thickness. The outer block was also floored and four ladders
were fixed to its sides; expenditure $998.28. In 1895 the south and west sides
of the head block were sheathed with rock elm, and other work performed at a cost of
$903.02. Last year the flooring of the approach at its inner end, was entirely renewed
on a length of 350 feet and the rest repaired. The middle pathway, four planks wide,
was renewed from end to end of the approach, the cap pieces were partly renewed and
the snubbing posts were painted. The work was performed by day labour at a cost of
$600.

The total expenditure on this work is $22,099.10,

Construction. ... ... iiiier i e $19,597 80
Repairs. ... ovovvnviieie i 2,501 30
Total ........ . ..o $22,099 10
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KAMOURASKA.

The village of Kamouraska is a favourite summer resort situate on the south shore
of the St. Lawrence, in the county of the same name, 90 miles below Quebec. Spring
tides rise 17 feet. Neap tides, 10 feet.

Construction.—In 1887 a landing pier, 180 feet long, 42 feet wide and 15 feet high
at its outer end was purchased for the sum of $1,000, thoroughly repaired, and por-
tions of it were rebuilt at a cost of $2,818.37. In 1890 a close-faced cribwork
extension 100 feet long, 25 feet wide, and 164 feet high at its outer end, was built at a
cost of $2,855.99. The pier is now 280 feet long, it is dry at low water, but at high
water of ordinary spring tides, a depth of 12 feet is available along the end and sides
of the extension built in 1890. The top of the work stands 3% feet above ordinary, and
two feet above extreme high water spring tides.

Repairs.—In 1891, the outer portion of the eastern face of the old work purchased
in 1884, was demolished and rebuilt with an inclined slip 76 feet long and 17 feet wide at
a cost of $898.63. In 1897 the whole western face of the same work, 180 feet in length,
was taken down and rebuilt for a width of 12 feet. The work was performed by day
labour at a cost of $995.62. During the past year the inner portion of the eastern face
of the old work, 110 feet in lenguh, not rebuilt in 1891, was taken down and rebuilt for
a height of five feet, the floor stringers and flooring were renewed on a length of 80
feet, both faces of the structure were sheathed with 3-inch deals on a total length of
490 feet, 48 cubic yards of stone ballast were placed in the slip, three snubbing posts
were renewed and four ladders were placed, two on each side of the structure. The work
was done by day labour at a cost of $736.63.

The total amount expended on the work is as follows :—

Purchaseof the work ... .ot iiienin i i, $1,000 00
Construction and improvements ..................... 5,674 36
Repairs ... iviiiinieneinniann e, NN 2,630 88

Total voevrneriniinnn i $9,305 24

LAKE MEGANTIC—PIERS.

Lake Megantic, is about 73 miles S.E. of Sherbrooke ; length, 12 miles ; average
breadth, two to four miles, with a coast line of over 36 miles. This lake and the rivers
that run into it, form the head waters of the Chaudiere River.

From the year 1882 to 1886, six wharfs were built on the shores of this lake to
accommodate the trade of the several localities at St. Agnes, Lourdes, Flint, Victoria
Bay, Ditchfield, Lake Megantic and Piopolis.

St. Agnes (late Morinville) is situated at the mouth of the Chaudiere River in the
county of Beauce. The construction of the wharf was commenced in the year 1882-83
and completed during 1883-84 at a cost of $5,876.78.

In 1884-85 some slight repairs were made amounting to 103 50

1886-87 s ‘ 59 00
1889-90 « ‘ ¢ 209 68
1890-91 “ “ «“ 77 25 -
1891-92 « “ «“ 349 80
1892-93 ‘ “ “ 300 00
1893-94 “ “ «“ 300 19

Total.......v...... $1,399 42
The total amount expended on this work is $7,276.20 as follows :—

Construction. ... .o.ceveevetevacsassnssssscasanans $5,876 78
Repairs and improvements. ... .. Ceeeeieaiiaens eers 1,399 42
Total...... cereea.. 87,276 20

61

Jemmivemdd



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) - A. 1899

Lourdes is situated on the south-eastern corner of Lake Megantic, in the county of
Compton. In 1883-84 asmall wharf 190 feev long was built at a cost of $1,194.71.
In 1889-90 some slight repairs were made at a cost of $169.68. In 1890-91 it was
damaged by an ice shove and was repaired at a cost of $500. '

The total amount expended on this work is $1,864.39 as follows :—

Construction...........ooveun.n e e e $1,194 71
Repairs, tc.. ..., cocve i 669 68
Total... .......... $1,864 39

Flint'z wharf was built in 1884-85 at a cost of $1,712.41. In 1886-87 it was
damaged by ice and was repaired at a cost of $323.78. In 1889-90 some small repairs
were made at 3 cost of $156.26. The total amount expended on this work is $2,192.45,
as follows :—

CONSEIUCHION . .« . v v s ve oo ae it e e et e e 81,712 41
Repairs............... oo e e 480 04
Total.............. $2,192.45

Victoria Bay is situate in the township of North Marston in the county of Comp-
ton. In 1885-86 a small pier was built at this place for the acconunodation of the local
trade at a cost of $854.20 and some slight repairs were made to it in 1889-90 at a cost
of $80.00.

CONSEIUCHION « « & o o vt e eee e e ie st e e .... 8854 20
Repairs. . ... c0 ov e s i e 80 00
Total.............. $934 20

Ditehfield—A small pier was built at this place in 1886-87 at a cost of $1,484.75

Piopolis is a post village in Compton Co., on the west shore of Lake Megantic,
11 miles from Lake Megantic village, on the Canadian Pacific railway. The wharf at
this place was built in 1882-83 at a cost of $721.60. Tt is built of solid cribwork
filled with stones, with a covering made of gravel. Tn 1887-88 some small repairs were
made to it at a cost of $77. In 1897-98 a vote of $2,500 was granted to raise and
repair the Government wharfs on Lake Megautic, on account of the rise in the lake
level caused hy the dam which the Montague Pulp Co. built in 1895 across the Chau-
diere River at its outlet from the lake. The wharf was repaired and raised five feet
above its original height and a covering made to it in gravel at a cost of $623.05.

The total amount expended on this work is $1,421.65 as follows :

Construction . ........... N § 721 60
Repairs...... ... iove oo oo e 77 00
Repairs and improvements................. ..l 623 05

Total. .. ettt e e 3 1,421 65

Lac Megantic is a post village in Compton Co., on the Canadian Pacific Railway,
60 miles from Sherbrooke.

Some extensive repairs in the flooring etc., of the wharf were made during the year
1888-89 at a cost of $873.02, In 1897-98 it had to be repaired and raised four feet
above its original level on account of the rise in the lake caused by the dam above
referred to, at a cost of $1,244.48. ’

The total amount expended in repairing this wharf since its construction is
$2,117.50.

LAKE- BT. JOHN—WHARFS.

Lake St. John lies between the parallels of 48° 27" and 48° 51° N. latitude,
and the meridians of 71° 35 and 72° 10’ W. longitude, about 120 miles north of
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Quebee. Its general shape is circular, and its circumference about 100 miles. It lies
in an immense valley, and is the reservoir into which numerous large rivers and streams
empty, many of which rise in the highlands that separate the North west
Territories from Quebec. The principal of these rivers are the Mistassini, Periboka,
Kocuatien, Riviére a la Pipe on the north, the Ashuapmouchouan and Ouiatchouanish
on the west, the Ouiatchouan on the south-west and the Metabetshuan, Kushpahiganish
and Belle Riviére on the south. By means of some of these rivers, and their lakes and
tributaries, communication from lake St. John may be had through the St. Maurice
with the St. Lawrence, and through the Gatineau with the Ottawa. This great lake
has its outlet into the Saguenay by the Grande and Petite Décharges, which lie on its
east side. The lake contains a number of beautiful islands and its shores abound
with inexhaustible quarries of limestone and extensive beds of fine marl.

From the year 1892 to 1898, five wharfs were built by the department on
the shores of this lake to accommodate the trade of the parishes of Roberval, St. Féli-
cien, Mistassini, Riviere a la Pipe, and Ticouabé.

Roberval.—This village, in Chicoutimi county, is built on the east banks of River
Ouiatchouanish, near its mouth on the southern shore of Lake St. John, 200 miles
north-east of Quebec city. and is the northern termiuus of the Roberval branch of the
Quebec and Lake St. John railway, which taps the main line at Metabetchouan station.
Population 1100.

This place contains three churches, three hotels, four saw mills, two grist mills,
four cheese factories, telegraph and express offices and some 14 stores, It is a favourite
resort, for sportsmen and tourists generally, in the summer season, when five steamers
leave the Government wharf daily, carrying freight and passengers to and from impor-
tant settlements, as well as on pleasure excursions undertaken for the special benefit of
the large number of people who visit the Lake St. John region every day.

In 1892-93, the department purchased from H. G. Beemer, Esq., for the sum of
$750.00, an isolated block of cribwork, 75 feet long by 30 feet, which had been built by
him at the mouth of the river, 425 feet from the shore of Lake St. John, together with
the right of way to the public road, with a view of utilizing the block, etc., in
connection with the then projected public landing piers. During the years 1892-33 and
93.94 this block was connected with the shore by means of an approach 425 feet by 25
feet, built of six blocks, 20 feet by 25 feet, of ballasted close-faced cribwork, an earth
embankment 50 feet long and six intervening timber spans, at a cost of $5,469.06. In
1894-95, a head block parallel with the shore, 50 feet by 30 feet and 20 feet high, with
slip at outer end was added and the entrance channel of the Ouiatchouanish was deepened
and widened ; 2,750 cubic yards of earth and tbout 60 boulders removed. Total cost
of works carried out $4,200.31.

This pier as completed in 1895, was 500 feet long and 25 feet wide generally, with
the exception of the head block, which measures 50 feet by 30 feet, and has eight feet
of water along its outer face at low water and 19 feet at high water during the season
of navigation : in the winter the lake recedes beyond the head of the pier which is
completely dry all around. During the year 1896-97, a combined freight and shelter
shed, 45 feet by 24 feet, was erected on the head block at an expense of $425.98. In
1897-98 a block of cribwork 75 feet by 25 feet was sunk close to the crib purchased from
Mr. Beemer, for the purpose of widening that part of the wharf to 50 feet. Amount
expended $713.86.

The total amount expended on this wharf for construction is $11.559.21.

St.-Felicien, a post village in Chicoutimi Co., on the Assametquagan River, 15
- miles from Roberval, on the Quebec and Lake St. John Railway. It contains one
Catholic church, five stores, one hotel, and four saw and grist mills. Population 1,000.
During the year 1895-96 a wharf was built to accommodate the local trade. It is 70
feet in length, 26 feet in width, and 22 feet high at the outer end at which vessels
drawing eight feet can lie at low water. A shed 20 feet square was erected on the wharf
at its inner end.
Total cost of construction, $1,999.68.
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Mistassini, county of Chicoutimi, is a settlement on the river of the same name, near
its confluence with “ Riviére au Foin,” or Riviere Mistassini, being 36 miles to the
northward of Roberval on the west side of Lake St. John, and 18 miles above the mouth
of River Mistassini on this Jake. Besides the parish church, there is in the locality a
monastery of Trappist Fathers; also a grist.nill, a saw-mill and a cheese factory:
Population 400. The side-wheel steamer “Colon,” drawing 3% feet of water and
carrying 200 passengers, and a considerable quantity of freight, is subsidized by
the local Government, and calls regularly, twice a week, during the season of navi-
gation. In 1896-97, a public wharf was built for the accommodation of the rapidly
increasing number of settlers on the fertile land around Lake St. John, on the east
side of River Mistassini, immediately above its junction with Riviere au Foin. The
structure consists of a fully hallasted close-faced timber crib 30 feet long, 30 feet wide
and 20 feet high at the outer end, which is floored over with 3 inch plank;
along the outer face there is a depth of five feet at low water. Total amount expended,
$681.04. In 1897-98 a further amount of $150.00 was expended to build a combined
freight and shelter shed 25 feet by 30 feet, at the end of the wharf. An amount of
$23.84 was also paid for sundry accounts. Amount expended, $173.84.

Total cost of construction, $851.88.

Riviére & la Pipe, a small village situate on the north shore of [ake St. John, at
the mouth of the river of the same name, seven miles north of Grande Décharge.

It contains a Roman Catholic church, two saw-mills, one blacksmith shop, and
three stores. Population 400.

The wharf in course of construction is situate at a point on lot No. 118, township
Taillon, about one mile to the westward of Riviere 4 la Pipe. It is being built in a
southerly direction about 75 feet from the shore, for a length of 200 feet and a width
of 25 feet and extends to eight feet depth at the mean summer level of the lake. It
was built of close-faced cribwork up to 18 feet during the year 1897-98 and will stand
25 feet high when completed. .

The wharf will facilitate communication between the northern and southern
shores of the lake which are rendered difficult not only on account of the distances being
great by land, but by the state of the roads, or the entire absence of such. The
. large rivers which flow through the township and territories around Lake St. John
also intercept all means of communication and prevent to a certain extent settle-
ment of the lands.

The Quebec Government has built a good road from the public road to the present
wharf a distance of two miles. The amount expended at the end of the year 1897-98
was $3,998.21.

Ticouabe, a post village in Chicoutimi county, is situate at the outlet of the
river of the same name, 21 miles from Roberval.

A small landing was built at this place during the year 1897-98 to accommodate
the local traffic and to help its development. This wharf consists of a solid block of
close-faced cribwork 30 feet by 30 feet built a small distance from the shore and con-
nected to it by a platform, supported on trestles, 103 feet long and 25 feet wide. A com-
bined freight and shelter shed 25 feet by 30 feet was also built. Total cost of con-
truction $1,611.79.

LANORALE.

The village of Lanoraie is situate on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, in the
county of Berthier, 46 miles below Montreal. It has a considerable trade in flour, grain
and cordwood.

Construction.—In 1884 the construction of an isolated block 70 x 30 feet at the
bottom and 54 x 27 feet on top was commenced at a distance of 240 feet from shore ;
the work was completed in 1885 at a cost of $5,032.01. In 1885 and 1886 the block
was connected to shore by an approach 240 feet long, 25 feet wide, and of an average
height of 12 feet, at a cost of $6,886.36. The upper or western side of this approach for
a height of six feet from the top, was built on a slope of six inches per foot and sheathed
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with four inch tamarack planks, and the top of the approach was built on a grade of
four feet per hundred. The depth of water at the head of the pier is 11 feet at extreme
low water.

Repairs.—During the winter of 1887 the approach was damaged by an ice shove
which curved it slightly towards the east. In April, 1891, it was again moved to the
eastward by another ice shove which increased the pitch of the curve to four feet at a
distance of 80 feet from the head block, and removed two courses of face timber on a
length of 42 feet, and five fenders, on its lower or eastern side. Repairs were com-
menced on the 5th of November, 1891, and completed on the 28th of the same month
at a cost of $416.04. The missing face timnbers and fenders were replaced and fender
piles were driven ten feet apart along both faces of the approach.

(3eneral repairs were effected to the pier in 1¥96-7 at a cost of $1,008.27. The face
timbers, fenders and cap pieces were renewed wherever broken or decayed and the slop-
ing faces of the head block and of the approach were resheathed. During the past
year the flooring of the pier was completely renewed with 3-inch hemlock deals and
general repairs were effected, at a cost of $531.30.

The total amount expended on this work is $13,873.98 ; 311,918.37 being for con-
struction, and $1,955.61 for repairs.

LAPRAIRIE.

Laprairie is the chief town of the county of the same name and is situate on the
south shore of the River St. Lawrence, seven miles above Montreal. It contains
churches for the Episcopalians and Roman Catholics, a convent, an orphans’ home, a
foundry, a saw and carding mill, a brick yard, telegraph office, eight hotels and about
twenty stores. A steam ferry runs between Laprairie and Montreal, making several
trips a day. The population is about 2,500. It is a beautiful spot near the Lachine
Rapids, much frequented in the summer.

The Government has undertaken to protect Laprairie from the disastrous effects of
the spring floods and ice shoves of the St. Lawrence by constructing ice breaking piers,
a revetment wall of cribwork some 1,650 feet long and 20 feet wide along the shore
of the river in front of the town, and an earth embankment 1,600 feet long at its
upper limit. These works, commenced in 1886-87 and continued every year since, are
about completed, and are certainly a good protection to the town.

In 1886-87 two ice piers were built about 250 feet apart at the upper end of the town
facing the St. Lawrence River, to prevent damage being done to property during the
breaking up of the ice in the spring. The piers have proved very effective and cost
$6,736 19. In 1887-88, to prevent a repetition of the past disastrous floods, an
earth embankment was constructed inward from the shore for a length of 1,600 feet at
the western limit of the town. A cribwork retaining wall was also built for a length of
480 feet half way between the eastern ice breaker and the Richelieu Co’s wharf. This
wall is 20 feet wide, 10 feet high from low water mark and is filled principally with
stone, and cost $4,989.75. In 1888-89 another cribwork retaining wall 335 feet
in length from the Richelieu wharf westward, was commenced and completed to a
height of 16 feet above low water mark during the year 1889-90, at a cost of $7,560.52.
It is built of open work, 20 feet in width, with a batter of 1 in 12 on the outer face.
In 1890-91, some general work was done in sheathing the walls previously built at a
cost of $658.58. 1n 1891-92 the retaining wall at the lower end of the town adjoining
the Richelieu wharf was extended a further distance of 131 feet at a cost of $2,495.10.
In 1892-93 a further extension to the wall 420 feet long was built to a height of eight
feet above low water mark at a cost of $2,589.51. In 1893-94 the remaining portion of
the wall built between the eastern ice breaker and the Richelieu wharf, 284 feet in
length, was completed to a height of 10 feet, at a cost of $2,387.39. In 1895-96 the
sum of $2,015.51 was expended in constructing a stone protection work between the
two ice breakers, the distance being 250 feet and raising a portion of the retaining wall
to an elevation of 16 feet above low water mark. In 1896.97, 387 feet in length of
cribwork wall was raised to the level of 16 feet at a cost of $4,400.36. In 1897-98 the
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revetment wall was completed to a height of 12 feet above low water mark at a cost of
$5,640.64. The whole of this work is built of round logs and filled with stone, and
sheathed with 3 in. pine planks.

The total cost of this work is $39,473.55, as follows:

During the fiscal year 1886-87.. ... ................ $ 6,736 19
W “ 1887-88.. ... ... ... ... .. 4,989 75
« ¢ « 1888-89.. ... .. 7,560 52
s ¢ “ 1890-91.. 658 58
L “ 1891-92.. ... .. Lo, 2,495 10
w oo« “ 1892.93....... ... ... L. 2,589 51
woou “ 1893-94.. ... ... ...l 2,387 39
“ oo 2 1895-96.. ........... .. ...... 2,015 51
W “ 1896-97.. ... ..o o Lol 4,400 36
oo« H 1897-98.. ... .. 5,640 64

Total ............ ... ... $39,473 35
L'ISLET.

The village of L'slet, in the county of the same name, is situate on the scuth shore
of the St. Lawrence, 47 miles below Quebec. Spring tides rise 20 feet ; neap tides,
13 feet.

Construction.—In order to accommodate the extensive lumber trade and traffic in
general merchandise of the locality, a landing pier was completed in 1835 at a cost
of $113,343.27. The structure is 1,054 feet long and 31 feet wide, with a head block,
50 feet long, 116 feet wide and 34 feet high. The depth of water along the outer face
of the block is eight feet at low water spring tides. The repairs effected to the structure
before and up to 1875 awounted to $3,590.85.

Repairs.—In 1876 a complete restoration of the pier was commenced, and completed
in 1879, the amount expended being $21,613.36. The superstructure for six or seven
courses was taken down and rebuilt with new face timbers, cross ties and longitudinals,
and completely filled with stone ballast where required. The shore end of the structure,
which was lower than its head and over which heavy seas would break rendering it
dangerous, was raised. Two sidewalks, each six feet wide were laid from end to
end of the pier and the slips put in goud order. From 1880 to 1883 sundry repairs
were made to the face timbers, etc., at a cost of $1,361.23. In 1893 the sum of
$6,190.34 was expended in renewing the floor stringers, flooring, cap timbers, fenders
etc., over the whole structure, and in general repairs to the slip and stairways. In 1894
and 1897 the sums of $21.55 and $396.80 respectively were expended for sundry repairs.
During the past year the face of the slip was sheathed with spruce eight inches in
thickness, the stairway on the western side of head block was repaired, 100 planks in
the sidewalks were renewed and the roadway was levelled with sand and gravel. The
work was done by day labour at a cost of $211.63.

The total amount expended on the work is $146,729.03, as follows :—

Construction, before Confederation................ £113,343 27

Reconstruction of superstructure........ ......... 21,613 36

Repairs ... ... . i e 11,772 40

Total ... ... £8146,729 03
LONGUEUIL.

The town of Longueuil, the chef-licu cf the county of Chambly, is situate on the
south shore of the River St. Lawrence, nearly opposite the eastern end of the city of
Montreal.

56



Department of Public Works.

Construction.—The Richelieu and Ontario Navigation company cwn a wharf at the
upper end of the town but its long distance from the business or centre portion and
the increasing trade demanded new wharfing accommodation. At the request of the
town council the department therefore decided in 1886 to build a landing pier at the
foot of St. Alexander street. In November, 1886, a contract was entered into for the
construction of the outer portion of the pier, which was commenced at a distance of 675
feet from shore. It consisted of a close faced crib-work structure, 430 feet long and of a
uniform width of 20 feet, apart from its outer 90 feet, which was 30 feet wide. It was
completed in 1888 at a cost of $12,491.66. In October, 1889, another contract was
entered into for the construction of a block 40 feet Jong and 50 feet wide along the
lower face of the existing pier at its outer end, and of a close-faced cribwork extension
to shore, 675 feet long and 20 feet wide, with six buttresses 10 feet wide along its lower
face. The work was completed in 1891 at a cost of $16,248.30. The landing pier
was then 1,105 feet in length, including the block at the outer end which was 40 feet
long and 80 feet wide ; the first 90 feet of the pier adjoining the block was 30 feet wide,
and the remaining 975 feet to shore, 20 feet wide. The outer face of the block was 163
feet high above the bottom of the river, and stood in seven feet of water at extreme low
water level.

Repairs.—The portion of the pier completed in 1888 was damaged by ice in the
spring of 1889, which necessitated an expenditure of $1,517.77 for repairs. In 1892
the departmental dredge “St. Louis” commenced work at the head of the pier, but
found the material too hard for her machinery, and after removing 45 cubic yards of
hard-pan at a cost of $24.00, she ceased work. During the spring of 1892 the head of the
pier was damaged, and the block 40 by 50 feet built in 1890 was carried 10 feet down
stream. The opening was filled with cribwork and the plank covering was removed and
replaced with stone and gravel at a cost of $2,496.63. In the spring of 1893 the
head of the pier with the adjoining 180 feet was moved bodily 13 feet down stream by
the ice. In order to give additional weight to that portion of the pier, which is the
most exposed to the action of drift ice, it was decided to widen it by means of cribwork
built at an angle with the approach, and on a line from the lower inner corner of the
head block to the outer corner of the first buttress, a distance of 354 feet, and to fill
with earth and stones the area thus enclosed. A portion of this work was carried out
in 1894 when a crib 250 feet long, 12 feet wide and of an average height of 12 feet was
built in the pesition above described, and the area between it and the original structure
filled level with the top of the pier. The work was done by day labour at a cost of
$2,948.70. In 1895 the remaining portion, 104 feet in length of the work commenced
in 1894 was completed, and the spaces between the buttresses were filled with close-
faced cribwork in order to better enable the work to resist the action of the ice. The
expenditure incurred was $4,214.19. In 1896 some necessary repairs were performed
to the sheathing and face timbers of the upper face of the pier at its outer end, and a
gravel roadway 12 feet wide was laid from end to end of the structure at a cost of
$284.11. Minor repairs were effected to the roadway in 1897 at a cost of $284.56, and
during last year the roadway was again repaired at a cost of $160.66. The
pier is now 1,105 feet long and reaches a depth of seven feet at the lowest stage of the
St. Lawrence. It is 30 feet wide for the first 700 feet from shore and from 30 to 90
feet wide for the remaining 405 feet which constitutes the head of the structure. Exten-
sive repairs were required to the upper face of the work at its outer end, which had
been almost completely broken up by the ice. The reconstruction of the damaged
portion is now being proceeded with. ’

The total amount expended on this work is $40,670.58, as follows :-—

Construction . .... .......cirviriiiiriiiee, $28,739 96
Repairs and improvements................c........ 11,930 62
Total. ..o et e e $40,670 58
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LOTBINIERE.

The village of Lotbiniére, in the county of the same name, is situate on the south
shore of the St. Lawrence, about 40 miles above Quebec. It has no railway commu
nication and depends entirely, for exchange of supplies, on bateaux and market
steamers from Quebec. Spring tides rise 14} feet; neap tides, 8} feet. A landing
piec was built at this place in 1865 by the municipality, but it was soon destroyed by
the heavy ice shoves. Since that time a dangerous and inconvenient trestle structure,
removable in winter, has been maintained by the Steamboat company. In order to
provide more suitable and permanent landing facilities an isolated block was built
during the last year at a distance of 500 feet from high water line. The work was
done by contract at a cost including superintendence, of $5,284.60, and was com-
pleted in October, 1897. It is a solid close-faced cribwork structure, 75 feet long, 25
feet wide at the top, and 96 feet 4 inches wide at the base. Its upstream end and
inner face are built on a slope of 1 in 1, and its outer and lower faces are battered 1 in
12. The top of the upstream end of the work for a length of 15 feet stands 19 feet
above the level of extreme low water spring tides, the height of the remaining 60 feet
being 16 feet above the same level. The depth of water along the outer face of the
work is 1} feet at extreme low water spring tides, The work was substantially built
of 12 by 12 inch timber, sheathed 6n its slope with 9-inch hemlock, on its two other
faces with the same kind of timber four inches in thickness, and filled with stone
ballast of an approved quality. It has successfully withstood the action of the ice
shoves.

The total amount expended on this work is §5,284.60.

MAGOG,

The town of Magog, in the county of Stanstead, is situate at the outlet of the
Magog River from Lake Memphremagog, and is a station on the Canadian Pacific
railway. It is a sub-port of entry and contains saw, grist and cotton mills and carriage
factories.

In order to accommodate the local trade, a landing pier was purchased in August,
1875, for the sum of $2,500. Tt is situate opposite the railway station, and is a pile
structure 430 feet long, 24 feet wide for the first 305 feet from shore and 40 feet wide
for the remaining 125 feet. Its head is 12% feet high above the bottom of the lake and
stands in 7% feet of water at low water.

Repairs.—In 1896-97 the most urgent repairs to the flooring were effected at a cost
of $154.82. During last year a number of broken planks in the flooring were renewed
at a cost of $42.85. The pier still requires extensive repairs to place it in good order
for shipping and landing purposes. .

The total amount expended on this work is $2,697.67, which includes the pur-
chase price, $2,500, and $197.67 for repairs. '

MATANE.

The village of Matane, in the county of Rimouski, is situate on the south shore of
the St. Lawrence, at the mouth of the Matane River, 240 miles below Quebec, and 30
miles by way of Little Metis from St. Octave, the nearest peint on the Intercolonial
railway. It contains several saw and grist mills and one spool wood factory. Spring
tides rise 14 feet ; neap tides, 6-70 feet.

Construction.—In 1879 a sum of $10,000.00 was appropriated for the construction
of alanding pier, and was expended by day labour by a syndicate appointed by the
municipal authorities under the supervision of the department. The pier is built at the
mouth of the Matane Riveralong its western shore, and runs parallel to its channel. It
consists of 10 cribs 30 feet wide, placed 25 feet apart, and connected by platforms. The
lengths of the cribs are: one of 60 feet, four of 30 feet and five of 15 feet, making a
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total length of 480 feet. The pier is dry at low water, but has six feet of water at its
outer end at one-third flood, and 154 feet at high water spring tides. A further sum of
$72.43 was expended on this work in 1880.

In order to prevent the sand from passing through the spaces left between the cribs,
into the channel of the river, these openings were closed in 1882 and 1883 with rows of
close piling driven along the eastern face of the work. The unprotected corners of the
cribwork which had been damaged by ice were also repaired. The total amount
expended during the two years was $5,358.36. In 1884 pile protection works were
commenced along the east shore of the river to prevent the inflow of sand into its
channel. The amount expended was $199.19. The works were completed in 1887, when
a further sum of $500.21 was expended.

In 1886 a landing pier 60 feet long, 30 feet wide and about 20 feet high was built
at the lower outer corner of Messrs. Price Brothers’ wharf at a cost of $1,499.75. In
1892 it was connected to the shore by a block and span structure, 160 feet long and 12
feet wide, and the pier itself was raised and general repairs effected at a cost of
$1,261.79. In 1893 anextension, 185 feet long and 30 feet wide, was commenced to the
pier constructed in 1886. The work was completed in 1894 at a cost of $4,183.83. It
consists of four piers 20 feet long and 30 feet wide and of an average height of 20 feet,
placed 25 feet apart and connected by platforms. The landing pier is now 245 feet long,
30 feet wide and of an average height of 20 feet. The depth of water at its head which
was five feet at low water spring tides at the time the work was completed, has since
shoaled to one foot.

In order to prevent, by scouring, the accumulation of sand in the channel of the
river it was decided, during the past year, to connect the two existing works by a
continuous structure. Plans were therefore prepared for a training pier, 640 feet long and
20 feet wide, built of pilework, close faced on its channel side and floored on a width of
12 feet so as to make it available as a landing pier. ‘Tenders were called for the
work, which was not, however, carried out owing to objections raised by some of the
residents. The only amount expended was $160.68 for printing and advertising.

Repairs.—In 1885 the cribs which form the pier built onthe western shore of the river
at its mouth were repaired, the expenditure being $540.97. In 1895 and 1896 the same
structure was thoroughly repaired. The piles placed along its eastern face in 1882 had
all been broken by ice and carried away, and the corner of the cribs, which the removal
of the piles had left unprotected, had been badly damaged. General repairs were there-
fore effected to the piers, a new row of piles 10 inches square was driven along the whole
face of the work, which was further protected by large stones deposited along its base.
The work was done by day labour at a cost of $1,547.94.

During the past year a sum of $396.22 was expended in sheathing the outer end of
the same work.

Notwithstanding the frequent repairs effected to the various Government works at
Matane, repairs which at times amounted to partial reconstruction, they are all in a very
bad condition due to the action of the ice. The pile protection works built on the east
shore of the river have entirely disappeared ; the landing pier at the mouth of the river
has again been damaged by ice, and the one adjoining Messrs. Price Brothers’ wharf is
in a dilapidated condition. .

The total expenditure on this work since 1879 is $30,721.37, as follows :—

Construction and improvements. .. ...... e $28,236 24

Repairs. ...... e i e e i 2,485 13

Total. ..o e $30,721 37
MONTMAGNY.

The town of Montmagny, in the county of the same name, is situate on the south
shore of the St. Lawrence, on the Intercolonial railway, 40 miles below Quebec. The
Rivi¢re du Sud flows through the middle of the town. Spring tides rise 20 feet; neap
tides, 13 feet.
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Construction.—In 1879-80 an isolated block, 30 feet square, was built in five feet
of water at low water spring tides, on the west side of the basin, within the mouth of
the Riviére du Sud and three-quarters of a mile from the town. The cost of the struc-
ture was $1,513.09. In 1881 the block was extended shorewards 25 feet and an
approach 150 feet long and 24 feet wide was built to shore at a cost of $3,743.89. In
August, 1896, the superstructure of the work was burnt down to seven feet below the
top of the flooring, and the lighthouse, which had been erected upon it by the Depart-
ment of Marine and Fisheries, was also destroyed. The superstructure was rebuilt in
1897, and the work fully ballasted where required. A small waiting room was also
erected at the shore end of the pier, a lighthouse built on its outer end, and the
approaches repaired. Total expenditure, $4,046.51. The pier is now 205 feet long ; the
outer 55 feet are 30 feet wide, and the remaining 150 feet, 24 feet wide. The depth of
water along its outer end is 3} feet at low water spring tides.

Repairs.—From 1883 to 1886 an amount of $2,607.96 was expended on repairs
to the pier and to the roadway leading thereto. In 1887 a number of boulders was
removed from the bed of the Riviére du Sud in the vicinity of the head of the pier at a
cost 0f$1,999.69. In 1889-90-93 and 1894 sundry repairs to the flooring, corner sheathing,
cap pieces, etc., were effected at an aggregate cost of $379.50. During the last year the
waiting room was repaired and painted at a cost of $52.46.

The total expenditure on this work is $14,290.89, as follows :—

Construction and improvements...... ... ... ......... $11,303 43
Repairs........ ... ... il ol e 2,987 46
Total ... oo $14,290 89

MURRAY BAY.

Murray Bay, or Malbaie, is one of the best known and most frequented summer
resorts of the north shore of the St. Lawrence, in the county of Charlevoix, 83} miles
below Quebec. The village is situate on both sides of the mouth of the River Malbaie,
which empties into a bay one mile deep and about 23 miles wide at its entrance. At low
tide the bay is dry, with the exception of small chaunels through which the river
discharges. The steamers of the Richelieu and Ontario Navigation company call here
daily, and a heavy traffic is done. Spring tides rise 20 feet. Neap tides, 12 feet.

Construction.—In 1855 a landing pier was built off a projecting rock, called Pointe
au Pic, situate on the west shore of the bay, three miles from the village, at a cost
of $53,487.20. It was 470 feet long and 30} feet wide, with the exception of its outer
70 feet which was 108 feet wide. Its head, which was 36 feet in height, stood in 12
feet of water at low water spring tides. In 1876 an extension 30 feet long, 108 feet
wide and 42 feet high, reaching to a depth of 18 feet at low water spring tides, was
built along the outer face of the pier at a cost of $14,021.04. In 1883 a moveable slip
was placed in the outer face of the structure to accommodate the landing of passengers
and freight at all times of the tide, at a cost of $448.06. In 1884 a shed was built to
cover the landing slip and a portion of the head of the wharf at a cost of $1,099.11. In
1894 an extension 40 feet long, 35 feet wide and 50 feet high was built along the
western face of the pier, at its head, the total expenditure being $5,675.35. The pier is
now 500 feet long from end to end. Its landing face is 143 feet long and stands in
from 18 to 26 feet of water at low water spring tides. It is built entirely of close
faced cribwork, with timber 12 x 12 inches dimensions, and filled with stone ballast.
Its cross ties and longitudinals are round logs not less than 14 inches diameter at the
small end.

Repairs.—The cost of repairs effected to the structure since its construction
in 1855 until 1882, inclusively, was $3,916.00. Since then, however, and owing to the
strong action of the ice and the considerable wear and tear due to heavy traffic, annual
repairs have been required and executed at a cost, up to 1897 inclusively, of
$8,074.81. During the past year the western side and front of the west wing have been
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sheathed with 7-inch rock elm and the main body of the pier has also been partly
sheathed with 3-inch spruce. The flooring was repaired in places, and two face-timbers
at the inner end of the structure were renewed.

The work was performed by day labour at a cost of $484.16.

The total expenditure on this work is $87,205.73, as follows :—

Construction, before Confederation.................. $53,487 20
Extensions and improvements since Confederation. . .. .. 21,243 56
Repairs...... ..ot i i 12,474 97

Total ......covviinin s e $87,205 73

NEWPORT.

The village of Newport, in the county of Gaspé, is situate at the mouth of the
river of the same name, on the north shore of the Baie des Chaleurs, 88 miles east of
Campbellton N, B. and 50 miles west of Caplan. Spring tides rise 4} feet. Neap tides,
2} feet. The population of the village is extensively engaged in fishing, which is carried
on almost to the exclusion of all other pursuits.

Construction.—In order to provide a harbour of refuge for fishing boats, and
affording them easy access into the river and up to the bridge on the public highway it
was decided, in 1884, to improve the mouth of the river by excavation and construction
of suitable works. The works were not, however, completed until 1887 when a sum of
$2,778.79 was expended. They consisted of two parallel piers placed 20 feet apart ; the
west pier was 75 feet long, 12 feet wide, and of an average height of eight feet; the
east pier, which was originally 140 feet long, 12 feet wide, and 10 feet high, was
extended 90 feet and widened to 20 feet on its whole length, in 1889 and 1890, at a
cost of $3,672.03

Repairs.—In 1891 general repairs were effected to the piers at a cost of $450.00.
During the past year the sum of $26.53 was expended for minor repairs.

The total amount expended on these works is $6,927.35, as follows :—

Construction .. .......coviee it iviierncnneannnenenns $6,450 82
Repairs........coviiniiiiiin it icnienen N 476 53
Total . ............. ... 86,927 35

PHILIPSBURG.

The village of Philipsburg is situate on the east shore of Missisquoi Bay, Lake
Champlain, in the county of Missisquoi, .

Construction.—1In the session of 1882 the sum of $4,000 was granted towards the
construction of a landing pier, the municipality to furnish a like amount ; a survey was
made at a cost of $185.75, which was the only expenditure incurred. A further sum of
$32.79 was expended in 1884 for examination in connection with the proposed landing.
Owing, however, to the refusal of the municipality to grant its share of the estimated cost
of the proposed structure, the work was not carried out, and the scheme was abandoned
until 1894 when a new survey was made at a cost of $108.42. In 1895 borings were
taken over the site of the proposed structure at a cost of $165.94, and on the 29th of
July, 1895, a contract was entered into for its construction, the municipality having
subscribed $4,000 towards its cost. The work was completed in 1897 at a cost of
$11,142.89. 1t consists of a breakwater or head block 120 feet long and 25 feet wide,
of a trestle work approach 302 feet long and 30 feet wide, and of a stone and earth
embankment 285 feet long and 30 feet wide at the top, with side slopes of 14 to 1. The
outer face of the breakwater is 174 feet high above the bottom of the bay and stands
in 7} feet of water at extreme low water.

Repairs.—The émbankment was considerably damaged by ice and high water in
April, 1897. It was thoroughly repaired during the last year, and the ballast chambers
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along the outer face of the breakwater were filled with stone ballast, at a cost of
$711.79.

The total amount expended on this work is $12,347.58, $11,635.79 being for con-
struction and $711.79 for repairs.

PORT AU SAUMON.

Port au Saumon is situate on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, in the county of
Charlevoix, 13 miles east of Murray Bay. Spring tides rise 20 feet. Neap tides, 13
feet.

The harbour is frequented by a number of small vessels which, for want of railway
communication, carry the whole trade of the locality. Its entrance being obstructed
by large boulders, which rendered navigation difficult, in order to make it easier of
access at all stages of the tides, a sum of $462.08 was expended in 1883 in blasting and
removing some of the most dangerous boulders, and the work was completed in 1884,
when a further sum of $499.59 was expended. During the past year, part of a shoal,
which was obstructing navigation, was removed onan area of 75 x 50 feet to a depth of
2} feet at low water, and 40 large boulders and a number of smaller ones were removed
from the channel. The work was done by day labour during the month of November,
1897, at a cost of $294.79.

The total expenditure at this place is $1,256.46.

PORT DANIEL.

The village of Port Daniel is on the north shore of the Baie des Chaleurs, in the
county of Bonaventure, about 75 miles east of Campbellton, N.B. and 45 miles west of
Percé. Spring tides rise 6 feet. Neap tides, 3 feet.

Construction.—During the session of 1886 an appropriation was granted for the
construction of a landing pier. The work was executed by contract and completed in
1889, at a cost of $20,487.58, It was 350 feet long from end to end, 20 feet wide for
the first 200 feet, 30 feet wide for the next 100 feet, with a block 50 feet square and
26 feet high at its outer end which stood in 13 feet of water at low water spring
tides. On the 15th of November, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction
of an extension 75 feet long, 50 feet wide and 27 feet high at its outer end, reaching to
a depth of 13 feet at low water spring tides ; the work was completed in October, 1890,
at a cost of $12,586.44. The pier is 425 feet long, is built throughout of close-faced -
cribwork with timber 12 x 12 inches dimensions ; the cross ties and longitudinals are
round logs, not less than 14 inches in diameter at the small end.

Repairs.—The extension built in 1890 having settled bodily about 3} feet, it was
found necessary in 1895 vo lift up the flooring, some cross ties and longitudinals and to
rebuild the structure to the height of the main body of the pier. The work was done
by day labour at a cost of $998.54.

Repairs and rebuilding of a similar character had to be effected, in 1897, to the
main body of the pier which had settled in places about 3} feet, for a total length of 277
feet. The freight and shelter shed was also removed from its position at the outer end
of the original work to the outer end of the extension, and a portion of it was parti-
tioned off and fitted out as a waiting room. The amount expended was $1,992.75.

During the past-year it was found expedient to complete the levelling up of the -
shore end of the pier for a length of 82 feet. The work was done by day labour at a
cost of $170.51.

The total amount expended on this work since it was commenced in 1887 is
$36,235.82, as follows :—

Construct‘ion ............... €e s ct0ese e 00 e B 0N 800 seace $33,074 02
Repairs.......c.ouvunn. Cetecessiesaniacsreanees 3,161 80
Total.s"--\o..--.-.--.-.atoocoo:co;:lo $36,235 82
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RIMOUSKL

The village of Rimouski is the chief town of the county of the same name, and is
situate on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, 179 miles below Quebec. Itis an
important station on the Intercolonial railway at the point at which the Royal Mail
steamships land and receive passengers and mails during the season of navigation.
Spring tides rise 15 feet. Neap tides, 8% feet.

Construction.—In 1855 a pier was completed, about two miles below the village, at a
cost of $106,944.80. The pier was 2,130 feet long, 20 feet wide for the first 1,400 feet
from shore, and 30 feet wide for the remaining 730 feet. At its outer end it had a
wing turned to the eastward, 70 feet long and 30 feet wide with a return 95 feet long
and 30 feet wide, forming a basin for the shelter of the steamboat used for the transfer
of passengers and mails. The pier was 28 feet high at its outer end, which stood in nine
feet at low water spring tides. The branch line of the Intercolonial railway, built from
Rimouski station for the transfer of passengers and mails to the main line, was run
along the eastern or lower face of the structure, to its outer end. The pier having
settled to some extent near its outer end, which had also been bodily moved some six
feet to the eastward by the ice, it was found necessary in 1890 to build along its
western face a protection pier 325 feet long, of an average width of 40 feet, and 25 feet
high. The work was carried out by contract and completed in 1891 at a cost of
$13,063.61. In 1895 and 1896 plans were prepared for an extension 600 feet long and
40 feet wide, with an arm turned toward the west 260 feet long and 40 feet wide, and
for the formation of a tidal basin along the west face of the extension. These works
were not carried out, the only expenditure incurred, $207.31, being in connection with
the surveys required for the preparation of the plans. The general dimensions of the
structure are still the same as when it was built in 1855, with the exception of that
portion which has been widened to 50 feet by the addition of the protection pier.

Repairs.—Sundry repairs were effected to the work from the time of its completion
in 1855, to 1882, inclusively, at a cost of $2,616. In 1889-90 further repairs were
made to the slips, etc., and a sum of $822.92 was expended. In 1891 the sheathing of
the eastern face of the work had become necessary, as the structure, weakened by age,
could no longer support the weight of trains upon it. The work was therefore commenced
and completed in 1892 at a cost of $6,207.15. A total length of 976 feet was sheathed
with 9-inch. timbers and bolted with § inch iron bolts 18 inches long. In 1893
and 1894 a portion of the western face, 851 feet in length, was sheathed in a similar
manner at a cost cf $4,988.41. In the fall of 1897 the attention of the department
was called to the fact that the pier was no longer in a fit condition to carry the weight
of the trains, It was ascertained by a careful examination made in April, 1898, that
the whole of the superstructure was in an advanced state of decay and would have to
be completely rebuilt. In order, however, to avoid the delay which a complete recon-
struction would cause in the transfer of passengers and mails to and from the steamships,
it was decided to effect only such temporary repairs as would place the pier in a suitable
condition in time for the opening of navigation. The three upper tiers of cross ties and
longitudinals were therefore removed on a length of 1,800 feet from the outer end and
new timbers substituted, the railway track was moved from the east to the west side,
which was considered the safer, and stringers were placed under the rails. The flooring
was also partly renewed on the length above mentioned. The work was done by day
labour and completed during the first week of June at a cost of $4,416.84.

A further sum of $498.55 was expended in sundry repairs to the flooring and floor
stringers.

The total amount expended on this work is $139,267.04, as follows :—

Construction, before Confederation.......cv.v.un... $106,944 80
¢ since ittt ienta 13,270 92
Repairs.. .......cviiiiiiiiiiiiinnn, Ceieeeas 19,0561 32
B 7 O et e $139,267 04
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RIVIERE DU LIEVRE, (LOCK AND DAM.)

The Riviere du Liévre flows through the county of Ottawa, and empties into the
Ottawa River at Buckingham station on the Canadian Pacific railway, 18 miles below
Ottawa.

The magnitude of the trade and business done on this river, previous to the comple-
tion of the lock and dam at Little Rapids, may be judged from the following return of
the output of timber and phosphate for the twelve months ended June 30th, 1888 :—

Railway ties.........oooiie i oy, 40,000
Cedar posts......... e e e 30,000
Square timber (cubicfeet).......... ... oLl 154,395
Lumber (B.M). . ..ooooviiii i o ... 46,500,000
Phosphate (tons). . .......coovviiiia i Ll 27,637
Mica (JbS). ... oot i 10,000
Feldspar (ton8)......oovvivienninin i e o. 50

The river was then navigable at high water {rom the village of Buckingham to
High Falls, a distance of 22 miles. But, during low water, navigation was practically
stopped at the foot of Little Rapids, a distance of 12 miles above the village of Buck-
ingham. Various amounts, aggregating $10,053.68 were expended from 1881 to 1887,
in improving the navigation of the river to High Falls; boulders and ledges of rock
were blasted and removed from the bed of the channel through the Long Rapids, sitvate
74 miles above the Little Rapids. The channel through the latter was also improved
in a similar manner and a floating stage carrying a double-geared winch, was placed at
its head to facilitate the passage of barges carrying phosphate. Notwithstanding
those improvements, navigation still remained unsatisfactory. A careful survey
of the locality was then made, and it was ascertained that any further deepening of the
channel through the Little Rapids would tend to lower the level of the water in the upper
reaches of the river, and render the driving of logs impossible at any other time than
during the very highest stages of the waters.

Construction.—The construction of a lock and dam at the Little Rapids was there-
fore decided upon and a contract for the execution of the works was entered into with
Messrs. Poupore & Co. in December, 1886, and completed in April, 1892, at a total
cost of $233,658.65.

The lock is situate on the east shore of the river. It is built of cut stone masonry
in cement mortar, 150 feet long between the gates, 32 feet 6 inches wide at the bottom
with eight feet of water on the mitre sills, and a lift of 13 feet 9 inches at extreme low
water. Along the western face of the work a retaining wall was built and was carried
143 feet above the upper end of the latter to serve as a guide pier to the upper entrance.
The dam, which is built of close-faced cribwork, is 270 feet long and 34 feet wide at the
bottom ; it starts from the western face of the retaining wall opposite the upper gates
of the lock, and crosses the streams to the western abutment, which is 65 feet long and
40 feet wide. Through its centre a timber slide 18 feet wide was built for the passage
of timber and logs, and booms were strung from the opening to mooring piers placed cn
each shore of the river 290 feet above the dam.

Repairs.—During the year 1893.94 some necessary repairs were made to the west
abutment of the dam and to the lower wharf at a cost of $102.65. In 1894-95, $267.70
was expended in building a protection pier above the west abutment of the dam, to
prevent the river from working its way back of this abutment during the spring
freshets. In 1895-96 some minor repairs were made in filling holes and depressions in
the west embankment, which was sinking in some places and required levelling, at a
cost of $115.00. In 1896-97, the upper portion of the lower entrance wall, which had
bulged out about 14 inches for a length of 100 feet frow the masonry of the lock, was
taken down and a new wall, 135 feet long by 25 feet wide, built in its place. This bulge
was getting worse every year, and it was feared that the pressure of the earth backing
would soon cause it to collapse and block the lower entrance of the lock. The erib, 43
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feet by 22 feet, built at the head of the western abutment, to prevent undermining was also
completed. This crib imperfectly fulfilled its object, a quantity of water still making
its way underneath the abutment, and it was found necessary to remove this source of
danger by adding three feet to the height of the crib, fully ballasting it and sheathing
its outer face from top to bottom. The cost of these repairs amounted to $1,824.39. In
1897-98 the sum of $4,419.94 was expended in rebuilding the retaining wall from the
dam to the upper end of the guide pier, a distance of 226 feet, in close face cribwork
from the low water level to an elevation of 10 feet with a width of 26 to 32 feet. This
reconstruction was absolutely necessary to protect the lock wall, as the face timbers of the
retaining wall were gradually being pressed out by the stone ballast, the dovetails of the
cross ties having split and decayed, and the cross ties being bent and broken.

The following is a statement chowing the cost of the work, repairs and mainten-
ance, and the amounts collected during each year, up to and including the last fiscal
year, 1897-98.

!
} Cost Repairs :
Year. of and Maintenance. | Revenue. Remarks.
Construction. {Improvements
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
1887-88 . 43,329 04 |......ooevea i R PO Lock and dam in course of construction
1888-89. | G4,506 74 [....cvvvvnin Joviaiin ciin i n "
1889-90. 5O,280 5O |..ov e " "
1890-91. 40,019 14 | . oiiiiie e Masonry of lock completed and work
on dam progressing rapidly.
1891-92. 35,247 T2 | oot 1933524 .. ......... Lock and dam completed and first
boat locked on the 19th of April.
1892-93.0  era sl |.............. 952 86 | 243 87 |Building 460 feet of booma,
1898-94 . 102 65 768 21 | 532 59
1894-95 267 70 840 34 404 30
1895-96 115 00 851 60 230 33
1896-97 1,824 39 790 79 198 45
1897-98 4,419 94 736 19 246 84
6,729 68 5,133 51 1,856 38

From the foregoing statement it will be seen that the revenue collected has
diminished every year, the shrinkage being caused by the suspension of operations on
the phosphate mines and the closing up of Messrs. Grondin & Racicot Co.’s saw-mill.

Owing to the flooding of land caused by the construction of the dam,”amounts
aggregating $4,559.04 were paid as damages.

The total expenditure incurred in connection with this work is as follows :—

Construction. .. .ooooveeeiin it veiee i $233,658 65
REPAIS. . ..o e ce it i e 6,729 68
Staff and maintenance.............. ... ool 5,133 51
Claims for damages, etc..........c.o.ivviiee aunn 4,559 04

Total ... oov it i i $250,080 88

During the year 1893-94, after the construction of the lock, the sum of $1,244.94
Was expended in removing boulders obstructing the channel through the long rapids.

RIVIERE OUELLE.

The village of Riviere Ouelle, in the county of Kamouraska, is situate on the river
of the same name, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, seventy-five miles below
Quebec. Spring tides rise 20 feet ; neap tides, 13 feet.
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Construction.—The pier is situate at Pointe aux Orignaux, four and one-half miles
below the village. It issubstantially built throughout of cribwork filled with stone ballast,
and is 1,350 feet long, of a uniform width of 28 feet apart from its outer 51 feet which is
237% feet wide. Its head is 42 feet high above the bottom of the river and standsin 16
feet of water at low water spring tides. The pier was completed in 1856, at a cost of
$225,229.87. 1In 1875 a lighthouse was erected on the head of the pier by the Depart-
ment of Marine and Fisheries.

Improvements and repairs.—The gravel roadway which constituted the top of the
pier, having frequently been washed out by the heavy seas which broke over it, was
entirely covered in 1879 with a 3-inch plank flooring, the cost of which, together with
that of minor repairs effected to the work since its completion, amounted to $66,893.63.

In 1881 it was deemed advisable to raise the top of the structure, which had settled
over its whole length, to its original level, and the work was commenced. It was con-
tinued during the three following years and completed in 1885 at a cost of
$14,701.33. Owing to the decayed condition of some of the face timbers, it became
necessary to sheath the head of the pier, a portion of the work was done in 1886, and
it was completed in 1887 at a cost of $7,109.71. During the winter of 1887 the pier
was considerably damaged by the ice, the necessary repairs were effected in 1888 at a
cost of $935.00, and in the two following years, a further sum of $827.62 was expended
on the landing slips, etc. In 1891, the two outer corners of the head of the pier were
resheathed, and missing sheet piles were replaced where most urgently required ; the
amount expended was $1,494.28. From 1893 to 1897 inclusive, general repairs, amount-
ing to £1,820.97, were effected to the slips, flooring, cap pieces and sheathing.

During the past year the sheathing of the two outer corners of the head of the
pier was again renewed with birch timber and strengthened with iron straps; 100
feet of broken or decayed sheathing on both sides of the pier was removed and
replaced with 5-inch spruce timber, missing iron straps on the steps of the slips were
replaced, and other minor repairs were effected. The work was done by day labour at
a cost of $1,004.65.

The total expenditure on this work is $260,017.06, made up as follows :—

Construction, before Confederation. ... .. .. . ... 225,229 87
Repairs and improvements. . .... ... .. .. .. ... 34,787 19

Total ..o oo $260,017 06

RIVIERE DU LOUP (EN BAS).

The village of Riviere du Loup, now called Fraserville, is the chef-lieu of the county
of Temiscouata, and is situate on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, 114 miles below
Quebec. Spring tides rise 19 feet. Neap tides, 12 feet.

Construction.—In 1855 a pier built of close-faced cribwork filled with stone ballast
was completed at the extremity of a point of land called Pointe de la Riviére du Loup,
about one mile distant from the village, at a total cost of $170,129.35. Tt was 1,641
feet long and of a uniform width of 30 feet, with the exception of its outer 50 feet, which
was 124 feet wide. Its head was 42 feet high above the bottom of the river, and stood
in 16 feet of water at low water spring tides. In 1884 and 1885 an extension to the
head of the pier, 100 feet long, 50 feet wide, and 42 feet high was built by contract at
a cost of $24,158.94. In 1887 a combined waiting room and freight shed was
erected on the head of the pier and some repairs were effected to the hand-rail and
flooring at a cost of $3,169.79. In 1891 a hand-railing was constructed on the
whole length of the pier along its east side, and some repairs were effected to the floor-
ing at a cost of $740.40.

Repairs.—During the first ten years of Confederation $1,861.86 were expended on
minor repairs. In 1879, thorough repairs were commenced on the pier and were com-
pleted in 1883 at a cost of $15,282.93. The structure having sunk to such an
extent that the waves washed over it, was raised three feet, and a berth for vessels was
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dredged along its western face to a depth of 16 feet at low water spring tides. The
pier was severely damaged by ice in the spring of 1885, necessitating extensive
repairs which were performed in 1886 at a cost of $9,222.78. Sundry repairs to the
face timbers, flooring, floor stringers, hand-railings and slips were effected every year
from 1888 to 1897, inclusive, at a total cost of $2,756.00.

During the past year the flooring and part of the floor stringers have been renewed
on a length of 1,150 feet and a width of 30 feet, the portien of the structure under
the railway track has been strengthened, 506 feet of capping was renewed, 16 new
snubbing posts were put in, painted and covered with zinc caps, two ladders were
placed, and part of the old sheathing was bolted. The work was done by day labour
at a cost of $2,9832.43.

The total expenditure on this work has been $230,304.48, as follows :—

Construction before Confederation........... ..... $170,129 35
« after K 28,069 13
Repairs....... ......... e 32,106 00
Total ... $230,304 48

RIVER ST. MAURICE——CHANNEL BETWEEN GRANDES PILES AND LA TUQUE.

The St. Maurice, a river of Quebec,one of the largest tributaries of the St. Lawrence,
takes its rise in two small springs, one being in a savanne and the other a half mile from
it, at the foot of a small hill forming part of the height of land between the province of
Quebec and the North-west Territories, over 400 miles north-west of Three Rivers, at
which point it falls into the St. Lawrence. It expands into numerous lakes, some of
large size, and its banks are generally high, in some places from 200 to 1,000 feet, and
covered with groups of majestic trees. It is adorned with a number of beautiful
islands, and has a great variety of falls and cascades, the most important being the falls
of Grand-Mére and the Shawenegan. From its outlet to Grandes Piles, a distance of
37 miles, this river is not ravigable, owing to the numerous falls and rapids which follow
each other without intermission, but from Grandes Piles up to La Tuque, a distance of
75 miles, there is a channel for vessels the draught of which at places is, however,
limited to two feet at low water, on account of several impediments, in this stretch of
75 miles, the impediments to navigation are greatest at the Rapids Manigance, the
shoals at the Mehonac, Pointe 4 Tom, the shoal at I'Ile aux Morpions, and at Pointe a
Trudel near Grandes Piles.

In 1891-92, work was commenced at some of the above mentioned points tomake them
havigable for boats of greater draught. At the shoal opposite River Mekinac and at the
Rapid Manigance a large quantity of rock was blasted and removed at a cost of $1,225.26.
In 1892-93, some further improvements were made to the Rapid Manigance, but the
work had to be discontinued after a short time, owing to a sudden rise in the water.
The sum expended was $1,279.78. In 1893-94 between the 10th July and the 16th of
QCtOber, a large number of boulders were removed from the upper reef on the western
side of the channel in the Rapid Manigance, 644 being removed, and 61 which were
too large to handle, broken up with dynamite. The channels on the shoals at the
Mgkinac and at Pointe & Trudel were also deepened, and the best channel, at the shallow
boint, between Grandes Piles and La Tuque was marked out for the season of naviga-
tion. Amount expended $3,142.70. In 1894.95, the shoal at Mekinac was
fieepened to five feet ; and thirty-nine land marks were established on the river bank to
indicate the channel ; 71 buoys have been kept at the shallow point during the navigable
Season to indicate the channel. The amount expended during the year was $1,721.50.

In 189596 a total number of fifty-twolandmarks were fixed to indicate the channel
and the buoys were kept in position. Some landmarks were repaired and whitewashed,
the position of some of these was also altered owing to a change in the direction of the
ch‘*'mlfal. The deepening of the channel at I'Ile aux Morpions was also commenced, but
very little was done owing to a sudden rise of the water. Amount expended, $955.77.
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In 1896-97 the only work done was the placing of buoys and their removal in the fall,
and the repairing of some landmarks. Expenditure, $162.33.

In 1897-98 the sum of $1,048.43 was expended in purchasing materials for the
work and in placing and removing the buoys.

The total amount expended in this work is as follows :—

During fiscal year 1891-92. . ... ......... ... .. ... 21,225 26
do 189293, .. .. 1,279 78

do 1893-94. ... .. e e .. 314270

do 1894-9h. ... 1,721 50

do 189596 . . ... ..o .. 955 77

do 1896-97.......... ... 162 33

do 1897-98. ... 1,048 43
Total .. .. vvieviien ... 89535 77

RIVIERE DU SUD.

The town of Montmagny, in the county of the same name, is situate on the south
shore of the St. Lawrence, on the Intercolonial railway, 40 miles below Quebec. From
south-west to south-east, the town is crossed by the Riviére du Sud whose banks, owing
to the united action of the ice and the swift current, were considerably eroded especially
on the south-east side where the public road was partly washed away.

Jonstruction.—To prevent further damage a contract was entered into for the
construction of protection work,which was commenced in December, 1894, and completed
in May, 1895, at a cost of $5,105.96. The work consisted of a dry masonry
retaining wall 830 feet long, seven feet wide at the base, tapering to five feet at the top,
and having a mean height of seven feet. The back filling was done with broken stone,
and two box culverts were constructed to allow the water from the adjoining lands to flow
to the river. The retaining wall was built from the Intercolonial railway bridge in a
southwardly direction, parallel to and along the south-east shore of the river. During the
spring freshets of 1896, the upper courses of the wall were disturbed by the ice which
was carried over the wall into the road, rendering it impassable for several weeks.
It therefore became necessary to repair the damaged portion of the wall by relaying the
disturbed courses in cement, and to increase the height of the whole work two feet in
order to prevent the ice from being again carried over it. The work was performed by
day labour during the year 1896-97 at a cost of $3,993.08.

Repairs.—During the last year minor repairs were effected to the retaining wall at
a cost of $9.76.

The total amount expended on this work is $9,108.80, $9,099.04 being for con-
struction and $9.76 for repairs.

ST. ANICET—(WHARF).

St. Anicet, is a post village in Huntingdon Co.. 10} miles from White station
on the Grand Trunk railway, (Montreal and Champlain division) and 56 miles south-
west of Montreal, on the south shore of Lake St. Francis. It contains one Roman
Catholic church, three stores, two hotels and oune telegraph office. Population 250.
This pier was built in 1862 at a cost of $1.920.00 and stands five feet three inches above
low water. It is 300 feet in length, the width of the 200 feet nearest to the shore, or
approach, is 13 feet, and the other 100 feet, or outer block, 35 feet. The shore abut-
ment consists of a solid crib 47 feet long and the remaining 153 feet of the approach is
supported on four cribs, 12 by 13 feet long, united by timber spans of stringers and
planking. In 1889-90, some slight repairs were made amounting to $48.67. In 1890.91,
the entire approach, 200 feet long, was rebuilt from the water line at a cost of $635.10.
In 1892-93, small repairs were made amounting to $25.88. In 1893.94, the outer block
100 feet by 35, which is of solid cribwork, was rebuilt from the low water line by Mr L.
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N. Masson, contractor, at a cost of $1,500.00. A shed for the accommodation of passen
gers and freight was also built on the wharf, the same year, at a cost of $225.35. In
1897-98 the sum of $2,197.95 was expended for the addition of a wing or return 60 feet
long by 30 feet wide at the outer end and 40 feet wide at the inner end, on the upstream
side of the wharf, the object being to enable vessels to lie at the front of the wharf
instead of along its sides, where it is very difficult to land during rough weather caused by
westerly winds. This addition was built in close-faced cribwork up to the Jevel of the
old wharf, and was covered with 3inch hemlock planks. Out of the above men-
tioned amount some slight repairs were made to the old wharf.
The total amount expended on this work is $6,552.95, as follows : —

Construction. . .... ...t e 34,117 95
Reconstruction...... ......... .. ... ....... e 2,360 45
Repairs ..... ....... . ... ... ... e el 74 55

Total ...... .. .. . 86,552 95

STE. ANNE DE LA POCATIERE.

The village of Ste. Anne de la Pocatiére, in the county of Kamouraska, is situate
on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, 75 miles below Quebec. Spring tides rise 20 feet.
Neap tides, 13 feet.

Construction.—In order to accommodate the extensive shipping trade of the village
and locality, the construction of a landing pier was commenced in 1885 and completed
in 1887 at a cost of $9,893.15. Itis 580 feet long over all and 20 feet wide, and
consists of a stone and earth embankment or approach 100 feet long and 20 feet wide
with side and end slopes of 1 in 1, and of 11 cribs placed 25 feet apart and connected
with platforms. The cribs are all 20 feet square, apart from the outer one which is 30

_feet square. The head of the pier is 23 feet high and stands in 16 feet of water at high
water spring tides ; it is dry at low water.

Repairs.—During the last year the pier was repaired for the first time since its
completion in 1887. One of the cribs which was moved out of place by the ice was
unloaded and floated in its proper position, part of the floor stringers and flooring was
renewed, about 50 toises of stone were placed in the cribs not sufficiently ballasted, the
outer corners of the head of the pier were sheathed and the approach repaired.

The work was done by day labour at a cost of $984.17.

The total expenditure on this work is $10,877.32, as follows :—

Construction. . . . .. e e 89,893 15
Repairs.. .. ... i 984 17
Total. ... e $10,877 32

STE. ANNE DU SAGUENAY.

_ The parish of Ste. Anne du Saguenay, is situate on the north shore of the Saguenay
River, 721 miles above Tadousac and opposite the town of Chicoutimi. Its population
In 1897 was over 2,000. Besides the church and post office, the parish contains seven
stores, four cheese factories, a limekiln, a brick-yard and a pottery. The only market
for the produce of the farms of this section of the north shore of the river is Chicoutimi.
Spring tides rise 15 feet. Neap tides, 8 feet.

Construction.— As early as 1879 the Dominion Government was urged to construct

a landing pier for the accommodation of the inhabitants of the district. The request

Was not, however, considered until 1888 when a portion of the timber required for the

Proposed structure was purchased at a cost of $2,100. In 1889 the pier was commenced

from shore outward, and at the close of the year 1888.89, a portion 77 feet long and

39 feet wide, including a slip 12 feet wide on its lower or eastern face, had been com-
: 69



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899

pleted at a cost of $2,109.69. It was built of close-faced cribwork filled with stone
ballast. In 1890 this shore block was extended 87 feet on a width of 27 feet at a cost
of $2,045.50, and in 1891 a further length of 50 feet of similar cribwork, 27 feet wide,
was added at a cost of $2,498.96. In 1892 a head block 30 feet long, 60 feet wide and
20 feet high was built at a distance of 250 feet out from the end of the work completed
the previous year, at & cost of $2,262.11, and in 1896 this block was raised 8% feet
and put on the same level as that of the work built out from shore, viz.: six feet
above ordinary high water spring tides. With a view of completing the pier to shore, a
sum of $5,573.25 was expended in 1897 for the construction of two cribs, each 874 feet
long and 25 feet wide, placed 25 feet apart-and 25 feet from both the head and shore
blocks. During the last year the three 25 foot openings left in the work were spanned,
the flooring was laid and the structure completed to shore at a cost of $746.70. The
pier is now 494 feet long, 39 feet wide for the first 95 feet from shore, 27 feet wide for
the following 119 feet, 25 feet wide for the next 250 feet, and finally 60 feet wide for
the last 30 feet. It is 28} feet high above the bottom of the river, at its outer end,
and stands in 7% feet of water at low water spring tides. It is substantially built
throughout of close-faced cribwork filled with stone ballast. Some boulders were
removed in 1894 from the vicinity of the head of the pier at a cost of $99.30. During
the whole season of navigation a steamboat performns a regular ferry service every hour
from Ste. Anne to Chicoutimi.

The total amount expended in connection with the construction of this work is
$18,434.37.

STE. ANNE DE SOREL.

The village of Ste. Anne de Sorel, in the county of Richelieu, is situate at the head
of Lake St. Peter, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, two miles below the town of
Sorel. During the spring freshets of the St. Lawrence a considerable portion of the
parish of Ste. Anne and of the islands opposite, is flooded. In order to prevent the ice
from being carried by the floods over the low-lying lands along the shore, ten ice piers -
were built between 1881 and 1890 at or in the vicinity of the village.

Construction.—The two first ice piers were built in 1881-82 in the Chenal du
Moine, one of the channels of the St. Lawrence, and about two miles below the village
of Ste. Anne. They were 30 feet square and fully answered the purpose for which they
were intended. The'r total cost was $1,957.97. At the end of the year 1882-83 the
construction of two additional piers was commenced in the same channel. They were
completed during the winter of 1883-84 at a cost of $3,536.38. Another pier was built
in 1885 at the head of Chenal du Moine, at a cost of $1,176.23, and repairs amounting
to $7.20 were effected to the piers built in 1884. The sixth pier was built in 1886 at a
cost of $1,321.86, which amount also included the cost of repairs effected to the piers
built in 1884. In order to afford further protection against ice shoves a seventh
pier was built in 1887, a short distance below the one built in 1885. Its cost was
$836.66. The eighth pier was built in 1888 on the property of Bruno Peloquin, and one
of the piers built in 1884 was raised 3 feet 4 inches at a cost of $947.67. 1In 1889,
another pier was built at the entrance of Chenal du Moine, about 11} miles below the
village. It was 30 feet long, 24 feet wide and 21} feet high and cost $2,708.28. In
1890, the necessary materials for the construction of another pier, opposite the church,
were procured at a cost of $2,497.11, and in 1891 the structure was carried vp to a height
of five feet above low water level at a cost of $1,696.25. The pier measures 60 feet by 25
feet at the bottom and 56 feet by 24 feet on the top. It stands in seven feet of water
and has a height of 12 feet. During the last year three new piers were built for
the protection of properties which were not guarded by the old ones, and one of the
latter was strengthened and repaired. The new piers measure 24 feet by 2 feet and
are from 12 to 14 feet in height. Their total cost amounted to $3,514.68.

Before the construction of the above described works the properties along this low-
lying shore were considerably damaged every year at the breaking up of the ice. The
protection afforded by the ice piers has, however, been so effective that little or no
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damages are now sustained, and it is expected that no additional works of this nature
will be required.

The total expenditure on ice piers at Ste. Anne and along the Chenal du Moine is
$16,685.91, which amount includes cost of repairs to the old works as well as that of
construction of the new ones.

STE. AGATHE DES MONTS.

The village of Ste. Agathe des Monts, in the county of Terrebonne, is situate on
the west shore of the Riviére du Nord, about 30 miles north-west from St. Jér6me.

At equal distances of about three miles from the village are two lakes, Lac des
Sables in the township of Beresford and Lac des Castors in the township of Howard.
These lakes are connected by a small stream called Riviere aux Castors. The river is
not navigable, but is used for the floating of logs. During last year the channel of
the river was improved at a cost of $298 by the removal of ledges of rock and boulders.

STE. CROIX.

The village of Ste. Croix, in the county of Lotbiniére, is situate on the south shore
of the St. Lawrence, 28 miles above Quebec. It contains nine stores, six saw mills and
two grist-mills. Spring tides rise 154 feet. Neap tides, 83 feet.

The approach to the only landing pier at this place is obstructed by boulders which
lie in chains along the foreshore of the river. Some of these boulders, which were a
source of danger to vessels during the lower stages of the tide, were removed during last
year at a cost of $518.12.

STE. FAMILLE.

The village of Ste. Famille is situate on the north shore of the Island of Orleans,
in the county of Montmorency, 17 miles below Quebec. Spring tides rise 19 feet. Neap
tides, 13 feet.

Construction.—In 1876 the inhabitants constructed a small landing pier, which was
considerably extended and enlarged by the department between the years 1879 and
1882 at a cost of $9,323.86. Itis now 475 feet long and consists of a head block
231 feet long and 25 feet wide, apart from a slip eight feet wide along its lower or
eastern face, and of five cribs, connected with stringers, upon which the flooring is laid.
The four cribs adjoining the head block are 25 feet square and are placed at distances
varying from 24 feet to two feet apart. The shore end crib is 58 feet long and 18 feet
wide. The head of the pier is 24 feet high above the bottom of the river and stands in
18 feet of water at high water spring tides.

Repairs.—In 1887 the pier was thoroughly repaired at a cost of $300.04. In 1891
the flooring of the pier was renewed and additional floor stringers were put in. One of
the cribs was also rebuilt and new fenders placed on the outer end of the structure ;
expenditure, $999.30. During the last year the two outer spans between the isolated
cribs were filled with cribwork and stone ballast, the stringers and flooring were renewed
on the whole length of the pier, and the snubbing posts and fenders were renewed.
glhz work was done by day labour during the months of July and August, at a cost of

1809.82.

The total expenditure on this work is $12,433.02, made up as follows :—

Construction. . ..... .ovvvivnenvineen e $ 9,323 86
Repairs....... ... ce. 3,109 16
Total ............................ .. 812433 02

ST. FULGENCE— (ISOLATED BLOCK.)

St. Fulgence (otherwise called L’Anse aux Foins), is a small village in Chicoutimi
unty, on the north shore of the Saguenay River, 10 miles from Chicoutimi. It
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contains one Roman Catholic church, four stores and two saw-mills. Population of parish,
1,000. '

In 1897-98 the department commenced the construction of an isolated block of
closefaced cribwork to enable schooners and steamers of the R. & O. Navigation
Co., to land and ship freight and passengers at all times. This block is 60 feet long, 30
feet wide, and was built during the year to an elevation of 20 feet from the bed of
the river. It is proposed to complete this work to an elevation of 36 feet in the near
future. The block is sunk in 10 feet of water at low water spring tides, a distance of
about 2,500 feet out froin the shore at high water mark. Spring tides rise 20 feet.
Neaps 13 feet. The amount expended on this work during the year was $2,998.04.

STE. IRENEE,

The village of Ste. Irénée is situate on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, in the
county of Charlevoix, 78 miles below Quebec, and five miles west of Murray Bay. It
contains one cheese factory, two grist-mills and four saw.mills. Spring tides rise 19
feet. Neap tides, 12 feet.

Construction.—In September, 1886, a contract was entered into for the removal of
a block 80 feet long, 30 feet wide and 18 feet high, from Les Eboulements to this place,
and during the year the work was done at a cost of $3,284.87. The block was
sunk in 12 feet of water at low water spring tides, at a distance of about 535 feet from
high water mack. In 1888 and 1889 the block was raised 19 feet, thoroughly repaired
and floored at a total cost of $5,689.48. In 1896 a closefaced cribwork extension, 60
feet long, 22 feet wide and of an average height of 30 feet, was built shoreward on a line
with the east side of the block, at a cost of $2,128.68. A portion of this extension was
carried away by an ice shove in January, 1896, it was rebuilt in May and June, 1897,
and made 62 feet long, 32 feet wide and 33 feet high, at a cost of $3,588.31, which
amount also included the cost of necessary repairs to the block. During the last year,
a further close-faced cribwork extension 177 feet long, 20 feet wide and of an average
height of 23 feet, was built shoreward at a cost of $4,000.94. The pier is now being
completed to shore.

Repairs.—Sundry repairs were effected to the black in 1894 and 1895 when the
sums of $79.99 and $21.50 respectively were expended. In 1896, a sum of $781.20 was
expended for general repairs.

TImprovements to the mouth of the river.—The pier is built about one third of a mile
to the westward of a small river. In 1890, a sum of $501.73 was expended in removing
boulders from the mouth of the river so as to allow schooners to winter safely therein.
With the boulders removed a small breakwater was built to further protect the entrance
to this small harbour from north-east winds.

The total amount expended at Ste. 1rénée is $20,076.70, as follows :—

Construction of landing pier and improvements. . ..... $18,692 28
Repairs .......oooiiiini 882 69
Improvements to mouth of river................... 501 73

Total.. ... . o ... $20,076 70

ST. JEAN DES CHAILLONS,

St. Jean des Chaillons, is an important village in the county of Lotbini¢re, on the
south side of the River St. Lawrence, 108 miles below Montreal. The chief industry of
the village is the manufacture of bricks, about ten millions of which are made annually.
About 25 bateaux and over 200 men are exclusively employed during the season of
navigation in shipping these bricks to Montreal. The freight charges to Montreal were
quite high, owing to the extremely dangerous nature of the river bed near the
shore, and loaded vessels had to regulate their departure, during the low water season,
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by the spring tides, which was the cause of many vexatious delays. The
attention of the department was, therefore, called to the necessity of dredging and
removing rock obstructions in the river bed, in front of the brick sheds, with a view of
affording better loading and landing facilities to bateaux frequenting the locality. In
1896-97 the sum of $483.55 was expended in removing the most dangerous obstructions
in from three to eight feet depth at low water. In 1897 between the 4th of May
and the 30th of June, the dredge *‘ Nithsdale ” was employed in dredging a channel
leading to the brickyard wharfs, as well as in front of them to a depth of nine feet at
low water level. Four adjoining cuts of 1,750, 1,019, 950 and 850 feet long were made
having each a width of 25 feet, removing a total of 47,705 cubic yards of clay and
boulders. ¢ Stone Lifter No. 1 ” was also engaged from the 5th of September to the
8th of October and from the 1st to the 30th of June, in removing huge boulders from
the channel, which had been loosened by the dredge, the quantity taken out being 281
cubic yards. This work allows bateaux and other river crait engaged in the brick
trade to leave with full loads without running the risk of striking rocks and being
wrecked. The amount expended during the year was $4,998.35.
The total amount expended on this work is as follows :—

During year 1896-97........ ... ... .. ...l $ 483 55
do do 1897-98............ ... ..o il 4,998 35
Total . ... ..v i 85,481 90

ST. JEAN, (ISLE D'ORLEANS.)

The village of St. Jean issituate on the south shore of the Island of Orleans, in the

i%u;lty of Montinorency, 18 miles below Quebec. Spring tides rise 19 feet. Neap tides,
3 feet.

Construction.— The landing pier at this place was built by the municipality in or
about 1859. It is 651 feet long over all, and consists of a stone and earth embankment
or approach 101 feet long and 30 feet wide at the top, and of a close-faced cribwork
structure 550 feet long, and of a uniform width of 30 feet, apart from its outer 83 feet
which is 50 feet wide. The head of the pier is 32 feet high above the bottom of the
river, and stands in eight feet of water at low water spring tides. A lighthouse
was erected in 1874 on the head of the pier, by the Department of Marine and

isheries. In 1884, the first steps were taken by the department towards the purchase
of the structure and a sum of $60.55 was expended for surveys and legal expenses. The
purchase was effected in 1885 at a cost of $8,183.46, including legal and other
€xpenses.

Repairs.—The pier was repaired by the department in 1881 at a cost of $470.93,
and in 1884 a further amount of $55.70 was expended on miner repairs. In 1886 repairs
were made to the roadway and to the slip on the east side of the wharf at a cost of
$699.98, and during the following year general repairs were eftected at a cost of $1,009.-
20. TIn 1891, a sum of $500.82 was expended on repairs to the flooring and to the ap-
proach, and in 1893, a number of broken planks in the flooring were renewed at a cost
of $25.00. In 1894, it became necessary to rebuild the superstructure of the pier, the
timbers of which were in an advanced state of decay. The work was continued in 1895
and completed in 1896 at a cost of $8,658.32. The whole superstructure of the
work for a depth of 5 feet 9 inches was removed and rebuilt with new face timbers,
Cross ties, longitudinals, floor stringers, flooring and mooring posts. The slips were
thoroughly repaired, the east side of the structure was sheathed on its whole length with
rock elm and black birch, the foundations of the lighthouse were rebuilt, and the light-
house itself was thoroughly repaired and strengthened. In 1897 a combined waiting room
and freight shed 40 feet long and 14 feet wide was erected on the head of the pier at a
cost of $389.38. During the past year the freight shed was moved to the extreme outer
end of the pier, enlarged and painted ; the face timbers under the slip, which had been

roken by ice, were renewed on a height of six feet and part of the slip was covered
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with 3-inch planks; the west side of the pier, at its inner end, was sheatbed for a length
of 150 feet and the stone and earth approach repaired. The work was done by day
labour at a cost of $480.11.

The total amount expended on this work is $20,053.34, as follows :—

Purchase. ..... .. ... .. . il $ 8,244 01
Repairs and reconstruction.... .... .. ......... .., 11,809 33
Total ...... ... ... ... ....... c..., $20,053 34

ST. VALENTIN.

The village of St. Valentin, in the county of St. Johns, is situate on the west shore
of the River Richelieu, 12 miles above or south of the town of St. Johns. As this
place had no wharf accommodation, the large quantity of hay which is annually
exported to the United States ports of Lake Champlain, and the farm produce shipped
to St. Johns, had to be conveyed in scows to barges anchored in the channel of the
river, which necessitated double handling and correspondingly heavy expense. In order
to provide the required landing facilities a sum of $5,500 was appropriated in 1897,
towards the construction of a landing pier at the foot of the Government road leading
from the post-road to the Ile aux Noix ferry, and for raising and repairing this road
which is annually flooded and damaged during the spring freshets. On the 17th of
March, 1897, a contract was entered into with Messrs. Messier and Naylor for the
construction of the proposed works. The work was well under way at the close of the
year 1896-97, and was completed last year at a total cost of $6,612.43.

The landing pier, measured on its centre line, is 326 feet long, and consists of a
stone and earth embankment 135 feet long and 25 feet wide with side and end slopes of
1in 1, of a trestle approach averaging 156 feet in length and 20 feet wide, and of a
head block of solid cribwork 35 feet long and 60 feet wide along its channel face. The
outer face of the head block is 19% feet in height above the bottom of the river and
stands in 9% feet of water at low water. The Government road was raised above the
level of the spring freshets, and properly fenced in.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

BAYFIELD.

The village of Bayfield, in the county of Huron, is situated at the mouth of
the river of the same name which empties into Lake Huron, 12 miles south of the town
of Goderich. It contains one grist and saw-mill.

Construction.—The harbour of Bayfield was originally formed by the municipality of
the township of Stanley, and in 1874 when the Dominion Government took the work in
hand, it consisted of two piers, 618 and 620 feet in length, 200 feet apart at the outer
end, and 330 feet apart at the inner or land end. No statement of the expenditure
made by the municipality can be given. In 1874, an appropriation of $34,000 was made
by Parliament for the improvement of this harbour, the municipality of Stanley contri-
buting $10,000. The work was placed under contract in November, 1874, and
proceeded with during the seasons of 1875-76 and 1877, the total expenditure from
1874 to 1882 being $61,517.55.

The improvements as then completed consisted of a prolongation of the northern
pier 105 feet on the outside, with an arm of 156 feet, turned to the south-west ; of a
pier on the south side generally parallel to the main line of the opposite ; pier 180 feet
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distant from it, and 553 feet in length, with a return towards the coast line of 153 feet, all
the cribwork being 20 and 30 feet wide. The depth of water at the entrance which was
originally 11 feet was reduced to about six feet in 1894, due to the formation of sand bars.

Repairs.—During the years 1884, 1885, 1886 and 1887 repairs were madeto the piers,
especially to the northern pier which was close piled on both sides. The small crib at the
west end was also repaired, the expenditure for these years being $6,157. During
the last year a sum of $2,231.36 was expended in the reconstraction of a portion of the
northern pier 245 feet in length, and repairing the outer end of the same structure. The
whole of the repairs contemplated were not completed at the close of the year and a
further sum of $1,500 was applied for to finish the work.

The total expenditure on this work, not including dredging, is $70,430.73 and may
be subdivided as follows : —

Construction. .. ... .. ... v vt i i #61,517 55

Repairs and reconstruction. . ... ....... ... . ... ... 8913 18

Total...... ... ..o o iih Lo #70,430 73
BOWMANVILLE.

Bowmanville, or Port Darlington, is situate on the north shore of Lake Ontario,
county of Durbam, 43 miles from Toronto by rail on the Grand Trunk division of the
main line between Toronto and Montreal. Population 3,500.

Construction.—This harbour, which was built by the municipality, consists of two
parallel piers built at the mouth of a small creek. The western jetty is buils of crib-
work 1,180 feet in length and 20 feet in width, excepting at the outer end where the
width is 60 feet for the last 240 feet. On this enlarged portion stand a storehouse
and a lighthouse. The top of the piers is seven feet above extreme low water level.
At the outer end there is about 11 feet of water, the total height of the work being
about 19 feet. No statement is obtainable as to the amount expended by the munici-
pality in connection with this harbour. Up to 1897 no construction work was done by
the department, but the entrance channel and inner harbour having a tendency to silt
up, were maintained by dredging by the Dominion Government.

Repairs.—During the year 1897-98 the eastern pier was repaired and some 500 feet
of pile protection work was built on the harbour side, to prevent the constant filling in
of sand in the channel, and the outer end of the western pier having been destroyed by

;torms was rebuilt. The total expenditure on this work, not including dredging is as
ollows :-—

Repairs and reconstruction............... ... £3,999 99

BURLINGTON CHANNEL.

Burlington Channel, in the county of Wentworth, is simply a cut through a piece
of low land which partly separates Lake Ontario from a large sheet of deep water called
“Burlington Bay,” enabling the vessels to reach the wharfs at the city of Hamilton.
Both sides of the canal are lined with piers.

Construction.—The work was commenced under commissioners in 1825. It was
opened for the passage of vessels in 1830, and completed as originally undertaken in
1832, at a cost of $124,356.08. The works were afterwards extended, improved, and
partly reconstructed by the Provincial Government at an outlay of $308,328.32, previousto
Confederation. From 1867 to 1882 inclusively, the superstructure of the piers having

en partly destroyed by fire, was renewed by the Government at a cost of

$30,426.89." It was maintained by the Railways and Canals Department till 1885,

when it was placed under the control of the Department of Public Works. The general

form of the canal has not since been changed and consists of a cut through a sand bar,

about 2,700 feet in length, with an average depth of water of 14 feet at low water,
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both sides of the cut being lined with vertical faced cribwork piers. The northern
pier has a total length of 2,307 feet and a general width of 20 feet, excepting at the
outer and inner ends where there are blocks 30 and 35 feet wide. The southern pier
has a total length of 2,710 feet and a general width of 20 feet, excepting at the
outer end where there is a cribwork block 30 feet wide for a distance of 30 feet, and at
the inner end where the cribwork is of irregular form and the width varies from 25 to 45
feet for a distance of 590 feet. The piers are 103 feet apart at their inner ends, and 174
feet at their outer ends. The top of the piers is b} feet above ordinary low water. The
southern pier carries two lighthouses ; about the centre of the piers, at the crest line
of the sand bank, recesses wece left in thé cribwork on both sides for a ferry scow,
running across the channel. There is also a traflic swing bridge built by the Dominion
Government close to the railway bridge, opening on the south side. In 1895, the traffic
over the channel had increased to such an extent tbat it was found impossible to
accommodate the public, and this department prepared plans and specifications for the
erection of an iron swing bridge. The contract for the masonry of this bridge was let
to Mr. Geo. F. Webb, of Hamilton, in August, 1895, for the bulk sum of $15,799. The
wasonry work was completed ready for the iron superstructure in April, 1896. On
the 28th of January, 1896, another contract was awarded to the Dominion Bridge Co.
of Montreal, for supplying and erecting the iron superstructure, etc., for the sum of
$15,290. All the works in these contracts have been satisfactorily completed. A
further sum of $1,500 was paid to the Dominion Bridge company for supplying and
installing, by special agreement, an electrical apparatus for operating the swing span ;
power is supplied by the Hamilton Electrical Radial railway company.

During the last year, 1897-98, automatic gates to regulate the traffic at the
approaches, bave been erected. Telephone communication has been made with the
¢« power house,” and a *power indicator,” for the information of the man in charge,
has been placed in the bridge house. Extensive repairs were also made to the piers,
which consisted in placing new face timbers, some planking, and earth filling. The
whole of the repairs necessary were not completed on the 30th of June; the material
for same was on the ground, and the sum of $400 was applied for to pay for labour
rejuired to complete these repairs.

STATEMENT of Expenditure since work is under control of the Department
of Public Works.

i !
i i
! & Staff
Years. Coustruction. | Repairs. and Main-} Totals, Description.
' tenance.
! ! — ! —
| s cts $ cts. $ cts.
1885-86. ... . e e e 210 50 320 213 70 {Putting in good order ferry landing and
! procuring new lines for ferry.
1886--87..... ; ............ 2079 512 19 807 98 {Minor repairs and maintenance.
IS87-88.....0 ... ool P128 28 595 13 723 38 " " "
I888-89. ... ...... ... ...l 115221 70204 817 26 " " "
1389-90. ... | I e | 84278 577 88 | 1,420 66 " " n
1890-91.....0. ... [ 702 04 702 04 Maintenance. .
1891-92. ... s e e | 310 GO 639 96 949 96 :Providing channel with a life line and
i | two life buoys. In Nov. the water was
' | ! g0 low that 1t was found impossible to
; float the scows close to the landings.
i , ! Temporary pontoons were built and
i ‘ i used until the water rose.
8203, . 301 70 714 69 | 1,016 39 General repairs to piers and ferry ap-
| i proaches.
1593-94..... e e e e - 1,663 52 692 71 | 2,256 23 |New scow built, which was shortly after-
‘ ] wards lost during storm. The old scow
| was then §am repaired at a cost of
| | $434.80. Extensive repairs to string-
% : er:;nd flooring of the piers were also
| i made.
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STaTEMENT of Expenditure since work is under control of the Department
of Public Works.-——Concluded.

|
Staff ]
Years. Construction. Repairs. land Main-  Totals. Description.
tenance |
i
3 cts.‘! 3 cts."

1893-94..... B i 1,416 38 |Surveys, plans, &c., for proposed bridge.
1894-95. .. 699 96 : 1,499 98 Repairs made to east pier.
1895-96. .. .. e ieeee s 820 96 820 96 Staff and maintenance.
1895-96..... Bridge, $3,816.25|.... .... [ .... .... 3,816 25 |A road approach 400 feet in length was

; comstructed to connect the swin,

i bridge with -the public road. On soutE

| side of channel a crib 70 x 20 feet was

.built with superstructure to fill in ap-
proaches of the ferry landing.
1895-96..... Bridge, $19,937.13 . .... ... cciienn. 19,937 13 |Bridge masonry, &c.
1896-97.....0 «coiieeieinnn 1,454 24 ........ 1,454 24 Re&pa.iring piers, retaining walls, fences,
c.
1896-97.... |Bridge, $16,520.92 }.......... 1,556 87 | 18,077 79 |Bridge.
1897-98. ... . it 3,525 37 |..... .... 3,525 37 |Repairs to piers.
1897-98. ...l i veeeiii e 2,620 58 | 2,520 58 |Bridge staff and maintenance.
Totals.... 841,690 68( 8,547 39 | 10,738 21 | 60,976 28

From the foregoing statement the expenditure since the work was taken in charge
by this department can be subdivided as follows :—
Channel proper :

Construction.. . ....... .. ... . iiiet i None.
Repairs and maintenance... .......... ... ... .. $15,208 15
Bridge :
Construction, superintendence, ete............... .. $41,690 68
Staff and maintenance.. ........ ................. 4077 4§
Total......ccooov i $60,976 28
COBOURG.

Cobourg is an incorporated town of Ontario, in Northumberland Co., situate on the
north shore of Lake Ontario, on the Grand Trunk railway, 92 miles west by south of
Kingston, 69 miles north east of Toronto, and is a port of entry. It has several mills,
foundries, breweries, and a car factory. Population 5,000.

Construction.—The work of forming a harbour at Cobourg was commenced by a
company organized under an Act of Parliament in 1829. In 1842 the workswere assumed
by the Government and held until the 27th May, 1850, when they were sold to the
town council of Cobourg for the sum of $16,000. Prior to the union of the provincesin
1841, the Government had spent $20,010.72 on this harbour ; and after the union the
sum of $41,999.98 was advanced as a perpetual loan at 6 per cent interest. At the time
of Confederation, the work consisted of two piers, the united length of which was
2,047 feet. They were 190 feet apart at the entrance of the harbour, the depth at the
outer end of the eastern pier being 14 feet, decreasing from seven to eight feet in the
centre of the basin. In 1873 an agreement was entered into with the harbour commis-
sioners for the construction of a pier 1,500 feet long, the commissioners to pay one-third of
the cost and the Government two-thirds. Under this agreement the total expenditure was
$79,569.68, of which the harbour commissioners contributed $25,507.49. In 1881-82 an
arm 150 feet in length, in a south-easterly direction, was commenced, and an expendi-
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ture of $8,291.20 was made. The total expenditure by the department since Confede-
ration up to 1882 was $92,161.89. 1In 1882-83, 1883-84 and 1884.85, the piers were
further extended, especially the eastern pier, and some of the cribwork raised owing to it
sinking in soft bottom. The expenditure during these three years was $47,525.73. 1In
1885-86 and 1886-87, the sum of $10,208.01 was expended in building a crib 100 feet
in length at theouter end of the eastern pier, and the next 300feet shorewards, which had
settled on an average 8% feet, was built up to its proper height ; repairs were also made
to the western pier. In 1887-88 a contract was entered into for rebuilding a portion of
the western pier, which was completed in 1888-89 at a total cost of $9,871.53, out of
which about $2,000 were for repairs to the western pier of the original harbour. From
1889 up to 30th of June, 1897, the east and west piers were alternately repaired and
some portions renewed at an expenditure for these years of $13,525.59. Some
extensive dredging was also done in the harbour, but the expenditure is not included in
this report. During the last year, repairs were again made to the shore end of the western
pier, and its approach, and the walings and planking on the eastern pier renewed The
expenditure for the year ended June 30th, 1898, was $2,999.86.

The harbour, as constituted consists of three main piers, the eastern, central and
western piers. The eastern and central piers form the old harbour proper. The eastern
pier, which is built of cribwork with some enlargements of pile work and gravel filling,
is 1,490 feet in length and is built from the shore in a southerly direction, with a return
L 140 feet long in a south-west direction. The width, which is very irregular, is 30 feet
at the outer end and 60 feet generally at the shore end. The front of this old harbour
is lined with cribwork 800 feet long. About 380 feet from this front wall, and from the
eastern pier, starts a small pier 305 feet long and from 18 to 35 feet wide, running ina
westerly direction towards the central pier. The area enclosed between this short spur, the
shore portion of the eastern pier, the front wall and the central pier is called the inner
harbour. The depth of water there is from 6 to 13 feet at low water. The central
jetty is in very bad repair. It is 1,160 feet long including the approach, and the width
is from 30 to 35 feet. The inner and outer ends are respectively 780 feet and 160 feet
west of the eastern pier. The western pier, which was built by the Dominion Govern
ment, is located about 1,200 feet west of the eastern pier, has a total length of 1,660
feet, and a regular width of 30 feet. It runs from the shore in a southerly direction,
with a return L towards the eastern pier, 150 feet in length. The depth of water in
this enlarged harbour varies generally from six to 15 feet at low water. The top of the
cribwork above low water level is from six to eight feet. On the eastern pier there is a
lighthouse and some store sheds. )

The total expenditure made by this department on this work is $176,727.58, and
may be subdivided as follows :—

Construction. ... ... o e e $ 155,767 16
Repairs.... .............coiieeie i Lol 20,960 42
Total. ... .o e e $176,727 58 _
COLLINGWOOD.

Collingwood is situate on the south side of the Georgian Bay, township of Nottawa-
saga, county of Simcoe, 94 miles by railway from Toronto. It is the terminus of the
Northern and Hamilton and North-western railways. There is an extensive trade in
grain and lumber and it is the starting poiunt of steamers for Owen Sound, Sault Ste.
Marie, Parry Sound, etc. Population 9,000.

Construction.—Prior to Confederation a pier and lighthouse was erected, but
it was completely swept by a storm in 1872. 1In 1873 the work of reconstruction was
commenced and was completed in 1874 at a cost of $57,468.43, one-half of which was
paid by the department, one-quarter by the Northern Railway Company, and one-
quarter by the town of Collingwood. This breakwater is of unusual strength. It is
700 feet in length and finishes, at the deep water end, in a broad pier head 60 feet long
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by 80 feet wide, on which a lighthouse has been erected. The width at the base of the
cribwork is 24 feet, receding to 19 feet 6 inches at water line. The portion above water
is carried up to the height of six feet, terminating at 12 feet 6 inches in width. The
depth of water in the harbour was 11 feet; but as the size of the vessels navigating
Lake Superior increased, this depth was found insufficient and during the season of 1879
and following years, dredging was commenced for the purpose of increasing the depth to
14 feet at low water. The total expenditure since Confederation up to 1882 was
$84,636.32, being $57,468.43 for construction and $27,167.89 for dredging. In 1882 a
contract was entered into with Mr. J. D. Silcox (who subsequently assigned his contract
to Messrs Flemwing, Lindsay and Burdet), for the construction of a length of 600 feet of
a breakwater, extending northwardly from the north wharf, or G. T. R. wharfs. This
contract was completed in 1883. In November of the same year another contract was
entered into with Mr. Rob. Reed for the sum of $18,613 for a further extension of 600
feet, which was completed in 1884. In 1884 the work of dredging the channel at the
entrance of the harbour was continued and the deepening of a basin at the southern end
of the harbour was commenced. In 1885 a new contract was passed with Mr. E.
Murphy for another extension of this breakwater for the sum of $19,000. The
expenditure during 1883-84-85 and 1886, on account of construction was $100,919.58,
In 1887-88 a contract was entered into for the construction of stone rip-rap work to
close the opening between an old slab wharf and the western end of the outer break-
water. It was completed in 1889 at a cost of $12,285.35 ; some boulders, logs, etc.,
were removed from the entrance channel in 1889 at a cost of $3,808.09. Since
1889, dredging has been carried on by the department almost every year, deepening the
water in the harbour generally as well as at the many wharfs. During last year a
contract was let to Messrs. Boon & Armstrong, of Toronmto, to deepen and dredge the
harbour to 16 feet below low water level. On the 3rdof July, 1897, operations were
commenced and continued until the close of the year. Owing to the hardness of the
material removed and many breakdowns in the dredging machinery, the work has not
progressed as fast as was expeoted. The expenditure for the year on this con-
tract was $31,472.39.

Repairs.—In 1884-85, repairs were made to the outer breakwater at a cost of
84,214.71, and from 1893 up to 1898 the sum of $3,013.21 was expended in minor
repairs to the breakwaters and the foundations of the lighthouses. As constituted now
the harbour is very large and commodious, being protected on the north and east side
by extensive breakwaters, 1500 feet and 3,600 feet in length. Several small wharfs
belonging to the town or to companies, are built inside the area enclosed by these break-
Wwaters.

.35 The total expenditure on this harbour since Confederation is $248,237.19 and may
be subdivided as follows :—

Construction and improvements..... ............. $170,673 36

Dredging. .. ..o 70,335 91

Repairs.........covv i 7,227 92

Total...... .. .. ..o o L $248,237 19
GODERICH.

Goderich, in the county of Huron, is situate on the east shore of Lake Huron at
the mouth of the Maitland River, about 68 miles from Sarnia and 60 miles from London.
It is the terminus of the Buffalo branch of the Grand Trunk Railway, and is a place of
considerable importance, partly on account of large deposits of salt found in its vicinity.

Construction. The construction of a harbour at this place was first undertaken in
1835, by the Canada company, who held the right under a lease from the Crown, but
glthough a considerable expenditure was made on the works, they were allowed to fall
nto decay. In 1859 the Canada company transferred their claims on the harbour to the
Buffalo and Lake Huron Railway company (now part of the Grand Trunk system), who
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in 1862, were granted a new lease from the Crown, under which the company erected
extensive harbour works. When it was determined by the Government to establish
harbours of refuge on Lake Huron, Goderich was one of the points selected as
most suitable, and a survey was made and plans prepared for creating a safe and com-
modious harbour. The plan adopted may be briefly described as being that of changing the
entrance to the harbour by cutting a new channel through the beach and protecting it
by cribwork built out to a depth of 17 ft. at low water ; of considerably increasing the
area of the harbour by dredging ; and of diverting the channel of the iver Maitland by
the erection of an artificial bank, so that the river should discharge into Lake Huron
through the north beach and not flow into the harbour at all. These works were com-
menced in 1872 and completed in 1877, the cost being $465,715.81. In 1881 and
1882, dredging to the extent of $1,748 was done, and in 1882, $2,387.06 was spent in
protection works at the beach between the northern pier and the breakwater, which
was gradually being washed away. The total expen-diture up to 1882, since Confedera-
ration, was $471,531.16 on account of construction and dredging.

In 1882-83 the sum of $22,500.00 was awarded by the official arbitrators, and paid
to Mr. S. Platt for damage to his property in connection with the harbour works.
On account of the contractor for the construction of beach protection works
abandoning his contract, the Government was obliged to assume and proceed
with the work, the expenditure during the year on account of construction
being $4,034.04.  This beach protection work was completed in 1884 at
an expenditure of $2,860.16. In 1892-93 a contract was entered into with
Messrs. Brewder & McNaughton, of Ottawa, to extend the northern pier 410 feet, and
the southern pier 100 feet in length and to dredge berths for the same. This work was
commenced in March, 1894, and the work completed in November, 1895. In March,
1897, a contract was let to Mr. Luke Madigan, for a bulk sum of $50,999.00 to
reconstruct the whole of the breakwater superstructure, a length of 2,490 feet, and
rebuild six eribs 30 by 20 feet and nine cribs 30 by 20 feet; the former to be two feet high
and the latter 17 feet high. After a series of delays; on the part of the contractor, an
¢ Order in Council ” was passed setting aside the contract on the 25th of April, 1898,
and authorizing the calling of new public tenders for the completion of the work. The
late contractor, during the last year stripped and exposed about 870 feet of the super-
structure at the east end of the breakwater, rebuilding a portion of same 12 feet high.
The finished height is 18 feet.

The expenditure on account of reconstruction, during the last year, was $7,258.41.
Some dredging was also done in the harbour.

Repairs.—In 1883 and 1884 the breakwater and southern pier were repaired at a
cost of $6,000. These repairs consisted in renewing some planking and guard timbers,
and placing some ballast stone in some of the eribs. From 1884 up to 1897, minor
repairs to the breakwater and piers were made almost yearly, consisting generally in
renewing timbers. The expenditure during these years on account of repairs was
$7,690.23.

Description.—The harbour at the present time comprises an inner basin about 25
acres in extent and two parallel jetties forming the entrance from the lake. The northern
side of the basin is formed by an artificial bank 2,500 feet in length, composed of very
strong cribwork on the Maitland River side and of pile work on the harbour side, the
space between the two being filled in and bearing a spur track. The line of crib work
serves as a training wall to prevent the Maitland River from discharging into the
harbour. The cribwork is sunk generally in 17 feet of water, and its height above low
water level is 18 feet. The north entrance jetty is 1,700 feet in length, the width
varying from 20 to 30 feet, with a block 40 by 45 feet at the head. The south jetty,
starting from the end of the curve formed by the basin is 1,600 feet in length and the
width varies from 20 to 40 feet. The jetties are parallel and 200 feet apart, excepting
at the outer end of the southern jetty where the entrance is 265 feet wide. - The inner
angle of the harbour for about 900 feet in length is considerably shoaled up ; the average
depth of water in the rest of the basin is 14 feet, and in the entrance channel it varies
from 13 to 15 feet. This channel is proposed to be dredged to a depth of 20 feet,
including the southern portion of the ba.sins.o
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The total expenditure in connection with this harbour is $590,311.66, and may be
subdivided as follows :—

Construction, including some dredging before 1882.... $536,825 45
Reconstruction of superstructure (breakwater). ..... 7,631 21
Repairs.......... ..o oL 13,690 23
Dredging since 1882 ................ ... ... .. 32,164 77

Total........ oo $590,311 66

HILTON (OTHERWISE CALLED MARKSVILLE).

Hilton, a small village in the county of Algoma, is situate on the north shore
of St. Joseph’s Island in the north passage of Lake Huron, 3 miles from Stobie, on the
Canadian Pacific railway. It contains three churches, two stores, one hotel and two
saw-mills. Population 300.

The wharf at this place was originally a cribwork structure built by the munici-
pality. It fell into a dilapidated state, and was at last completely destroyed by the
vessels moored to it. In 1884, the remains were sold to Bowker & Co., who rebuilt it
on piles. It was later on resold to Mr. A. G. Duncan. This wharf was built at the
end of a road in Hilton village, it being 270 feet long over all ; the approach varying
in width from 18 to 20 feet, the head pier being 90 by 100 feet. The depth at the
outer end of the original wharf was 16 feet 9 inches.

Construction.—During the years 1886-87 and 1887-88 the department built an
addition to this wharf, consisting of a block of cribwork 200 feet long by 30 feet wide,
laid close to the outer face of the old wharf, at a cost of $10,460.30. The Hilton
wharf was private property, but strong representations were made to the department in
a petition dated 27th December, 1884, ““that owing to difficulty of navigation by night
in the River Ste. Marie, steamers going to Sault Ste. Marie had to lay over night at
Hilton ; that the wharf at that place was too limited in extent to afford sutficient
shelter to those boats and that the anchorage was not good, the water in the vicinity
being deep and the rocks dangerous; and further, that private owners were not in a position
and did not need to extend the wharf for their business, especially as no charges were
made to vessels lying at the dock.” For these reasons the department constructed the
extension already described.

In 1897, representations having been made, that the owner of the original wharf

- extended by the department as above stated, exacted exorbitant tolls for the use of the
Whart ; that the settlers on St. Joseph’s Island were labouring under very great disad-
vantage on account of the extortionate charges made on their produce, etc., landing at
that wharf, it was decided, in order to secured to them fair and just terms, to purchase
that portion of the wharf, which was still private property, so that the whole of the
work could be under Government management. In 1897-98 the sum of $5,000 was
paid over to Mr. A. G. Duncan for the transfer of his wharf, the storehouse standing
thereon and the right of way (to the said wharf from the main road), to the department.

The total amount expended on this work is $15,460.30.

KINCARDINE.

_ Kincardine, in the county of Huron, is situate at the mouth of the Penetan-
gore River, which empties into Lake Huron 31 miles south of Southampton ; it is the
terminus of the Wellington, Grey and Bruce division of the Grand Trunk railway.
Extensive salt deposits are found.

Construction.—1In 1856, two parallel lines of piers were built, 100 feet apart, the
northern pier being 540 feet in length, and the southern one 290 feet. In 1868, the
sum of $4,500 was granted to assist the municipality in completing the southern pier.
A considerable sum of money was also expended by the municipality in improving the
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harbour, the amount being placed at about $23,000. The depth of water being found
insufficient in the harbour, in 1872 dredging was commenced and continued until 1877,
when the whole of the inner basin, about four acres in extent, had been dredged to 12
feet and the enirance to 13 feet. Up to 1882 further dredging was done giving 14 feet
in the basin and 15 feet at the entrance. The entrance piers were also further extended,
the direction changed and the entrance widened from 130 feet to 200 feet so as to afford
greater facility for entering the harbour. In November, 1881, a contract was let for the
construction of 790 feet of pile protection work on the south side of the southern pier. At
the close of the year 1881-1882, the total expenditure by the department on this work
was $78,049.68, out of which about $5,000.00 were for repairs, and a large amount for
dredging.

The pile protection work was completed in October, 1882.

Repairs and renewals.—In 1876, the northern pier having been damaged by a
storm, was repaired and the superstructure raised at a cost of $5,000.00. During the
years 1883 and 1884 repairs were made to the end of the northern pier which had
been damaged by a schooner ; the face of the northern pier was close piled a distance of
665 feet and sheathing was placed on its north side for a distance of 200 feet, to prevent
the influx of sand into the channel. The expenditure in this connection was $6,971.52.
A further sum of $6,155.80 was expended in 1884-85 and 1886-87 in repairing the
north and south piers generally, and raising the superstructure. In 1887-88 sheet piling
was commenced along the north face of the south pier to prevent its falling into the
channel. In 1888-89 this sheet piling was continued on the south and east side of the
basin, and pile work protection on the inside of the northern pier was extended a
distance of 200 feet northwardly. The expenditure on this sheet piling! protection
was $15,000.59. From 1890 to 1896, minor repairs were made to the piers, at an
expenditure of $1,848.78. In 1896-97 the outer end of the south pier was reconstructed
at a cost of 82,265.42, In March, 1897, a contract was let to Messrs Bowman, Bowman
& Porter, contractors of Southampton, for a bulk sum of $11,000.00 to renew the
superstructure of the outer end of the northern pier and strengthen the same with
sheet piling on the harbour face. The superstructure was completed in November, and
the sheet piling in June, 1898. Repairs were also made at the same time to the north
and south pier at a cost of $438.12.

Description.—The harbour at present comprises an inner basin into which flows the
Penetangore River, and two jetties, 90 feet apart at the inner end and 180 at the outer
end.

The east, south and west sides of the basin are built of pile work, strongly braced
to anchor piles, and a platform 12 to 16 feet wide resting on walings. This line of
piling starts from the bridge over the Penetangore River, on the south side of the river,
atd runs north-west for a distance of 57 feet. It then turns at an acute angle almost
south for a distance of 463 feet forming the shore wall of the basin’; then 253 feet in a
direction north-west. It then returns northward toward the north jetty a distance of
440 feet, where the south jetty properly starts in a direction almost due west. ‘This
jetty is 840 feet in length and is partly composed of pile work and cribwork. The width
is very irregular and varies from 12 to 30 feet. The north jetty, 1,470 feet in length
from the bridge, is also partly built of pile work and cribwork. The width of the pile
work is generally 12 feet, and the cribwork 30 feet. The whole of the cribwork has
been pile sheathed. The height of the pier is generally 10 feet above low water level;
the depth in the entrance channel was at the end of the year 11 feet at low water, and

“in the basin from 0 to 13 feet. Dredging is much required in the basin. There are two
range lighthouses on the north pier.

The total expenditure since Confederation is $146,367.89, and may be subdivided
as follows :—

Construction including some dredging before 1882.... $ 78,049 68

Repairs and reconstruction. ...l 45,858 03
Dredging since 1882. ..., Ceretereee ettt 22,460 18
Total.....oooieceieivrernnntonsaes. $146,367.89
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L’ORIGNAL (WHARF).

L’Orignal, a post village in Prescott county, on the south shore of the Ottawa
River, three miles across the river from Calumet station on the Canadian Pacific rail-
way and 66 miles west of Montreal. It contains, besides the county buildings, four
churches, one telegraph office, several insurance agencies, grist and saw-mills, three
stores and three hotels. Two weekly newspapers are published in L'Orignal. Popula
tion 1,000.

This wharf is the most important on the river between Ottawa and Grenville, and is
the only landing for the freight and passenger traffic of the village and of a large extent
of the county. It is used also by the large number of tourists and others visiting the
Caledonia Springs. It was built a length of 534 feet, under commissioners of the
Provincial Government, prior to the union, 10th February, 1841. 1In 1866-67, it was
found necessary, owing to the filling up of the bay, to extend it 800 feet, or to a total
length of 1,354 feet, including the outer block which is 30 feet long and 120 feet wide.
The long approach to this outer block was built 22 feet wide, consisting of cribs 10 feet
by 22 feet, united by platforms of an average span of 34 feet. The work was done by
the municipality, aided by a grant of $2,000 from the Provincial Government.

In the spring of 1884, part of the superstructure was carried away by the ice, and
was rebuilt by this department during the years 1883-84-85 and 1886 at a cost of
$7,266.49. The vote of 1883-84 was supplemented by a grant of $1,000 from the muni-
cipality. The above amount also covers the expense of dredging made by the
“ Nipissing” in front of the pier during the seasons of 1884 and 1885.

In 1896-97 an examination of the wharf was made at a cost of $191.15. It was
found that the approach was in a dilapidated condition and could not long stand the
constant travelling of heavy loads over its uneven roadway and that unless it was rebuilt
this landing would have to be abandoned. Ten of the shore cribs had also been moved
bodily below their original positions for distances varying from three to 22 feet ; and
parts of eight others were shifted from their foundation and partly demolished. It was
therefore decided to rebuild the whole approach 1,323 feet long, from the shore to the
outer block, along the lower side of the old approach. Plans and specifications were
prepared and tenders called. In June, 1897, the contract was awarded to Messrs. J.
N. Munroe and W. Murray, contractors, for the sum of $13,417.12. The works included
in this contract consisted of : 1. A stone and earth embankment 623 feet long and 25
feet wide at the top, with side slopes of 1 in 1 and built up to an elevation of 19} feet
above extreme low water. 2. A trestle approach 700 feet long and 20 feet wide, with
bents 12 feet apart and composed of six piles driven 15 feet in the bottom, and covered
with 4 inch planks well secured to the floor stringers.

At the end of the year 1897-98, the contract work was not quite completed, there
being a number of braces yet to be laid and secured on each side of the bents.

The amount of $13,850.27 expended on this work, also covers the purchase of
materials for the reconstruction of the outer block (120 feet by 30 feet) from the low
water level.

; The total amount expended on this work by the department is $21,307.91, as
ollows :—

Fiscal year 1883-84, reconstruction.. ... ............. $ 5,331 90
w“ o« 1884-85, L PN N 909 69
«  « 1885-86, s 1,024 90
« o« 1896-97, L PP 191 15
« o« 1897-98, L P 13,350 27
Total. .. oov ettt i i et $21,307 91

MEAFORD.

Meaford is an incorporated town' in the county of Grey and is situate on the
west side of the Georgian Bay, 18 miles west of Collingwood, and 20 miles to the east-
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ward of Owen Sound. It is the terminus of the northern division of the Grand Trunk
railway. Population 2,500.

Construction.—Prior to Confederation a pier 500 feet long, and having 14 feet of
water at its outer end, was built by the local authorities, aided by a grant of #6,000
from the Government. This pier which is on the west bank of the Big Head River,
emptying into the harbour, was extended during 1874 and 1875, 160 feet, and an arm
200 feet long was built in a north-easterly direction, in order to atlord protection against
north east winds. A breakwater 410 feet long was also built on the east side of the
river. The cost of these works was $22,899.29, of which three fifths was paid by the
Government, and two-fifths by the municipality of St. Vincent. In 1878, the sum of
$250 was expended in dredging ; and in 1880 and 1881, $2,564.94 was spent by the
department in dredging to 12 feet inside the western pier, deepening the channel to the
inner harbour and dredging a portion of it to 11 feet. In 1884 and 1886 further dredg-
ing was done, and in 1887-88 the town contributed $3,000 and the Government £5,000
to complete the dredging in the inner harbour to 13 feet, and to dredge a 100 foot
channel, 14 feet deep, to it from the outside. In August, 1889, a contract was entered
into for the construction of the following works : —

1. Cribwork, 80 feet in length and 20 feet in width at the north end of the eastern
breakwater. 2. Cribwork, 160 feet in length and 20 feet in width, at the south end
of the eastern breakwater. 3. Sheet piling, 200 feet long, at the east side of the
entrance to the inner harbour. This work was satifactorily completed in May, 1890, at
a cost of $4,987.81, and a space between the breakwater and the shore was also filled
with stone. A portion of the harbour was also dredged to 12 and 13 feet in 1895 and
1896. During the last year a contract was let to Mr. James Sparling, of Meaford, for
the construction of pile protection work, 340 feet in length, on the west side of the
harbour. At the end of the year active operations had not been commenced, but the
contractor was engaged in obtaining the necessary materials for the work.

Repairs.—In 1882, a contract was entered into with Mr. Robert Reed for repairing
the inshore portion of the west pier, which consisted principally in sheet piling about
850 feet of the old cribwork. This was compieted in 1883 at a cost of $12,612.23. In
1892 and 1893, an expenditure of $3,492.42 was made in repairing and rebuilding about
560 feet in length of pile protection work.

Description.—The harbour may be subdivided in two distinct portions, the inner and
outer harbour. The inner harbour which is established in the Big Head River, is about
800 feet long and from 150 to 260 feet wide, having a total area of about four acres.
The depth of water varies from four to 11 feet at low water. The west side is formed and
protected by a line of pile work, 1,170 feet in length, starting from the highway bridge
across the river, and joining the west pier at a point 250 feet distant from its shore end.
The east side is not protected by pile work, excepting at the entrance to the inner basin,
where there are about 200 feet of piling built in connection with fish houses. The
outside harbour is formed by two cribwork jetties, one on each side of the river, about
500 feet apart at their shore ends, with an entrance from the lake 170 feet wide. The
east jetty is 635 feet long and 20 feet wide. The west jetty is 600 feet in length with
an extension to the east toward the east jetty 220 feet long, making a total length of
820 feet. Its width is from 25 to 28 feet. There is a lighthouse at the end of the
extension. The head of the jetty is in 12 feet of water.

The total expenditure in connection with this harbour is $68,561.40 (out of which
$10,000 was contributed by the municipality of St. Vincent), which may be subdivided
as follows :—

Construction .. .. . ... .. .. . ..ttt e $31,358 38
Repairs and rebuilding.. ... ...................... 18104 68
Dredging............. .. il 19,098 34

Total........ ..o i $68,561 40



Department of Public Works

OWEN SOUND.

Owen Sound, in the county of Grey, is situated at the mnouth of the
Sydenham River which flows into the head of Owen Sound, an arm of the Georgian
Bay. The town is the centre of an extensive agricultural district, and is the terminus
of the Grand Trunk railway branch of the Georgian Bay and Lake Erie division
also of the Canadian Pacific railway, Toronto, Grey and Bruce division. There are
several lines of steamers running to and from Owen Sound. Population, 6,500.

Construction.—-Prior to Confederation the harbour was formed by the municipality
of Owen Sound, and in 1856 and 1866 grants were made by the government to assist in
improving the channel of the Sydenham River, frow its mouth up to the town of Owen
Sound. These grants amounted to $1,300. In 1874, a survey of the river was made,
with a view to improving the channel ; and, in 1874 and 18735, the sum of $10,367.55
was expended by the department in making a generally straight channel, 150 feet
wide, from the wharf at the foot of Peel Street to the outer light, a distance of three-
quarters of a mile. The depth of water obtained was 10 feet at low water. In 1876
and 1877, a channel was dredged frown the dry dock to a short distance outside of the
outer light, a length of about 2,000 feet. The channel was about 150 feet wide and had
a depth of 12 feet. Cost %6,589.77. In 1879, a further sum of $1,951.30 was spentin
dredging a narrow channel, 65 feet wide to a depth of 14 feet.

The growing trade of the place demanding greater harbour accommodation, and the
increased size of the steamers navigating the lakes requiring a greater depth of waterin
the harbours, it was decided to make considerable improvements in this harbour,
and the town of Owen Sound agreed to contribute $13,000 towards the cost. These works
consisted in the building of two parallel rows of pile work, 200 feet apart, extending from
the shore a distance of 600 feet, together with about 1,000 feet of bank protection, and
the dredging of the channel of the river Sydenham, from the upper end of the steam-
boat wharf to its mouth, and thence to 14 feet at low water, a distance of 5,000 feet.
9 The expenditure in connection with this pile protection work was in 1881-82, $29,-

42.57

In 1882 and 1883, the pile work on each side of the entrance was strengthened
by the placing of brush and stone ; and a length of 3,000 feet of the channel, from a point
below the outer light to the southern end of the pile work, at the entrance, was dredged
to a depth of 16 feet. The dredging was continued in 1883 at a cost of $6,583.05, but
in March, 1884, owing to the shifting nature of the bottom, soundings showed an average
depth of only 14 feet over the channel opened.

In 1884-85, a depth of 16 feet was obtained at a cost of $9,596.60. The founda-
tions of the inner lighthouse were also protected with large stones at an expenditure of
$237.50. Dredging was contipued from year to year at a large expenditure, in the
inner harbour, and on a new channel approach to the harbour. The material taken
from the bed of Owen Sound harbour, both in the river and at the approach, is a fine
alluvium earth and still finer sand. The material runs into the cuttings made by dred-
ging and continues to do so until the sides of the cuttings form a natural slope. This
accounts for the large amount of dredging done at this place, and the comparatively small
results,

~ In 1890, 1891 and 1892 a large amount of protection pile work was done in the
river. In 1894, a contract was entered into with Messrs. Porter and Canon, of Wiar-
ton, for the construction of sheet pile revetment work in front of the esplanade, on the
west side of the harbour, a distance of 1,550 feet. This work was completed at the end
of 1895. 1In 1896, Messrs. Canon, Sadlier & Co.’s plant was engaged dredging the har-
bour to 193 feet depth at low water where most required. During the past year this
work was assumed by the dredging plant of “ The Owen Sound Dredging and Construe-
tion company ” and continued until the close of the year 1897-98. The expenditure
during the year on this account was $14,401.24.

During the past season the largest vessels sailing the lakes, have been able to
use the harbour of Owen Sound. Protection work on the west side of the entrance

85



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1899

’

channel is much required to prevent the filling in of material brought down by the
Pottawatamie River.

The total expenditure made by the department in connection with this harbour is
$254,367.06, and may be subdivided as follows:—

Construction and reconstruction................... 3123,377 27

Dredging..........c.oooo0 ool oL, .. 130,989 79

Total............... .. .. ... .. .. 2254367 06
PENETANGUISHENE,

Penetanguishene, in the county of Simcoe, is situate on the north of the eastern
peninsula in Georgian Bay, formed between Nottawasaga Bay and the waters of the
Severn River, 40 miles N.N.W. of the town of Barrie. It is the terminus of one of
the branches of the Grand Trunk railway, and a large quantity of lumber is shipped
thence from the north and east shores of the Georgian Bay.

Construction.—During the summer of 1880, dredging was done at the western point
south of the Reformatory wharf, and to the north of the wharfs'at the village, to give
a depth of water of 16 feet in the channel, at an expenditure of $2,624.07.

During 1888-89, a pile structure, 12 feet in width and 850 feet in length, was con-
structed in an average depth of 12 feet of water. Behind this structure an embank-
ment 30 feet wide was formed with brush, stone and earth, giving to the wharf so com-
pleted a total width of 42 feet. In addition to this wharf a similar structure 350 feet
in length was built up at the foot of Barrie Street. The expenditure in connection
with this work was $20,330.70. The sum of $9,849,64 was also expended in dredging to
16 feet of water in the harbour and along the wharfs during the years 1890, 1892,
1895 and 1896.

Repairs.—In 1896, the sum of $597.28 was expended in repairing.and strengthen-
ing the piling. These repairs were continued in 1897-98, and completed at a cost of
$796.57 ; at the end of the year the wharf was in a very good state of repair.

The total expenditure in connection with this harbour may be summarized as
follows :—

Construction.. .. ......... oo e $20,330 70
Repairs. ... ...... ... Ll 1,393 85
Dredging.............. o o 12,473 71

Total. . ... ... ... ... e 334,198 26

PORT ARTHUR.

Port Arthur is situated on Thunder Bay at the northern end of Lake Superior. It
is an important station on the Canadian Pacific railway. A long breakwater, built in
front of the town, forms a harbour and protects the wharfs on shore.

Construction.—In 1884, 2,000 feet in length of the above mentioned breakwater
was commenced and carried to completion in February, 1886, at a cost of $155,661.60.
In February, 1887, the construction of a further length of 1,600 feet, in addition to the
work completed in the previous year, was commenced, and finished in November, 1888 ;
and a talus of stone was placed against the outside of the work, adding very much to
the strength of the structure. In October, 1888, a contract was entered into with
Messrs. Kirby and Stewart for the construction of a further length of 1,500 feet of
breakwater, with block piers at each end, to the westward of the work already com-
pleted ; an opening of 350 feet in width being left between the old work and the new to
permit vessels to enter the port. This work was commenced in May, 1889, and com-
pleted in 1890. The talus of stone commenced in 1888 was also continued along the
front of the work built under the first gontract, it having been found that the bottom
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was eroding under the action of seas during heavy gales. The two above mentioned
extensions, including the stone talus, were completed at an expenditure of $315,641.87.
From 1889 to 1898 an expenditure of $15,445.24 was made in dredging the opening
left in the breakwater to 18 and 19 feet at low water, and giving a depth of 16 feet of
water in the harbour in front of some of the docks.

Repairs.—In 1890-91, the ends of the blocks were covered with sheet piling, and
other parts of the breakwater which had been damaged by ice were repaired. Some
slight repairs were also made in 1892 and 1895. During last year, repairs were
made to the breakwater, where it had been damaged by an ‘“ice-shove,” the previous
winter, and by a vessel named the “ Yuma” running into the superstructure. Work
was commenced in April, and completed in June at an expenditure of $1,000.

There are still some boiler plates, which were washed off the breakwater, and have
been since picked out of the water, to be replaced, and it will require a small sum for this
purpose.

Description.—The construction of the breakwater has converted what was formerly
a dangerous and exposed roadstead to a safe and conmodious harbour. There are three
entrances to the harbour. The western entrance is about 1,800 feet in width, with a
depth of water of 12 to 18 feet at low water. The middle entrance is 350 feet in width
and has a depth of water of 17 feet. The eastern entrance has a depth of water of 17
feet and a clear width of 250 feet. The depth of water in the basin varies from 14 to
18 feet. The total length of the cribwork in the breakwater is 5,250 feet, including the
return blocks at the middle entrance and at the western end of the breakwater. The
width is 30 feet, and the total height 25 and 26 feet. It is sunk generally in 17 and 18
feet of water.

On the lake side the cribwork is made vertical up to about low water line,
and from there up to the top it is finished with a slope of 1 in 1, strongly
sheathed, and the angles protected with boiler plates. The lake side of the break-
water is heavily riprapped. It may here be mentioned that this breakwater
has successfully withstood the force of breaking seas driven by gales travelling at the
rate of 54 miles an hour, and ice shoves from the outer bay, when the ice has been
pushed completely over the structure and left remaining thereon to a height of 19 feet.
foll The total expenditure in connection with the harbour may be summarized as
ollows :—

Construction. . .. oot vt e $471,303 47
Repairs.. .. .. 6.561 61
Dredging......... ... i o 15,445 24

Total. ... ... $493,310 32

In 1872, in connection with the ‘Dawson Route,” a wharf 600 feet long with a
wing 200 feet long, was also built at Port Arthur, then “Prince Arthur’s Landing,”
but its cost was included in the * Dawson Road ” expenditure.

PORT ROWAN.

Port Rowan is situate on the north side of Lake Erie in the inner bay of Long

}’(())i(;lt 5 it is 21 miles from the town of Simcoe in the county of Norfolk. Population
,000.

Some slight repairs to the landing pier at this place were made during the year, at
an expenditure of $90.05.

The following materials were used in the repairs :—

3 cords of stone.

2 ioads of brush.

72 feet of white oak.

951 feet b.m. pine plank and 25 of lbs. iron.
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THORNBURY.

Thornbury, an incorporated village in Grey county, is situate at the mouth of
the Beaver River, which empties into Georgian Bay ; on the Meaford branch, Grand
Trunk railway, eight miles from Meaford and 19 miles from Collingwood. It contains
four churches, 20 stores, two hotels, two grist, one saw, one woollen and one planing
mill, two printing offices issuing weekly newspapers, and telegraph and express offices.
Population 900.

Many years ago a pier was constructed at this place by the residents of the locality,
but it was ailowed to fall out of repair and become useless.

Construction.—During the session of 1881, the sum of £7,000 was voted to con-
struct a pier on the western outlet of the Beaver River, and to dredge a basin 100
feet in width to 10 feet depth on its eastern side. This grant was supplemented by the
sum of 87,000 furnished by the town of Thornbury, and the work was placed under
contract. The pier was built of solid cribwork, for a length of 425 feet out from the
shore into Georgian Bay ; the outer portion or landing block is 145 feet in length and
35 feet in width, and the remaining portion of 280 feet comprising the approach is 18
feet in width. This work was completed during the year 1882-83, at a cost of
#14,136.37. In 1883-84-85, the sum of $8,085.09 was expended in the construction of
protection works on the eastern side of the basin. The work consisted in the construc-
tion of a close pile jetty extending 400 feet out from the beach into the lake, forming an
artificial harbour. During the year 1886-87, a row of piling was driven from the inner
end of the landing pier, in a south-westerly direction for a distance of 280 feet on the
western shore of the Beaver River, at a cost of $1,818.48, to prevent the beach being
cut through by seas. In 1892-93, a sum of $2,981.27 was expended in the construction
of 150 feet in length of pile protection work, and in forming a slip in the landing pier.
In 1897-98, it was decided to build a small breakwater, in the harbour, in order to
shelter small craft. The breakwateris 190 feet in length and 16 feet wide and was
built at a cost of 8978.06.

Dredging.—The dredge ¢ Challenge ” in 1886 opened a channel in the shoal bet-
ween the dock and the breakwater, removing 8,820 cubic yards of boulders, gravel and
sand at a cost of §1,185.55. During the year 1887-88-89 and 91-92, some extensive
dredging was done to improve the harbour and make it easier of access, at a cost of
87,265.23.

Repairs.—In 1891-92, repairs were made to the approach of the landing pier. The
work consisted in removing the wreck of 100 feet of old pile protection work, on the
inside of the approach to the pier, building the same with new material and making
up the embankment with gravel. The work was done by day labour at a cost
of 8624.99. The landing pier, which was much in need of repair, was still further
damaged in May, 1893, when an unprecedented rainstorm of two days duration caused
a heavy flood in the Beaver River, carrying away all the mill-dams in the vicinity
of Thornbury. The debris brought down by the stream and current undermined the
shore end of the landing pier, and the structure, for a distance of 160 feet out, sank and
fell in towards the harbour. During the years 1893-94 and 1894-95, $6,387.18 were
expended to put the landing pier in a complete state of repair. Tn 1895-96 and 97, an
expenditure of $46.05 was made for slight repairs.

The total expenditure incurred on this harbour may be summarized as follows :—

Construction (including $7,000 furnished by the town

of Thornbury)........ .. .. T $27,999 27
Dredging......... 8,450 78
Repairs. ........... ... ... o0 ol 7,058 22

Total .......... ... .. ... 00 ... $43508 27
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TOBERMORAY.

Tobermoray is a natural harbour of refuge situate at the extreme northern end of
the western peninsula, in the county of Bruce, and is the only place on the north shore
of Lake Huron that gives refuge to vessels in stormy weather.

Orders were issued early in the past season to renew the ring bolts, fenders, eye-
bolts and booms, which had " become loosened, or carried away. Owing to the place
being out of the line of call for steamers, considerable delay occurred in obtaining
and shipping the materials required, and the work was not completed until last
November. Twenty six chains, with welded links ; four eye-bolts and rings ; five ring
bolts and wedges ; 10 fender caps with bolts in each ; 10 booms, 370 feet in length and
10 fenders have been renewed and placed in position, at a cost of $203.75.

TOLSMAVILLE.

Tolsmaville is situate on the north east side of Cockburn island, in the north chan-
nel, Lake Huron, a short distance westerly from the north end of Mississaugua Straits.
It is about 90 miles, in a southerly direction from Sault Ste. Marie.

During last year some necessary repairs were made to this wharf. Some 12,800
f. b. m. of lumber and 200 Ibs of iron was used in the work.

Total expenditure during the fiscal year :—

Materjals............ ... ... oL e ... 3247 70
Labour and superintendence.......................... 167 25
Total........ ool 8414 95

TORONTO HARBOUR.

The harbour of Toronto is situate on the north shore of Lake Ontario, and is
formed by a large circular bay about 14 miles in diameter, separate from the lake by a
low island (formerly a peninsula), about six miles long, making a safe and well sheltered
harbour capable of containing a large number of vessels.

In 1788, the harbour was described to be nearly two miles in length, from the en-
trance on the west to the isthmus between it and a large morass to the eastward. The

readth of the entrance was about half a mile, but the navigable channel for vessels
Was only 1,500 feet, having a depth of from 18 to 21 feet of water. In 1832, Bou-
chette stated that the peninsula, now Toronto island, was a narrow slip of land, in
8everal places not more than 180 feet in breadth, but widening towards its western
extremity to nearly a mile. In 1833, changes in the state of the harbour were apparent,
&nq the necessity for its preservation engaged the attention of those interested ; no
action, however, was taken at the time. In 1850, the harbour was put in commission,
and. early in 1852, it was reported that from observations made and soundings taken
during twenty years it was ascertained that the navigable chaunel had narrowed down
to about 200 feet. In 1853, an opening was made during a storm through the narrow
each at the eastern end of the harbour, which closed again in a short time afterward,
although attempts were made to give permanence to the beach, the whole was swept
&way and the eastern entrance was formed.

In 1859, the harbour master reported a depth of eight feet of water in the eastern
channel. In 1860, the western channel was dredged to a width of 400 feet, and an
average depth of 12 feet. In 1862, the eastern entrance had increased to half a mile
I width, and a bar had formed which had shoaled the water. Between 1874 and 1880,
the sum of $19,120.90 had been expended, principally in increasing the width and depth
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of the western entrance, and a certain amount of blasting for the removal of solid rock
was executed.

In 1881, an examination of the harbour was made by Mr. Jas. B. Eads, C.E., who
submitted a carefully prepared report, in which he advised the closing of the eastern
entrance, to obtain and maintain a depth of 18 feet at low water. Before any action
could be taken on these suggestions, the marshes bounding the .eastern side of the
harbour, and the whole of the soutbern shore of the island were damaged to such an
extent as to necessitate a complete departure from the plans prepared by Mr. Eads. As
attention had to be paid to the protection of the eastern side of the harbour, and the
preservation of the eastern portion of the island, where it was the narrowest, and
through which several breaches had been made, in 1882, work for the protection of
the harbour, extending from the Don southwardly to Fisherman’s island, and for the
protection of the island, over a length of 6,500 feet, was commenced, and was brought
to completion in 1885.

In 1889, a contract was entered into for improving the eastern entrance and the
continuation and completion of the harbour protection. These works consisted in build-
ing 1,650 feet of cribwork, to partially close the eastern gap from Fisherman’s island, up
~ to the new eastern channel ; in protecting and maintiining the channel by the construc-
tion of two rows of cribwork, respectively 2,420 feet and 2,280 feet in length, 400 feet
apart, and by dredging between these two rows of cribwork to a depth of 16 feet at low
water. It was also decided to rip-rap with heavy stone the breakwater at the island,
this last work being done by day labour, under direct charge of the department. All
the above mentioned works, outside of the dredging, were practically completed in
1896 only. -

Duri)r’.\g the winter of 1896-97, severe storms caused the settlement of the north and
south ends of both west and east piers. The north end of the west pier having settled
below lake level, it was found necessary to take down and rebuild some 120 feet of the
superstructure, and to place brush mattresses and large stones around the end and
channel face to protect it from further scouring. This was also doue to the north and
south ends of the east pier. Settlement having also taken place along the channel side,
an extra course of timber was put on and the waling taken off and replaced to proper
level. During the past year 1897-98, the north end of the east picr having again settled
considerably out of line, it was found necessary to take down 200 lineal feet of the
superstructure and rebuild it, after the pier had settled back into place by excavating a
seat for it with the city’s pumping dredge. Brush mattre-ses, 32 feet in width, were
sunk along the face of the pier on the channel side, for 210 feet in length to protect it
from scouring, and no settlement of the pier was noticeable at the end of the year.

' Repairs to the breakwater were also commenced and are now being carried out. A
bar, formed during the winter, south of the west pier, contracting the channel to a little
over 100 feet, was removed, and some shallow portions of the channel deepened. There
is now a channel 190 feet in width, having a depth of 16 feet below zero of the gauge,
from the end of the west pier outward. At the end of the year the dredge was employed
in deepening the channel between the piers to 16 feet below zero. Three groynes com-
posed of layers of brush mattresses and sunk with stones were also constructed on the
south shore of the island, west of the breastwork, to protect the beach. These groynes
withstood last winter's storms and made considerable land in their immediate neigh-
bourhood, but they are too far apart to be of much service, as the sea did much
havoc to the shore line lying between them, washing away a strip of beach, and
uprooting several trees, besides doirg damage to the sidewalk. They demonstrate
clearly, however, the importance of others being put down closer together if the beach
is to be retained. The sum expended on these works during the last year is $18,442.76.

The total expenditure, by this department on this harbour, is $1,115,341.28, includ-

ing dredging, staff and maintenance.
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PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.

WHARFS ON LAKE WINNIPEG.

In 1897, Parliament revoted the sum of $8,500.00 which had been appropriated at
its second session of 1896 for the construction of wharfs on Lake Winnipeg ; but no
expenditure was incurred for this purpose, during the year ended 30th June, 1898.

In this connection it may be stated that a project has been submitted for the
construction of a public wharf, 600 feet long, at Gimli, on the west shore of Lake
Winnipeg, that would reach eight feet depth at mean low water. The proposed struc-
ture is to consist of an outer portion of solid crib-work, 20 feet wide and 400 feet long,
and a stone approach from the shore 200 feet long ; the top of planking to stand 4 feet
above mean low water level.

Gimli is the most important Icelandic settlement on the west shore of Lake
Winnipeg and is 62 miles north of the City of Winnipeg.

The object of building this wharf would be chiefly to afford to the inhabitants of
the municipalities of Gimli, Woodlands and Rockwood, proper facilities for carrying on
the lumber trade and the fishing industry. In summer, communication can only be had
by water with these localities from Winnipeg, as the colonisation road is’still almost

impassable on account of its unfinished state and the swampy nature of the country
traversed,

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

COLUMBIA RIVER.

The headwaters of the Columbia River are a series of small lakes lying between
the Rocky Mountains and the Selkirk Range, a little south of the 50th parallel
of north latitude. The upper lake is separated from the Kootenay River, which takes
1ts rise in the heart of the Rocky Mountains, but a few miles north of the 51st parallel
—by a low sand and gravel divide, 2,700 feet above sea level, a mile and a half wide.

he Kootenay at this point, at an ordinary stage of water, is abcut nine feet or soabove
the level of the Upper Columbia Lake. While the Kootenay flows in a south-easterly
course to the boundary line, the water of the Columbia takes an entirely opposite
Irection towards the Canadian Pacific Railway at Golden, about one hundred and
thirty miles north-west of Canal Flat. .
_This portion has been known as the “Columbia River above Golden,” and is
havigable now for steamers of light draught as long as the river is free of ice.

.. From Golden, the Columbia follows on—about the same course—the line of the
railway on the south side, to Donald, where it crosses to the north side of the railway
and continues to follow it down to Reaver. Steamers can, it is believed, run down from
GrOld'en to Donald, but not to Beaver. Leaving the railway at the latter place, the river
continues the same course to the Big Bend; here it doubles and takes a southerly
course to Revelstoke, where it again meets the Canadian Pacific Railway. The distance
g?lm Beaver round the Big Bend is about one hundred and seventy-four and a quarter

iles,
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About thirty miles below Revelstoke, the river debouches into Upper Arrow Lake,
over a fan-like bar of moving sand. After passing through the lake—which is about
forty-three miles long—the river is entered again ; thence it continues to flow for about
eighteen miles, down to the Tower Arrow Lake; and extends southwards forty-eight
miles, more or less past this lake. The river between the lakes is called “The Narrows.”
Both of these lakes hardly exceed four miles in width in the widest part. From the
Lower Arrow Lake to the Kootenay Rapids—twenty-one miles—the river is deep and
wide, with no very acute bends, but a strong current. This portion is known as the
¢ Columbia River, below Revelstoke.”

Continuing through the rapids, passing the mouth of the Kootenay River on the
left, the Columbia continues a wide and swift river, with many sharp bends, divided in
one or two places by rock islands, to the international boundary below Fort Sheppard,
a distance of 32 miles from the head of the rapids. The general direction is due south.
This part of the river is known as the “ Columbia River, below Kootenay.”

The valley of the river, from the “ Big Bend,” south, lies between two ranges of
mountains, the Selkirks, to the left and the Gold Range to the right. The mountains
lose, to a great extent, their rugged appearance as the lakes are reached.

The banks and bed of the river are generally gravel and sand, thickly timbered,
with ax occasional rock bluff intervening.

Improvements above Golden.—Most of the records relative to this work having been
destroyed by the fire which consumed the Department’s offices, at New-Westminster,
on the 11th of September, 1898, it is impossible to report the details of operations, for
the past year, ended 30th June, 1898,

The work was confined to the Columbia River between Golden and Lake Winder-
mere, and consisted chiefly in repairing and extending the existing dams, in order to
confine the river to the main channel. All the labour was furnished by the crew of the
dredge ¢ Muskrat” and comprised blasting rocks, cutting and driving piles, and getting
out brush for the dams. Dredging was also done in a most satisfactory manner through
a sand bar which had formed below the salmon heds at the foot of Lake Windermere.

The expenditure in connection with the dredge ** Muskrat ” during the past year
is as follows :—

WaZES . ot oo e e e $2,838 96
ProvISIONS . « . v v o et e e e e e 917 16
Wood . . o e e e 49 50
Material. . . .o e e e 623 91
Contingencies .. ... .....ccireiiiiiiii e e 303 48

Total........... e e e 84,733 01

Improvements above Revelstoke.—The work of improving the canyon of the Columbia
River, above Revelstoke, consisted of blasting rocks which were a source of danger to
navigation.

The following are the details of the expenditure in connection with this service,
during the year ended 30th June, 1898 :—

WV B ES . o e it e e e e e e $1,672 00
Material . ... ... ... . . . e 300 00
Total. .. ot e 1,972 00

Improvement between the Arrow Lakes, or below Revelstoke.—This work during the
past year consisted chiefly in dredging a channel through a sand bar known as the
Slide Bar, in the Columbia River, about } mile below Swiftwater Riffle, and through
the sand bar at the Swiftwater Riffle.

In both cases a channel, 50 feet wide by six feet deep at extreme low water, was
dredged with good results. In fact no delays by grounding were experienced at
these points by the steamers plying between Arrow-head and Robson, even during the

92



Department of Public Works.

lowest stage of water. In previous years, great difficulty was always encountered in
this section of the narrows at low water. Included in the item for material, $2,071.88
are the cost of a car load of wire, 81 036.74, and of certain tools, $312.81. These tools
and wire were purchased to be used in connection with the construction of a projected
wing dam. Nothing could be done on this dam on account of an unexpectedly early
rise in the river. The dredging was done with the aid of a Canadian Pacific
Railway Co’s railway steam shovel, fitted temporarily on a scow. The scow, so equipped,
was towed by a tug hired for the purpose.
The details of expenditure for the year ended 30th June, 1898 are :—

Wages......... e e e e 31,827 20
Tug hire. .............. e 1,700 00
Material including one carload of wire and tools..... .. 2,071 88

DUNCAN RIVER.

The Duncan River rises in a meadow or depression lying about the centre of the
Selkirk Range, a few miles south of the Canadian Pacific Railway.

From this depression flows also: (1) the Beaver northward to join the Columbia
River at a point where the railway leaves it to climb the eastern slope of the mountains,
and, (2) the north fork of the Spillamacheen south-eastwardly to join the Columbia 40
miles or so, in the latter direction, from Golden, a station on the Canadian Pacific
Railway, at the junction of the Kicking Horse and Columbia.

Following a tortuous course for 56 to 60 miles through a narrow alluvial valley,
from three-quarters to one mile wide, bearing one point east of true south, the mountains
on both sides rising precipitously from the plain, the Duncan widens out into Upper
Kootenay Lake, 10} miles long by from three-quarters of a mile to a mile wide. Two
miles from the lower end of this lake, the Lardo—a rapid and unnavigable afluent from
the north-west, joins the Duncan at an acute angle, and 7 miles further on, the
combined waters enter Kootenay Lake about 21 miles from Kaslo, a town situated on
the west shore. Below the confluence of the two streams the river has been called the
Lardo, notwichstanding the fact that the Duncan, being very much the larger, is pro-
perly the main river. To prevent confusion, the river will be referred to hereafter as
the Duncan, the Lardo being treated as the tributary.

Kootenay Lake, 1,730 feet above the sea, is about 72 miles long by about an
average width of 1} miles. It is the natural and, at present, the only available route
by which the trade of the great southern central valley of the Selkirk Mountains, north
of the boundary line, can be carried. There are two points on the lake waters at which
transfers can be exchanged with the great railway lines. The- first is Nelson, situated
on the west arm or outlet of the lake, 36 miles from Kaslo, where freight and passengers
are transferred in connection (1) with the Nelson and Fort Sheppard Railway and the
Spokane Railway in the state of Washington, and (2), partly by rail and partly by boat,
with the Canadian Pacific Railway at Revelstoke. The second is Bonner’s Ferry, a
small town in the state of Idaho, on the banks of the Kootenay River, about 50 miles
south-east, by the river, of the boundary line, where connection is made with the Great
Northern Railway line. '

To accommodate the lake traffic there are three steamboat lines giving a daily
service between points north of the line, with a bi-weekly service in summer, reduced to
a weekly in winter, to Bonner’s Ferry.

At Kaslo, a small line of railway called the Kaslo and Slocan, 3 feet gauge, said to
be in the interest of the Great Northern, has been constructed to tap the Slocan country,
lying west of Kootenay Lake, in competition with the Canadian Pacific Railway now
operating a line, to the same interior points, called the Nakusp and Slocan, 4 ft.

in. gauge. Nakusp, being situated on the east side of the Upper Avon Lake, con-
nection is made by water thence with the Canadian Pacific Railway at the head of the
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lake. If an amicable arrangement could be arrived at between these rival lines, of
which there is a remote possibility, the Duncan River country would be in closer con-
nection with the Canadian markets.

To meet the requirements of the increasing outputs of these mines conveniently
situated within easy transportation distance of the lake, two large smelters have been
erected ; one by American capital at Pilot Bay on the east shore of the lake, opposite
the west arm or outlet; and the other at Nelson, by the Hall Mines company, an
English corporation, which has been built primarily to treat the ores from their own
property lying on Toad Mountain south of Nelson, and also for the purpose of custom
smelting. :

It %s contended that the Duncan country is as rich in minerals as any other part
of the district, but, owing to the difficulties and dangers attending the transporta-
tion of freight, it is deprived of the advantages of reasonable freight rates, and
its development is retarded. To mitigate the difficulties under which this section
labours, it is proposed that the Duncan River, from the Kootenay Lake, be made
navigable as far as practicable.

All the above claims are simply prospects, no development work having been done.

At the mouth of the Duncan River, on Kootenay River, there are extensive sand
bars, through which by many channels the river finds the lake, the main channel being
close to a rock bluff on the west side. There was not, on the 7th September, 1895,
more than two feet of water in the deepest channel. Upon entering the river the low
land bordering the banks is found to be of alluvial character, covered at first with
alders and willows, which afterwards give place to larger and merchantable timber.
The current varies from two to six miles an hour and cuts the banks rapidly on the
convex curve of the river. At intervals, up to the mouth of Cooper Creek, sharp, short
pitches or riffles, where the river splits, are met with; the difference in level varying
from ten inches to two feet. The most serious of these rifflles and splits, which will always,
at low water, unless ameliorated, prove obstacles to navigation, occur below the mouth
of Cooper Creek.

The difference in level between the lake and the mouth of the Lardo, a distance of 7}
miles, is estimated to be approximately 28 feet.

Duncan City, consisting of three houses with no permanent inhabitants, is situated
about 1} mile from the outlet of Upper Lake on its west shore.

Between the mouth of the Lardo and the Upper Lake, there are two places where
the channel is split by islands, rocks and gravel bars.

The drop, or difference in level, from the crest of the riffle to comparatively still
water below, is in both instances not less than two feet. The depth of water in the
shoalest parts was found not to exceed 24 inches.

The approximate elevation of the Upper Lake above Kootenay Lake is assumed to
be not more than 36 feet. Allowing the distance between the lakes to be 9 miles, the
average water slope would be 4 feet per mile. As will be inferred, however, the slope
is not uniform, the river being a series of shallow riffles, in some instances short and
sharp, with comparatively deep pools of water between, flowing with moderate velocity.

It is at these riffles—met with either at the mouths of tributaries or where the
channel is divided, that the greatest difficulties to navigation will have to be overcome.

Throughout the entire course of this portion of the river, which may be termed the
Lower Duncan, erosion is ‘constant wherever the current strikes the bank. The conse-
quence is that trees are either constantly falling into the stream, or overhang the banks
sometimes partially submerged. These latter are called sweepers, and especially in
bends are dangerous to boatmen. There are also to be found in every reach of low
velocity, & number of sunken or partially sunken snags, and on the upper ends of islands
and bars accumulations of drift timber. s

Duncan City is laid out on a gravel beach, the highest point being 195 feet above
the lake, which appears to have been formed by the detritus deposited at the mouth of
an old channel of the Lardo River, now flowing south-east about 1% mile to the
westward. This old channel, it is assumed, discharged into the Upper Lake through
a narrow rocky gorge or cafion, now a pass, in a low spin or ridge of the mountains,
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By careful barometric readings, it was ascertained that the water level of the Lardo
1} mile to the west of Duncan City, was about 60 feet above the lake. Allowing 6 feet
as the fall from the lake to the confluence of the Duncan and Lardo, the latter falls 634
feet in 3} miles. This settles at once the question of the navigability of the Lardo.

At the upper end of Upper Kootenay Lake, about 8 miles long, the Upper Duncan
River enters the lake. The mouth here is similar in character to that of the lower
river. There are the same extensive sand bars through which the river enters the lake
by three channels, the principal one, however, being in this instance on the east, instead
of on the west side, along a rock bluff.

Continuing up the river on the east bank, 8 miles from the mouth, what is called
Two-Mile Creek is reached.

The river over this portion passes with a sluggish current from side to side of
the valley, three-quarters to a mile wide, sometimes skirting the foot of the mountains.
The width varies from 200 to 400 feet. When the latter width exists, the current being
further retarded, the depth is shallow, and numerous sand bars to some extent obstruct
the channel. There are also present the usual snags, drift timber and overhanging
trees or sweepers.

From Two-Mile Creek to Bear Creek the features remain the same, though
the width is generally less, the current in places is greater, and there is a larger
number of snags obstructing the channel. About two miles above the creek there is a
big log jam over 150 feet long. Above this jam the river is comparatively clear for
about a wile, when a rapid formed by a large number of snags and drift timber is
encountered. This is evidently the remains of a large timber jam. Another such rapid
has to be passed before Bear Creek, twelve miles from the mouth, the terminus of
boating on the river, is reached.

It may be mentioned here that those who have prospected in the country, and
freighted on the river, are of the opinion that above Bear Creek all freighting must be
done by land trail or wagon road.

For reference the following recapitulation of distances is given :—

Kootenay Lake to mouth of Lardo River............... 7 miles.
Lardo River to Duncan City......................... 3 «
Duncan City to Upper Kootenay Lake................ 84 «
Upper Kootenay Lake to Bear Creek.................. 12«
Total .o ovii e 3034 «

The alluvial land on either side of the river up to the foot of the mountains would,
no doubt, prove valuable for farming purposes, if cleared, and provided overflow were
Pll‘;vented. The timber is of fair size and consists of cedar, fir, spruce, cottonwood and
alder. /

_ The Duncan River, fed mainly by glacier and snow field streams, is highly charged
with sediment during freshets.

The waters of the Upper Duncan, however, find a settling basin in the Upper
Lake, thus relieving the Lower Duncan of its contribution.. The finer sediment of the
latter is deposited at the outlet forming the bar already referred to.

The watershed, or catchment basin, of the Duncan is of limited area, and in conse-
quence of the deep shore, and comparatively bare mountain slopes, the ice and snow
Within its narrow bounds disappear rapidly when the weather is warm. To this may be
attributed the short duration, and intermittent character of the high water season, in
those years when the freshet is not abnormal, and the weather variable. When,
however, the freshet is unusual—such as prevailed in 1894—there is but a slight differ-
ence in level between the upper and lower lakes, the whole valley between being sub-
Tuerged during the highest of the flood.

Continual rain does not seem to have any effect on the river, for what is rain in the
Valley is snow during the same season on the mountains. The water in the lower lake
fell fully twelve inches between the 7th and 19th September, 1895, notwithstanding
1t had been raining almost continuously since the 2nd of that month.
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The obstructions to navigation in this river consist, first, of snags. drift timber, and
overhanging trees or sweepers, almost throughout its entire course, except in the Upper
Kootenay Lake, and secondly, of bars at the mouths of the river in the upper and lower
lakes, and of bars, splits in the channel, and rock in the channel between the lakes.

The river as far up as Bear Creek, in round numbers 30 miles from Kootenay Lake,
can be made safe and passable, at high water only, for moderately large and powerful
stern wheel steamboats, by the removal of all the snags, drift wood and sweepers from
the channel, at a moderate cost. But to attempt to train the river and deepen the bars at
the mouth, to make navigation possible at low water stage, would entail an expenditure
larger than the present developments would justify.

The work of clearing the Duncan River, from Kootenay Iake, of snags, over-
hanging trees and other obstructions to safe navigation, was resumed in the month of
January, 1898, and continued until the month of April. The work was done in a most
satisfactory manuner and steamers were enabled to run in the spring through to the
upper end of Howser Lake. It is now intended to improve the upper Duncan River.

The following are the details of the expenditure in connection with this service for
the year ended 30th June, 1898 :—

Wages ...... ... ... N 82,531 50
Tughire. . ..... .. ... ... oo oL, 20 00
Material ... .ot e 208 75
Boathire. ... ... .. . . . 66 50
Contingencies. .. ... oottt e 130 00

Total .. ............ ... ... L. $2,956 75

FRASER RIVER.

The Fraser River is one of the largest besides being the most important of the
many rivers of the Pacific province. It traverses, or rather penetrates, a country most
diversified in its productions and undeveloped resources, both as regards the precious
and other metals, as well as the products of the forest and soil. It has been well known
since the early fifties, if not before, therefore there is no need, for the purposes of
this report, to give a very extended description, except in the direction of those natural
features which bear directly upon the works undertaken, or upon those contemplated,
for the training of the channel with the view to prevent erosion and overflow ; and for
the conservation, in a permanent and stable manner, of the ship channel from the city
of New Westiinster to deep sea water in the Gulf of Georgia.

The topographical characteristics of the Fraser throughout its entire course are in
many respects similar to those of the Columbia River, lying to the south. Like it the
Fraser takes its rise in small lakes at the western base of the Rocky Mountains, and,
keeping close thereto for some distance, flows in a north-westerly direction before it
bends to the west, and eventually turns south. The headwaters are at an elevation of
about 3,000 feet above the sea, in the vicinity of the Yellow Head Pass, through which
it was at first the intention to build the Canadian Pacific Railway ; lying a little to
the south of the 53rd parallel of north latitude, between the 118th and 119th meri-
dians of west longitude and but a short distance from Canoe River, which flows south-
ward to join the Columbia at the Big Bend. The most northerly point of the stream is
about 16 miles north of the 54th parallel on or about the 122nd meridian, whence its
course is west for about 10 miles. Thence leaving the summit waters of the Peace River,
which flow to the north, five miles or so to the right, the Fraser takes a general direction
a little east of south as far as a place called Hope, situated on the left bank about 15
miles below Yale, which is the highest point of practical steamboat navigation and
about 25 miles north of the 49th parallel, the international boundary line. From this
point the stream gradually changes its direction, eventually taking a general course
through the arable lands of the Fraser Valley, almost due west down to the Gulf of
Georgia, into which it empties about eight miles north of the boundary and six miles
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west of the 123rd meridian. Allowing for the many bends and the frequent traverses
of the valley, it is a close approximation to say that the length of the Fraser from its
source to the gulf is not less than 900 miles.

Throughout this distance the river passes between and pierces many ranges of lofty
mountains, on the sides and summits of which glaciers and snow fields abound, and among
which, at the higher elevations, the snow measured as it fell, has been known to attain,
in one winter, the great depth of 50 feet.

These mountains are also pierced by the lateral valleys of the many tributaries of
the Fraser River, which range from the short lived mountain torrent to the large rivers
whose sources are generally mountain lakes, the receptacles of the water from the melting
glaciers and snow fields which surround them.

Commencing at the upper reaches and proceeding down stream, the principal
tributaries entering the Fraser River from the right bank may be described briefly as
follows :—

1. The North Fork, which penetrates by two branches, the western slope of the
Rocky Mountains and enters at the point where the Fraser turns westward from the
base of the mountains.

2. The Salmon River, which flows from the north-west, near by, and in a direction
parallel, though opposite to that of the Peace River, and joins the parent stream where
it bends to the southward.

3. The Nechaco River, whose numerous branches spread out fanlike northward to
the 56th parallel, almost mingling with the headwaters of the Skeena, and westward
and southward, and penetrate deeply into the heart of the Coast Range and which
connects with the Fraser at Fort George.

4. The Blackwater River, which flows from the west also ; but is not so far reaching
as the Nechaco, and joins the main stream, 50 miles south of the Nechaco.

5. The Chilcotin River, flowing from the same direction as the two former branches,
'};hich rises in a large lake, of the same name, lying at the eastern base of the Coast

ange.

6. ‘The Harrison River, which flows southward from a chain of large lakes and
enters the Fraser about 45 miles below Yale,

7. The Pitt River which rises in a lake, situated a few miles north of the railway,
fed by mountain streams, and flows in a south-westerly direction, joins the Fraser about
eight miles above New Westminster.

8. The Coquitlam River, which has its origin in the lake of the same name, whence
is drawn the water supply of New Westminster, flows south and joins the Fraser two
miles below the mouth of the Pitt.

The chief tributaries entering from the left bank are :—

1. The Willow River, which rises in the heart of the notable placer gold mining
country of Cariboo, and flows northward, joining the Fraser opposite the mouth of
Salmon River already referred to.

2. The Quesnelle River, which algo flows from the Cariboo country, but in a westerly
direction, and empties into the Fraser at Quesnelle Mouth, some eighty miles south of
Fort George.

3. The Thompson River, which joins the Fraser at the town of Lytton.
This is a large river with many subsidiary streams, draining a large area extend-
Ing east as far as the summit of the Gold Range ; south, almost as far as the
Suinmit lake of the Fraser, from which it is divided by a narrow neck in the midst of
which the Canoe River flows to join the Columbia at the Big Bend ; and south about
fifty miles. The Thowmpson is navigable from Savona’s Ferry, lying at the west end of
Kamloops Lake, about seventy miles above Lytton up to the town of Kamloops opposite
the confluence of the North Thompson (which latter stream is also navigable for about
10_0 miles north) and thence continues eastward into Shuswap Lake and Salmon Arm,
lying at the western base of the Gold Range. At a high stage of water, navigation may

continued south of the railway through Mara Lake up the Spillamacheen River to
nderby, a distance of twenty-three miles.
97
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The Canadian Pacific Railway follows closely the Thompson waters from the
summit lake in Eagle Pass to the confluence of the Thompsor with the Fraser. In
only one instance does it depart therefrom, and that is, where, to avoid a long detour,
if the shores of Salmon Arm and Kamloops Lake were followed, a narrow neck of land
separating them is crossed at an elevation of six hundred feet above the lake level.

Below Lytton to salt water, though many other streams enter from the left, none
of them are of sufficient size or importance to require special mention here.

Viewing the river above Lytton, and keeping in mind its immense watershed and
innumerable feeders, it is all but impossible to understand by what means such a body
of water passes through the narrow cafion above Yale.

Thus the watershed of the Fraser River and its tributaries extends from the 49th
northward to the 56th parallel of north latitude, and from the summit of the
Coast Range on the west to the summit of the Rockies and the Gold Range on the east,
embracing an area of not less than 70,000 square miles, equal to about one-third of the
area of the mainland of British Columbia.

Between Yellow Head Pass and the mouth of Salmon River, the Fraser flows
through a heavily timbered country. The banks are either of rock where the channel
narrows, or in wider portions, of friable material, such as gravel, sand and clay. Navi-
gation is said to be possible for steamers of light draught above Grand Rapids. Below
Salmon River, the river widens out to about one thousand feet or more, having the ap-
pearance of a lake. The banks are low and heavily timbered with cottonwood. Below
Fort George the river narrows again and flows with a steadily increased current through
a country but sparsely timbered for some distance back from the banks of occasional ele-
vated benches of good arable land where water can be turned on, divided at intervals by
the inevitable cafion. Through the bench lands the banks are steep and always of ma-
terial easily disintegrated by the erosive energy of the rapid current. These natural
features continue through the Cottonwood Canon, referred to hereafter, past Quesnelle.
Soda Creek, and the mouth of the Thompson to the point where the dry belt ends and
the timber returns to the river bank again. The return of the timber gradually be-
comes evident below Lytton. Between Fort George and Soda Creek the river is navi-

able. '
8 The . white population above Yale is somewhat scattered and may be described as
mainly agricultural and mining.

Though the cafion of the Fraser, through the Cascade Range, practically ends at
Yale, the valley does not widen out appreciably for some distance below Hope. From
this latter point to the mouth, the most densely populated part of the province, the
river passes between low banks, frequently split up into sloughs or subsidiary channels,
with here and there a rocky point or bluft jutting out, of most soluble alluvial soil, gen-
erally timbered with cottonwood along the banks, most fertile, but, with few exceptions,
liable every year to overflow, the extent of which depends, in a great measure, upon the
snowfali of the previous winter and the continuance of early and sudden extreme hot
weather. At New Westminster the river is divided permanently by Lulu Island into
two channels, called respectively the North Arm and the Main Ship Channel. This
section of the valley is what is known as the Delta of the Iraser. It is very rich
agricultural land, but subject to tidal overflow.

Four bridges only have been as yet thrown across the main channel of the Fraser.
The first, a road bridge at Lillooet, 340 feet span, built of wood axrd iron ; the second, a
steel cantilever railway bridge, below Lytton, with a centre span of 300 feet, which car-
ries the Canadian Pacific Railway from the left to the right bank, which it follows there-
after closely to New Westminster: the third, the Alexandria suspension bridge, of 256 feet
span, whereby the old Cariboo wagon road crosses the Fraser two miles above Spuzzum, and
the fourth, the Canadian Pacific Railway Company’s bridge at the Mission, consisting of
one span of 100 feet, eight spans of 150 feet each, and a swing truss of 239 feet over all ;
there are also 1,400 feet of trestle approaches on both sides of this bridge.

The lowest water occurs in the Fraser for a short period after the ice goes out, it
then rises gradually by reason of the early spring rains; but it is not until the begin-
ning of May, when the sun shines hotly, melting the mountain snow, that the settlers
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below Hope begin to anxiously watch the river. The first rise usually takes place in
Mady, when the snow on the mountains along the lower reaches melts and seeks its na-
tural outlet. This is generally followed by another and greater rise about June, or early
in July, when the water of the melting snow and glaciers of the upper Fraser comes
down. Thisis the time most dreaded, but strange to say in 1895-96, contrary to past
experience, the unprecedented high water, which has proved so disastrous to the lower
Fraser Valley, was caused by the walers of the Thompson. Fortunately the first rise
receded before the great bulk of the Rocky Mountain water arrived. Had both come
simultaneously it is impossible to say to what greater extent the destruction of lands and
changes of river bed would have been carried.

Previous to the commencement of railway construction, the high water of 1876 was
the highest known and was accepted as the extreme. In 1882, however, the river rose
higher, and this was similarly accepted as the extrewe limit. 'This confidence was rude-
ly dispelled in 1895-96. In one direction at least, the occurrence of this freshet may be
considered as not altogether an unfortunate one, not unmixed with good. Had all the
dyking and reclamation schemes proposed, based upon the high water of 1882, been com-
pleted, the destruction and loss of property from Hope to the Gulf of Georgia would
have been incalculable. The result will now be that all works undertaken, likely to be
affected by another high water, will be designed to meet a flocd of still greater height.
It is not probable, but possible, that a combination of all conditions necessary to
ensure the coming together of all the waters from the melting snows and glaciers over
the whole area of the watershed of the Fraser, may happen. Such a contingency,
though it may be considered by some remote, must be guarded against,

The erosion of the shores and bed of the channel, where it passes through or over
easily disintegrated material, is constant, but of course is least during low water. As the
river rises, the erosive energy of the current increases rapidly until the maximum is
reached at the highest stage of water. The result of this constant and increasing eating
away of the shores and bed, is that an immense amount of material is carried down
stream in suspeusion ; the quantity being augmented by every tributary large and small,
until, in the lower reaches, the water isin such a turbid state, so charged with sediwent,
that it more closely resembles a thick pea soup than anything else it can be compared
to. The extent of the sedimentation that must occur every year, at the mouth of the
river or elsewhere, where the current is at all retarded, as for instance where the banks
are overflowed, or where the inflowing tide meets the river current, may be easily
1magined.

Another source of sediment is the hydraulic mining operations now being carried on,
with every prospect of being extended, along the Fraser and all its branches. Should
the expectations of those interested, even only in part, be realized, it will be necessary
to take steps to supervise operations, and insist upon reservoirs being constructed at the
Points where such precautions are or may be considered necessary, for the purpose of im-
pounding the material and preventing it being carried down stream in great quantities
-and deposited on any valuable land that may be overflowed, to its total destruction, or
‘on bars in the river channel to the detriment of navigation. Such has happened in
California, and it is stated by those familiar with both countries, that the available
Paying hydraulic properties on the Fraser River are much in excess of those in Cali-

ornia.’

Below the cafion at Yale, the bars and bed are chiefly coarse gravel aud sand, the
former becoming finer and finally disappearing below Miller's Landing. Thenoe
outwards to the extreme limit of the Sand Heads in the Gulf of Georgia, the material
composing the bars and the sides of the chanunel, for the most part, is a very fine, flaky
silt, which when dry has a pearly or semi-metallic lustre. It is probably the result of
the attrition of mica or talcose slate.

The destructive energy and capabilities of this surcharged freshet water are added
to by the enormous quantities of drift timber borne along by the current. This drift
comprises trees and timber of all sizes and descriptions, ranging from a cottonwood,
<edar or fir, 150 to 200 feet long, with roots, from 15 to 20 feet in diameter, and

ranches intact, to the ordinary saw-log or tree top. It may be either green timber
9y
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recently fallen in, where the bank has been undermined, previously stranded timber
or part of log-jams floated off by a higher water. The drift sometimes gathers
in large rafts, and it is not difficult to realize the inherent destructive power of such a
mass carried along by a current of great velocity, and the damage it will inflict
when driven against a friable bank, dyke, bank protection, mattress work, wharf or
bridge piers.

The river flow is affected by the inflowing tide, that is backed up to Chilliwhack,
about 48 miles above New Westminster, or 65 miles from its mouth. The diurnal
fluctuation at Miller’s Landing has been observed to vary between 12 and 30 inches in
winter time. ’

At New Westminster, the range is for ordinary spring tides about five feet, but
during freshet time, the water seldom falls more than a foot or eighteen inches.

There is no surface movement up stream except during low fresh water stages.

At the rock wharf, inside the mouth of the river, the greatest range of one tide is
eleven feet, through the extreme range, that is the difference between the highest and
lowest observed tide waters is eleven feet. The greatest tidal range recorded by the
automatic tide gauge put up in the channel through the Sand Islands, two miles from
shore, is fourteen feet ; this occurred on 11th January, 1894, at full moon, though the
difference of level between the lowest and highest tide waters known is only 14°7 feet.

For the purpose of asceitaining the surface slope of the river during the freshet at
all stages of the tide between New Westminster and the tide gauge on the Sand Heads,
a distance of 184 miles, and between intermediate points, simultaneous tide gauge obser
vations were taken on the 21st June, 1896, all. the gauges being referred to one datum.
The following table gives the ccndensed information thus obtained :—

bi . Differenceof g . . Differenceof ‘ Surface
River stretches. litﬁﬁg m }}ev‘%—aﬁ ) islope in feet ﬂev‘?\}aﬁl slope in feet
C et i per mile. feet. per mile.
| i -
New Westminster to Ewen's Cannery . . 58 208 | 039 3:70 065
Ewen'’s to Laidlaw’s Cannery . .. ..... 40 158 | 0°395 ! 267 0°6675
Laidlaw’s to Stone Wharf. ......... .. 50 | 092 ! 0-185 3-37 0674
Stone Wharf to Tide Gauge.... ...... 39 | 075 | 0°192 3'n 0°95
Totals......... . .o ... 187 l 533 i \ 1845 |
{

From the above it will be seen that the greatest surface slope between New West-
minster and the gulf, therefore the swiftest current, is between the last meutioned
points in above table, and it is in the vicinity of the wharf, both up and down stream,
that the greatest cutting of the banks has taken place.

The motive for the foregoing, perhaps rather extended description of the physical
characteristics of the Fraser Valley, is the desire to convey a clear impression of the
magnitude of those elements or factors which enter so largely into the solution of all
problems connected with the regulation of river channels, in the direction either of
preventing erosion of the banks or of improving navigation.

A suggestion has been thrown out that perhaps the main river might be perma-
nently relieved of some of the surplus flood water by diverting the sources of some of its
many feeders into the head-waters of other rivers, to which in many instances they are
in very close proximity. The practicability of such a scheme can only be determined
by examination and correct levels. It may be added that such a proposition, however,
appears to be, if anywhere, oniy possible with the branch streams above Lytton, and
cannot seriously be considered with regard to the Thompson waters.

The work carried on during the year 1897-98 on the Fraser River consisted :—(a)
In completing the hydrographic survey of the river and tributaries, commenced in 1896,
between its mouth and Agassiz, with a view of preventing the further erosion of its.
banks, the shoaling of the navigable channel, and the flooding of the adjacent agricul-
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tural lands during flood season. (5) In removing snags from the channel, making sound
ings, and performing the usual buoy service at the mouth of the river for
the Department of Marine and Fisheries, for which this department is paid the sum of
$915. (¢) In building mattress protection work at Westham Island, in constructing a
dam at Ewen’s slough, and in making a cut at Miller’s landing.

() The hydrographic survey between the mouth of the the Fraser River and
Agassiz commenced in 1896, terminated in May 1898. The systemn of triangulation,
and the field operations, are the same as described in the last annual report.

On the 11th of September, 1898, in the fire which consumed a large portion of the
city of New-Westwminster, including the offices of the department, the following records,
in connection with this survey besides many valuable plans, were destroyed.

1. All field-books.

2. The copies of Trigonometrical work.

3. List of Bench Marks with values.

4. List of maximum and minimumn water levels.

5. All gauge records from the gauges established at the following points :—Sand
Heads, Garry Point, New Westminster, Haney, Sumas, Harrison, Lytton and Quesnelle.

The loss of these data makes it difficult for the presenti to adopt a method by which
the overflow of the river, during the freshets, over the agricultural districts above New
Westminster may be arrested. Enough data, however, remains on hand, to carry on
the work of protection to the banks of Westham Island and Garry Poiat, in the most
advisable manner, and the improvement of the channel at the mouth of the river.
The chains of river triangulation performed on that survey, extend over a length of
about 108 miles, the positions of 491 trigonometrical stations having been fixed. The
aggregate length of main traverse lines (all of which were check chained) is 64 miles.
The total length of topographical stadia traverses is 640 miles, this figure being exclu-
sive of surveys (frequently accompanied by lines of level) to place 91 miles of flood
contours along banks, and the fixing of the many lines of soundings taken on
Langley slough, Chilliwack River, Hope slough, Harrison River and the Fraser. The
checking of bench marks along the Canadian Pacific Railway in connection with the
survey involved levelling over 67 miles, all of which was gone over at least twice and
much of it three times. In reducing lines of soundings establishing tide gauge
zeros, determining water surface slopes, taking crosssections of river to above
maximum flood level and connecting these sections with bench marks, 43 miles
of levels were run; all having been gone over at Jeast twice. The soundings taken
on the Fraser aggregate 4} miles, on the Harrison River a total length of 12
miles was taken ; on Hope slough, Chilliwhack River and Langley slough the total
length of soundings taken reached 15 miles. The measuring of verification bases
together with stellar and solar observations to check angular work took up a
good deal of time. The main triangulation was carried on the Fraser River proper, the
Harrison River, the Pitt River, the north arm of the Fraser River and the south branch
of the north arm.

Main traverses emanating from and terminating on trigonometrical stations were
made on Parson’s channel, 3-6 miles ; Langley slough, 4:3 miles ; Sea Island, 3°1 miles;
Boyd'’s slough, 3-0 miles ; Hope and gravel slough, 6-5 miles ; Hope slough, 9-0 miles ; Nico-
men slough, 14'7 miles; Zait a Cullachan slough, 2'1 miles; to Garry Point, -3'8 miles.

The calculated maximum discharge of the Fraser River in the 1894 flood was found
to be about 490,000 cub. feet a second at New Westminster ; the minimum discharge
for the same section being found to be about 130,000 cub. feet a second.

A tide table has been computed showing the time and height of high and low water
at Garry Point and New Westminster, and extracts from this table are published daily
In the local newspapers for the information of pilots and fishermen, an innovation which

as proved of great service.

The total expenditure incurred during the year ended 30th June, 1898, in connection

with the tidal observations and surveying operations above deseribed, amounts to
$19,993.16.
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(6) The removal of snags and keeping the channel marked out properly by buoys
was, as usual, done by the snag boat “Samson,” between Sumas and the mouth of the
river, a distance of about 60 miles. When not engaged on this work the boat was used
for sounding and surveying the channel between New Westminster and the mouth,
also for the installation and inspection of tide gauges, until March 9th, 1898, when the
boat was laid up at New Westminster for repairs,

The following is a table giving the number of hours the *“Samson ” was employed
on each service from the 1st of July, 1897, to 8th of March, 1898, exclusive of Sundays
and holidays, 213 working days or 2,130 hours :—

Number of snags removed................. ............. 184
Hourssnagging.........c.c.ooiuiiinneonnnnninnn . 222
do Buoy service................ ... 0 i, 275
do Repairing and painting............ ... ... ..... .. 146
do Sounding and surveying.... . ... ........ ... ..... . 348
do Piledriving............. ... .. .. .. .. ..., ... ... 50
do Visiting, repairing and building tide gauges.......... 174
do Building approach to draw, Pitt River Bridge........ 285

do Repairing booms at Observatory, winter quarters, Rock

wharf, etc., to protect against ice. ............. 129
do  Raising “ Fairy Queen™. ... . ............. ... ... . 15
do Preparing for dredging at Sumas...... . .... ..... .20
do Moving Fraser River survey scows.................. 15
do Inspecting buoys (not charged)..................... 50
do Sundries including shipping supplies, watering, washing,
out, ete., filling boiler, travelling, ete............ 401
Total ........ ... ... . ... . 2,130
Hours, steam up. ......... . .. e 1,243}
Coal used (washed nut)..... .... ... ... .. . . .. 169,600 1bs.
Woodused.........c..ooooiiii 87% cords.

In the above statement 285 hours appear in connection with work done at Pitt
River bridge on the line of the Canadian Pacific Railway company. The ¢ Samson”
was employed for driving piles to guide vessels through the draw span pass; the com-
pany furnishing all the materials required and doing all the work which could not’ be
performed by the “ Samson ” and her crew.

In March, 1898, when the ‘Samson ” was ordered for the Stikine River service, it
was decided to build a new snagging scow to take its place on the Fraser River."s The
dimensions of this scow are 80 feet by 24 feet over all, and 5 feet 1 inch deep, from top
of deck to bottom of scow. The house on top comprises living compartment for the
men, 24 feet by 18, and an engine room 23 feet by 12 feet affording ample accommoda-
tion for storing supplies.  The hoisting machinery is a double cylinder hoisting engine
arranged with two friction drums, foot brake, boiler and fixtures complete, two cylinders
6% inch by 8 inch stroke, boiler 34 inch diameter. The boiler and engine are mounted
on the same base. The equipment comprises ropes, blocks, tools, cooking utensils, ete.

The details of the cost of this snagging scow are as follows :—

Scow, house included................ e $ 1,903 00
Engine.................... e e e e 875 00
Equipment............ ... e e e e e 705 64

Total............coooivininn.. .. 83,483 64
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The details of the running expenses of the snag-boat  Samson,” snagging scow,
and tug “ Princess ” on the Fraser River for the past year are as follows :—

Wages..oooie it it e $5,225 77
Material .. ............. ... ...t et 575 30
Provisions.... ... ... .. ... ., 1,087 49
Wood. ... e e e 250 25
Coal. .. ... e 372 75
£ e e e 30 00
Contingencies. . ...... .......... ... iieaa.. .. 40 38

$ 7,581 94

The log of the “ snagging scow,” from the time she was put in commission to the
1st of July, 1898, having been destroyed in the fire, it is impossible to give a detailed
statement of work done during that period. The operations were much the same as
those of the ‘*Samson.”

(c.) After a careful study it was found that the most urgent work required in con-
nection with the Fraser River improvement was the protection of the river bank on
Westham Island, at the mouth of the river.

Along a portion of the island the washing away of the bank has been so rapid that,
in the past five years, a strip of land, averaging 500 feet in breadth, has been carried
away. This very serious erosion was caused by the main body of the river, after coming
through Woodward’s slough, striking against this section of Westham Island. The soil
of this island being composed of silt, no resistance was offered to the current with the
result above described. In order to arrest any further encroachment by the river a
continuous mattress protection was built along the shore a distance of 3,600 feet. These
mattresses are 100 feet x 25 feet x 24 feet, made of alternate cross layers of brush laid
on timbers, which are bolted to a second set of timbers laid on top of the mattresses.
Four of these mattresses are fastened together with strong timbers and bolts, into a
section 100 feet square. These large sections are then placed so that one end of each
rests on the edge of the bank and the other end floats in the stream, they are then
loaded with rock and sunk in that position. All gaps due to the irregularities of the
river bank are filled in with fascines and rock. 1In cases where the size of the gaps will
permit, smaller mattresses are built to fit in behind the larger onesand sunk in the same
manner. .

The total area of bank protected was 376,676 square feet, making a total of 941,690
cubic feet of mattresses and fascines. One hundred and forty seven mattresses were
used in connection with this work at a cost of $33,073.41. In this amount $700
is included for the fascines used in filling spaces behind the mattresses.

The cost per mattress sunk in place was ............... $227 03'
“ square foot o 00878
o cubic foot G e 0-0351

Within the past few years a channel has been cutting through the sand bar opposite
Ewen’s slough. This has had the effect of silting up the channel passing by Steveston
" and thereby preventing access by steamers to the canneries lying at the upper end of
Steveston. In order to restore the channel to its former condition a dam was built
which will have the tendency to close this newly made channel and throw the water
into the old channel by the canneries at Steveston.
The following mattresses were used in building this dam at a cost of $2,493.75 :

1 mattress 100 ft. x 24 ft. x 2} ft.
1 o 100 ft. x 24 ft. x b ft.
4 . 100 ft. x 24 ft. x 6 ft.

At Miller’s landing, Sumas, the Fraser River has been encroaching also in a serious
manner.
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From 1876 to 1897, 123 acres of valuable improved land (mostly planted with fruit
trees) have been washed away. From 1890 to 1897, 28 acres have been carried off in the
same manner. Previous to 1894, attempts had been made to arrest this bank erosion
by building a wing dam. :

During the past year a cut 80 feet wide was excavated through the bar opposite
Miller’s Janding. This was done with the object of réstoring, as nearly as possible, the
main channel of the Fraser River to its former position, that occupied by it previous to
1876. Operations had to be suspended in the month of May, before the work was
completed, owing to the sudden rise of the river. I would strongly recommend that
work be resumed at this point during the present year with the aid of a powerful
dredge. The cost of this work for the past year is $7,581.94. :

The total expenditure during the year ended June 30th, in connection with these
improvements is $49,997.57, of which the details are :

(1) Mattress protection at mouth of river on Westham Island and dam across
channel opposite Ewen’s slough :

WaZeS. . .o ie ittt i i e $15,199 21
Plant. . .. o e e 691 33
Coal..........ovennn. G e e eeaiaeiiea.... 1,673 00
Plant, scows, etc., and material used................. 11,400 45
Materialon hand. .. ... ... ... o i, 3,757 17
PrOVISIONS .+ . v\ vt et ettt et ea e e 5,200 49
Tughire... . ..... oo 4,206 86
Superintendence ... .......... ... i, 324 55
Contingencies.. .......ccoov vt 223 80

$42,576 86
(2) Miller’s landing : '

Wages.. ... veeee it ... B D698 T8
Material . ... ..co.vvrvee i e e 1,138 13
Wood . oot it e e i 10 00
Tughire........oooiiie i 408 00
Coal .. o e 720
Provisionse. . .......ooia L e 124 70
Contingencies.. .. .. ....ooveiiiiii il Ll 33 90
$ 7,420 71

42,576 86

Total ........ . coovin i 849,997 57

NICOMEKLE RIVER,

The Nicomekle River is situate in the southern part of the district of New West-
minster, and empties into Boundary Bay.

During the year ended June 30th, 1898, the sum of $184.25 was expended in
removing snags from the channel of the river. :

OKANAGON RIVER.

The portion of the Okanagon River now under reference is that which connects
Okanagon Lake with Dog Lake, being to the south of the former. On the former lake,
which is upwards of 60 miles long, a large stern-wheel steamer belonging to the
Canadian Pacific railway, plies, connecting at Vernon, situate at the upper end of the
Jake, with cthe Shuswap and Okanagon branch of that line. At Penticton, situate at the
ower end of Okanagon Lake, it is proposed to connect with a small steamer plying
by way of the Okanagon River and Dog Lake to Okanagon Falls, in the vicinity of
which rich mineral deposits are said to exist.
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The distance between the lakes, by way of the river is about five and a half miles,
while in a straight line it is about only three miles. The upper portion of the river is
very narrow, gradually widening out and becoming shallower, for about half its length,
when it widens and deepens to Dog Lake. It is not possible to make the river navi-
gable for steamers of from 139 to 150 feet long, except at considerable outlay. During
the year ended June 30th, 1898, the work of improving this river consisted in removing
snags and log jams which, in some cases, obstructed the river completely from one bank
to the other. After this work was completed in the month of October, the steamer
specially built to run from Penticton to Okanagon Falls made three successful trips
through the Okanagon River, but was then laid up on account of the traffic not proving
remunerative.

The details of expenditure in connection with this river for the year 1897-98 are
as follows :—

Wages . ... e $430 35
Material . ... .. ... i i i i e 69 65
Total .oovees e i e $500 00

SKEENA RIVER.

The Skeena River lies in the north-western portion of British Columbia. It
derives its source from lakes and glaciers situate between the 56th and 57th parallels of
north latitude and between the 126th and 128th degrees of west longitude. It flows
generally in a south-westerly direction and empties into the waters of the Pacific Ocean
by way of North Skeena, Telegraph, and Malaca passages, Cbatham Sound, &c., at a
point a little north of the 54th parallel of north latitude, and a few miles west of the
130th degree of west longitude, and about 650 miles, by the inner passage, north-west
of Victoria. The principal post office and port on the Skeena is Port Essington, lying
on the south shore of the estuary, at the confluence of the Skeena and Oxtall rivers, 13
miles east or inland of the entrance passages. It is navigable by light draught steamers,
when the water is not too high, from May to the end of September, as far up as Hazel-
ton, a Hudson’s Bay company post, established on the south bank at a distance of about
173 miles from the mouth of the river. This post is the distributing point for the
mining and grazing country lying to the north and west towards the Rocky Mountains
and Peace River country, and to some distance to the scuth.

The appropriation of $3 500 made for the improvement of the Skeena was expended
(as shown by the details below) as follows :—

1st. In constructing a snagging scow to replace the old one which had reached a
state of decay such as to make it unfit and unsafe for the work. This scow was built
of the following dimensions :—Length 60 feet, width 20 feet 6 inches, depth 4 feet 6
inches, and fitted with an A frame on the bow for hoisting out snags, and a house 18
feet by 14 feet, for the accommodation of the men. The hoisting appliances and gear
;rlere moved from the old to the new scow. The latter was built by contract and cost

,077.50.

2nd. In improving the condition of the salmon fishing grounds in the tidal water of
the estuary which extends inland from the mouth about 25 miles, by removing from the
bars and channels, sunken snags and drift wood which, replenished yearly by the
freshets, prove destructive to the Salmon drift nets. )

The details of this expenditure for the year ended June 30th, 1898 are :

Newscow........... ............. e 21,077 50

Snagging operations :—

Wages ......iiiit i e $642 50

Boat...... .. e e e 50 00

Tughire......... ... i, 915 00

Materials and tools... ... ............ .. 452 50

Contingencies............. ............ 63 50 $2,123 50
Total. .... ............ .. $3,201 00
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Of the amount of $452.50 for materials $380.60 was expended in the purchase of
500 Ibs of dynamite, and tools, to be used in the removal of rocks in the canyon which
are a danger to navigation. However, the construction of a new scow, and the removal
of snags, having consumed nearly the whole of the appropriation, the work of improving
navigation in the upper reaches of the river, above tide water, was not resumed.

The Skeena river is at present the natural highway by which freight and passen-
gers can be most conveniently transported into the rich mining country forming the
northern and north-eastern portion of the province, and to the Peace River country,
and for this reason expenditure with the object of securing safe navigation is justifiable.
At present all the supplies for the Hudson Bay Co’s stores through that district are
taken up the Skeena River by steamer to Hazleton, and from there by pack train to
the Omenica and Peace River districts.

STIKINE RIVER.

( Route to Yukon.)

On the 10th March, 1898, orders were issued by the department for an examina-
tion of a water route from the Pacific coast to the Yukon district all through Canadian
territory, via the Stikine River, Teslin Lake and the Hootalinqua, Lewis and Yukon
Rivers. With a view of rendering this route immediately available, as far as practicable,
for the transportation of miners and settlers, desirous of reaching the newly discovered
Klondyke gold fields with their outfits and provisions, authority was also given to
carry on such preliminary work as might be found urgently needed to improve naviga-
tion over the most obstructed and dangerous rapids and reaches of the chain of rivers
and lakes just named, either by snagging, removing rocks, etc., or otherwise. At the
close of the year ended 30th June, 1398, this examination was in progress, and the
work of snagging etc., as will be described below, had been commenced on the Stikine
River.

The Stikine River has its source in the southern part of Cassiar district, and runs
a distance of nearly 130 miles up to the 58th parallel, where it suddenly makes a sharp
bend then turns almost due south to within 20 miles of its mouth, a distance of 150
miles. From that point it runs in a westerly direction and empties into the Stikine
Strait (Pacific Ocean) between the islands of Wrangel and Mitkof. The total length of
the river is approximately 300 miles. The mouth of the Stickine proper is situated 10
miles from the port of Wrangel, between Point Rothsay and Farm Island, where it
has a width of 2} miles. It is subjected to high tides varying from 18 to 26 feet
(neaps 18 feet, springs 26 ft.) which affect the river, as far up as the Ka-te-té River, a
small tributary which empties into the Stikine, 25 miles from its mouth.

At lowest water, the estuary of the river is for about two hours, and for a distance
of about 5 miles from the sea, a sand flat through which the stream winds its course,
being about 20 inches deep ; but owing to the great range of the tides this part of the
river is easily navigable, and as soon as the flood has risen four or five feet, there isabun-
dance of water for any river boat. The width of the river for the first 25 miles varies
from 2% miles to 500 feet, although in some places islands divide it into several chan-
nels, the largest of which is about 200 feet in width. As to the navigability and main
characteristics of the upper reaches of this river and other rivers composing the Stikine
route to the Yukon, the examination in this connection, at the close of the year, was
not advanced far enough to permit of giving any reliable and definite information. In
the lower reach of the Stikine River the main obstructions to navigation were found to
consist of snags and large trees overhanging the banks of the river, and in March, 1898,
the snag boat * Samson,” doing service on the Fraser River, was commissioned for work
on this river. This snag boat bad first to be laid up for necessary repairs and alterations
at New-Westminster. These repairs and alterations consisted of renewing a number of
planks and keelsons, which proved to be decayed, and putting in eleven water-tight
compartments which had the effect of strengthening her considerably. The boiler and
steam pipes were also newly covered and the boat was completely repainted. Many
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minor repairs to her machinery, etc., were also made, and the boat was equipped with
new ropes, four new row boats, a set of new snagging chains, a new outfit of tools, and
two large Benton head-lights ; provisions and supplies were procured for a seven months
cruise.

The “Samson ” arrived at Wrangel only at the end of April, having been delayed
by gales at different places. The boat proceeded up the river as far as the 75th mile,
but there, the river proving too rapid to allow the boat to go farther, instructions
were given to commence the removal of snags and other obstructions at that point, and
work down stream as far as the 50th mile, comprising the worst portion of the river for
snags between Glenora and the mouth. A party of eight men was also organized to
remove snags and other obstructions from the channel between the 80th mile and a
point about 10 miles below Glenora. This work consisted chiefly of blasting snags with
dynamite, and cutting down overhanging trees and sweepers from the banks. The
“Samson ” and the exploring party were still engaged on their work at the close of the
year. It is impossible to describe in detail the work done, either by the snag-boat
‘“Samson ” or the above mentioned party, or to give statements thereof, the weekly
reports having been destroyed in the New- Westminster fire.

The total expenditure in this connection up to the 30th June, 1898, amounts to
about $14,000.00.

WILLIAM'S HEAD QUARANTINE STATION.

The British Columbia Quarantine station at William’s Head is situated about.
eight miles south east of the city of Victoria, and covers an area of about 60 acres. In
the spring of 1892, a deep water pile wharf was built in connection with this quaran-
tine station, the Government supplying the Muntz metal required for covering the
piles, to prevent them from being destroyed by sea worms. The wharf is situated
at Parry Bay, which opens towards the north and Victoria on the west side of William’s
Head. It is 480 feet long by 40 feet wide, and has an approach 320 feet on the south
side leading to the hospital residence and first class passenger shelter houses, and
another on the north side leading to the disinfecting apparatus and to the
Chinese and Japanese shelter houses.

During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898, the work done in connection with
this service may be enumerated as follows:

1. New wharf built for steamer * Earle” ;

2. Repairs to old wharf;

3. Improvements to water service ;

1. A wharf 118 feet 6 inches by 40 feet and an approach thereto measuring 36 feet
by 12 feet, were built for the accommodation of the steamer “ Earle ”, which previously
Wwas unable to tie up when the main wharf was occupied by a steamer in quarantine.
This new wharf is to be used for storing the steamer Earle’s coal, and other supplies
belonging to the station.

2. The repairs to the wharf consisted chiefly in removing piles that were eaten by
teredos. This work was very difficult to carry on, the flooring having to be ripped up
in sections and a special pile driver built on the wharf. In the amount for material
$1,339.68, is included the purchase price of 300 feet of boomsticks to make a fender in
front of the wharf to prevent vessels from tearing their projecting gear against the
fender piles on the edge of the wharf.

3. The work in connection with the water service consisted in lowering the water
in the lake supplying the Quarantine station, sufficiently to remove the decayed vege-
table matter which had been accumulating therein for years. The grass and weeds
covering the ground likely to be flooded during the freshets was burnt and all trees in
danger of falling into the lake were cut down. A number of sunken logs was also
removed. A marked improvement in the water supply was noticed when this work was
completed. A New York filter with a capacity of 43,250 gallons per 24 hours was
purchased and fitted on the grounds near the superintendent’s residence.
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The expenditure during the past year may be detailed as follows :—
New wharf for str. « Earle ”

Wages. .. oov i e e & 514 00
Materials .. .... e e e e e 1,286 00
— —— $1,800 00
Repairs to wharf—
Wages .. ...t $ 1,723 60
Tug hire ....... ..ot il 43 00
Materials ..................... e 1,339 68
Contingencies. . ........... .. cvoiuinnn 63 00
—— $3,169 28
Water Service—
WaZeS. ..t e & 437 75
Material.......... ...... ..., e 158 73
Team hire.............. ... ... ..o 25 50
Tughire.........o. vieiiiiiviiiian, 8 00
Filter .. .. ..o i 400 00
—_ $1,029 98
Total ........oovvvt... e $5,999 26

DREDGING OPERATIONS.

During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898, dredging operations were carried on
in the undermentioned localities, chiefly by the government dredging fleet ; but in some
instances with hired dredging plant. The limited number of dredge vessels owned by
the Public Works Department, is far from being sufficient to carry on satisfactorily the
extensive operations which the Federal Government is, from year to year, called upon to
undertake owing to the steady increase in the tonnage and draught of vessels generally
and the pressing need of deepening harbours on the sea coasts, so that they may be easy
of access and afford fairly good accommodation for shipping, landing and sheltering
purposes to both steam and sailing vessels at all stages of the tide ; improving existing
highways of navigation ; opening new routes and harbours on inland waters, etc.

PROVINCE OF NOVA 8COTIA.

Arisaig——North-west coast, Nova Scotia.

Barrington Passage and Sherrow’s Channel—South-east coast, Nova Scotia.
Larry’s River—-South-east coast, Nova Scotia.

Lockport— do do

Osborne— do do

Port Mouton harbour do do

Wallace harbour—Northumberland Strait. .

Yarmouth harbour—South-west coast, Nova Scotia.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

Charlottetown Ferry Slip~-Northumberland Strait—Queen’s County,
do Steamn Navigation company’s wharf—Northumberland Strait, Queen’s County.

Southport Ferry— do do do

Summerside, Bedeque Bay— do do Prince County.
do  Holman’s wharf, Bedeque Bay— do do do

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK.

Cushing’s Mills—River St. John.

Fredericton— do York County.

Gagetown Creek Canal—River St. John, Queen’s County.

Jemseg River—An affluent of the St. John, do

MacLean’s wharf, Burton—Sunbury County. .

Richibucto harbour, mouth of River, Northumberland Strait—Kent Co.
Intercolonial Railway terminus—St John Harbour.

McAvity’s wharf— do do
Lawton’s wharf— do do
Thorne’s wharf— do do
Maritime Nail Co’s wharf— do do
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PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.

Ship channel between Montreal and Quebec—(River St Lawrence).
Charlemagne— River L’Assomption.

Chateauguay—Chateauguay River, affluent River St. Lawrence, south shore.
Coteau Landing—River St. Lawrence, north side.

Isle Gros Bois.—River St. Lawrence, below Montreal.

Laprairie— do south shore.
Longueuil— do o

River Richelien—Afluent River St. Lawrence, south side.
River St. Francis— do do

o
Pointe aux Trembles (en haut) River St. Lawrence. do
St. Jean Deschaillons—- o o
St."Michel— do south shore, below Quebec.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

Adolphustown—Bay of Quinté.

Ambherstburg—Detroit River.

Bowmanville—(Port Darlington), Lake Ontatio.
Bellev.lle—Bay of Quinté, mouth of river Moira.
Cobourg—Lake Ontario, north shore.

Frenchman’s Bay—(Pickering Harbour), Lake Ontario.
Kaministiquia River—mouth of river, Thunder Bay, Lake Superior.
Kingston—Lake Ontario.

Meaford—Georgian Bay, Lake Huron, (south side).
Midland-- do do

Newcastle—Lake Ontario, north shore.

Point Edward—St. Clair River.

Port Arthur—Thunder Bay, Lake Superior, north shore.
Port EKlgin—Lake Huron, East shore.

Port Stanley—mouth of Kettle Creck, Lake Erie, north shore.
Prescott—Upper St. Lawrence, north side.

Saugeen River—Lake Huron, near Southampton.

South nation River—A tributary of the Ottawa, south shore.
Sydenham River—Lake St. Claire.

Texas Landing—Detroit River.

Whitby—Lake Ontario, north shore.

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.
Red River—mouth of River, Lake Winnipeg.

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA,

Nanaimo Harbour—Vancouver Island. . -
Vancouver Harbour—Burrard Inlet, New Westminster District.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

DREDGING 4T ARISAIG.

Arisaig, Antigonish county, is a village on the gulf of St. Lawrence, 3% miles
north-east of New Glasgow, with about 150 inhabitants, one store and a post office,

A small steamer calls here when weather permits.

Spring tides rise 5} feet, neaps 3} feet.

Although the small cove at Arisaig cannot properly be called a harbour, and is
dangerous, especially with winds north to west, noteworthy effort has been made to
improve this place by dredging. Part of an old breakwater, some iron ore that was left
from a sunken vessel in the approach to the harbour and sand rock were removed ; the
dredged cut being carried in towards shore eight feet deep, 150 feet wide along the inside
of Ii?e breakwater, to a point where but four feet could be obtained on account of ledge
rock.
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Between the 8th and 30th June, 1898, the dredge ¢ George McKenzie” removed a
further quantity of 2,205 cubic yards of material to eight feet at low water spring
tides. This was exceptionally hard and trying work performed in a dangerous place.

DREDGING AT BARRINGTON PASSAGE AND SHERROW’S CHANNEL.

Barrington Passage is a seaport town of Shelburne county, N.8., about 165 miles
south-west of Halifax, with a population of about 500 engaged in fishing and farming.

A steamer running between Yarmouth and Halifax calls at the public wharf to
land passengers and freight. There are several churches, hotels, stores, and a custom
house in the place, which is one of the shore line railway termini.

Spring tides rise 8% feet and neaps 6} feet.

Sherrow’s channel, running into the passage east of Robertson’s wharf and the bar,
engaged the attention of the department in regard to improvement by dredging.

During the fiscal year the dredge “Canada” operated from 10th May to 30th
June, deepening and improving the channel towards the public wharf from the passage,
to 10 feet depth which it obtains at the wharf, 12,780 cubic yards, principally mud, being
removed to a distance of about three miles.

DREDGING AT LARRY’S RIVER.

Larry’s River, Guysboro county, is a post settlement at the west end of Tor bay,
with a population of about 400 principally engaged in fishing. There is a telegraph
station. Tides rise 54 feet at neaps and seven feet at springs.

The work of continuing the improvement of the channel of Larry’s River to 8 feet
depth at L.W.S.T. was carried on by the dredge “ Geo. McKenzie ” from 1st July to 22nd
September, 1897, and a new channel eight feet deep was made to the wharf.

15,390 cubic yards of mud, boulders, etc, was dredged, and the materials were
hauled to a place of deposit about one mile distant.

DREDGING AT LOCKEPORT.

The town of Lockeport is a port of entry on Ragged Island harbour, Shelburne
county, about 37 miles E.S.E. of Shelburne, The population of the settlement is about
1,500, and there is a considerable trade done here in West Indian goods and in products
of the fisheries. There are several stores, a hotel, a branch bank, a telegraph office, etc.
The approach to the harbour is difficult, but within the anchorage is good. The rise
and fall of tide is 74 feet at springs and five feet at neaps.

Dredging was done in the harbour, improving the channel and in front of the
wharfs, to ten feet L.W.S.T. The material removed was principally mud which was
deposited at a distance of three to 3} miles from the seat of operations.

During the fiscal year the dredge “ Canada” removed 28,170 cubic yards of
material.

DREDGING AT OSBORNE,

Osborne wharf, Shelburne county, in the vicinity of Lockeport in the same har-
bour, about one mile distant to the north, had the services of the dredge * Canada ” for
about four days in Ociober deepening towards the wharf, so as to give ten feet water
L.W.S.T. ; the material dredged was 990 cubic yards of mud which was removed to a
distance of about three miles.

Tides here have about the same range as at Lockeport, springs seven feet, neaps
5 feet.

Within about 20 feet of the wharf rock was struck so that the extension of the
wharf some feet farther out will secure the full benefit of the dredging done.
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DREDGING AT PORT MOUTON.

Port Mouton is a small village in Queen’s county, of about 400 inhabitants,
situated about 10 miles west of Liverpool in a bay of the same name. The settlers are
principally fishermen.

Tides rise, springs 7% feet, neaps 53.

The dredging done during the fiscal year, was the straightening and deepening of
the channel at the entrance to the harbour and approcach to wharfs to a depth of 9
feet L.W.S.T. From the 1lst July to the 10th August, 1897, the “ Canada” removed
9,270 cubic yards fine sand and deposited it at a distance of akout one mile.

DREDGING AT WALLAGE.

Wallace, Cumberland county, is a seaport on Northumberland strait and, excepting
Pictou, is the finest harbour on this coast. There are 16 feet water over the bar